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11 August 2023

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (SEC)
The SEC Headquarters, 7907 Makatl Avenue,
Salcedo Village, Bel-Air, Makati City

Attention:  Atty. Rachel Esther . Gumtang-Remalante
Director
Corporate Governance and Finance Department

Re: Definitive Information Statement

Dear Director Gumtang-Remalante,

This is in reference to the electronic mail dated 10 August 2023 from the Corporate
Governance and Finance Department-Licensing Division (CGFD-LD) addressed to Valley Golf
& Country Club, Inc. (“Valley Golf”), directing Valley Golf to submit its Definitive Information
Statement and Management Report together with the proxy forms in accordance with the

following comments and recommendations in the checklist provided:

(1)

(2

()

(4)

“As to the Notice of Meeting: Please comply with Rule 20.11.2.2. on the
validation of proxy;

As to the Proxy Form: Please correlate with Notice of Meeting on the
Validation of Proxy;

As to the General Information: Please correlate the "date on delinquent
list as posted” as stated in the Notice of Meeting.

On Item 5, Directors & Executive Officers: (a) List the names, ages and
citizenship of all directors, including independent directors, executive
officers and all persons nominated or chosen to become such where
required under Section 38 of the Code and SRC Rule 38.1 adopted
thereunder; also provide the names of the incorporators in the case of
an investment company:

Please identify the name of stockholder/s who nominated the
candidates for Independent Director; and

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUE, INC.
Don Calso 5. Tuason Avanue, Antipolo Cliy 1870 Phillppines
Telephone: 84584901 to 03
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Attach Certifications as to qualification of independent directors,
namely: Ricky Libago; Michael Echavez and Robert John Barretto. Their
qualifications are yet subject of validation by our Corporate Governance
and Finance Department. We may still have comments on their
qualifications upon receipt of CGD's comments.”

Please be advised that Valley Golf has complied with the above directives, as follows:

COMMENTS/

RECOMMENDATIONS
Notice of Meeting

1) Notice of Meeting: Please comply with
Rule 20.11.2.2. on the validation of proxy

PAGE REFERENCE

Valley Golf has revised the Notice of
Agenda included in the Definitive
Information Statement to comply

with Rule 20.11.2.2.
validation of proxy.

on the

The revised Notice of Agenda now
states that the last day for validation
of proxy forms is on September 19,
2023 at 5:00 P.M., or five (5) days
prior the annual stockholders
meeting on September 24, 2023.

Proxy

2} Proxy Form: Please correlate with
Notice of Meeting on the Validation of
Proxy;

Valley Golf has revised the Proxy |
Form to correlate with Notice of
Meeting on the Validation of Proxy.

The revised form state that
validation of proxy forms is on
September 19, 2023 at 5:00 P.M. , or
five (5) days prior the annual
stockholders meeting.

 General Information

3) General Information: Please correlate
the "date on delinquent list as posted” as
stated in the Notice of Meeting.

Valley Golf has revised page 2 item 1
(e) to correlate the "date on
delinquent list as posted" as stated in
the Notice of Meeting.

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
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The date has been revised to reflect

delinquent list as of September 14,
2023

Directors & Executive Officers

4) Directors & Executive Officers: (a) List
the names, ages and citizenship of all
directors, including independent
directors, executive officers and all
persons nominated or chosen to become
such where required under Section 38 of
the Code and SRC Rule 38.1 adopted
thereunder; also provide the names of the
incorporators in the case of an investment
company:

Please identify the name of stockholder/s
who nominated the candidates for
Independent Director; and

Attach Certifications as to qualification of
independent directors, namely: Ricky
Libago; Michael Echavez and Robert John
Barretto. Their qualifications are yet
subject of validation by our Corporate
Governance and Finance Department. We
may still have comments on their
qualifications upon receipt of CGD's
comments,

We inserted a statement on page 13
stating  the nominees for
independent directors, and who
nominated said nominees.

This information is also reflected in
pages 30 to 32 of the Definitive
Information Statement,

We have attached as Annexes “C-4",
“C-5” and “C-6" the Nomination
Forms and Certifications as to
qualifications of independent
directors for the nominees for
independent directors: Ricky Libago;
Michael Echavez and Robert John
Barretto. These documents are
mentioned in page 32 of the
Definitive Information Statement.

Please find the attached Definitive Information Statement and Management Report and
other Annexes in relation to the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders to be held on 24
September 2023. We trust you will find everything in order and in compliance with the
electronic mail of the CGFD-LD dated 10 August 2023,

Thank you very much.

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
Don Celso S. Tuason Avenus, Antipolo City 1870 Philippines
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_ Very truly yours,

DAN L. SALVADOR III
General Manager
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
Don Calso S. Tuason Avenue, Antipolo City 1870 Philippines
Telephone: 84584901 to 03
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E-mall: Info@valleygolf.com.ph



fHLS Mmm,ﬁwmmo-' B
FAXN@ GSMIE -




COVER SHEET

(1[3i9i6{1[ | [ [ [ ]

8.E.C. Reglstration Number

<
B>
-
-
<
el
oy

OL|F| |& |COU|N|TIRY

CIL|U|Bi{ |[I|N[C]

{Company’s Full Name})

D/O/N| [C|E|L|S|O |S| [T|UA[S|ON| |AV[E|N|UE

V1[I T[O[R[ITA] [VIA[LILIE[Y] TAINT[1[P[OL]O [CJ1]T]Y

(Business Address: No. Street Clty / Town / Province}

ATTY. AMADO DANILO G. TAYAG/TESS GAN | 8470-92-34
Contact Person Company Telephons Number
016 3|10 ] 20-IS 09| [+ [Sun
Month Day FORM TYPE Month Day
Fiscal Year ' Annual Meeting

Second License Type, ¥ Applicable

Dept. Requirng this Doc. Amended Articles Number/Section
Total Amount of Borrowings

Total No. of Stockholders Domestic Foreign

To be accomplished by SEC Personnel concemed

Flle Number icu
Document L.D. Cashler
[rmm s

i
' |
! i
i STAMPS i
' i
: i

L e S
Remarks = pls, use black ink for scanning purposes



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Cover Sheet
Notice and Agenda of Annual Meeting of Stockholders
Proxy Form

A,
B.
C

D

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT
General Information
Control and Compensation Information
Issuance and Exchange of Securities
Other Matters

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN A PROXY FORM

III. SIGNATURE
IV,  CERTIFICATION SIGNED BY MR. CLIFF M. FRIEDMAN
GENERAL MANAGER OF VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB,
INC.
ANNEX “A™: Notice and Agenda of the Annual Meeting
ANNEX “B"™: Rules of the Meeting and the Guidelines for the
September 24, 2023 Stockholders’ Meeting
ANNEX “C™: SEC Form 17-C filed on 25 October 2022; Certification on

the
Qualifications of Independent Directors Mr. Marvin A.
Caparros and Mr. Nicanor S. Jorge

ANNEX “C-1": SEC Form 17-C filed on 20 july 2023; Nomination

Committee

ANNEX "“C-2": SEC Form 17-C filed on 27 June 2023; Election Committee

ANNEX “C-3": SEC Form 17-C filed on 27 July 2023; Audit &

Compensation Committee

ANNEX “C-4": Certification as to qualification of independent directors;

Mr. Ricky Libago

ANNEX “C-5": Certification as to qualification of Independent

directors; Mr. Michael Echavez

ANNEX “C-6": Certification as to qualification of independent

directors; Mr. Robert John Barreto

ANNEX “D": Corporate Governance

ANNEX “E™: Management Report



ANNEX “F*;

ANNEX “G":

ANNEX “H":
ANNEX “H-1":
ANNEX "I
ANNEX “I-1":
ANNEX "1™

ANNEX “J-1%

Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Financial
Statements

Audited Financial Statements

Quarterly Report (SEC Form 17-Q) for the First Quarter
of the year 2023

Proxy Form of BOD

Proxy Form for Amendment of AOI and By-Laws
Proposed Amended Articles of Incorporation

Proposed Amended By-Laws



10.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
Check the appropriate box:
[] Preliminary Information Statement
[X] Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its
charter: Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

Antipolo, Rizal, Philippines
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

SEC Identification Number: 13951

BIR Tax Identificaticn Code: 000-649-197

Don Celso S, Tuason Avenue, Victoria Valley, Antipolo 1870
City
Address of principal office Postal Code

Registrant’s telephone number, including area
code: _(02) 658-0079 / 658-0089

_September 24, 2023, 4:00 p.m,, Valley Golf Clubhouse
Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders  August 16, 2023

In case of Proxy Solicitations :

Name of Person Filing the
Statement/Solicitor : Atty, Allan |ocson, in his capacity as Corporate Secretary
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Address and Telephone
No.: _¢/o Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc., 658-0079 / 658-0086

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections
4 and 8 of the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt
is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding or Amount of Debt Outstandi ng

——Common_ 1594 shares _ fssued and
outstanding

Are any or al] of registrant’s securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

Yes No__ x

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities

listed therein:
ALLAI_ﬁ;CSON
Corporate Secretary
¥
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NOTICE AND AGENDA OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

TO:  ALLSTOCKHOLDERS
VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB,
INC. will be conducted in hybrid format (a combination of in-person and remote attendance) on
September 24, 2023 at 4:00P.M. as provided for in the Minutes of the Meeting dated July 15, 2023
wherein the Board of Directors approved the conduct of the annual meeting in hybrid format.

Voting by VGCCI stockholders of record in absentia will be through the Club’s secure online
voting facility or by appointing a proxy. The in-person meeting will be held at the Founders’
Hall, Main Clubhouse, Valley Golf & Country Club, Don Celso Tuason Ave., Antlpolo Clty and will
be live streamed through an online live broadcast.

Stockholders who wish to participate in the meeting, whether in-person or remotely, must register at the
VGCCl 2023 ASM website <www.valleygolfelection.com> and emall supporting documents listed therein
to admin@valleygolf.com.ph on or before September 19, 2023. All documents submitted will be subject
to verification and validation by the Corporate Secretary. Stockholders who wish to attend In-person must
email the Corporate Secretary at admin@valleygolf.com.ph to be counted for in-person attendance.
Kindly note that in-person attendance wiil be fimited to the first fifty {(50) Stockholders who registered via
emall as set forth above.

Stockholders Intending to exercise the right to vote in absentia should notify Valley Golf by sending an e-
mail to admin@valleygolf.com.ph and submit a fully accomplished and signed Letter of Intent (LOJ) and
Data Privacy Consent form.

Elections for Members of the Board shall likewise be held on Sept 20 (8:00 a.m.} up to Sept. 21, 2023 (5:00
p.m.) for members Voting In Person online and September 22, 2023 (from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 pm) for those
Voting by Proxy online.

AGENDA

Call to Order

Corporate Secretary’s Certification of Service of Notice and Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on September 25, 2022
Matters arising from the Minutes and actlon taken.

Financial Report of the Treasurer

President’s Report

Ratification of the President and Treasurer’s Reports, Acts of the Board and Management (July
1, 2022 to lune 30, 2023)

NowvAwNE

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC
Don Celso 5. Tuason Ave. Antlpolo City 1870 Philippines
Telephone: 8658 4901 to 03

www.valleygolf.com.ph 1
E-mail: info@vallaygolf.com.ph
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8. Appointment of External Auditor

9. Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation:
10. Amendment of the By-laws:

11. Election of Directors

12. Other Matters

13, Adjournment

WHO ARE LIFIED TO VOTE

The Board of Directors has fixed August 1, 2023 as the record date for the determination of the
stockholders who are entitled to vote at said Annual Meeting. “Only stockholders in good standing shall
have the right to vote and be voted upon x x x.” (Article lll, Sec. 8, Amended By-Laws). The stock and
transfer book of the corporation will not be closed.

Only stockholders In good standing as of August 1, 2023 and not appearing in the Club's delinguent list as
posted on September 14, 2023 shall be qualified to vote.

For voting purposes, each share of stock shall be entitled to one (1) vote. However, in electing the
candidates for the Board of Directors, each shareholder shall be entitled to nine {9) cumulative votes.

A stockholder may appoint a proxy to represent him or her during the Annual Meeting, subject to the
Rules and Procedures in the Verification/Authentication of Proxies as shown in Enclosure No. 4. All proxies
submitted and registered on or before 5:00 P.M. of the record date, shall be the basis for determining the
quorum,

Deadline for filing of proxy forms Is at 5:00 PM of September 14, 2023. Proxy forms shall be validated as
these are received by the Club, provided that the proxy forms are submitted to the Club on or before 5:00
P.M. of September 14, 2023. The last day for validation of proxy forms is on September 19, 2023 at 5:00
P.M.

WHO ARE QUALIFIED FOR ELECTION

Only those nominated In accordance with Article Ill, Section 8, Article IV, Section 1 - Paragraph 2 and
Article IV, Section 5 of the Club’s By-Laws, who satisfled the qualifications and passed the screening of the
Nominating Committee, shall qualify for election to the Board of Directors.

Stockholders on record shall elect nine (9) Directors from the list of qualifled candidates.

SCHEDULE OF VOTING, CANVASSING & ANNOUNCEMENT OF RESULT

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC
Don Ceiso S. Tuason Ave. Antipolo City 1870 Philippines
Telephone: 84658 4901 to 03

www.vslleygolf.com.ph 2
E-mail: info@valleygolf.com.ph
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September 20-21, 2023 Voting in Person online from September 20

{Wednesday — Thursday) (8:00 a.m.) up to September 21, 2022 (5:00
p.m.)

September 23, 2022 Voting by Proxyholder online from 8:00 a.m.

(Friday) to 5:00 pm

Voting for stockholders may only be done through the Online Voting System/Portal and not during the
live stream broadcast.

An independent third-party entity will count and tabulate the votes cast in absentia through the Voting
System/Portal. The Committee on Election will validate the voting results. The Committee on Election shall
report the results of voting during the Meeting.

RULES OF THE MEETING

1. Stockholders' meeting will be under a hybrid set up. Stockholders will be allowed to personaily attend
the on-site meeting subject to limitation on the number of in-person participants as a safety
precaution.

Stockholders who wish to participate in the meeting, whether in-person or remotely, must register at
the VGCCI 2023 ASM website <www.valleygolfelection.com> and email supporting documents listed
therein to admin@valleygolf.com.ph on or before September 19, 2023. All documents submitted will
be subject to verification and validation by the Corporate Secretary.

Registration:
¢ Open your browser and type https://www.valleygolfelection.com, Supply the one-
time passcode (that was sent to your emall address) on the "Account Verification
Form” and press Enter.
Click Register and you will be redirected to a Google Form.
Accomplish the required information and click / agree with the Privacy notice of VGCC
and click | consent to the processing of the above Information In connection with
VGCC’s Annual Stockholders Meeting.
¢ The following information and documentary requirements must be emailed to
admin@vallevgolf.com,ph to complete the registration:
o Forindividual stockholder:
* Valid government-issued ID with photo and signature {in JPG format)
n  Avalid and active e-mail address
=  Avalid and active contact number

YALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC
Don Calso 5. Tuason Ave. Antipolo City 1870 Philippines
Telephone: 8658 4901 to 03

www.valleygolf.com.ph 3
E-mail: info@valleygolf.com.ph
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o For corporation:

= A scanned copy of certiflcation signed by a duly authorized officer of
such corporation attesting to the authority of the representative to
vote for and on behalf of the corporation (in JPG format)

® A scanned copy of one (1) valld government-issued ID of the
representative with photo and signature (in JPG format)

= Avalid and active e-mall address of the representative

= Avalid and actlve contact number of the representative

¢ In addition to the above, Stockholders who wish to attend In-person must email the
Corporate Secretary at admin@valleygolf.com.ph to be counted for in-person
attendance. Kindly note that In-person attendance will be limited to the first fifty (50)
Stockholders who registered via emall as set forth above.

Livestream - Zoom Webinar

Please go to https://zoom.us/test and click “Join”.

You will be given the optlon to “download and run Zoom” (if not yet Installed
previously, especially for mabile devices) or to “join from your browser”
{recommended for desktop/laptop users).

To Join the webinar, click the link that the host provided or the one you
received In the confirmation page after you registered. If the host sent a
registration confirmation email, the link can alse be found there.

Stockholders of record who have OTP will be provided a direct link to the live stream
broadcast of the 2023 Annual Stockholders Meeting (ASM).

Stockholders are advised to ensure a stable internet connection during online registration,
voting, and viewing of the live stream broadcast of the 2023 Annual Stockholders Meeting
{ASM).

Items in the Agenda together with the questions, suggestions or comments sent through
email by any stockholder including the results of the voting on every item in the Agenda will
be presented sequentially during the meeting

The main page of the Club’s website will provide a link to the recording of the whole
meeting.

Only the items in the Agenda and the results of the election will be taken up in the virtual
meeting.

The Board of Directors, members of the Committee on Election {Comelec), stockholders (and
administratlve support staff) will be present in the hybrid meeting.

The link to audlo and video recordings of the 2023 ASM livestream broadcast will be made
available in the Club’s website after the event.

Stockholders may submit questions and comments including objections, if any, on any matter
in the Agenda, on or before 5:00 p.m. on September 22, 2023 which will be posted with the

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC
Don Calso 5. Tuason Ave. Antipolo City 1870 Philippinas
Talephone: 8658 4901 to 03

www.valleygelf.com.ph
E-mail: info@valieygolf.com.ph
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corresponding replies thereto during the live stream of the 2023 Annual Stockholders
Meeting (ASM).

10. Any gquestions or comments submitted and received after the deadline shall be answered
directly by Management thru email to the stockholder concerned. Additional questions or
comments may be sent to office of the president@valleygolf.com.ph

11, Mechanism for Information dissemination — The website will include a portlon for
“Frequently asked questions”. Stockholders are advised to visit the Frequently Asked
Questions (FAQ) page prior to sending inquiries.

ATTY. A OCSON
CorporatéSecretary

Enclosures: 1) Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting on September 25, 2022; 2} Summary of all Board
Resolutions; 3} Rules and Procedures in the Verification/Authentication of Proxies and Election of Directors;
4) List of Candidates; and 5) Calendar.

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC
Don Celso S. Tuason Ave. Antipolo City 1870 Philippines
Telephone: 8458 4901 to 03

www.valleygolf.com.ph 3
E-mail: info@valleygelf.com.ph



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
September 24, 2023 at 4:00 P.M.
Via Live Streaming, VGCCI

PROXY

No. 2023 - 0000 (Incremental number to start with 0001)

I, the undersigned member of Valley Golf &
Country Club, Inc., hereby name and appoint the following person to vote on the specified
matters:

Name | Agendaltem i

1. To approve the minutes of the 2022 Annual

___stockholders’ meeting.

2. To approve the Company’s 2023 Annual

| Report and Audited Financial Statements.

3. To confirm and ratify all acts and resoclutions
of the Board of Directors & Management
(July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 inclusive). ]

. To appoint External Auditors.
. To cast votes for person/s to the 2023-2024
Board of Directors.

4
5

| Regular Directors
. Jose Arsenio Isidro D. Borromeo il
. Marvin A. Caparros
. Jose Ferdinand R. Guiang
. EricR. lllescas
. Constantine L. Kohchet-Chua
. Edward P. Lim
. Luis G. Quicgue
. Rafael S. Raymundo
. Jose G. Razon
10. Albert San Gabriel
11. Rio Sesinando E. Venturanza

orinthe
absence and/or non-attendance of my
PROXY the Chairman of the Meeting.

VOSSN BRWN =

Independent Directors:
1. Robert John C. Baretto
2. Michae! T. Echavez
3. Ricky Libago

as my proxy at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc., to be
held on 24 September 2023 at 4:00pm’, and/or any postponements or adjournment(s)
thereof, as fully and to all intents and purposes as | lawfully might or could do if present and
voting in person.

Place/Date

1Stockholders may vote online from September 20, 2023 (starting at 8:00 a.m.) up to September 21-, 2023 (5:00 p-m.). Voling by
Proxyholders shall be on September 22, 2023 from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.



Name and Account Number
of Shareholder

Number of Shares

Wihtness

Instruction: The member executing this proxy may withhold the autherity to vote for
any nominee by lining through or striking out the name of the nominee.

VALIDATION OF PROXIES

Proxy form shall be validated as these are received by the Club, provided that the proxy
forms are submitted to the Club on or before 5:00 p.m. of September 14, 2028 which is
consistent with the deadline provided under the Club’s By-Laws. Validation of proxy forms Is
on September 19, 2023 ot 5:00 P.M, For partnerships, corporations, and assoclations, the
proxies should be accompanied by a Secretary's Certificate on the appointment or
designation of a proxy/representative and/or authorized signatories.

LETTER OF INTENT AND DATA PRIVACY CONSENT

I , hereby declare and signify my intent to participate by
remote communication and exercise the right to vote in absentla in the September 24,
2023, Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

By participating in the September 24, 2023, Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of Valley Golf &
Country Club, Inc. and in compliance with Republic Act No. 10173 (or the Data Privacy Act
of 2012) and its Implementing Rules and Regulations {IRR) effective since September 8,
2016, | freely and voluntarily authorize Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. to collect, record,
organize, use, disclose and/or otherwise process any personal information submitted in
connection with this declaration only for the purpose of allowing me to participate in the
stockholders’ meeting by remote communication and vote in absentia. | understand that
by giving this consent, | am not waiving any of my rights other than as authorized herein
under the Data Privacy Act of 2012 and other applicable laws.

Signature of Stockholders Account No.

Proxy No. 2023 - 0000



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
September 24, 2023 at 4:00 P.M.
Via Live Streaming, VGCCI

PROXY

No. 2023 - {where Is equal to account number of members In the system)

l - _. the undersigned member of Valley Golf &
Country Club, Inc., hereby name and appoint the following persons to vote on the
specified matters:

Name | Agenda Item
1. To approve or disapprove all the
The General Manager of VGCCI. proposed Amendments to the Articles of
Incorporation according to his sound
discretions; and

II. To approve or disapprove all the
proposed Amendments to the Amended
By-Laws according to his sound
J discretions.

as my prexy at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc., to be
held on 24 September 2023 at 4:00pm’, and/or any postponements or adjournment{s)
thereof, as fully and to all intents and purposes as | lawfully might or could do if present and
voting in person.

Place/Date

Name and Account Number
of Shareholder

Number of Shares

1stockholders may vote online from September 20, 2023 {starting at 8:00 a.m.) up to September 21-, 2023 (5:00 p.m.). Voting by
Proxyhclders shall be on September 22, 2023 from 8:00 2.m. to 500 pan.



VALIDATION OF PROXIES

Proxy form shall be validated as these are received by the Club, provided that the proxy
forms are submitted to the Club on or before 5:00 p.m. of September 14, 2023 which is
consistent with the deadline provided under the Club’s By-Laws. Validation of proxy forms Is
on September 19, 2023 at 5:00 P.M. For partnerships, corporations, and associations, the
proxies should be accompanied by a Secretary’s Certificate on the appointment or
designation of a proxy/representative and/or authorized signatories.

LETTER OF INTENT AND DATA PRIVACY CONSENT

I . hereby declare and signify my intent to participate by
remote communication and exercise the right to vote in absentia in the September 24,
2023, Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

By participating in the September 24, 2023, Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of Valley Golf &
Country Club, Inc. and in compliance with Republic Act No. 10173 (or the Data Privacy Act
of 2012) and its iImplementing Rules and Regulations {IRR} effective since September 8,
2016, | freely and voluntarily authorize Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. to collect, record,
organize, use, disclose and/or otherwise process any personal information submitted in
connection with this declaration only for the purpose of allowing me to participate in the
stockholders’ meeting by remote communication and vote in absentia. | understand that
by giving this consent, | am not waiving any of my rights other than as authorized herein
under the Data Privacy Act of 2012 and other applicable laws.

Signature of Stockholders Account No.

Proxy No. 2023 - 0000



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
Antipolo City
Philippines

The enclosed proxy is for use in voting at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders
of the Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. is scheduled to be conducted both on site and
virtually via Live Streaming on September 24, 2023 at 4:00P.M. from Valley Golf and
Country Club’s principal office in Antipolo City, as provided for in SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 6, series of 2020, and by Board Resolution on 15 July
2023. In view of the continuing COVID 19 pandemic, a maximum of only Fifty (50)
stockholders shall be allowed to attend and vote on-site (on a first to reserve basis)
while attendance and voting by stockholders shall also be allowed by remote
communication,

Elections for Members of the Board shall likewise be held on September 20
(8:00 a.m.) up to September 21, 2023 (5:00 p.m.) for members Voting in Person online
and September 22, 2023 (from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 pm) for those Voting by Proxy.

PARTL  INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A GENERAL INFORMATICN

Item 1. Date, Time and Place of Meeting of Stockholders

a) The stockholders’ meeting is to be conducted both on-site and
virtually via Live Streaming on September 24, 2023 at 4:00P.M.
as provided for in the Minutes of the Meeting dated 15 July
2023, wherein the Board of Directors approved the
conduct of meetings via remote communication in view of
the lingering effects of the COVID-19 pandemic.

b) Elections for Members of the Board shall likewise be held on
September 20 (8:00 a.m.)} up to September 21, 2023 (5:00 p.m.)
for members Voting in Person online and September 22, 2022
{from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 pm} for those Voting by Proxy.

) The complete mailing address of the principal office of the
Company is Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc,, Don Celso S.
Tuason Avenue, Victoria Valley, Antipolo City.

d)  All Information statements and proxy forms shall be sent to all
shareholders on 16 August 2023,



[tem 2.

The Board of Directors has fixed August 01, 2023 as the record
date for the determination of the stockholders who are entitled to
vote at said Annual Meeting. “Only stockholders in good standing
shall have the right to vote and be voted upon x x x.” (Article II],
Sec. 8, Amended By-Laws). The stock and transfer book of the
corporation will not be closed. Only stockholders in good
standing as of August 01, 2023 and not appearing in the Club's
delinquent list as posted on September 14, 2023 shall be qualified
to vote,

Please refer to the Notice and Agenda of the Annual Meeting
Including the Rules of the Meeting and the Guidelines for the
September 24, 2023 Stockholders’ Meeting which are attached
herein as Annexes “A” and “B",

Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

Pursuant to Title X, Sections 80 and 81 of the Revised Corporation Code
of the Philippines, a stockholder has the right to dissent and demand payment
of the fair value of his shares in the following instances:

a)

b)

c)
d)

In case an amendment to the articles of incorporation has the
effect of changing or restricting the rights of any stockholder or
class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any respect
superior to those of outstanding shares of any shares of any class,
or of extending or shortening the term of corporate existence;

In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other
disposition of all or substantially all of the corporate property and
assets as provided in the Corporation Code;

In case of merger or consolidation; and

In case of investment of corporate funds for any purpose other
than the primary purpose of the corporation.

A stockholder must have voted against the proposed corporate action
in order to avail himself of the appraisal right. The procedure for the exercise
by a dissenting stockholder of his appraisal right is as follows:

aj

The dissenting stockholder shall make a written demand on the
corporation within 30 days after the date on which the vote was
taken for payment for the fair value of his shares. The failure of



the stockholder to make the demand within 30-day period shall
be deemed a waiver on his appraisal right;

b) If the proposed corporate action is implemented or effected, the
corporation shall pay to such stockholder, upon surrender of
corresponding certificate(s} of stock within 10 days after
demanding payment for his shares (Sec. 85), the fair value
thereof; and

c) Upon payment of the agreed or awarded price, the stockholder
shall transfer his share to the corporation,

For the stockholders’ meeting on 24 September 2023, the extension of

i i may give rise to the

dissenter’s appraisal right. The amendment is being effected to fully comply

with the Revised Corporation Code, Securities Regulation Code, and other
applicable SEC issuances,

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons In or Opposition to Matters to be
Acted Upon

No director or officer of the Company since the beginning of the last
fiscal year, nominee for election as director, or associate of the foregoing
persons, has any substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or
otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon, other than election to office.

Control and Compensation Information
Item 4, Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. is registered with the Securitles and
Exchange Commission under a single class of shares. Only common shares of
no distinction are issued to shareholders whether natural persons or
corporate entities.

Each of the outstanding 1,594 shares of record as of August 01, 2023,
except those declared delinquent is entitled to vote/be elected at any
stockholders’ meeting.



Yote Required for Approval

Voting upon all questions at meetings of stockholders shall be made by
holders of shares of stock, with each share of stock being counted as one vote.

Method by which Votes will be Counted

All matters subject to approval and election, except in cases where the
law or by-laws provide otherwise, shall be decided by the plurality vote of
stockholders in person or by proxy and entitled to vote thereat, a quorum
being present. Cumulative voting shall be allowed for the election of directors
of the Board as discussed below.

Yoting Procedure

When proxies are properly dated, executed and returned, the shares
they represent will be voted at the Annual Meeting in accordance with the
instructions of the stockholder. If no specific instructions are given or when
the proxy is endorsed in blank, or in favor of the chairman or presiding officer,
the same shall be used only for purposes of establishing a quorum and will not
be voted in favor of any candidate.

Unless required by law, or demanded by a stockholder present in
person or by proxy at any meeting and entitled to vote thereat, the vote of any
question need not be by ballot. On a vote by ballot, each ballot shall be signed
by the stockholder/member voting, or in his name by his proxy if there be such
proxy, and shall state the number of shares owned by him.

Only those nominated in accordance with Article III, Section 8, Article
IV, Section 1 - Paragraph 2, and Article IV, Section 5 of the Club’s By-Laws, who
satisfied the qualifications and passed the screening of the Nominating
Committee, shall qualify for election to the Board of Directors.

Stockholders on record shall elect nine (9) Directors (seven [7] regular
and two [2] independent) from the list of qualified candidates.

As stated earlier, voting shall be done online. The schedule is as follows:

SCHEDULE OF VOTING, CANVASSING & ANNOUNCEMENT OF RESULT

September 20-21, 2023 Voting in Person online from September
20 (8:00 am.)
(Wednesday - Thursday) up to September 21, 2022 (5:00 p.m.)



September 22, 2023 Voting by Proxyholder and Attorneys-in-
fact online from 8:00 a.m. to
(Friday) 5:00 p.m.

Voting for stockholders may only be done through the Online Voting
System/Portal and not during the livestream broadcast.

An independent third-party entity will count and tabulate the votes cast in
absentia through the Voting System/Portal. The Committee on Election will validate
the voting results. The Committee on Election shall report the results of voting during
the Meeting.

The following shall be the Rules and Guidelines of the Meeting, including the
voting online procedure:

GENERAL GUIDELINES:

a. Because of the lingering pandemic situation, only fifty (50) stockholders
may attend on-site on a first to reserve basis while the rest can only attend
the meeting by remote communication through an online live broadcast
and exercise their right to vote in absentia through the Club’s secure online
voting system or by appointing a proxy.

b. There will be audio and video recordings of the meeting,.

¢. Stockholders intending to participate on-site or by remote communication
and exercise the right to vote in absentia should notify Valley Golf by
sending an e-mail to admin@valleygolf.comph and submit a fully
accomplished and signed Letter of Intent (LOI) and Data Privacy Consent
form.

d. Each Stockholder will be given a One-Time Password (OTP) sent thru email
in case he intends to participate by remote communication and exercise his
right to vote in absentia

e. All information and documents submitted online shall be subject to
verification and validation by the Office of Membership and Internal Audit,



f. After verification and validation, an e-mail confirmation will be sent by the
Club.

g. A notification for the opening of online voting system shall be sent to the
stockholders.

h. The procedures for online voting in absentia, and participation in the
meeting through remote communication can be accessed through the

Club’s website, www.vallevgolf.com.ph.

i. Stockholders who have the issued OTP can vote in absentia and access the
online livestreaming of the annual stockholders’ meeting, Stockholders
will not be able to vote through the Online Voting System/ Portal if they do
not have the OTP.

j. Stockholders Intending to participate by appointing a proxy should submit
their signed and/or accomplished proxy forms personally or online not
later than 5:00 p.m. of September 18, 2022, All proxy forms shall be
furnished to the Corporate Secretary.

k. Stockholders who have no email address may submit their signed and/or
proxy form (hard copies) at the Registration area.

. Only Stockholders who have submitted the information and registration
requirements, completed the online registratlon process, received
confirmation of their registration and received the OTP can vote and
participate in the meeting through remote communication or vote in
absentia.

m. To protect the stockholder’s privacy, personal data and information,
identity, and rights as a stockholder, the Club highly discourages the use
of an email address that does not belong to the stockholder. Please
remember that the stockholder’s log-in credentials to the Online Voting
System/Portal and live stream invitation, as well as official
communications from the Club will be sent to this email address hence, the
Club advises the stockholder to use his active personal email address.

The Club likewise discourages the use of the following:

" Inactive email addresses
= Email addresses of family members
= Work emails



* Compromised emails or emails with two or more people having
access

Iders’

Stockholders' meeting will be under a hybrid set up. Stockholders will be
allowed to personally attend the on-site meeting subject to limitation on the number
of in-person participants (fifty [50] persons on a first to reserve basis) as a safety
precaution.

a. Stockholders who wish to participate in the meeting, whether In-person or
remotely, must register at the VGCCI 2023 ASM website
<www.valleygolfelection.com> and email supporting documents listed
therein to admin@valleygolf.com.ph on or before September 19, 2023, All
documents submitted will be subject to verification and validation by the
Corporate Secretary.

Registration:
¢ Open your browser and type https://www.valleygolfelection.com,
Supply the one-time passcode (that was sent to your email address)
on the "Account Verification Form” and press Enter,
Click Register and you will be redirected to a Google Form,
Accomplish the required information and click I agree with the
Privacy notice of VGCC and click I consent to the processing of the
above Information in connection with VGCC'’s Annual Stockholders
Meeting.
¢ The following information and documentary requirements must be
emailed to admin@valleygolf.com.ph to complete the registration:
o For individual stockholder:
= Valid government-issued ID with photo and signature
(in JPG format}
® A valid and active e-mail address
= Avalid and active contact number
o For corporation:
= A scanned copy of certification signed by a duly
authorized officer of such corporation attesting to the
authority of the representative to vote for and on
behalf of the corporation (in JPG format)
= Ascanned copy of one {1) valid government-issued ID
ofthe representative with photo and signature (in JPG
format)
= A valid and active e-mail address of the
representative



= A valid and active contact number of the
representative

¢ Inaddition to the above, Stockholders who wish to attend in-person
must email the Corporate Secretary at admin@valleygolf.com.ph to
be counted for in-person attendance. Kindly note that in-person
attendance will be limited to the first fifty (50) Stockholders who
registered via email as set forth above.

Livestream - Zoom Webinar
o Please go to https://zoom,us/test and click “Join”.

¢ You will be given the option to “download and run Zoom” (if not yet
installed previously, especially for mobile devices) or to “join from
your browser” (recommended for desktop/laptop users).

e To join the webinar, click the link that the host provided or the one
you received in the confirmation page after you registered. If the host
sent a registration confirmation email, the link can also be found
there.

. Stockholders of record who have OTP will be provided a direct link to the live
stream broadcast of the 2023 Annual Stockholders Meeting (ASM).

Stockholders are advised to ensure a stable internet connection during online
registration, voting, and viewing of the live stream broadcast of the 2023 Annual
Stockhelders Meeting (ASM).

. Items in the Agenda together with the questions, suggestions or comments sent
through email by any stockholder including the results of the voting on every item
in the Agenda will be presented sequentially during the meeting.

. The main page of the Club’s website will provide a link to the recording of the

whole meeting.

Only the items in the Agenda and the results of the election will be taken
up In the virtual meeting,

. The Board of Directors, members of the Committee on Election (Comelec),
stockholders {and administrative support staff) will be present in the
hybrid meeting.

. The link to audio and video recordings of the 2023 ASM livestream
broadcast will be made available in the Club's website after the event.

Stockholders may submit questions and comments including objections, if
any, on any matter in the Agenda, on or before 5:00 p.m, of September 22,
2023 which will be posted with the corresponding replies thereto during
the live stream of the 2023 Annual Stockholders Meeting (ASM).



j. Any questions or comments submitted and received after the deadline shall
be answered directly by Management thru email to the stockholder
concerned. Additional questions or comments may be sent to office of the
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k. Mechanism for information dissemination - The website will include a
portion for “Frequently asked questions”. Stockholders are advised to visit
the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) page prior to sending inquiries.

Proxies

Both Online and Hard Copies of Proxies will be allowed.

a. Stockholders may request for the Pre-numbered Proxy form. A stockholder
can request a maximum of 20 proxy forms per day only before the office of
the Human Resource Department.

b. The member may choose to execute a proxy form in favor of another
member to exercise his right to vote.

c. Unless the reason for replacement is due to death or severe physical,
mental or medical incapacity to discharge the representative's functions
under the proxy, once the proxy form has been validated, the same shall be
deemed final, without prejudice to the right of the Stockholder to
personally appear to cancel the proxy form and cast his vote before his
proxy or assignee shall have cast a vote on his behalf,

d. After the proxy forms are properly accomplished, the same may be
submitted at the Human Resource Department.

e. If the proxy form is submitted with 2 or more named proxies for the
election of the members of the Board of Directors, it will be invalid for
voting and considered for quorum purposes only. If the proxy form is
corrected before submission then it is valid. If a Stockholder signs 2 or
more proxy forms in favor of 2 different persons and the 2 proxies submit
both proxy forms signed by the same stockholder for the election of the
members of the Board of Directors the proxies are invalld for voting and
will be considered for quorum purposes only. This is without prejudice to
the right of the stockholder to exercise his/her right to vote online either
remote or in-person.

f. In case of loss or destruction of the numbered proxy form, the stockholder
concerned may request for a Replacement Proxy form. The stockholder



must submit a notarized affidavit of Request for Replacement Form citing
the reason for the request. '

g In case of a corporate stockholder, the person appearing before the
Committee should be equipped with a duly notarized Secretary’s
Certificate showing that he is authorized to cause the cancellation of the
subject proxy form.

h. Once a Replacement Proxy Form has been issued, the Original Proxy form
shall be automatically canceled and can no longer be used even if
subsequently found.

i. All Proxy forms submitted before the Human Resource Dept. will be subject
to Internal Audit Procedure.

Online Voting Procedure

The Annual Stockholders Meeting (ASM) webcast uses an entirely different
secure system. For cyber security purposes, the Online Voting System/Portal also
uses a separate, secure system or platform.

a. An electronic absentee ballot will be available upon login of all registered
Stockholders in the front page portion of the website dedicated for the
Stockholders Meeting. OTP is required for login in to the voting system.
The Stockholder will receive his/her OTP thru the registered email while
Proxyholders will be sent a separate OTP for voting thru Proxy. All agenda
items in the Notice of the Stockholders’ Meeting may be voted upon as
follows:

1. For all items in the Agenda except the Election of Directors, the
Stockholder/Proxyholder will click any of the following:

STEP 1: Click the link in the email sent to you containing your log-in
credentials to access the ONLINE VOTING PORTAL. Alternatively, you
may also click on the VOTE icon on the microsite.

STEP 2: Enter the log-in credentials provided and click LOGIN.

STEP 3: Vote on each agenda item. A brief description of each item for
stockholder’s approval is appended to the NOTICE OF MEETING.

Vote “Yes"”, “No”, or “Abstain” on each agenda item for approval.
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2. Voting for the Election of Directors

a. Electronic Ballot for the Stockholder - the registered Stockholder
shall indicate the number of votes for each candidate by following
the step-by-step procedure on the ballot, The number of votes shall
not exceed the number of shares owned by the stockholder
multiplied by nine (9).

b. Electronic Ballot for the Proxyholder - the registered Proxyholder
shall indicate the number of votes for each candidate by following
the step-by-step procedure on the ballot. The number of votes shall
not exceed the number of valid proxles multiplied by nine (9).

c. Forthe election of directors, vote for all nominees, withhold vote for
any of the nominees or vote for certain nominees only.

3. Voting for Amendment by the General Manager

a. Electronic Ballot for General Manager - the General Manager
shall indicate the number of votes for the proposed amendments
by following the procedure on the ballot. The number of votes
shall not exceed the number of valid proxies. Vote Yes or No on
the proposed amendments.

Note: The stockholder may vote such number of shares for as many
persons as there are directors to be elected or cumulate such said
shares and give one candidates as many votes as the number of
directors to be elected multiplied by the number of shares owned, or
distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as
may be seen fit, provided that the total number of votes cast shall
not exceed the number of shares owned by the stockholder
muitiplied by nine (9). The seven candidates for regular directors
and the two candidates for independent directors with the most
number of votes shall be declared elected.

STEP 4: Once you have reached the last of the agenda items and have made
your votes, click on the CONFIRM AND SUBMIT button.

STEP 5: You will then be presented with a summary where you can review
the votes you have casted. If you are satisfied, once again click the
CONFIRM AND SUBMIT button. Once confirmed, the
Stockholder/Proxyholder will no longer be allowed to make any changes
in his ballot. You will also receive an email confirming that your votes have
been submitted to the Club.
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Note: a stockholder attending and participating in the ASM in multiple
capacities must go through the voting process for each capacity.
Stockholders must exert all effort in ensuring that their votes are
proper prior to submiiting the same.

STEP 6: The Stockholder/Proxyholder will logout from the system.

Note: A stockholder who personally casts his vote or votes through a
proxy online shall be considered present for purposes of
determining quorum even if he or his proxy does not join the webinar
during the virtual stockholders’ meeting itself.

a. Stockholders whe have not issued a proxy {or have decided to
disregard the same) and wish to vote online will be counted for quorum
purposes thru the authorization that will be confirmed before access is
allowed in the voting system.

b. Anindependent third-party entity will count and tabulate the votes cast
in absentia through the Voting System/Portal.

¢. The Comelec shall validate the voting results and report the same to the
Board during the Meeting.

For the full details, please refer to the Guidelines for the September
24, 2023 Stockholders’ Meeting (see, Annex “B”).

Abstentions with respect to any matter are treated as shares present or
represented and entitled to vote for the purpose of determining whether the
matter has been approved by the stockholders. Abstentlons shall neither be
for or against any issue. Shares as to which proxy authority has been withheld
with respect to any matter are not deemed to be present or represented for
purposes of determining whether stockholder approval of that matter has
been obtained.

Atty. Joseph Joel R, Castillo (Chairman), Atty. Wendell V. Dimaculangan,

and Atty. Mark Boncris Santos, as members of COMELEC, shall be the
authorized persons to count the votes.

Cumulative Voting

A shareholder or his proxy may choose to vote the shares registered in
his name in the stock books of the corporation for the nine (9) directors {7
regular and 2 independent) to be elected. He or his proxy may, however, opt
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to cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes equivalent to
the number of his shares multiplied by nine (9) or he may distribute the said
number of votes among as many candidates as he may see fit. The discretion
and authority to vote cumulatively are solicited and authorized in the Club’s

Standard Proxy Statement.

Security Membership of Management (As of August 01, 2023)

Title of Amount/Nat
Class Name of Beneflcial ure of Percent of
Owner Beneficfal Citizenship Class
Ownership
Ordinary | Rafael S. Raymundo 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordipary | Jose Arsenio Isidro D. 1 share Filipine Negligible
Borromeo 111 P
Ordinary | Rio Sesinando E. 1 share Filipino Negligibie
Venturanza
Ordinary g;rl::mnﬂne L. Kohchet- 1 share Filipino Negligible
_Ordinary | Renato C. Balibag 1 share Filipino Nepligible
Ordinary | jose G.Razon 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Marvin A. Caparros * 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | |ose Ferdinand R. Guiang 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Nicanor jorge * 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Allan Jocson 1 share Filipino Negligible
Security Membership of Nominees
Title of Amount/
Class Nature of Percent of
Name of Beneficlal Owner Beneficlal Citizenship Class
Ownership
Regular Directors
Ordinary | Constantine Kohchet-Chua 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | ose Arsenio Isidre Borromeo 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Rafael Raymundo 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Jose Ferdinand R. Guiang 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Eric lllescas 1 share Filijino Negligible
Ordinary | Marvin Caparros | 1share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Jose Razon | 1share Filipino Negplig(ble
Ordinarvy | Rio Sesinando Venturanza 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Edward Lim 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Albert San Gabriel 1 share Filipino Nepligible
Ordinary | Luis Quiopue 1 share Fllipino Negligible
Independent Directors
Ordinary | Ricky Libago 1 share Fllipino Negligible
Ordinary | Michael Echavez 1 share Filipino Neglizible
Ordinary | Robert |ohn Barretto 1 share Filipino Negligible
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Nominee for Independent Director Ricky Libago, was nominated by Alex Suarez.
Nominee for Independent Director Michael Echavez was nominated by Levie Angeles.
Nominee for Independent Director Robert John Barreto was nominated by Rafael Raymundo.
This information can also be found in pages 30 to 32.

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners of more than
5%

As of June 30, 2023, there are no individuals or single group that owns at

least 5% of the company’s securities.
Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

As of this date, the Corporation s not aware of the existence of any voting
trust holders of any proportion of the existing authorized capital stock.

Description of any arrangement which may result in a change in control of
registrant if a change of control has occurred since the beginning of the last
Fiscal Year:

There is no arrangement that may result in a change in management

control of registrant since the beginning of the last Fiscal Year.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Incumbent Board of Directors, Executive Officers and Significant
Employees of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

Term of Office
Name Age | Cltizenship Position as Director/
| Perlod Served
3yrs, 2020 -
Rafael S. Raymundo 59 Filipino President Present
Jose Arsenio Isidro D, . . 3 yrs. 2020 -
Borromeo III 53 Filipino Vice-President Present
Rio Sesinando E. 64 Filipino Treasurer 3yrs. 2021 -
Venturanza | present
Constantine L. Kohchet- 57 Filipino Asst. Treasurer 3yrs. 2021 -
Chua present
. 3yrs. 2020 -
Renato C, Balibag 68 Filipino Director Present
Jose G. Razon 67 Filipino Director 3 yrs. 2021 -
present
Marvin A, Caparros* 54 Filipino Director 3 yrs. 2022 -
present
. 3yrs, 2022 -
jose Ferdinand R. Guiang | 58 Filipino Director present |
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[ o . 3yrs.2022- |
Nicanor S. Jorge* . _56_ . Filipino Director present
Allan |ocson 1| 49 | Filipine Corporate Secretary NA.

| Dan L, Salvador 111 59 Filipine | General Manaper N.A.

| Rosanna R. Arguelles 59 | Fillpino Division Manager N.A.

| * Independent Director

President Rafael S. Raymundo is a graduate of Bachelor of Science in
Management from San Beda University. Mr. Raymundo is currently the President of
Service One Corporation. Pres. Rafael S. Raymundo is a member of the Club since Sept.
2004 as Playing Rights Member and turned Proprietary on May 2009,

Vice President Jose Arsenio Isidro D. Borromeo Il is a graduate of Business
Management from the Centennial College of Toronto Canada. Mr. Borromeo was
formerly the Country Manager of Learn Earn Own Trading Partners, Inc. Dir. Jose
Arsenio Isidro D. Borromeo III is a member of the Club since Sept. 2016 and he is
currently the Chairman of the Membership, Security and Bids & Awards Committees.

Treasurer Atty. Rio Sesinando E. Venturanza graduated with a degree in
Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the University of the
Philippines. Atty. Venturanza is currently a Partner of Tan Venturanza Valdez Law
Offices, Director of Palm Concepcion Power Corporation, Maugat Holdings Inc, Blue
Panel Equities & Dev. Inc., T&V Realty Corporation, Juxtapose Ergo Consultus, Inc. and
U.P. Law Class 82 Foundation Inc. He is also the Corporate Secretary of Sta Clara
International Corporation, Meridian Securities Inc, Professional Parking &
Management Corp. and ParkSecure Management Corp. Treasurer Atty. Rio Sesinando
E. Venturanza is a member of the Club since July 7, 2000 as corporate representative
and proprietary member since 2011. He is currently the Chairman of the Finance
Committee and Legal Committee.

Asst. Treasurer Constantine L. Kohchet-Chua is a graduate of Bachelor of
Science in Business Administration and Accountancy from the University of the
Philippines and he is a CPA. Dir. Kohchet-Chua is currently the General Manager of
K.C. Bros. Industrial Corp. Dir. Constantine L. Kohchet-Chua is a member of the Club
since Jan. 8, 2011 and is currently the Chairman of the House and Engineering
Committees.

Dir. Renato C. Balibag is a graduate of Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration major in Marketing from University of the East and an MBA Candidate
from Ateneo de Manila University. Dir. Balibag is currently the President/CEO of
Wave Broadcasting Network, Inc. and President of Eastern Samar Construction
Corporation. Dir. Renato C. Balibag is a member of the Club since May 2008. He is
currently the Chairman of the Real Estate Committee,
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Dir. Marvin A. Caparros is a graduate of Bachelor of Science major in Civil
Engineering at the University of California Irvine (UCI) Los Angeles, CA, USA. Dir.
Caparros is currently the CEO and President of R.S. Caparros Associates and Co, CEQ
and President of M.A. Caparros Management and Development Corporation,
President of G.0.C.C. Board, Board Director of Construction and Project Management
Association of the Phils, Vice President and Board Director of JAHAMA Base
Foundation, Inc, Board of Director of Tradetek International, Los Angeles and
Director for Golf of Mercedez Benz - Auto Nation Group, Inc. Dir. Marvin Caparros is
a member of the Club since September 2001 as Playing Rights Member and turned
Proprietary on July 2017. Dir. Caparros is currently the Chairman of the Sports &
Games Committee.

Dir. Jose Ferdinand R, Guiang is a graduate of AB Economics from the Far
Eastern University. Dir. Guiang is currently the President of JFG Construction and
Trading Corp,, President of Pharmazel, Inc., President of Genesis Homes Realty, Inc.
and former Independent Director of Sta. Lucia Land. Dir. Jose Ferdinand Guiang is a
member of the Club since May 2008. Dir Guiang is the Chairman of the Grounds
Committee,

Dir. Nicanor Jorge is a graduate of Bachelor of Science in Economics and
Masters in Business Administration. Dir. Jorge is currently a Member of the Board of
Directors of The Basketball Efficiency Scientific Training Center, Inc. Dir. Nicanor
Jorge is a member of the Club since April 2005. Dir. Jorge is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Dir. Jose G. Razon is a graduate of Bachelor of Science in Mining Engineering
from the University of the Philippines. Dir. Razon is currently the Executive Vice
President /Corporate Secretary of Razons Food Corporation, Dir. Jose G. Razon is a
member of the Club since January 29, 2006 and He is the Chairman of the
Administration Committee.

The Corporate Secretary of Valley Golf & Country Club is Atty. Allan Jocson.
Atty. Jocson became a Proprietary member of Valley Golf since August 2018. He is
currently a Partner in Sallan & Jocson Law Offices. He is a graduate of Bachelor of
Laws in San Beda College of Law/Arellano Law Foundation (1999) and Bachelor of
Arts Major in Political Science, De La Salle University (1994).

Mr. Dan L. Salvador III was born on June 5, 1964 and is now 59 years old. He
was previously the General Manager of Valley Golf and Country Club and served as
General Manager, consultant, manager, and director of various golf clubs in the
country. Now, he is the General Manager of Valley Golf, starting 1 September 2021.

Mrs. Rosanna R, Arguelles was born on October 9, 1963 in Antipolo City and

is now 59 years old; She is a CPA and a graduate of BSC with a major in Accounting at
University of Santo Tomas. She was previously Chief Accountant of the Municipality
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of Antipolo. She started her employment at Valley Golfin 1988 and is now the Division
Manager of the Controller’s Division.

Independent Directors?

The following directors are considered Independent Directors as they
are independent of management and free from any business or other
relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to materially
interfere with their exercise of independent judgment in carrying out their
responsibilities as directors:

1. Dir, Marvin Caparros;
2, Dir. Nicanor Jorge.

Dir. Marvin Caparros was nominated by Mr, Edward Lim; while Dir.
Nicanor Jorge was nominated by Albertt San Gabriel. All the directors
nominated are not related by consanguinity or affinity to the
members/individuals who nominated them, Their Certificates of Qualification
as Independent Directors as stated in the 17-C filed on 25 October 2022 are

attached herein as Annex “C”.

1, Dir. Marvin Caparros

Club Member since

Playing Guest since September 2001

22 years

Proprietary Member-July 2017

6 years

Date of Birth

: | April 12, 1969

Educ'l,

BS in Civil Engineering- Univ. of
California Irvine, Los Angeles,

_ Attainment/Profession

_ California

|
[ Company Affiliation

Position

: | R.S. Caparros Associates and Co.
: | CEO and President

M.A. Caparros Management and
Development Corp.
CEOQ and President

G.0.C.C. Board
President

! Independent director: The Company has complied with the Guidelines set forth by SRC (Securites
Regulation Code) Rule 38 regarding the Nomination and Electlon of Independent Director. The
Company’s By-Laws incorporate the procedures for the nomination and election of independent
director/s in accordance with the requirements of the said Rule.
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Construction and Project
: | Management Assn. of the Phils,
Other Work Experlence Board Director

JAHAMA Base Foundation, Inc. Vice

B | | President and Board Director B

Tradetek International, Los

Angeles

Board of Director

Golf of Mercedes Benz - Auto

Nation Group, Inc.

Director
Committee Chairman, Sports and Games '
Membership Committee

2, Dir. Nicanor Jorge
Club Member since : | Propriety Member - April 2005 2Byears |
Date of Birth : | May 9,1967 B
Educ'l. . | Bachelor of Science in Economics and
Attainment/Profession | °  Masters in Business Administration
| | The Basketball Efficlency Scientific

: | Training Center, Inc.
Company Affiliation . Board of Director
Committee )
Membership " | Chairman - Audit Committee

The Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. has independent nomination and
election committees, which are, likewise, separate committees from each
other. The Nomination Committee was created on 15 July 2023, and the
following are the chairman and members of the said committee. The Club has
proposed amendments to its By-Laws to comply with Rule 38 of the SRC.

Chairman - Vice President Jose Arsenio Isidre D, Borromeo III
Members - Dir. Marvin A. Caparros, Independent Dir.

Atty, Marcus Antonius T. Andaya

Atty. Conrad P. Cereno

Atty. Arlan N. Sallan

The Election Committee was created on 27 June 2023, with the
following members:

Chairman - Atty. Joseph Joel R. Castillo
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Members

Atty,. Wendell V. Dimaculangan
Atty. Mark Boncris Santos

The nomination procedure is as follows: 1) the names of candidates for
directors are submitted to the Club’s Nomination Committee; 2) said
committee then screens said candidates and determines their eligibility to run
under the Club's Rules and By-laws; and 3) said committee then posts the
names of the qualified candidates for directors.

In particular, the following procedure was observed:

The Board appointed a Nomination Committee of five
(stockholders), one (1) of whom is an independent director and
three (3) of whom are not Directors. The Nomination Committee
sent notlces to the Stockholders inviting them to submit the
name/names of their nominees for the positions of Regular and
Independent Directors for consideration and inclusion as
candidate/s for election to the Board of Directors. The hominations
should indicate the position to which the nominees are being
nominated for. Stockholders were requested to submit their
nominations together with the required documents to the Office of
the President not later than 5:00 p.m. of August 1, 2023,

The Nomination Committee was mandated to nominate a
minimum of 8 and maximum of 12 candidates for regular
directors and minimum of 3 and maximum of 5 candidates for
independent directors for election,

Only Stockholders in good standing may be nominated. However,
the nominees should meet the additlonal qualifications set by the
Board in accordance with the SEC issuances.

Significant Employees

Mr. Dan L. Salvador III was born on June 5, 1964 and is now 59 years
old. He was previously the General Manager of Valley Golf and Country Club
and served as General Manager, consultant, manager, and director of various
golf clubs in the country. Now, he is the General Manager of Valley Golf, starting
1 September 2021,

Ms. Rosanna R. Arguelles was born on October 9, 1963 in Antipolo
City and is now 59 years old; She is a CPA and a graduate of BSC with a major
in Accounting at University of Santo Tomas. She was previously Chief
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Accountant of the Municipality of Antipolo. She started her employment at
Valley Golf in 1988 and is now the Division Manager of the Controller's
Division.

Ms, Maria Cristina 0. Santiago was born in Antipolo City on February
14, 1995. She is a graduate of Philippine School of Business Administration and
passed the CPA licensure exam in May 2016. She is previously the Senior
Internal Auditor of Siycha Group of Companies and an Associate of
Pricewaterhouse Coopers. She started as the Internal Audit Head of Valley Golf
and Country Club, Inc in December 2018 and is currently the Finance &
Accounting Manager.

These are the General Manager, Division Manager and Department
Manager and are considered the key personnel of the Club. The divisicn and
department managers as well as supervisors were previously given a yearly
increase in salaries at a maximum of 7.5%. But in 2010, instead of giving
annual increases, managers and supervisors were given performance bonuses
- percentage from the audited net income. They also receive Christmas
bonuses. All duties and responsibilities are ensured to be rotated to other
supervisors within the department so there will be no monopoly of knowledge.
The friendly atmosphere between management and supervisors and the
benefits that the employees receive are factors that contribute to the sense of
loyalty of the employees.

Election of Directors

The nine (9) candidates (seven [7] regular and two [2] independent)
for election as directors at the Annual Meeting who will receive the highest
number of affirmative votes will be elected and shall serve for a term of one
(1) year.

1. Jose Arsenio Isidro "John"
D. Borromeo I1I {Account No.
3140) Regular
Nominated by : | Constantine Kohchet-Chua
Date of Nomination i | July 29, 2023
Club Member since ' | Saturday, September 3, 2016 7
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Date of Birth Tuesday, April 14, 1970 53 years old
Educ’l.
Attainment /Profession Business Management
Company Affiliation Semi Retired
Learn Earn Own Trading
Partners Inc,, Manila Phil 2015-2018
Work Experlence (Country Manager)
Sydcom Wireless Corp.,
Markham, ON (Business 2005-2012
Development Agent)
Sydcom Wireless Corp.,
Markham, ON (Natlonal Sales 2002-2005
Manager]
Committee House Committee - Member 2017-2018
Chairmanship/Membership 2020-2023
Engineering & Construction
Committee - Member 2018-2019
215t DCT Committee - Member 2019-2020
Grounds Committee - Member 2020-2021
Membership Committee -
Chairman 2020-2023
| Audit Committee - Member 2020-2021
Grounds Committee -
Chairman 2021-2022
Security Committee -
l Chairman 2020-2023
Bids & Awards Committee -
Chairman 2022-2023
2. Marvin A, Caparros (Acent
No. 1058) Regular
Nominated by Constantine Kohchet-Chua
Date of Nomination July 29, 2023
Proprietary Member - July 6
Club Member since 26,2017 years
Playing Guest -September 15, 22 years
2001
Date of Birth April 12,1969 53 years old
Educ’l. Bachelor of Science Major in 1991
Attainment/Profession Ctvil Engineering
R.S. Caparros Associates and
Company Affilladon Co.
Position C.E.0 & President
Line of Business
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Other Work Experlence

M.A. Caparros Management
and Development
Corporation

2020 to present

C.E.C & President

G.0.C.C Board

2012 to present

President

Construction and Project
Management Assoclation of
the Phils

2020 to present

Board Director

JAHAMA Base Foundation,
Inc.

2018 to present

Vice President and Board
Director

Tradetek International, Los
Angeles

1998 to present

Board of Director

Mercedez Benz - Auto Nation
Group, Inc.

2016 to present

Director for Golf

Committee
Chalrmanship /Membership

Engineering Committee -
Member

2020-2021

Sports & Games Committee -
Member

2021-2022

Engineering Committee - Vice
Chairman

2022-2023

Sports & Games Committee -
Chairman

2022-2023

3. Jose Ferdinand R. Guiang
(Accnt No. 2695)

Repgular

Nominated by

Angela Rozele M. Gulang

Date of Nomination

July 27, 2023

Club Member since

Proprietary Member - May
29, 2008

15 years

Date of Birth

March 3, 1965

58 years old

Educ'l
Attainment/Profession

AB Economics

Company Affiliation

JFG Construction & Trading
Corp. - President

Pharmazel, Inc. - President

Genesis Homes Realty, Inc. -
President
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Other Work Experience

StaLucia Land, Inc.-
Independent Director

Committee
Chairmanship /Membership
[

Grounds & Engineering
Committee - Member

2011 - 2012

2013 - 2014

Engineering Committe -
Member

2021-2022

Real Estate Committee -
Member

Sports and Games Committee -
Member

4, Eric R. lllescas {Accnt No.
2688)

Nominated by

| Chairman

. Regular

Grounds Committee -

2021-2022
2021-2022

2022-2023

Renato C. Balibag

Date of Nomination

_Club Member since

July 29, 2023

April 18, 2008

'Date of Birth

Educ'l.
_Attainment/Profession

April 25, 1957

15 years

66 years old

Bachelor of Science in Mining
Engineering / Civil
Engineering

| Company Affiliation

Shakeys Restaurant
Franchise

CEOQ and President and
Director

Hapchan Restaurant
Franchise

1979

2011 to present

2012 to present

CEO and President

ASPEN Construction &
Development Corp.

CEO and President

| ILLESCAS Realty &

| Development Corp.

| CEO and President

2009 to present

2009 to present

ASHDOD, Inc.

2018 to present

CEO and President

Samgyupsalamat Restaurant |
Franchise

2023 to present

CEQ and President

Other Work ExperleE
Committee Membership

: | Finance Committee - Member |

Finance Committee - Member

Engineering Committee -
Member

2021-2022

2017-2018
2022-2023
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5. Constantine L. Kohchet- ]
Chua (Account No. 2795) | Regu_lar
. | Jose Arsenio Isidro Borromeo
Nominated by I R
| Date of Nomination July 29, 2023
| Club Member since January 08 2011 12 years
| Date of Birth lanuary 13, 1966 57 vears old
Educ’l. BS. in Business Administration 1983-1988
| Attalnment/Profession And Accountancy (UP Diliman) |
Company Affillation K.C. Bros. Industrial Corp. | April 1998 to present |
Position General Manager | :
Evolution Electric Cars Ph _Dec. 2020 to present |
Managing Director
| - Geely Fairview |une 2021 to present

Director

K.C. Bros. Indsutrial Copr.
(Sales Manager/Co-Operations

May 1990-Mar, 1998

Other Work Experlence Manager) N
Acumen Brand Strategy '
Consultant (Affiliate June 2014-December
- Consultant) 2014
The Big AdsVantage, Inc.
- | (Managing Director) Sept. 2004-Mar. 2007
CAL Computer Schools-Del
Monte Av.,, Inc, (Managing Apr.1998-Dec. 2014
Director|
Procter & Gamble, Phils -
Brand Marketing Department Dec. 1989-Apr. 1990
{Assisstant Brand Manager] |
Procter & Gamble, Phils -
Sales Department (Sales Oct. 1989-Nov. 1989
Trainee|
| Procter & Gamble, Phils -
Brand Marketing Department | June 1988-Sept, 1989
| o [Brand Assisstant ) |
Committee Membership ! | House Committee - Member 2020-2022 '
B | Grounds Committee - Member 2022-2023 ,
Finance Committee - Vice
Chairman 2022-2023
| | Sports and Games Committee -
| Chairman 2021-2022
- House Committee - Chairman 2022-2023
Engineering Committee -
{ Chairman | 2022-2023
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 6.Rafael "Chino™S.
Raymundo (Account No.
7150) Regular
Jose Arsenio Isidro Borromeo
Nominatedby 1 |
Date of Nomination uly 29, 2023
Club Member since * | Playing Guest - Sept. 14, 2004 4 yeasr
Proprietary Member - May
| | 2009 14 vears
Date of Birth - Tuesday, August 27, 1963 59 vears old
' Educ’l. Bachelor of Science in
_ Attainment,Profession Management 1
Company Affiliation : | Service One Corporation
. Position : | President
Line of Business
Sports & Games Committee -
Committee Membership | Member 2018-2020
Member - Sports & Games
Committee (Appointed as the
Chairman of Federation| [ 2014-2016 |
- 21st DCT Committee - Member 2019-2020 |
_| Audit Committee - Member 2020-2021
House Committee - Chairman 2020-2022
| Engineering & Constructicn
| Committee - Chairman 2221'2022
7.Jose G. Razon (Account
| No. 7356) | Regular |
. Nominated by Dennis Ramon Guanio
Date of Nomination July 29. 2023
Proprietary Member - April
Club Member since 14,2013 10 years
Playing Guest - January 29,
| 2006 - 3 years
Date of Birth ‘ | December 20,1955 67 years old
Educ'l. . | BS - Mining Engineeering - UP
Attainment/Profession " | Diliman 1970-1976
| Company Affililation _| * | Razons Food Corporation present
| Position Executive Vice President
| Alupro Inc. - President 2003-2006
Rinaldi Structal Fabrication,
B | Inc. - VP Marketing 2001-2002
Altech Fabrication - VP
_| Operation/Marketing 1989-2001
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| Hooven Comacco - Sales

= Manager , 1977-1989
Concrete Aggregates Inc. - ‘
l Sales Supervisor 1976-1977 .
| Committee Membership ' House Committee - Member 2014-2015
- Admin Committee - Member 2021-2022 _
Engineering & Construction
Committee - Member 2021-2022
Bids & Awards Committee -
Member 2021-2022 _
- Audit Committee - Chalrman _2021-2022 |
B Admin Committee - Chairman 2022-2023
- Audit Committee - Member 2022-2023 |
8. Rio Sesinando E. B
Venturanza (Account No.
1771) Regular
Nominated by | Enrique Yusingco ;
Date of Nomination | july 31,2023
Proprietary Member -
Club Member since | February 5, 2011 12 years |
Corporate Representative -
= July 7, 2000 i 11 years
| Date of Birth | Julv 16, 1958 65 years old
Educ'l, Bachelor of Laws - Unlversity
Attainment /Profession ~of the Philippines 1982
Bachelor of Arts in Economics - 1978
University of the Philppines |
Tan Venturanza Valdez Law
| Company Affiliation Offices - Partner - Present
Palm Concepclon Power
Corp - Director -
Blue Panel Equities and
Development Inc. - Director =
T&V Realty Corporation -
Director .
UP Law Class 82 Foundation

Inc. - Director

" Meridian Securites Inc. -

Sta Clara International Corporation - Corporate
Secretary

Corporate Secretary
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Professional Parking and
Management Corp. -
Corporate Secretary

Park Secure and
Management Corporation -
Corporate Secretary

Other Work Experience

Quison Makalintal Barot and Torres Law Firm -

Associate

Tan & Federls Law offlces -
Associate

Great Pacific Life Assurance
Co. - Legal Assistant

Department of Labor and
Employement - Legal
Researcher

Philippine National oil
Company - Labor Attorney

Free Legal Ald Group -
Member

Committee Membership

Corporate Secretary

2016-2019

Legal Committee - Chairman

2019-2021

Committee on Election -
Chairman

2020

Real Estate Committee -
Member

2018

Bids and Awards Committee -
Member

2019-2020
2021-2022

House Committee - Member

2020-2023

Finance Committee - Chairman

2021-2023

Legal Committee - Chairman

2021-2023

9. Edward P. Lim (Accnt No.

7505)

Regular

Nominated by

Constantine Kohchet-Chua

Date of Nomination

8/1/2023

Club Member since

July 27, 2010

13 years

Date of Birth

April 21, 1966

57 years old

Educ'l,
_Attainment/Profession

BS - Industrial Mgt-Eng.

1988

Company Affillation

: | Elsinore Office Furniture

Systems, Inc.

2006-present

President

One Leved Holding
Corporation

2014-present

President/ Chairman

27




Other Work Experience

Membership Committee -
Committee Membership Member 2022-2023
10. Luis Quiogue (Accnt No. Regular
1392 )
Nominated by Frederlco Feliciano
Date of Nomination 8/1/2023
Proprietary Member - March 9
Club Member since 19,2014 years
Playing Guest - March 2002
Date of Birth 7/13/1954 69 years old
Educ'l. A.B Economics - Ateneo de 1986
Attalnment,/Profession Manila
Ramcar Group of Companies
Company Affililation - Vice President 2017 to present
Board of Directors - Member 2015-2018
Sports & Games Committee -
Chalrman 2015-2016
Trust Fund Committee -
Chairman 2016-2019
Trust Fund Committee -
Chalrman 2021-2022
Real Estate Committee -
Chairman 2017-2018
11. Albert San Gabriel {Acent Regular
No. 2868 )
Nominated by Jaime Victor Santos
Date of Nomination August1, 2023
Club Member since June 12, 2012
Date of Birth May 14,1971
Bachelor of Science in
Econcmics - Califernia State
Educ’l, Polythecnic University, 1989-1994
Attainment/Profession Pomona
ACASA Properties Corp. -
Company Affillation President 2018 to present
Board of Directors - Member 2017-2022
House Committee - Chajrman 2017-2019
Bids & Awards Committee -
Chairman 2018-2019
House Committee - Member 2012-2013
Membership Committee -
Member 2013-2015
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Adhoc on the Improvement of
the North - Member

2015-2016

Sports & Games Committee -
Member

2016-2017

Grounds Committee - Member

2021-2022

12, Robert John Barreto
{Acct No. 7596)

Independent

Nominated by

Rafael Raymundo

Date of Nomination

8/1/2023

Club Member since

Proprietary Member - August
29,2013

9 years

Playing Guest - November 27,
2007

Date of Birth

November 12, 1980

42 years old

Educ'l
Attainmment/Professfion

BS Marketing - PSBA

1999

Company Affillation

| Gonzap Cars - Part Owner

Jobs 4 U Mnapower Services -
HR/Operations Manager

Foods 4 U - Vice President

RRE Commercial Building -
Managing Director

Committee Membership

Administration Committee -
Member

2022-2023

House Committee - Member

2014

14th DCT Committee - Vice
Chairman

2013

Sports & Games Committee -
Member

2020-2021

Sports & Games Committee -
Member

House Committee - Member

2021-2022

13, Michael Echavez (Accnt
No. 2692)

Independent

Nominated by : | Levie Angeles

i | Proprietary Member- April 18,
Date of Nomination 2008

Playing Guest - January 9,

Club Member since 2002
Date of Birth 7/16/1964
Educ'l.
Attainment/Profession BS Mechanical Eng'g. - DLSU
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Amazigrace Globa

Manpower Inc, - Managing May 2016 to present
Company AffiHation Partner
Ace Trader Equipment Sales November 2018 to
Cotp. - Director present
Committee Membership House Committee -Chairman 2013-2016
DCT Committee - Member 2012-2013
House Committee - Adviser 2012-2013
House Committee - Member 2020-2022
Engineering Committee - 2021-2022
— Member
ﬁdmlmstratlon Committee - 2022-2023
ember
14, Ricky Libago (Accnt No. Independent
3334)
Nominated by Alex Suarez
Date of Nomination Aupust1, 2023
Proprietary Member - October 3 vears
Club Member since 10, 2019 ye
Date of Birth November 12, 1964 58 years old
Educ'l B.S in Sanitary Engineering - )
Attainment/Profession National University 1992-1993
B.S. In Civil Engineering -
Xavier University-Ateneo de 1986-1991
Capgayan
The Archetectural Centre Club,
Company Affiliation Inc. - President Feb. 2002 to present
Committee Membership N/A

None of the above nominees for election as director have been involved
in any legal proceedings. The Nomination Forms and Certifications as to
qualification of Independent Directors of the three (3) nominees for
Independent Directors are attached as Annexes “C-4", “C-5" and “C-6".

Family Relationshi

As of the filing of this report, management is not aware of any
relationship (up to the fourth civil degree), either by consanguinity or affinity
among the directors, executives, officers or members nominated to be

directors.
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The Company has no known related party transactions other than those
described in Note 24 (Related Party Disclosures) of the Notes to the Financial
Statements (see Annex "H").

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
The directors and executjve officers or control persons of the registrant

have not been involved during the past five (5) years in any of the following
events which would be material to an evaluation of their ability or integrity to
manage, to wit:

a)

b)

d}

Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against business of which
such person was a general partner or executive officer either at
the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time;

Any conviction by final judgment, including the nature of the
offense, in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being
subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign,
excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses;

Being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not
subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of
competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or
temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise
limiting his involvement in any type of business, securities,
commodities or banking activities; and

Being found by a domestic or foreign court of competent
jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Commission or comparable
foreign body, or a domestic or foreign Exchange or other
organized trading market or self-regulatory organization, to
have violated a securities or commodities law or regulation, and
the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or vacated.

Legal Proceedings

Heirs of Victor Reyes vs, Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc,
(SC GR No. 190641; CA-G.R Civil Case No. 80378; RTC-Makati City,
Branch 138: Civil Case No. 01-528; SEC Case No, 01-97-5522
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This is a complaint by a former stockholder of VGCCI for
reinstatement of playing rights and/or issuance of new shares of stocks.
The complainant claims the auction sale in 1986 of his share for
delinquency of his accounts was void for lack of notice to him. He is also
claiming the amount of PhP20,000.00 as attorney’s fees as well as costs
of suit against the Club. In its Answer, the Club claims that the
complainant’s action is already barred by the statute of limitation and
there was proper notice to him of his delinquency and the auction sale.
As counterclaim, the Club is claiming PhP50,000.00 as moral damages,
PhP50,000.00 as exemplary damages and PhP25,000.00 as attorney’s
fees. The Regional Trial Court has rendered judgment dismissing the
complaint as there was no inflrmity in the auction sale of complainant’s
share, Mr, Reyes has filed an Appeal with the Court of Appeals where
the case of now pending. During the pendency of this appeal, the
plaintiff passed away and the court, upon motion of his heirs, ordered
their substitution as the plaintiffs,

On August 5, 2008, the Court of Appeals rendered a Decision
reversing the decision of the Regional Trial Court and declared the
plaintiff (as substituted by his heirs) to be entitled to the
reinstatement of his playing rights and /or the re-issuance of a new
share of stock from Valley. The Court of Appeals said that the notice
issued to the plaintiff as to the auction sale was defective as the registry
receipt was not sufficiently authenticated and that even assuming there
was notice of delinquency sent to the plaintiff, the payment of dues was
the responsibility at the time of the playing guest to whom the playing
rights of the share was assigned. The Club filed a Motion for
Reconsideration on August 26, 2008 which was denied by the Court of
Appeals in its Resolution dated November 25, 2009. On December 18,
2009, the Club filed a Petition for Review with the Supreme Court. The
heirs of Victor Reyes already filed their Comment to which Valley Golf
filed its Reply on 03 January 2011.

On 10 November 2015, the Supreme Court rendered its decision
denying the Club’s petition for review and affirming the Court of
Appeals decision. On 16 February 2016, Valley Golf filed its Motion for
Reconsideration. However, this was denied by the Supreme Court in its
Notice dated 16 March 2016 which we received on 25 May 2016. An
Entry of Judgment has been issued and hence, the decision has become
final and executory. On 30 April 2018, undersigned counsel received a
Motion for Issuance of Writ of Execution filed by the plaintiffs’ counsel.
We then filed on 11 May 2018 a Comment/Manifestation to the motion
stating that while Valley Golf intends to comply with the Decision dated
05 August 2008 of the Court of Appeals which has already become final
and executory, its compliance should be in accordance with law and
consistent also with Valley Golf's own rules and procedures regarding
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stock ownership, transfer of shares and approval of membership and
playing rights. The court in its Order dated 21 May 2018 has already
granted the plaintiffs’ Motion for Issuance of Writ of Execution. To
forestall any inconvenience to Valley Golf and ensure orderly
compliance with the Court of Appeals’ decision, we met with plaintiffs’
counsel on 30 May 2018 to explain to them the rules and procedures
regarding stock ownership, transfer of shares and approval of
membership and playing rights and inquired if plaintiffs are willing to
accept a playing right instead of a golf share.

In 2022, Plaintiffs’ counsel informed Valley’s counsel that his
clients are following him up for the implementation of the decision
since they want to include their father’s share in his estate, Considering
that the wording of the Decision gave the option of either reinstating
the playing right and/or re-issuance of a new share of stock, Valley Golf
management opted to comply with the same by giving a playing right of
Dr. Reyes’ heirs as may be designated by the latter among themselves.
Upon receipt of Valley Golf's letter, plaintiffs through counsel filed a
Motion for Clarificatory Judgment praying that the judgment be
clarified by declaring that Plaintiff-Appellant is hereby declared
entitled to the reinstatement of his playing right AND the re-lssuance of
a new share of stock from Valley Golf Club, Inc. We then filed our
Comment/Opposition to the said Motion the following grounds: 1) the
motion filed by plaintiffs is clearly filed beyond the period provided to
appeal the Court of Appeals’ decislon rendered on 05 August 2008; 2)
the motion, even if filed on time, seeks to violate the doctrine of
immutability of judgment as it has long acquired finality; 3) even
assuming the decision may be amended, the Regional Trial Court
cannot amend or modify or even clarify the judgment of the Court of
Appeals.

On 18 August 2022, the Regional Trial Court partially granted
the Plaintiffs’ Motion for Clarificatory Judgment and directed them to
signify their option of whether to choose a playing right membership or
the re-issuance of a share of stock from Valley Golf. Valley Golf filed a
Motion for Reconsideration to which Plaintiffs filed their Comment. In
its Order dated 24 November 2022, the Regional Trial Court denied
Valley Golf's Mation for Reconsideration. On 24 January 2023, Valley
Golf flled its Petition for Certlorari under Rule 65 {With an Application
For Issuance of Temporary Restraining Order and/or Writ of
Preliminary Injunction). In its Order dated 29 May 2023, the Court of
Appeals ordered the Plaintiffs (Private Respondents) to file their
Comment within ten (10) days from receipt of the Notice.
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While the case was pending with the Court of Appeals, Valley
Golf authorized its counsel to negotiate with the Plaintiffs’ counsel for a
settlement where a monetary amount will be paid to the Heirs of Dr.
Reyes in lieu of a share of stock. After some discussions, the Plaintiffs’
counsel informed Valley Golf's counsel that the former are willing to
accept a payment of Php1.6 million pesos as full and final settlement of
the case. Valley Golf will no longer issue to them a share of stock. A
Compromise Agreement has been signed and the amount of Phpl.6
million pesos paid to the heirs of Dr. Reyes. The Compromise
Agreement was already filed with the Regional Trial Court of Makati
(the court of origin} for its approval. Once the same is approved, a
Manifestation shall also be filed with the Court of Appeals.

2. Valley Golf and Couniry Club, Inc, vs. Gabina Maestre. et al.

(Civil Case No. 09-8769, Branch 71 of the Regional Trial Court of
Antipole City)

This is a complaint for accion publiciana to recover possession of real property
belonging to the Club under TCT No. 518354 currently being occupied by several
squatters. The Club is seeking a decision from the Reglonal Trial Court ordering the
defendants (about 37 in number), together with their families/households, and any
and all persons claiming rights from them, at present and in the future, to vacate the
subject properties in question and to restore the possession of the same to the Club.
The Club is also seeking the payment of the attorney’s fees in the amount of
PHP50,000.00 acceptance fee and the amount of appearance fees, as and by way of
attorney’s fees, as well as for defendants to pay the costs of suit and litigation
expenses.

Some of the defendants have filed an Answer claiming that they and their
predecessors-in-interest have been in possession of the Club’s property for more than
thirty (30) years which will entitle them to the ownership and possession of the
property. They also claim that the Club’s title is not valid since the property was
acquired from the Manila Railway Company and that under a 1900s law, the railway
company was hound to give the property back to the public ance it is no longer used
for railway operation. As counterclaim, defendants are claiming PHP500,000.00 as
moral damages and PHP20,000.00 attorney’s fees for each of them.

Valley Golf has previously filed a motion to declare in default some of the
defendants who failed to file their Answer and this motion was already granted by the
court. On 04 September 2013, in view of the failure of the defendants represented by
counsel to file their Pre-Trial Brief, the court allowed Valley Golf to present its
evidence ex-parte. These defendants filed a Motlon for Reconsideration which Valley
opposed and the court denied this motion. Valley Golf presented its evidence ex-parte
and filed its Formal Offer of Evidence. The other defendants filed another
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Manifestation with Motion, seeking that they be allowed to present their own
evidence which was denied by the court after Valley Golf filed its opposition.

On 02 September 2015, Valley Golf through its counsels received the Decision
of the Regional Trial Court which declared Valley Golf as the lawful owner of the
property and ordered it to be placed in possession of it and the defendants were
ordered to vacate the same to surrender it peacefully to Valley Golf. Some of the
defendants filed a Motion for Reconsideration to which Valley Golf filed its
Comment/Opposition on 27 October 2015,

In the interval, Valley Golf signed in 2015 a Memorandum of Agreement with
Malaya Valley Homeowners' Association, Inc., which, though not a party, claims to
represent all the informal settlers on the subject property, some of which are already
defendants in this case. Upon the instructions of the Board and management, Valley
Golf's counsels filed a Motion for Approval of Compromise Agreement or the terms of
the MOA. However, some of the individual defendants filed a Manifestation claiming
that they did not sign and are vehemently opposing the Compromise Agreement
(MOA).

On 24 October 2016, the RTC of Antipolo rendered an Order denying the
Motion for Reconsideration of some of the defendants and approving the Compromise
Agreement insofar as the defendants who were not opposing it. The defendants who
filed the Motion for Reconsideration then filed a Notice of Appeal. On the other hand,
upon the instructions of the Board of Directors, Valley Golf's counsels filed on 21
December 2016 a Motion for Partial Reconsideration of the Order insofar as it
approved the Compromise Agreement considering that a great number of defendants
who are supposedly beneficiaries of the MOA are objecting to it thereby putting to
naught the objective of the MOA to end the litigation, and that it will now be virtually
impossible to implement the MOA based on its original terms and premises. The
Motion for Partial Reconsideration was approved and defendants’ Motion for
Reconsideration was denied.

Some of the plaintiffs thereafter filed a Notice of Appeal from the Regional Trial
Court’s decision. On 19 June 2018, we received an Order from the Court of Appeals
directing the defendants-appellants to flle their Brief within forty five (45) days from
their receipt of the Order. Valley Golfs counsel received a copy of the Brief of
defendants-appellants on 06 August 2018. Valley Golf filed its Appellee’s Brief on 30
October 2018. Defendants-appellants did not file any Reply Brief to Valley Golf's Brief.
On 26 March 2019, we received a Resolution from the Court of Appeals stating that in
the interest of justice, appellants are given twenty (20) days from notice within which
to file reply brief, with warning that in case of non-compliance within the stated
twenty (20) day period, the appeal will be deemed submitted for decision without
reply brief.

On 10 September 2019, Valley Golf's counsel received the Decision of the Court
of Appeals which affirmed the Decision dated 16 July 2015 and Order dated 24
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October 2016 of Branch 71 of the Regional Trial Court of Antipolo. Defendants filed a
Motion for Reconsideration to which Valley Golf filed a Comment/Opposition on 04
November 2019. On 10 January 2020, we received the Resolution from the Court of
Appeals which denied the defendants’ Motion for Reconsideration. On 29 January
2020, defendants through their counsel filed a Manifestation stating that they
“discovered” that the property subject of the case was registered in the name of
another party, Harmony Homes, Inc. and not Valley Golf. They then said that they will
forego further appeal to the Supreme Court but will resist execution of the judgment
on the ground that an alleged indispensable party, Harmony Homes, Inc. was not
impleaded as a party and the judgment is null and void. Valley Golf's counsel has
verified this claim of the defendants with the engineer of Valley Golf and the latter has
confirmed that the claims of defendants are false as subject property is indeed under
the title of Valley Golf.

With the foregoing of appeal by defendants, the decision of the Court of
Appeals has become final and executory. An Entry of Judgment stating that the
judgment has become final and executory as of 18 January 2020 was issued on 28 July
2020,

As the records of the case were already remanded back to the Regional Trial
Court, on 19 January 2021, we filed a motion for issuance of writ of execution of the
judgment. On 18 February 2021, some of the defendants filed an Opposition claiming
that the mandatory requirements of Republic Act No. 7279, such as adequate
relocation, should be complied with as they claimed to be underprivileged and
homeless citizens. On 24 May 2021, we filed a Reply Ad Cautelam with Motion to
Admit opposing the arguments of the defendants as they never raised before in their
Answer that they are underprivileged and homeless citizens as defined by Republic
Act No. 7279,

On 09 February 2022, the Regional Trial Court issued its Order granting our
Motion for Issuance of Writ of Execution,

Beginning March 2023, Valley Golf commenced discussions with the Local
Government of Cainta through its Mayor, the Hon, Maria Elenita Nieto, to seek
assistance from the Local Government Unit to implement the decision of the Regional
Trial Court. Thereafter, Valley Golf was informed by the Cainta LGU that resettlement
lots will be provided for the settlers on the property and that the Urban Poor
Administration Office (UPAO) will take the lead in relocating the settlers. A General
Assembly was held with the settlers along with LGU officers last 14 June 2023 and it
was agreed that the settlers will start vacating the property within 15 days from 19
June 2023. Complete vacation of the property should be accomplished within 60 days
from 19 June 2023. Valley Golf will assist in providing some carpentry materials for
some of the settlers to rebuild their houses on the relocation site. However, only a
few of the settlers have vacated the property as of the agreed deadline. Should the
settlers still fail to comply with the agreement to voluntarily vacate the property,
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Valley Golf will consider implementing the Writ of Execution of the Decision of the the
RTC Antipolo.

3. Jose B. Tayawa vs. Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. , Jaime Victor
Santos, Wilfredo G. Manahan, Albert G. Que, Leopoldo M. Garcia, and
Albert D.G. San Gabriel
(SCC Case No. 19-003, Regional Trial Court, Branch 70, Binangonan,
Rizal)

The case filed by plaintiff, a member and stockholder of VGCCI as well as a Past
President, is an Intra-Corporate Controversy insofar as the matter of his suspension
of his membership by the Board of Directors for a period of one (1) year starting on
17 June 2019. As stated in his Complaint, he prayed that after due notice and hearing
for the: 1) issuance of a Temporary Order valid for twenty (20} days for the immediate
restoration of his full rights and privileges as member of VGCCI, 2) thereafter, but
before the Temporary Order expires, 2) issuance of a Writ of Preliminary Mandatory
Injunction for all defendants to immediately restore his full rights and privileges as
member of Valley Golf, and that after trial, judgment be rendered: 3) dissolving the
Writ of Preliminary Mandatory Injunction and replacing it with a Permanent
Mandatory Injunction, 4) as First Cause of Action, declaring the 17 June 2019
Suspension Order as Null and Void, 5) as Second Cause of Action, ordering Defendant
Board Members to pay him One Million and Five Hundred Thousand Pesos
(Php1,500,000.00} as Moral Damages; 6) as Third Cause of Action, ordering
Defendant Board Members to pay him Three Million Pesos (Php3,000.000.00} as
Exemplary Damages, and 7) on the Fourth Cause of Action, ordering Defendant Board
Members to pay him the amount of Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (Php500,000.00)
as Attorney’s Fees and Costs of Litigation.

The dispute arose when the Board of Directors imposed upon plaintiff the
penalty of suspension for one (1) year. As stated in the Notice of Suspension, the
grounds for suspension was for acts of cheating, in particular, for knowingly,
deliberately and with intent to make a mockery of the election of the directors
submitting to Valley Golf and using without the authority of the authorized signatory
of Solid State Multi Product Corporation the Request for Duplicate/New Proxy Form
(RFD) as well as replacement proxies of Solid State for one candidate, as the
authorized signatory of Solid State himself certified that he only signed one set of
proxies in favour of another candidate.

In his Complaint, plaintiff alleges that he did not commit any forgery or
cheating or submission of an unauthorized proxy and hence, he should not have been
suspended. He argues that even assuming that there was sufficient evidence of wrong
doing on his part, the penalty of one (1) year suspension against him is harsh,
oppressive and confiscatory since the Board of Directors has no authority to increase
the penalty recommended by the Membership Committee. He also claims that there
was no complaint against him to begin with and assuming there was, the complainant
was not called upon to confirm the truthfulness and veracity of his complaint. He
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added that the defendant board members merely assumed the same and on the basis
of their faulty reasoning and assumption, held that plaintiff cheated or has submitted
an unauthorized proxy. Plaintiff claims that on procedural and substantive grounds,
the Suspension Order should be declared null and void.

Plaintiff likewise claims that as a result of defendants’ acts, he suffered serious
anxiety, sleepless nights, besmirched reputation and social humiliation which is why
he is claiming for moral damages. Plaintiff likewise accuses defendants of acting in
wanton, fraudulent, reckless, malevolent and oppressive manner for which he is
claiming exemplary damages. He is likewise claiming for attorney’s fees and costs of
suit.

On the other hand, defendant VGCCI and board members argue in their Answer
with Compulsory Counterclaim clatm that there is sufficient evidence or substantial
evidence as required in administrative proceedings for defendants to conclude that
plaintiff submitted and used proxies for the five (5) shares of Solid State without the
authority of the latter. The authorized signatory of Solid State, sent a letter addressed
to the directors certifying that he signed only one set of proxy forms in favour of
another candidate, and not the candidate appearing in the proxy forms submitted by
plaintiff, thereby disowning the proxy forms submitted by the plaintiff. Defendants
allege that the plaintiff readily admitted that he does not know the president or any
of the officers and directors of Solid State Multi-Products corporation. Hence, it would
not be possible for plaintiff to be able to secure proxies duly signed by its authorized
representatives. Thus, defendants argue that they were justified in concluding that
without a doubt, plaintiff wilfully and maliciously submitted and used the proxies of
Solid State without being authorized to do so.

Defendants further argue that plaintiff was fully accorded procedural due
process as he was allowed to give letters in response to the accusations against him
and was even allowed to appear before the Board of Directors to air his side, They
likewise state that the penalty of one (1) year suspension Is not harsh, oppressive and
confiscatory considering the gravity and serlousness of the offense committed by
plaintiff. Defendants also argue that the penalty of one (1) year suspension is also
within the power of the Board of Directors pursuant to the Revised Corporation Code,
the Amended By-Laws of VGCCI and the Member’s Handbook as well.

Defendants also denied the claims for moral damages, exemplary damages as
well as attorney’s fees for lack of any factual or legal bases. Defendants also claim
that there is no basis for the court to grant plaintiff's prayer for a Writ of Preliminary
Mandatory Injunction as he has not demonstrated any injury that is incapable of
pecuniary estimation and no clear and unmistakable right on his part that was
violated when he was suspended by defendant Board members.

As counterclaim, individual defendants claim that by reason of the filing of this

baseless, unwarranted complaint against them, considering that they were only
performing their duties as directors to defend the interest, honor and integrity of the
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corporation’s election process, they have suffered serious anxiety, sleepless nights,
besmirched reputation thereby entitling each of them to claim the amount of Five
Hundred Thousand Pesos (Php500,000.00} as and by way of moral damages. And
because of the malicious filing of the case which is devoid of any merit, defendant
VGCCI was compelled to engage the service of counsel for which plaintiff should be
held liable to pay Php175,000.00 acceptance fee, appearance fees of Php10,000.00
(partner) and Php7,500.00 (associate) for every appearance, pleading fees from
Php10,000.00 to Php50,000.00, milestone fees and other litigation costs and costs of
suit,

Proceedings were held before the Regional Trial Court of Binangonan, Antipolo
to hear the plaintiff's prayer for a Writ of Preliminary Mandatory Injunction. Plaintiff
completed his presentation of evidence and filed his Formal Offer of Exhibits to which
defendants filed their Comment/Objections. Thereafter, Defendants presented their
witnesses to oppose plaintiff's prayer for a Writ of Preliminary Mandatory Injunction.

After presentation of three (3) witnesses, the last hearing was scheduled for
25 March 2020 for the purpose of presenting defendants’ last witness. However, this
hearing was cancelled in view of the Enhanced Community Quarantine (ECQ)
imposed by the Phillppine government and no further hearings were set in view of
the lockdown due to the COVID-19 pandemic. On 15 June 2020, defendants through
counsel filed a Manifestation in Premises with the court manifesting that while
defendants are willing to procure the attendance of the last witness, doing so may
now be futile and inappropriate as the one year suspension of the plaintiffs
membership already lapsed on 15 June 2020. Hence, the prayer for Writ of
Preliminary Mandatory Injunction has become moot and academic.

On 26 October 2020, Plaintiff filed a Motion to Drop Valley Golf as a party
defendant on the ground that since he has fully served his one year suspension, the
issue on the propriety of the issuance of a Writ of Preliminary Mandatory Injunction
is now moot and academic; hence, there is no more reason for Valley Golf to remain
impleaded as a party defendant in this case. Valley Golf and the individual Defendants
filed a Comment/Opposition te the motion, arguing that: 1) the individual Defendants’
act of suspending the Plaintiff was a valid corporate act which was already ratified by
the stockholders, and hence, they are the acts of Valley Golf as well which it has a right
to vindicate, 2) Valley Golf itself is an indispensable party as it was injured by the acts
for which the Board suspended Plaintiff; and 3) Valley Golf has a counterclaim against
Plaintiff particularly for attorney’s fees and it will be deprived of its right to pursue
such claim should it be dropped as a party defendant. In its Order dated 17 February
2021, the Regional Trial Court resolved to deny the Motion to Drop Valley Golf as
party defendant as granting the motion would bring about multiplicity of suits.

The agreed settings for preliminary conference and pre-trial conference were

cancelled in view of the declaration of the Enhanced Community Quarantine and
Modifled Enhanced Community Quarantine from late March 2021 to mid-May 2021.
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Pre-trial conference was already held and trial dates were scheduled for the
parties’ presentation of their evidence. Plaintiff manifested later through his counsel
that he will just adopt his previous testimony during the injunction proceedings and
will no longer present any other witnesses. Plaintiff filed his Formal Offer of Evidence
on 05 May 2022 and rested his case. We then filed our Comment/Objections to the
same on 23 May 2022, On 07 September 2022, the Regional Trial Court issued its
Order admitting the documentary exhibits filed by the plaintiff for the purposes stated
and that the objections of the defendants to the purposes for which the documents
are offered are noted by the court and will be considered when the case is resolved.

Thereafter, Valley Golf presented four (4) witnesses to testify on defenses and
counterclaim of defendants and adopted testimonies of its witnesses during the
preliminary injunction proceedings. Valley Golf intends to present 2 or 3 more
witnesses. The next settings for this case are on 09 August 2023 and 13 September
2023 for continuation of presentation of evidence by the defendants.

4, Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. (represented by Rosanna
Arguelles) vs. jJetrick Nelson Tamayo
(For Other Deceits, pending before Office of the Provincial Prosecutor
of Rizal)

This is a criminal complaint for Other Deceits filed against Jetrick Nelson
Tamayo, a person who was apprehended for having used fake Valley Golf car sticker
in entering Don Celso Tuason Avenue on 16 October 2018. Upon his apprehension by
Valley Golf’s security guards, Tamayo admitted to using the fake Valley Golf car sticker
and promised to pay the Php5,000.00 fine imposed by Valley Golf for the use of fake
car stickers. However, he failed to do so. Demand letters were sent to him to pay the
fine of Php5,000.00 but to no avail. Hence, Valley Golf authorized the filing of a
criminal complaint for Other Deceits against him with the Office of the Provincial
Prosecutor,

After the filing of the criminal complaint, we were informed that the Asst.
Provincial Prosecutor decided not to hold preliminary investigations anymore and
instead submitted the case for resolution. To date, Valley Golf has yet to receive the
prosecutor’s Resolution.

5. In Re: Pelitlon for Issuance of New Owner's Duplicate Copy of
Original Transfer Certificate of Title No. 140578 in lieu of the Lost
One
{LRC Case No. 21-7784, Regional Trial Court of Antipolo}

This is a petition for the issuance of a new owner’s duplicate copy of original
Transfer Certificate of Title No. 140578,

On 6 April 2019, RealtyPro & Diligence, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as
“RealtyPro”) was hired by Valley Golf to survey lots in the VGCCI Complex. After the
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conduct of the survey, Realtypro reported to the Real Estate Committee of Valley Golf
that during the course of its investigation of Lot 16 Block 1 (a parcel of land covered
by Transfer Certificate of Title No. 140582), they identified that one of the boundary
lots is Lot 12 Block 1 and the same is registered in the name of Valley Golf.

Immediately thereafter, RealtyPro submitted a Lot Plan and identified TCT No.
140578 as Lot 12, Block 1. Immediately thereafter, Valley Golf made an initial
verification of its records as to whether or not TCT No. 140578 was in its files. The
Initial search verified that TCT No. 140578 was not in the records and files of Valley
Golf.

Upon realizing that the Owner’s Duplicate Copy of TCT No. 140578 was
nowhere to be found, diligent efforts were immediately exerted to locate the Qwner’s
Duplicate Copy in records of Petitioner VGCCI. The officers concerned of Petitioner
spent several days searching the official repositories in their respective offices.
However, despite diligent search and effort to locate the same, it was to no avail as
they failed to locate the Owner’s Duplicate Copy of TCT No. 140578. Thus, Valley Golf
genuinely believed that the said title is now lost and beyond recovery. Accordingly,
the Board of Directors authorized the filing of the petition for the issuance of a new
owner’s duplicate copy of TCT No. 140578 with the Regional Trial Court of Antipolo.

On 06 July 2021, the petition was filed with the Regional Trial Court of
Antipolo, Office of the Clerk of Court. Thereafter, the case was raffled to Branch 139
of the Regional Trial Court of Antipolo and summons were served upon the Registry
of Deeds of Antipolo City as a necessary party.

Ahearing was held for presentation of jurisdictional facts last 05 January 2022.
On 28 September 2022, Valley Golf presented its lone witness to prove the allegations
of its Petition and counsel made an oral offer of the documentary exhibits for the
purposes for which they are intended.

On 30 September 2022, the Regional Trial Court granted the petition and
rendered judgment: “1) Declaring the lost owner’s duplicate copy of TCT No. 140578
be null and void and of no further force and effect; and 2) Directing the Office of the
Registry of Deeds for Antipolo City to issue new duplicate owner’s copy of TCT No.
140578 in lieu and as replacement of that which was lost giving it the same faith and
credit and with the same terms and conditlons appearing on the original, upon
payment of the required fees at the expense of the petitioner.”

After the Decision has become final and executory and the Certificate of
Finality issued, we presented the same to the Registry of Deeds of Antipolo for the
issuance of the new owner’s duplicate title. The new owner’s duplicate copy of the
title was already issued by the Registry of Deeds of Antipolo and turned over to Valley
Golf.
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6. Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. (formerly, Valley Golf Club, Inc.)
versus Hon. Margarette A.B. Dauz-Aspacio, in her capacity as Acting
Presiding Judge of the Municipal Trial Court in Citles, Branch 4,
Sheriff Ma. Wilma A. Coronado, and Ramoncito G. Tagle
(SCA Case No. 22-1806, Reglonal Trial Court of Antipolo)

This is a Petition filed by Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. against Ramoncito
Tagle and public respondents MTCC Judge Margarette A.B. Dauz-Aspacio and Sheriff
Ma. Wiima A, Coronado.

Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. is the absolute and registered owner of
parcels of land covered by Transfer Certificate of Title (“TCT”) Nos. 143135, 224882,
and 224883, as well as Street Lot Nos. 2, 3, 5, and 6, respectively covered by TCT Nos.
224983, 224984, 224986, and 224987, It has been in open, continuous, and peaceful
ownership, possession, and occupation of the said parcels of land since the 1960s.

On 14 March 2022, to the utter surprise of Valley Golf, a group of around fifty
(50) persons, representing Ramoncito Tagle, appeared near the Sumulong Gate of
Valley Golf. The said group was comprised of (a) Ramoncito Tagle; (b) P.Col. Dominic
Baccay, PNP Rizal Provincial Director; (c) around twenty {20) PNP officers, which
were either uniformed or in plain clothes; (d) around twenty (20) workers; and (e} a
dozen private security guards.

The group began forcibly taking down fences previously erected by Valley Golf
and replaced them with their own.

When asked about their authority for fence off the premises, Tagle’s group said
that they are implementing a Writ of Demolition issued by the MTCC Branch 4 of
Antipolo City. Apparently, Ramoncito Tagle filed an ejectment case against Domingo
Tuazon and Roberto Santiago, and the Writ of Demolition was issued as a
consequence of the said ejectment proceedings. Valley Golf was not a party to the said
case nor did it have notice of the same.

Despite not being privy to the case, the Sheriff still implemented the Writ of
Demolition against Valley Golf, an innocent third party. Other lot owners in the area
were also affected.

Upon further verification, it was discovered that Ramoncito Tagle is claiming
a large tract of land which overlaps with several titled properties, including that of
Valley Golf.

It was also revealed that Tagle’s Original Certificate of Title No. P-1085 was
previously declared by the Land Registration Authority (“LRA”} Task Force Titulong
Malinis (“TFTM") as unlawfully and erroneously issued. The LRA TFTM directed the
Register of Deeds of Antipolo City to annul OCT No. P-1085.
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Valley Golf considered availing of legal remedies with the Municipal Trial Court
that issued the Writ of Demolition but was informed that this court denied all the
motions and pleadings filed by other adversely affected parties who were not parties
to the case.

Valley Golf could no longer intervene or pray for any other reliefs in SCA Case
No. 008-16 on account of the Order dated 04 April 2022, stating that third parties
adversely affected by the Decision and the Writ of Demolition can no longer intervene
or filed any motion contesting the Decision. In order to protect its property rights and
having no other plain, speedy, or adequate remedy under the particular
circumstances, Valley Golf filed the Petition under Rule 65 of the Rules of Court with
the Reglonal Trial Court of Antipolo,

In the Petition, Valley Golf prayed that:

1} A writ of preliminary injunction and a writ of preliminary injunction be
issued (i) restraining Respondents from enforcing the Writ of Execution
dated 12 April 2019 and the Writ of Demolition dated 04 October 2019; (if)
directing Respondents to restore the subject properties to its original state
(and to the possession of Petitioner prior) to the enforcement of the Writ
of Execution and Writ of Demolition; and (iii) directing Respondents to
maintain the status quo until the Petition is resolved by the Honorable
Court.

2) The Writ of Execution dated 12 April 2019 and the Writ of Demolition
dated 04 October 2019 issued by public respondent Trial Court in SCA Case
No, 008-16, entitled “Ramoncito G. Tagle, represented by his Attorney-in-
fact, Meldred C. Bendantllo, versus Domingo G. Tuazon and Roberto Santiago,
doing business under the name and style of Charlestone Trading and General
Merchandise and all other persons claiming rights from them®, be quashed,
annulled, and set aside insofar as Valley Golf's properties are concerned;
and

3) A Decision be rendered in Valley Golfs favor, and an Order be issued
declaring the execution of the Writ of Execution dated 12 April 2019 and
the Writ of Demolition dated 04 October 2019 null and void and cannot be
enforced against Petitioner.

The RTC Antipolo Branch 140 has issued an Order to Comment to respondent
Tagle. On 05 July 2022, we received a copy of Tagle’s Answer/Comment to the
Petition.

On 27 July 2022, we filed on behalf of Valley Golf an Urgent Ex-Parte Motion
for Issuance of a Temporary Restraining Order and To Set Case for Hearing on the
Issuance of the Writ of Preliminary Injunction praying that a Temporary Restraining
Order (TRO) be issued enjoining respondent Ramoncito Tagle from closing,
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obstructing of fencing off Valley Golf's Sumulong Highway Gate at Don Celso Tuason
Avenue; from selling the subject property during the pendency of this case, as well as
demolishing, damaging or defacing Valley Golf's concrete and ball signages at
Sumulong Highway near Don Celso Tuason Avenue. The motion also prayed that the
case be set for hearing on Valley Golf's prayer for issuance of the Writ of Preliminary
Injunction,

On 02 August 2022, a hearing was held before the Regional Trial Court on the
motion for the issuance of TRO against respondent Tagle. Oral arguments were given
by both parties and the incident was considered submitted for resolution.

On 06 October 2022, we received by electronic mail the Order dated 05
October 2022 of the Regional Trial Court dismissing the Petition motu proprio for
being an improper remedy to directly assail via certiorarl the questioned writ of
execution dated 12 April 2019 and the writ of demolition dated 04 October 2019, both
issued by the Municipal Trial Court in Cities, without first filing a motion to quash a
quo.

On 21 October 2022, Valley Golf through counsel filed a Motion for
Reconsideration arguing that it had no plain, speedy and adequate remedy in the
ordinary course of law since the MTCC Antipolo Court already prohibited
interventions and the filing of additional third party pleadings and motions. Valley
Golf also argued that there is still an Imminent threat to sell and/or close parts of the
property of Valley Golf which necessitated the urgent Petition for Certiorari and
Prohibition.

In its Order dated 06 December 2022 (received on 03 January 2023), the
Reglonal Trial Court denied Valley Golf's Motion for Reconsideration prompting it to
file a Notice of Appeal to the Court of Appeals on 17 January 2023. Based on the latest
inquiry, the case has been raffled to the 15t Division of the Court of Appeals and its
status is "for completion”. Valley Golf's counsel has yet to receive the Order from the
Court of Appeals to file Appellant’s Brief.

7. Albert Que vs. Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc.
{Comm. Case No. 23-1875, Regional Trial Court, Branch 99, Antipolo City)

This is an injunction suit filed by Stockholder/Member Albert G. Que against
Valley Golf seeking to reverse his one (1) year suspension from 16 September 2022
to 15 September 2023 with prayer for Temporary Restraining Order and Writ of
Preliminary Mandatory Injunction against the enforcement of the suspension order.
According to the Letter of Suspension, Mr. Que was suspended for negligence and lack
of transparency in his conduct of overseeing the construction of the Two Storey Golf
Cart Parking Building Project which led to wasteful and ill planned use of membership
funds.



In his Complaint, Mr., Que alleged that there is no basis to hold him liable for
the allegations against him concerning the Building Project, that he was singled out
when there were other people more involved in the project and that he was deprived
of due process when he was suspended. Plaintiff did not claim any monetary damage
in this suit.

The case is still in the pre-trial stage with hearings held on Plaintiff's prayer
for TRO and Writ of Preliminary Injunction. Valley Golf has opposed the prayer for
TRO and Writ of Preliminary Injunction arguing that: 1) Plaintiff failed to allege, much
less prove, the extreme urgency of his prayer for TRO; 2) Plaintiff failed to show that
he would suffer grave and irreparable injury should the TRO sought be denied; and 3)
Plaintiffs suspension which was already in effect for 9 months has become a fuit
accompli and injunction will not issue to restrain the performance of an act already
done.

As of this report, Valley Golf has yet to file its Answer as the date for the same
is not yet due.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers
E tive C i
General

The President, Vice-President, Treasurer, Asst. Treasurer and all
members of the Board do not receive any salary or any monetary
compensation as such.,

As Corporate Secretary, Atty. Allan Jocson receives fourteen (14)
green fee coupons per month (plus four (4) additional coupons per attendance
on special board meetings or other appearances} as compensation for
performing his dutles as such.,

The aggregate compensation paid or incurred during the last three

fiscal years and estimated to be paid in the ensuing fiscal year to the President
and executive officers of the Club are as follows:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name Position Fiseal Salary/month 13t month Bonus
Year
Dan L. Salvador General Manager 2021 130,000.00
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2022 150,000.00 43,452.05
65,000.00
2023 200,000.00 150,000.00 75,000.00

Resanna R. Arguelles Divislon Manager

Controller 2021 89,517.00 89,517.00
44,758.50
2022 91,743.54 89,517.00
44,758,50
2023 94,352.00 91.743.54 34.610.5¢
Maria Cristina T. Odon F & AMngr. 2023 55,524.00 32,984.36 14,026.71

Aside from the aforementioned compensation, the Club officers do not
receive any other form of remuneration.

Compensation of Directors

The directors of the Club do not get compensation and/or per diem
directly or indirectly, pursuant to Art. 1V, Sec. 2 of the By-laws.

There are no outstanding warrants or options held by directors and
officers. There are no actions to be taken with regard to the election, any bonus
or profit-sharing, change in pension/retirement plan, granting of or extension
of any options, warrants, or rights to purchase any securities.

Item 7, Independent Public Accountants

The ratification of the independent auditors for the Club for the current
year will require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of the Club’s
shares of stock present or represented and entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting. The Board of Directors recommends the accounting firm of Sycip
Gorres Velayo & Co. {an SEC-accredited accounting firm) as the retained
accounting firm for the Club, that being the same firm that has been retained
by the Club for the last/most recently-completed fiscal year.

Representatives of Syclp Gorres Velayo & Co. are expected to be present
at the stockholders’ meeting and will have the opportunity to make a
statement if they desire to do so, and are likewise expected to be available to
respond to appropriate questions. There has been no recent change in and
disagreement with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure,

During the registrant’s three (3) most recent fiscal years (up to June
2019), there was a change in the handling partners of the Club’s
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principal/independent accounting firm. The previous independentaccounting
firm {Uy Singson Abella) was replaced on 23 September 2012, by Sycip Gorres
Velayo & Co,, as principal accountant which audited the financial statements of
the Club for the years ended June 30, 2013 up to 2019. The handling partner
was Mr. Jose Pepito E. Zabat III from 2013 to 2016. For fiscal year 2017 and
2018 the handling partner was Mr. Alexis Benjamin C. Zaragoza III. For the
current Fiscal Year 2019 the handling partner is Mr. Peter John R. Ventura. The
change in external auditor was approved by the Board of Directors in their
regular meeting held on May 19, 2012 and the appointment was approved
during the Regular Stockholders’ Meeting on September 22, 2013.

The regular changes of external auditor as well as the handling partners
are in compliance with Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, No. 3, B,
(ix), (2019) as well as the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the
Philippines on Rotation of External Auditors and lead engagement partners at
least or no more than every five (5) years, and has been reflected in a current
report submitted to the SEC (The most recent Audited Financial Statement
submitted with the SEC was signed by Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.’s Partner, Mr.
Peter John R. Ventura). Moreover, there was no related disagreement
regarding said transfer of account or other auditing/accounting issues.

Finally, in connection with the compliance with the manual on good
governance, the following independent-minded and reputable
officers/members of Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. were appointed as
Chairman and members of the Audit Committee to wit:

a. Dir, Nicanor S. Jorge - Chairman

b. Mr. Albert DG San Gabriel - Vice Chairman
c. Dir.Jose G. Razon - Member

d. Mr. Daniel Dumlao - Member

€. Mr. Federico Feliciano - Member

f. Mr. Donald Joseph Macomb - Member

g Mr. Renato Mercado - Member

h. Mr. Jason Sy - Member

External Audit Fees

The external audit fees for fiscal years 2022, and 2023 are as follows:

FY 2023-Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.
Professional Fees-
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Regular Audit P440,000.00
Out of Pocket Expenses —73.072.00
513,072.00
Vat 61,568,64
Total P574,640.64
FY 2022 - Sycip Gorres
Velaye & Ce.
Professional Fees - 400,000.00
Regular Audit
Out of Pocket Expenses £61.671.00
461,671.00
VAT _55.400.52
Total 517,071.52

Income Tax Preparation Fiscal Year 2023 - Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.

Professional Fees-
Special Audit
QOut of Pocket
Expenses
Vat
Total

P122,452.00

18,367.80

— 7.300.20
P148,120.00

Income Tax Preparation Fiscal Year 2022 - Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.

Professional Fees-

Special Audit
Out of Pocket
Expenses
Vat

Total

Item 8.

Compensation Plans

P122,452.00

18,367.80

— 1.300.20
P148,120.00

Not Applicable. There are no plans for directors’ compensation.
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ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Item 9, Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for
Exchange

Not applicable. No authorization or issuance of securities other than for
exchange was made.

Item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

Not applicable. No modification or exchange of securities was made.

Item 11. Financial and Other Information

There were no significant changes in and disagreements with
accountants on accounting and financial disclosure.

For Discussion on Compliance with Leading Practice of Corporate
Governance see Annex “D”. For Management Report (Annual Report to
Stockholders) see Annex “E”. For Management Discussion Analysis, see Annex
“F”. For Management's Responsibility for Financial Statements, see Annex "G”.
For the company’s Audited Financial Statements and Quarterly Report (SEC
Form 17-Q) for the First Quarter of the year 2019, see Annexes “H", and “H-
1”, respectively.

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

Not applicable. The Club did not enter into any merger, consolidation or
acquisition.

Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

The Club purchased the following heavy equipment:

[ Date

Item Purchased Acquisition Cost Amount Paid
1 unit Long Arm .|
Backhos SANY P5,700,000.00 | pormPAymEnt o
Excavator January 2022 (gross) Bal A
Suppller:  ZWN alance payable in
Philippines, Inc. 24PDCs
20 Units Tempo | December .
Golf Cart 2-| 23,2022 P6,720,000.00 | Downpayment: 30%
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seater (Club Car) Balance payable in 4
White PDCs

Supplier:  SJK-

GUAHAN, INC. -

The Club made no other acquisition or disposition of property.

Item 14. Restatement of Accounts

Not applicable. No restatement of accounts was made.

. OTHER MATTERS

Item 15, Action with Respect to Reports

As per agenda, a reading and disposition of the annual meetings shall be held.

Likewise, the ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors and Management
pertaining to matters affecting the budget, appointment of personnel and the
appropriation of funds will require the affirmative vote of a majority of the
shares of the Club’s shares of stock present or represented and entitled to vote
at the annual meeting.

No other matters that would require approval of the stockholders were raised.

Item 16. Matters Not Required To Be Submitted

No matters not required to be submitted for approval of the stockholders were
raised.

Item 17. Amendment of Charter, By-Laws or Other Documents
There are proposed amendments to the Articles of Incorporation and

By Laws of Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. approved by the Board of
Directors for ratification by the stockholders, as follows and underlined:
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ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION:
ARTICLE II, SECONDARY PURPOSES
To buy, lease or otherwise acquire, own, hold and dispose of, such real and personal

property as may be necessary, advantageous or convenient In the conduct of its
busmess, to develop, 1mprove subdivide any propertles owned by the corporatlon, to

r_ulgs_anir_egulaﬂgns, and generally, to do and perform all such acts and things, and
to exercise such powers as are ordinarily done, performed and exercised by social and

athietic clubs and associations,

ARTICLE Il

That the place where the principal office of the corporation is to be established or
located is Main Clubhouse, Valley Golf & Country Club. Inc.. Don Celso S, Tuason
Avenue. Victoria Valley, Barangay Munting Dilaw, Antipolo, Rizal, Philippines.

ARTICLE IV
That said corporation shall have perpetual existence,

ARTICLE VI
That the number of directors of said corporation shall be Eleven (11) and that the
names and residences of the Directors of the corporation who are to serve until their
successors are elected and qualified as provided by the by-laws are as follows:

ARTICLE VIl
That the capital stock of said corporation is Sixteen Million Two Hundred Thousand
Pesos (PhP16,200,000.00) divided intoc One Thousand Eight Hundred (1,800)
sommon shares of the par value of Nine Thousand Pesos (PhP9,000) each (as
amended on September 13, 1981),

Said shares of stock shall be owned by and the interest thereof accrue only to the
registered owner thereof, who, aside from his rights as shareholder, may in addition,
and subject to such rules and regulations as may be promulgated by, screening and
approval of the Board of Directors, be issued a regular membership card that would
entitle him to all the rights and privileges that are extended to all holders of regular
membership cards for the use and enjoyment of the facilities and premises of the Club.
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BY-LAWS

ARTICLE IV - DIRECTORS

Section 1. Board of Directors - The business and property of the Club shall be

managed by a Board ntmwruzhnsuumbeuhau_he_aumﬂded_mumg

Dlrector can serve consecutwely for more than_ze_[ﬂyears.

No more than sixty (60) days prior to the annual meeting of stockholders, the
President with the approval of the Board of Directors, shall appoint a Nomination

Committee of five (5) stockholders, one of whom shall be an Independent Director,
Three (3) of the members shall not be Directors. The said Nomination Committee

shali prepare, sign and post at least Mnty_qne_[z_l.l days before the annual meeting,
a list of not less than teg andid: 2 Regula ctor: hree

sandldates_tnr_the_lnden.endent_nmectm for the Board of Dlrectors for the
ensuing year; Provided that no stockholder may run for both independent and
regular director positions at the same time

The .Nnmlnaﬂqn Commlttee shall nmmnluatuhwldeunﬁ_and_cdteua_m

mdmndm:s_anﬂ shall evaluate all candidates to ensure comphance wn:h
the reqmred quallﬁcatlons mmummmummmn_cgmm

mlaLandJndenmdenLdlnecm:s_shau_aleo_be mcluded in the notlceof the
annual meetmg that is sent out to each stockholder Only nominees whose names

Section 3. Board Meeting - The regular meeting of the Board or Directors shall be held
once a month at such time and place as shall be determined by the Board. Special
meetings of the Board may be called by the President, or upon written petition of
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three (3) members. Notice of Board Meetings shall be served on each director at least
three (3] days before the meetmg, unless notice is walved by all the Dlrectors present

ARTICLE V - OFFICERS

Section 1. Designation - Majority of all the Board of Directors at its first meeting shall
elect as Executive Officers of the Club a President, a Vice-President, a Treasurer, a
Secretary, 2 Compllance Officer and such other administrative officers as it may
deem proper.

Section 2. Qualification - All Executive Officers of the Club must be incumbent

directors, with the exception on the Secretary and the Compliance Officer who must,

however, be residents and citizens of the Philippines.

Section 4. Compensation - The compensation and working conditions of officers of
the Club who are not directors, Incuding the Corporate Secretarv and the
Compliance Officer, shall be fixed by the Board. Directors acting as such, or as
officers of the Club including members  of standing or special committees, shall
receive no salaries or fees, whatsoever for their services.

Section5.  Duties and Responsibilities - The duties and responsibilities of the
different officers of the Club are as follows:
a) The President - The President shall preside at all meetings and shall sign the

membership certificate of the Club. He shall be the chief executive officer of the
Club and have general supervision of the business affairs and property of the Club
and over its several agents and employees, with authority to hire said employee,
and dispenses with their services subject to confirmation by the Board of
Directors. He shall sign contracts on behalf of the Club and shall see that all orders
and resolutions of the Board are carried into effect. In addition to the above duties
expressly vested in him by these By-Laws, he shall do and perform such acts and
duties as from the time to time may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors.

b} The Vice-President - In the absence or disability of the President, the Vice-
President shall exercise all the powers and discharge all the duties of the
President. The Vice-President shall, in addition, have such powers and duties as
may, from time to time be conferred on him by the Board.

¢} The Treasurer - The Treasurer, except as otherwise provided by the Board of
Directors, shall have the custody of all moneys, securities and values of the Club
that come into his possession, and shall keep regular books of accounts. He shall
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d)

deposit said moneys, securities and values in such banking institutions as may be
designated, from time to time by the Board of Directors, subject to withdrawal
therefrom on the signature of such officers of the Club as the board may, by
resolution, designate, He shall perform all other duties incident to his office and
all that are properly required on him by the Board of Directors. He shall furnish a
bond conditioned upon the faithful performance of his duties, if and when
required so to do by the Board of Directors; the amount of said bond to be
determined and fixed by the said Board.

The Secretary — The Secretary shall issue notices of all meetings, shall keep their
minutes, shall have charge of the seal and corporate books; shall countersign the
certificate of stock and sign such other instruments as required such signature,
and shall make such reports and perform such other duties as are incident to his
office or are properly required of him by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII - MEMBERSHIP

Section1. . Classification - Membership in the Club shall be classified into (a)
Proprietary (b) Playing Guest (c) Honorary (d) Social and (e) Lifetime.
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a) A Proprietary Member is any person who is the registered stockholder of at least
one (1) share of stock of the Club whose membership had been previously
approved as hereinafter provided. In case the proprietary member is a juridical
person it shall be entitled to designate its representative who shall exercise all the
rights and privileges of membership including the right to vote, under terms and

fiti \fled f ] bership.?

b) An Honorary Member is any person who has been conferred playing rights by the
Board of Directors under terms and conditions specified for such membership.

¢) A Playing Guest is any person who is the assignee of the playing rights of a share
of stock registered in the name of another person.

d) A Social Member is a natural or juridical person who has been granted the

privilege of using the facilities of the club except the golf course under the terms

and conditions specified for such membership.

L ke ALl ' Il WO g 11~

The amendment is made to include another classification in the Corporation’s
membership, Lifetime. It also includes the provision regarding any increase in the
stipulated monthly dues and other assessments of the Corporations should be
reported to the SEC and the Club’s members.

For reference as to the specific amendments, attached are the proposed
amendments to the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws as Annex “J” and “J-1",
respectively.

The abovementioned amendments are being made for the corporation to fully
comply with the Revised Corporation Code, Securities Regulation Code, and other
applicable SEC issuances.

2 Approved by the Board of Diractors during Its regular meeting on May 20, 2023.
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Item 18, Other Proposed Action

The registrant presently contemplates no action to be taken with
respect to any other matter not specifically referred to in the preceding items,

Item 19. Voting Procedures
Yoting Procedure

When proxies are properly dated, executed and returned, the shares
they represent will be voted at the Annual Meeting in accordance with the
instructions of the stockholder. If no specific instructions are given or when
the proxy is endorsed in blank, said proxy will be deemed given in favor of the
chairman or presiding officer. The same shall be used only for purposes of
establishing a quorum and will not be voted in favor of any candidate.

Unless required by law, or demanded by a stockholder present in
person or by proxy at any meeting and entitled to vote thereat, the vote of any
question need not be by ballot. On a vote by ballot, each ballot shall be signed
by the stockholder/member voting, or in his name by his proxy if there be such
proxy, and shall state the number of shares owned by him.

Abstentions with respect to any matter are treated as shares present or
represented and entitled to vote for the purpose of determining whether the
matter has been approved by the stockholders. Abstentions shall neither be
for nor against any issue. Shares as to which proxy authority has been
withheld with respect to any matter are not deemed to be present or
represented for purposes of determining whether stockholder approval of that
matter has been obtained.

To be elected as directors, the nominees must garner the plurality of
votes. The top seven nominees for regular directors and top two nominees for
independent voted shall be elected as directors.

The voting is made by ballot and the votes are counted based on the
number of shares held and voted by the voter (who may also be holding proxy
statements that entitle him to make proxy votes). Each share (represented by
the holder or thru proxy) is entitled to one vote to approve or disapprove
resolutions, and up to nine (9) votes (cumulative voting) to elect nine (9)
directors.

56



For the online-voting procedure, please refer again to pages 10 to 13 of
this Report as well as Annex “B”, Guidelines for the September 25, 2022
Stockholders’ Meeting.

Yote Required for Approval
Voting upon all questions at meetings of stockholders shall be made by
shares of stock with each share of stock being counted as one vote.

Method by which Votes will be Counted

All matters subject to voter approval and election, except in cases
where the law or by-laws provide otherwise, shall be decided by the plurality
votes of stockholders in person or by proxy and entitled to vote thereat, a
quorum being present. Cumulative voting shall be allowed for the election of
directors of the Board as discussed below.

Cumulative Voting

A shareholder or his proxy may choose to vote the shares registered in
his name in the stock books of the corporation for the nine (9) directors to be
elected. He or his proxy may, however, opt to cumulate said shares and give
one candidate as many votes equivalent to the number of his shares multiplied
by three (3) or he may distribute the said number of votes among as many
candidates as he may see fit. The discretion authority to vote cumulatively is
solicited and authorized in the Club’s Standard Proxy Statement.

The right to exercise cumulative voting has been recognized under the

existing by-laws of the registrant and may be exercised without any required
condition precedent,

PARTII.  INFORMATION REQUIRED IN A PROXY FORM

(See attached Proxy Forms, Annexes “1” and “I-1" hereof)

Item 1. Identification
The name of the proxy should be indicated in the blank provided. The

stockholder’s name or “N.A." shall be indicated in the blank if the proxy is
intended only to be counted for quorum purposes.
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Item 2, Instruction

The proxy shall be authorized to represent the stockholder at the
annual general meeting and any postponements or adjournments thereof and
in his stead to vote on all matters arising from the agenda (except the sale or
disposition, total or partial, of the corporate assets).

Item 3, Revocability of Proxy

A stockholder giving the proxy has the power to revoke it at any time
by giving written notice to the COMELEC before the object of the proxy shall
have been consummated or by voting in person.

Item 4, Persons Making the Solicitation

Sollcitation Procedure

Solicitation of proxies shall commence on 21 August 2023, and shall
continue until 14 September 2023 at 5:00 p.m.

In view of the holding of the meeting by remote communication and
online voting, the Solicitation Procedure to be followed for this Meeting shall
be that as stated in page 8 of this Report. Please also refer to Annex “B",
Guidelines for the September 24, 2023 Stockholders’ Meeting,

The stockholders are given a choice as to whose favor the proxy will be
given, Said choices include, the nominees for the position of Club directors, the
incumbent members of the Board or any active stockholder of the Club. Should
the stockholder concerned decide to sign the proxy without a proper
designation, he is then advised that said proxy will be deemed in favor of the

14 pd L g (1 111 1dVOL O] & Ll ALte
the filing of this proxy statement the registrant has net received any
information, in writing or otherwise that any action intended to be taken by
the registrant will be opposed by any director or member of the club. Such,
however, is not conclusive that there will be no opposition to any of the actions
that may be undertaken by the registrant.

Only stockholders of record on the books of the Club at the close of
business hours on 01 August 2023 will be entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting. However, delinquent members shall not be qualified to vote.
Presence in person or by proxy of a majority of the shares of stocks
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outstanding on the record date is required for a quorum. As of close of
business, on 01 August 2023, there are 1,594 issued and outstanding shares.

Item 5, Interest of Certain Persons in Matters to be Acted Upon

Valley Golf does not have any transactions with or involving a company
or any of its subsidiaries in which a director, executive officer, or stockholder
owns ten percent (10%) or more of the total outstanding shares and members
of their immediate family had or is to have a direct or indirect material interest.

Valley Golf does not have transactions with promoters.

Valley Golf does not have a parent company or a subsidiary company.

PARTIII.  SIGNATURE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify
that the information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report
is signed in Antipolo City on 10 August 2023,

Issuer : VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
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THE CLUB SHALL PROVIDE, FREE OF CHARGE, A COPY OF THIS PROXY
STATEMENT/REGISTRANT'S ANNUAL REPORT, TO MEMBERS WHO ARE NOT
DELINQUENT, UPON FILING OF A WRITTEN REQUEST WITH THE OFFICE OF THE
PRESIDENT, MR. RAFAEL S. RAYMUNDO AT “VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.,
DON CELSO S. TUASON AVENUE, VICTORIA VALLEY, ANTIPOLO CITY, TELEPHONE
NUMBER 658-49-01. AT THE DISCRETION OF MANAGEMENT, A CHARGE IS LIMITED
TO REASONABLE EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE REGISTRANT IN FURNISHING SUCH

EXHIBITS.
RAFAEL S. RAYMUNDO RIO SESINANDOYE/VENTURANZA
Principal Executive Officer/ Principal Finjfincial Officer/
President TrEasurer
,@ﬂaarmﬁw
AL CSON DAN L. SALVADOR III
Corporate Secretary General Manager/Compliance Officer
ROSANNA R. ARGUELLES MARIA NA 0. SANTIAGO
Comptroller/Héad Controllers Division Principal Accounting Officer/

Finance & Accounting Manager



Certification

I, DAN L. SALVADOR lll, the General Manager/Compliance Officer of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY
CLUB, INC., a corporation duly registered under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines, with SEC registration number 13951 and with principal office at Don Celso 8. Tuason

Victorla Valley Antipolo City, on oath state:
1) That | have caused this Definitive Information Statement (SEC From 2018) to be prepared

on behalf of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

2) That | have read and understood Its contents which are true and correct based on my own
personal knowledge and/or on authentic records;

3) That the company VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. will comply with the requirements
set forth in SEC Notice dated 12 May 2021 to effect a complete and officlal submission of
reports and/or documents through electronic mail;

4) That | am fully aware that submitted documents which require pre-evaluation and/or payment
of processing fee shall be considered complete and officially received only upon payment of a
filing fee; and

5) That the e-maif account designated by the company pursuant to SEC Memorandum Clrcular
No. 28, s. 2020 shall be used by the company in its online submissions to CGED.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand 4§ ! 0 s day of ANTIROLQ LITY

—_—

T Gl loedin

DAN L. SALVADOR Il
General Manager/Compllance Officer

AUGdl 0 A5

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ay of , 20 , in

— e b pijgRnes

cﬂ?ﬁ L NOTARY PUBLIC
ATTY. HONORATO J. DE LEOK JR.

NOTARY PUBLIC
; For Antipolo City, Cainta, Taytay, Rizal
Doc No, . Until Decomber 31, 2024
Page No.__ ! : Roli of Attorneys No. 27541
Book No, by MCLE Compliance No, VI1-0023686

Series of, i . IBP Ke. 256227; Dec. 30, 2022, RBM
i e 2 s ~ PTR No. 8675433; Jan. 03, 2023 Antipolo Lty
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NOTICE AND AGENDA OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

TO: ALLSTOCKHOLDERS
VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC, ANRNEX ¥ y

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of VALLEY GOLF &
COUNTRY CLUB, INC. will be conducted in hybrid format {a combination of in-person and
remote attendance} on September 24, 2023 at 4:00P.M. as provided for in the Minutes of
the Meeting dated July 15, 2023 wherein the Board of Directors approved the
conduct of the annual meeting in hybrid format.

Voting by VGCCI stockholders of record in absentia will be through the Club’s secure
online voting facility or by appointing a proxy. The in-person meeting will be held at
the Founders’ Hall, Main Clubhouse, Valley Golf & Country Club, Don Celso Tuason
Ave., Antlipolo City and will be live streamed through an online live broadcast.

Stockholders who wish to participate In the meeting, whether in-person or remotely, must
registar at the VGCCI 2023 ASM website <www.valleygolfalaction.com> and email su pporting
documents listed therein to admin@valleygolf.com.ph on or before September 19, 2023, All
documents submitted will be subject to verification and validation by the Corporate
Secretary, Stockholders who wish to attend in-person must emall the Corporate Secretary at
admin@valleygolf.com.ph to be counted for in-person attendance. Kindly note that in-person
attendance will be limited to the first fifty (50) Stockholders wha registered via email as set
forth above.

Stockholders intending to exerclse the right to vote in absentia should notify Valley Golf by
sending an e-maif to admin@valleygolf.com.ph and submit a fully accomplished and signed
Letter of Intent {LOI) and Data Privacy Consent form.

Elections for Members of the Board shall likewise be heéld on Sept 20 (8:00 a.m.) up to Sept.
21, 2023 (5:00 p.m.) for members Voting in Person online and September 22, 2023 (from 8:00
a.m. to 5:00 pm) for those Voting by Proxy online.

AGENDA

Call to Order

Corporate Secretary’s Certification of Service of Notice and Quorum

3. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on September
25, 2022

4. Matters arising from the Minutes and action taken,

Financial Report of the Treasurer

6. President’s Report

[l

wn

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC
Culsw 5. Tuoson Ave. Aoiipoio Ciy 165 Prillopimos
Tetephoae: 8658 4951 o 03
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E-mail: .nlowvalleygolf.com.ph



7. Ratification of the President and Treasurer's Reports, Acts of the Board and
Management (July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023)

8. Appointment of External Auditor

9. Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation;

10. Amendment of the By-laws:

11. Election of Directors

12. Other Matters

13. Adjournment

WHO ARE QUALIFIED TO VOTE

The Board of Directors has fixed August 1, 2023 as the record date for the determination of
the stockholders who are entitled to vote at sald Annual Meeting. “Only stockhelders in good
standing shail have the right to vote and be voted upon xxx.” (Article IIf, Sec. 8, Amended By-
Laws]. The stock and transfer book of the corporation will not be closed.

Only stockholders In good standing as of August 1, 2023 and not appearing in the Club's
delinquent list as posted on September 14, 2023 shall be qualified to vote.

For voting purposes, each share of stock shall be entitled to ene (1) vote. However, in electing
the candidates for the Board of Directors, each shareholder shall be entitled to nine (9)
cumulative votes.

A stockholder may appoint a proxy to represent him or her during the Annual Meeting,
subject to the Rules and Procedures in the VerHication/Authentication of Proxies as shown in
Enclosure No. 4. All proxies submitted and registered on or before 5:00 P.M. of the record
date, shall be the basis for determining the quorum.

Deadline for filing of proxy forms s at 5:00 PM of September 14, 2023. Proxy forms shall be
validated as these are received by the Club, provided that the proxy forms are submitted to
the Club on or before 5:00 P.M., of September 14, 2023. The last day for validation of proxy
forms is on September 19, 2023 at 5:00 P.M.

ARE QUA LECTION

Only those nominated in accordance with Article I1l, Section &, Article IV, Section 1 - Paragraph
2 and Article IV, Sectlon 5 of the Club’s By-Laws, who satisfied the qualifications and passed
the screening of the Nominating Committee, shail qualify for election to the Board of
Diractors.

Stackholders on record shall elect nine (9) Directors from the list of qualified candidates,

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUE, INC
Dron Colso 5. Tuasen Ave. Antipolo Gity 1870 Philippives

Teowshonin- RASE 4901 to 03

www,valleygell.com.ph
E-rmal: infotruailoygelicam.ph
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SCHEDULE OF VOTING ING & ANNOUN OF RESULT

September 20-21, 2023 Voting in Person online from September
{(Wednesday — Thursday) 20 {8:00 a.m.} up to September 21, 2022

(5:00 p.m.)
September 23, 2022 Voting by Proxyholder online from 8:00
(Friday} a.m. to 5:00 pm

Voting for stockholders may only be done through the Online Voting System/Portal and not
during the live stream broadcast.

An Independent third-party entity will count and tabulate the votes cast in absentia through

the Voting System/Portal. The Committee on Election will validate the voting results. The
Committee on Election shall report the results of voting during the Meeting.

RULES OF THE MEETING

1. Stockholders' meeting will be under a hybrid set up, Stockholders will be allowed to
personally attend the on-site meeting subject to limitation on the number of In-person
participants as a safety precaution.

Stockhelders who wish to participate in the meeting, whether in-person or remotely, must
register at the VGCCI 2023 ASM website <www.valleygolfelection.com> and email
supporting documents listed therein to admin@valleygolf.com.ph on or before
September 19, 2023. All documents submitted will be subject to verification and
validation by the Corporate Secretary.

Registration:

 Open your browser and type https://www.valleygolfelection.com, Supply
the one-time passcode (that was sent to your email address) on the
“Account Verlfication Form” and press Enter.

e Click Register and you will be redirected to a Google Form.,
Accomplish the required information and click 1 agree with the Privacy
notice of VGCC and click | consent to the processing of the above
information in connection with VGCC’s Annual Stackholders Meeting.

¢ The following information and documentary requirements must be

emailed to admin®@yalleveolf com.ph to complete the ragistration:

o For individual stockholder:

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC
Dor Co'so S. Tuason Ave. Antroale City 1870 Phlipaines
Telepnone: 3458 4909 to 03

www.valleygolf.cam.ph
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* Valid government-issued ID with photo and signature (in
JPG format)

®  Avalid and active e-mail addrers

= A valid and actlve contact number

For corporation;

* A scanned copy of certification signed by a duly authorized
officer of such corporation attesting to the authority of the
rapresentative to vote for and on behalf of the corporation
{in PG format)

* Ascanned copy of one {1) valld government-issued ID of the
representative with photo and signature (in JPG format)

®* Avalid and active e-mall address of the representative

® Avalid and active contact number of the reprasentative

® In addition to the above, Stockholders who wish to attend in-person must
ernail the Corporate Secretary at admin@valleygolf.com.ph to be counted
for in-person attendance. Kindly note that in-person attendance will be
limited to the first fifty (50} Stockholders who registered via email as set
forth above.

Livestream - Zoom Webinar

Please go to https://zoom us/test and click “Join”.

You will be given the option to “download and run Zoom” {if not yat
installed previously, especlally for mabile devices) or to “join from
your browser” {recommended for desktop/laptop users),

To join the webinar, click the link that the host provided or the one
you recelved in the confirmation page after you registered. If the
host sent a registration cenfirmation emall, the link can also be
found there.

Stockhelders of record who have OTP will be provided a direct link to the live
stream broadcast of the 2023 Annual Stockholders Meeting (ASM).

Stockholders are advised to ensure a stable internat connection during online
registration, voting, and viewing of the live stream broadcast of the 2023 Annual
Stockholders Meeting (ASM).

Items In the Agenda together with the guestions, suggestions or comments sent
through emalil by any stockholder including the results of the voting on every
item In the Agenda will be presented sequentially during the meeting

The maln page of the Club’s website will provide a link to the recording of the
whole meeting.

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUR, INC
Dan Crlo 5 Teason Awe Artipsle City 1870 Philippines
Teephano: 8458 4901 to (3

www.valloygolf.com.ph
E-mail: ‘ntowvalirygalif.com.ph
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6. Only the items in the Agenda and the results of the election will be taken upin
the virtual meeting.

7. The Board of Directors, members of the Committee on Election (Comelec),
stockholders [and administrative support staff} will be present in the hybrid
meeting.

8. The link to audio and video recordings of the 2023 ASM livestream broadcast will
be made available in the Club’s website after the event.

8. Stockholders may submit questions and comments including abjections, If any, on
any matter In the Agenda, on or before 5:00 p.m. on September 22, 2023 which
will be posted with the corresponding replies thereto during the live stream of
the 2023 Annual Stockholders Meeting (ASM).

10.  Any questions or comments submitted and recelved after the deadline shall be
answered directly by Management thru email to the stockholder concerned.
Additional questions or comments may be sent to office of the
president@valleygolf.com.ph

11, Mechanism for Information dissemination — The wabsite will include a portion for

“Frequently asked questions”. Stockholders are advised to visit the Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQ) page prior to sending Inquiries.

ATTY. AL(AN JOCSON
Corporate Secretary

Enclosures: 1) Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting on September 25, 2022; 2) Summary of all
Board Resolutions; 3) Rules and Procedures In the Verification/Authentication of Proxies and
Election of Directors; 4) List of Candidates; and 5) Calendar.

VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC
Don Celso 8. Tuasen Ave, Artivolo Clty 1870 Phitippines
felephoae RE58 5901 10 03

www.alleygalf.com.ph
k.mail: ‘nfaipvalleygoli.com pk
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GUIDELINES FOR THE SEPTEMBER 24, 2023 STOCKHOLDERS MEETING

The 2023 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting (ASM) of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. (or “Club”)
is scheduled on September 24, 2023 at 4:00 PM (Manila Time).

As part of the Club’s initlative to continuously promote shareholder rights while closely
monitoring the lingering public health impact of the coronavirus outbreak (COVID-19) in the
country and adhering to all pertinent directives and advisories from the government, its various
agencles and health authorities, we are pleased to inform our stockholders that VALLEY GOLE
& COUNTRY CLUB, INC. will be conducting its 2023 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting (ASM]) in
person and/or via remote/ communication as authorized and provided for in SEC Memorandum
Circular No. 6, series of 2020. The Board of Directors of the Club has approved a resolution authorizing
the stockholders to participate in the 2023 ASM in person and/or via remote communication and exercise
their right to vote in absentia from the safety and comfort of their own homes.

i. GENERAL GUIDEUNES:

1.1. The Notice of the Stockholders’ Meeting and attachments (Minutes of the 2022 Stockhoiders’
Meeting, Summary of Board Resolutions, Rules for the Election of Directors, List of Candidates,
Annual Report and Calendar) will be sent to all Stockholders on record as of August 15, 2023
thru email. The Notice and the attached documents shall likewise be posted on the front page
of the Club website and can be accessed by any proprietary member by logging in to our
website using his/her account number and password.

NOTICE AND AGENDA OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annua! Meeting of Stockholders of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY
CLUB, INC, will be conducted in hybrid format {a combination of in-person and remote
attendance) on September 24, 2023 at 4:00P.M. as provided for in the Minutes of the
Meeting dated July 15, 2023 wherein the Board of Directors approved the conduct of
the annual meeting in hybrid format.

Voting by VGCCI stockholders of record in absentia will be through the Club‘s secure
online voting facility or by appointing a proxy. The in-person meeting will be held at the
Founders’ Hall, Main Clubhouse, Valley Golf & Country Club, Don Celso Tuason Ave,,
Antipolo City and will be live streamed through an online five broadcast.

Stockhoiders who wish to participate in the meeting, whether in-person or remotely, must
register at the VGCCl 2023 ASM website <www.valleygolfelection.com> and ematl supporting
documents listed therein to admin@valleygolf.com.ph on or before Septamber 19, 2023. All
documents submitted will be subject to verification and validation by the Corporate Secretary.
Stockholders who wish to attend In-person must email the Corporate Secretary at

1
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admin@valleygolf.com.ph to be counted for In-person attendance. Kindly note that in-person
attendance will be limited to the first fifty (50) Stockholders who registered via email as set forth
above.

Stockholders intending to exercise the right to vote in absentia should notify Valley Golf by
sending an e-mail to admin@valleygolf.com.ph and submit a fully accomplished and signed Letter
of Intent (LCI) and Data Privacy Consent form.

Elections for Members of the Board shall likewise be held on Sept 20 {8:00 a.m.) up to Sept. 21,
2023 {5:00 p.m.) for members Voting in Person online and September 22, 2023 {from 8:00 a.m.
to 5:00 pm) for those Voting by Proxy online.

AGENDA

1. Callto Order

2. Corporate Secretary’s Certification of Service of Notlce and Quorum

3. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on September
25, 2022

4. Matters arising from the Minutes and action taken.

5. Financial Report of the Treasurer

6. President’s Report

7. Ratification of the President and Treasurer's Reports, Acts of the Board and
Management {July 1, 2022 to june 30, 2023)

8. Appointment of External Auditor

9. Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation:

10. Amendment of the By-laws:
11. Election of Directors

12, Other Matters

13. Adjournment

There will be audio and video recordings of the meeting.

Stockholders intending to participate by remote communication and exercise the right to vote
in absentia should notify Valley Golf by sending an e-mail to admin@valleygolf.com.ph and
submit a fully accomplished and signed Letter of Intent (LOI) and Data Privacy Consent form.
Each Stockholder will be given a One Time Password {OTP) sent thru email.

in case he Intends to participate by remote communication and exercise his right to vote in
absentia

All information and documents submitted online shall be subject to verification and validation
by the Office of Membership and internal Audit.

After verification and validation, an e-mall confirmation will be sent by Club.

A notification for the opening of online voting system shall be sent to the stockholders.

The procedures for online voting in absentia, and participation in the meeting through remote
communication can be accessed through the Club’s website, www.valleygolf.com.ph .
Stockholders who have the issued OTP can vote in absentia and access the online livestrezming
of the annual stockholders’ meeting. You will not be able to vote through the Online Voting
System/ Portal if you do not have the OTP



1.10.

1.11.

1.12.

1.13.

Stockholders intending to participate by appolinting a proxy should submit their proxy forms
online not later than 5:00 p.m. on September 14, 2023

Stockholders who have no email address may submit their proxy (hard copies) at the
Registration area,

Only Stockholders who have submitted the information and registration requirements,
completed the online registration process, received confirmation of their registration and
received the OTP can vote and participate In the meeting through remote communication or
vote in absentia.

To protect your privacy, personal data and information, identity, and rights as a stockholder, the
Club highly discourages the use of an email address that does not belong to you. Please
remember that your log-in credentials to the Online Voting System/Portal and live stream
invitation, as well as official communications from the Club will be sent to this emall address
hence, we advise that you wuse your own active personal email address.

The Club likewise discourages the use of the following:
e Inactive email addresses
* Email addresses of famlly members
e Work emails
o Compromised emails or emails with two or more people having access

2. CONDUCT OF THE STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING

2.1

Stockholders' meeting will be under a hybrid set up. Stockholders will be allowed to
personally attend the on-site meeting subject to limitation on the number of in-person
participants as a safety precaution.

Stockholders who wish to participate in the meeting, whether in-person or remotely, must
register at the VGCCI 2023 ASM website <www.valleygolfelection.com> and email
supporting documents listed therein to admin@valleygolf.com.ph on or before September
19, 2023. All documents submitted will be subject to verification and validation by the
Corporate Secretary.

2.1.1 Reglstration:

* Open your browser and type https://www.valleygolfelection.com, Supply the one-
time passcode {that was sent to your email address) on the "Account Verification
Form” and press Enter.

Click Register and you will be redirected to a Google Form.

Accomplish the required information and click / agree with the Privacy notice of VGCC
and click | consent to the processing of the above information in connection with
VGCC’s Annual Stockholders Meeting.

e The following information and documentary requirements must be emailed to

admin@®valleygolf.com.ph to complete the registration:
o Ferindividual stockholder:
" Valid government-issued ID with photo and signature {In JPG format)
®  Avalid and active e-mail address
= Avalid and active contact number
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2.3,
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¢ For corporation:

= Ascanned copy of certification signed by a duly authorized officer of
such corporation attesting to the authority of the representative to
vote for and on behalf of the corporation {In JPG format)

» A scanned copy of one (1) valid government-issued ID of the
representative with photo and signature (in JPG format)

= Avalld and active e-mail address of the representative

= Avalid and active contact number of the representative

¢ In addition to the above, Stockholders who wish to attend in-persan must emall the
Corporate Secretary at admin@valleygolf.com.ph to be counted for in-person
attendance. Kindly note that in-person attendance will be limited to the first fifty (50)
Stockholders who registered via email as set forth above.

Livestream - Zoom Webinar

2.1.1. Please go to and click “Join”.

2.1.2. You wiil be given the option to “download and run Zoom” {if not yet installed
previously, especially for mobile devices) or to "join from your browser”
(recommended for desktop/laptop users).

2.1.3. To Join the weblnar, click the link that the host provided or the one you
received in the confirmation page after you registered. If the host sent a
reglstration confirmation email, the link can also be found there.

Stockholders of record who have OTP will be provided a direct link to the live stream
broadcast of the 2023 Annual Stockholders Meeting (ASM).

Stockholders are advised to ensure a stable internet connection during online registration,
voting, and viewing of the live stream broadcast of the 2023 Annual Stockholders Meeting
{ASM).

Items in the Agenda together with the questions, suggestions or comments sent through
email by any stockholder including the results of the voting on every item in the Agenda will
be presented sequentially during the meeting

The main page of the Club’s website will provide a link to the recording of the whole
meeting.

Only the items in the Agenda and the results of the election will be taken up in the virtual
meeting.

The Board of Directors, members of the Committee on Election (Comelec), stackholders (and
administrative support staff) will be present in the hybrid meeting.

The link to audio and video recordings of the 2023 ASM livestream broadcast will be made
available In the Club’s website after the event.

Stockholders may submit questions and comments Including objections, if any, on any matter
In the Agenda, on or before 5:00 p.m. on September 22, 2023 which will be posted with the
corresponding replies thereto during the live stream of the 2023 Annual Stockholders
Meeting (ASM).

Any questions or comments submitted and received after the deadline shall be answered
directly by Management thru emalil to the stockholder concerned. Additional questions or
comments may be sent to office of the president@valleygolf.com.ph



2.11. Mechanism for information dissemination — The website will include a portion for
“Frequently asked questlons”. Stockholders are advised to visit the Frequently Asked
Questions (FAQ) page prior to sending inquiries.

3. PROXIES
3.1. Proxies.

3.1.1. Stockholders may request for the Pre-numbered Proxy form. A stockholder can
request a maximum of 20 proxy forms per day only before the office of the Human
Resource Department.

3.1.2. The member may choose to execute a proxy form in favor of another member to
exercise his right to vote.

3.1.3. Unless the reason for replacement is due to death or severe physical, mental or
medical incapacity to discharge the representative's functions under the proxy, once
the proxy form has been validated, the same shall be deemed final, without prejudice
to the right of the Stockholder to personally appear to cancel the proxy form and
cast his vote before his proxy or assignee shall have cast a vote on his behalf,

3.2,  After the proxy forms are properly accomplished, the same may be submitted at the Human
Resource Department.

33 If the proxy form is submitted with 2 or more names proxies for the election of the members
of the Board of Directors, it will be invalid for voting and considered for quorum purposes
only. If the proxy form is corrected before submission then it is valid. If a Stockholder signs 2
or more proxy forms In favor of 2 different persons and the 2 proxies submit both proxy
forms signed by the same stockholder for the election of the members of the Board of
Directors the proxies are invalid for voting and will be considered for quorum purposes only.
This is without prejudice to the right of the stockholder to exercise his/her right to vote online
either remote or in-person.

3.4.  In case of loss or destruction of the numbered proxy form, the stockholder concerned may
request for a Replacement Proxy form. The stockholder must submit a notarized affidavit of
Request for Replacement Form citing the reason for the request.

3.5.  Incase of a corporate stockholder, the person appearing before the Committee should be
equipped with a duly notarized Secretary’s Certificate showing that he Is authorized to cause
the cancellation of the subject proxy form.

3.6. Once a Replacement Proxy Form has been issued, the Original Proxy form shall be
automatically canceled and can no longer be used even if subsequently found.

3.7.  All Proxy forms submitted before the Human Resource Dept. will be subject to internal Audit
Procedure.

4. ONLINE VOTING PROCEDURE
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4.2

4.3

The Annual Stockholders Meeting (ASM) webcast uses an entirely different secure system.
For cyber security purposes, the Online Voting System/Portal also uses a separate, secure
system or platform.

An electronic absentee ballot will be available upon login of all registered Stockholders in the
front page portion of the website dedicated for the Stockholders Meeting. OTP is required
for login in the voting system. The Stockholder will receive his/her OTP thru the registered
email while Proxyholders will be sent a separate OTP for voting thru Proxy. All agenda items
in the Notice of the Stockholders’ Meeting may be voted upon as follows:

For all items in the Agenda except the Election of Directors, the Stockholder/Proxyholder will
click any of the following:

STEP 1: Click the link in the email sent to you containing your log-in credentials to access the
ONLINE VOTING PORTAL, Alternatively, you may also click on the VOTE icon in the microsite.

STEP 2: Enter the log-in credentials provided and click LOGIN.

STEP 3: The stockholders may vote on amendment online and each agenda item. A brief
description of each item for stockholder’s approval is appended to the NOTICE OF MEETING.

4.3.1. Voting for the Election of Directors by Stockholders and Proxyholders
Vote “Yes”, “No”, or “Abstain” on each agenda item for approval.

4.3.1.1. Electronic Ballot for the Stockholder — the registered Stockholder shall
indicate the number of votes for each candidate by following the step-
by-step procedure on the ballot. The number of votes shall not exceed
the number of shares owned by the stockholder multiplied by nine (9).

43.1.2. Electronic Ballot for the Proxyholder — the registered Proxyholder shall
indicate the number of votes for each candidate by following the
procedure on the ballot. The number of votes shall not exceed the
number of valid proxies multiplied by nine {9).

4.3.13. For election of directors, vote for nine nominees, withhold vote for any
of the nominees, or vote for certain nominees only.

4.3.2, Voting for Amendment by the General Manager.

43.2.1, Electronlc Ballot for General Manager — the General Manager shall
indicate the number of votes for the proposed amendments by
following the procedure on the ballot. The humber of votes shall not
exceed the number of valid proxies. Vote Yes or No on the proposed
amendments.

Note: The stockholder may vote such number of shares for as many persons
as there are directors to be elected or cumulate such said shares and give one
candidates as many votes as the number of directors to be elected muitiplied

6



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

by the number of shares owned, or distribute them on the same principle
among as many candidates as may be seen fit, provided that the total number
of votes cast shall not exceed the number of shares owned by the stockholder
multiplied by nine (9). The seven candidates for regular directors and the two
candlidates for independent directors with the most number of votes shall be
declared elected. :

STEP 4: Once you have reached the last of the agenda items and have made your votes, click
on the CONFIRM AND SUBMIT button.

STEP 5: You will then be presented with a summary where you can review the votes you have
casted. If you are satisfied, once again click the CONFIRM AND SUBMIT button. Once
confirmed, the Stockholder/Proxyholder will no longer be allowed to make any changes in
his ballot. You will also receive an email confirming that your votes have been submitted to
the Club.

Note: a stockholder attending and participating in the ASM In multiple capacities must go
through the voting process for each capacity. Stockholders must exert all effort in ensuring
that their votes are proper prior to submitting the same.

STEP 6: The Stockholder/Proxyholder will logout from the system.

Note: A stockholder who personally casts his vote or votes through a proxy online shall be
considered present for purposes of determining quorum even If he or his proxy does not
join the weblInar during the virtual stockholders’ meeting itself.

Stockholders who have not issued a proxy (or have decided to disregard the same) and wish
to vote online will be counted for quorum purposes thru the authorization that will be
confirmed before access is allowed in the voting system.

An independent third-party entity will count and tabulate the votes cast in absentia through
the Voting System/Portal.

The Comelec shall validate the voting results and report the same to the Board during the
Meeting.

Schedule of Voting
September 20-21, 2023 Stockholders online voting from Sept. 20 (8:00 a.m.) up to
{Wednesday- Thursday) Sept. 21, 2023 (5:00 p.m.)
September 22, 2023 Voting by Proxyholders online from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
(Friday)

Voting by the stockholders can only be done excluslvely through the Online Voting
System/Portal stated above and not during the live stream broadcast on September 24, 2023

7



5 OTHER MATTERS TO ADDRESS ADMINISTRATIVE, TECHNICAL AND LOGISTICAL ISSUES.

5.1 The Club is not responsible for the reliability, stability, or the speed of the hardware and
software of the computer or device being used by the stockholder, nor shall the Club be
responsible for the connection, speed, and stability of the internet connection of the
computer or device of the stockholder when using the Online Voting System, and Livestream
Broadcast of the 2023 Annual Stockholders Meeting (ASM).

5.2 The Club has taken all necessary steps and precautions within its power to ensure the security
of the Online Voting System and Livestream Broadcast. This notwithstanding, should the Club
detect any unauthorized third-party access, intrusion, Interference, and/or Interruption with
said systems, which in the sole determination of the Club poses a risk of disclosure of
personal and private data or may result in a breach of data privacy laws and regulations, the
Club reserves the right to immediately disable any of the systems without prior notice.

ALLAN JOCSON
Corporate Secretary



Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc.
From: CTD Submission <ictdsubmission+ cannedmponse@su:.gcw.ph: .

o
Sent: Wednesday, 26 October 2022 3:03 PM ANNEX
info@velleygoif.com.ph —
::;jeet: R CGED, VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC._SEC FORM 17-C_independent Diractors and Committees. 26
October 2022

Your report/document has been SUCCESSFULLY ACCEPTED by {CTD. ('Subject to Verification and
Review of the Quality of the Attached Document) Official copy of the submitted document/report with Barcode
Page (Confirmation Receipt) will be made available after 15 days from receipt through the SEC Express
System at the SEC website at www.sec.gov.ph

NOTICE

Please be informed that pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 3, series of 2021, scanned copics of the
printed reports with wet signature und proper notarization shall be filed in PORTABLE DOCUMENT
FORMAT (PDF) Sccondary Reports such as: 17-A, 17-C, 17-L, 17-Q, ICASR, ICA-QR, ICA-AR, 23-A, 23-B,
I-ACGR. ACGR, Monthly Reports, Quarterly Reports, Letters, OPC(ALTERNATE NOMINREE),GIS-G, 52-

AR, THAR, AMLA-CF NPM.NPAM, BP-FCLC. CHINESEWALL. 39-AR.36-AR, PNFS, MCG, S10/SEC-
NTCE-EXEMPT, through cmail at

jetdsubm isgiog_(a’?sec.ggv.nh

Note: All submissions through this email are no longer required to submit the hard copy thru mail. eFAST or
gver- the- counter.

For thosc applications that rcquire psyment of filing fees, these still nced to be filed and sent via cmail with the
SEC RESPECTIVE OPERATING DEPARTMENT.

Further, note that other reports shall be filed thru the ELECTRONIC FILING AND SUBMISSION

TOOL (cFAST) such as: AFS, GIS, GFFS, LCFS, LCI¥, FCFS. FCIF, IHFS, BDFS, PHFS etc. ANO,
ANHAM, FS-PARENT,

FS-CONSOLIDATED. OPC_AO, AFS WITH NSPO FORM 1.2,3 AND 4.,5,6, AFS WITH NSPO FORM
1.2,3 (FOUNDATIONS)
FOR MC28, please go to SEC website:

https:/, 3010.86¢.20V.

For your information and guidance.

Thank you and keep safe.
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Certification

1, DAN L. SALVADOR Ill, the General Manager/Compllance Officer of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY
CLUB, INC., a corporation duly registered under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines, with SEC registration number 13861 and with principal office at Don Celgo 8. Tuason
Yictoria Vallay Antipolo City, on eath state:

1) That | have caused this Cy R OF or the period
2022 to be prepared on behalf of VALLE\' GOLF & COUNTRY cLUB INC.

2) That | have read and understood its contents which are true and correct based on my own
personal knowledge and/or on authentic records;

3) That the company VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. will comply with the requirements
set forth in SEC Notice dated 12 May 2021 to effect a complete and official submission of
reports and/or documents through electronic mall;

4) That | am fully aware that submitted documents which require pre-evaluation and/or
payment of processing fee shall be considered complete and officlally received only upon
payment of a filing fee; and

5) That the e-mall account designated by the company pursuant to SEC Memorandum Clrcular
No. 28, s. 2020 shall be used by the company In Its online submissions to CGFD.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, | have hereunto set my hand tﬂET 26 mﬂdav oANTIPOLO CITY

| Ol

DAN L. SALVADOR It
Affiant

\ L"-
mmmaﬁwm
NOTARY PUBLIC

ForA , Cairta,
nﬁlbgunbwllm

Roll of Artoneys Na. 27541
MCLE liance No. V1-0017458
IBP No. 181520; Jm. 03, 2022
TR No. 82367801 Jan. 03 2022 Anlipolo Cit
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10.

11

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.2(c) THEREUNDER

Date of Report (Date of esrliest event reported): 22 October 2022

SEC Idenfification Number : 13951

BIR Tax Identification No.:  000-649-197

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charterr ~ VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB,
INC.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation: Antipolo, Rizal, Philippines

Industry Classification Code: |_ {SEC Use Only)

Address of principal office/ Postal Code: Don Celso S. Tuasen Ave. Victoria Valley,
Antipolo, Rizal 1870

Tssuer's telephone number, including area code:  (632) 658-4901 to 03 / (632) 658-4920/
(632) 658-0079 to 39

Former name or former address, if changed since lastreport:  Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of Common Stock
Title of Each Class Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding
Common Stoek 1,594 shares outstanding

Indicate the item numbers reported herein; Item 4



I'TEM 4. RESIGNATION, REMOVAL. ELECTION OR APPOINTMENT OF
REGISTRANT’S DIRECTORS OR OFFICERS.

In compliance with the Manual of Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors in their
Regular meeting last October 22, 2022, approved the following appointments

1. Dir. Nicanor 8. Jorge as Chairman of the Audit Committee

2. Dir. Jose G. Razon as Chairman of the Compensation/Remuneration Committes

3. The following Directars were appointed Independent Directors of Valley Golf & Country
Club, Inc.

a. Dir, Marvin A. Caparros
b. Dir. Nicanor S. Jorge

Attached are the Certification of the Independent Directors.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly cansed
this report to be signed on its behelf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorizad.

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. 25 October 2022
Issuer Date

By: ](Q;l /.L CM" (Zu

DAN L. SALVADOR
Compliance Officer/General Manager



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
l. MARVIN A. CAPARROS, Filipino, of legal age and with address &t 8 Switzerland St. Loyala
Grand Villas, Quezon City after having been swom In accordance with law, hereby depose and
state that:
1. 1 am the Independent Director of VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC. ("VGGCI")

2. |am affiliated with the following companles or organizations:

Company/Organization Positlon/Relationship Pariod of Service
Vallzy Golf & Country Club, Inc. Director 2022 - 2025 ]
M.A. Caparros Management and C.E.C & Prasident 2020 - Preaent |
Development Corporation o
G.0.C.C Board President | 2012 - Presant
Construction and Project Board of Director 2020 - Prasent
Management Association of the Phlls

3. |possass all the qualifications and none of the disquallfications to serve as an Independent
Director of VGCCI, as provided for in Section 38 of the Sacuritles Regulation Cods and
its implementing Rules and Regulations.

4. | shall falthfully and diligently comply with my duties and responasibliities as independent
director under the Securitiss Regulation Caode.

5. |shall Inform the Corporate Secretary of VGCCI of any changes In the abovementioned
information within five days from Its occurrence.

ponethis_ 06k, 35 T2 50p .. ANTIPOLG CITY

_‘MARYIN A. CAPARROS
ﬁ'ant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 1o betti e §k-0 %Es day of 2022 by
Warin ¢ajprve S personally appeared to me with TIN * a1 =953 ;atnown to me who Is the
same person who signed before me the foregoing Certification of Independent Director and
acknowledged that he executed the same,

Doc. No.a_'?
Page No. §% .
Book No. 1 ATTY. nomms.umm
Series of 2022, NOTARY PUBLIC
For Antir-k Clty, Caimg, , Rizal
Until Decemlmil

Rall of Attorney s No, 27541
MCLE Compliance No. V1-0017458
1BP No, 181520; Jan. 03, 2022
PTR No. 82362851: Jen. 03, 2022 Antipolo City



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
I, NICANOR 8. JORGE, Fllipino, of legal age and with address at 35 Scout Lozano St.
Barangay Laging Handa, Quezon City after having been swomn In accordance with iaw, hereby
depose and state that:

1. | am the Independent Director of VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
("VGGCI")

2. | am effilated with the following companies or organizationa:

_ Company/Organization 1 Poultloanolltlomhlp_P Period of Service |
Vallzy Golf & Country Club. Inc. Director 2022 - 2025 l
The Basketball Effeciency Scientific | Member, Board of Directors 2017 - Present [
Training Center. Inc. |

3. | possess all the quelificatione and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of VGCCI, as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities
Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations.

4. { ehall falthfully and diligently comply with my duties end responsibilities as indepsndent
director under the Securities Reguiation Code.

6. | shall inform the Corporate Secrstary of VGCCI of any changes In the abovementioned
information within five days from Its occurrence.

Done thlsOE dgyﬁofm 2022 SNTIPOLO CITY

Afflant

~fIPOLO €
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before mer{nf OCT i "2yqy of 2022 by
NICANOR 8. JORGE parsonally appeared to me with TIN 126-967-539, known to me who is
the same person who signed before me the foregoing Certification of Indepandent Director and
acknowledged that he executed the same.

Doc. No, 353
Page No. §9 W g
Book No, _P L= _J.:“ R
Series of 2022. ATTY. ﬂo%‘;"mm mﬂmﬂ
ntl ity, Cuinta, )
For A o 31 2020

A s Na. 27544
M(IIR.ED“Cgfnm No. V1-0017458
IBP No. 181520; Jan. 03, 2022
YTR No, R73678%4; Jan, 03, 2022 Antigolo Cir



Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc ‘ e 4
e "

From: {CTD Submission <ictdsubmissiomcanned.resm@sa.gw.phb ANNEX L

Bent: Thursday, 20 July 202;‘1:24 PM _—
infa@valleygoif.com.

:::hixr IRe: g;v:D?ngLLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, ING._SEC FORM 17-C_NOMINATION COMMITTEE-_20 JULY 2023

Thank you for reaching out tc ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph!

Your submission is subject for Verification and Review of the Quality of the Attached Docum.ent only for Secondary
Reports. The Officlal Copy of the submitted document/report with Barcode Page (Confirmation

Recelpt) will be made available after 7 working days via order through the SEC Express at https:llsecexpress.ph[. For
further clarifications, please call (02} 8737-8888.

NOTICE 7O
COMPANIES

please be informed of the reports that shall be filed only through ictdsubmission @sec.gov.ph.

Pursuant to SEC MC Clrcutar No. 3 s 2021, scanned copies of the printed reports with wet signature and proper
notarization shall be filed in PORTABLE DOCUMENT FORMAT {pdf) through email at ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph such
as the following SECONDARY REPORTS:

1.17-A 6. ICA-OR 11. IHAR 16. 38-AR 21. Monthly Reports
2.17-C 7. 23-A 12. AMLA-CF 17. 36-AR 22. Quarterly Reports

3. 17-L 8. 23-B 13. NPM 18, PNF5 23. Letters

4, 17-Q 9. GIS-G 14. NPAM 19. MCG 24, OPC [Alternate Nominee)
5. ICASR 10. 52-AR 15.BP-FCLC 20.510/SEC-NTCE-EXEMPT

Further, effective 01 july 2023, the following reports shall be submitted through https:lfefast.sec.sov.phluserllosin.

1. FORM MC 18 7. Compietion Report

2. FORM 1-MC 19 8. Certificate-SEC Form MCG- 2009

3, FORM 2- MC 19 9. Certificate-SEC Form MCG- 2002, 2020 ETC.
4, ACGR 10. Certification of Attendance in Corporate Governance

5. I-ACGR 11. Secretary's Certificate Meeting of Board Directors
(Appoiniment)

6. MRPT
Please be informed that the submission of the abovementioned eleven

{11) reports through the ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph shall no longer be accepted. For further information, please
access this link Notice for guidance on the filing of reports:

Likewise, the following reports shali be filed through the Electronic Filing and Submission Tool (eFAST) 2t
https:l/efast.sec.gov.phluserllogin :

1. AFS 7. IHFS 13. 55F
2. GIS 8. LCFS 14, AFS with Affidavit of No Operation
3. BDES 9. LCIF 15. AFS with NSPO Form 1,2,and 3

4. FCFS 10. OPC_AO 16. AF5 with NSPO Form 1,2,3and 4,5,6
5. FCIF 11. PHFS 17. FS - Parent
6. GFFS 12, SFFS 18. F5 - Consolidated

For the submission and processing of complia

nee in the filing of Memorandum Circular No. 28 Series of 2020, please
visit this link — https:l!appsOlO.sec.gov.phl



COVER SHEET
ENEREICIK | 1 [ |

S.E.C. Registration Number

(VIAJLILE[Y| [GOJLIF] [&] [C|OJUN[T[R]Y] | | ]

l

ejrjuisl,j Ji[Nfef.] | | 1T 1 [ [ T P 1 11T {711

(Company's Full Nams)

(Djo[N] [clEJL[s|o] [s].] [T[UuJA|S|ON [AJVIE].]

(VIT[C[T[O[R[ITA] TVv[ATLTLTETY],] JA[N[T][I[PTO[UQ]

(RUtfzjat] [T [ LT P TT T T I 1T [T § [

!

(Business Addresa: No. Street/Clty/Province)

| ROSANNA R. ARGUELLES | 8658-4901
Contect Person Company Telephona Number
. -
016 |3}0 SEC Form 17C 08 4% Sunday
Month Day FORM TYPE Month Day
Fiscal Year Annual Meeting

Secondary Licanse Type, If Applicable

[CTG[F[D] [
Dept. Requiring this Doc. Amendad Articles Numbar/Section

Total Amount of Borrowings

] o || —

Total No. of Stockholders Domestic Fareign
Owning at Least One Board Lot

Ta ba accomplished by SEC Personnel concemed

" LCU

Cashier

STAMPS

Remarks = pls. Use black ink for scanning purposes



Certification

|, DAN L. SALVADOR Jli, the General Manager/Compliance Officer of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY
CLUB, INC., a corporation duly registered under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines, with SEC registration number 13951 and with principal office at Don Csiso 8, Tuason
Victoria Vailgy Antipole City, on oath state:

1) That | have caused this Current Report (SEC Form 17-C) for the period ended July 15,
2023 to be prepared on behalf of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUS, INC.

2) That | have read and understood its contents which are true and correct based on my own
personal knowledge and/or on authentic records;

3) That the company VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. will comply with the requirements
set forth in SEC Notice dated 12 May 2021 to effect a complete and official submission of
reports and/or documents through electronic mail;

4) That | am fully aware that submitted documents which require pre-evaluation and/or
payment of processing fee shall be considered complete and officially recelved only upon
payment of a filing fee; and

5) That the e-mail account designated by the company pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular
No. 28, s. 2020 shall be used by the company in its online submissions to CGFD.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this day of
, 20
" z s £
SUBSCRIBED AND SwORN TO BEFORE ME DAN L. SALVADOR il
'THIS e DAY OF AT ANTIPOLO CITY Afflant
AFFIANT EXHIBITING TO ME HISHER GOV
VALID ID NOTED DEL Qv HIS MAME
1 ]
ERC, Na.:%.. “ITY. HONORAT mo’i JR.
Tage Mo, - no'mné'I pusu;: s
S o, [73 o ) For Antipolo City, Cainta, Taytay,
Untll December 31, 2024
“eries oftndl . ol of Attorneys No, 27541
MCLE Compliance No, VII-0023686

1BP No. 256227; Dec. 30, 2022, R8N
PTR No. 8675432; Jan. 03, 2023 Antipolo City

e



10.

11.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.2(c) THEREUNDER

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): 15 July 2023

SEC Identification Number: 13951

BIR Tax Identification No.: _ 000-649-197

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter: VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB,
INC.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation: Antipolo, Rizal, Philippines

Industry Classification Code: "] (SEC Use Only)

Address of principal office/ Postal Code: Don Celso S. Tuason Ave. Victoria Valley,
Aantipolo, Rizal 1870

Issuer’s telephone number, including area code:  (632) 8658-4901 to 03 / (632) 8658-4920

Former name ot former address, if changed since last report: ~ Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of Common Stock

Title of Each Class Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding
Common Stock 1.594 sheres outstanding

Indicate the item numbers reported herein:  Item 9




ITEM 9. OTHER EVENTS

In compliance with the Manual of Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors in their
Regular meeting last July 15, 2023, approved the appointment of the following members of the
Nomination Committee for the September 24, 2023 Stockholders’ Meeting and Election of the Board
of Directors:

Nomination Committee:

Vice President Jose Arsenio Isidro D. Borromeo 111
Dir. Marvin A. Caparros — Independent Director
Atty. Marcus Antonius T. Andaya

Atty. Conrad P. Cereno

Atty. Arlan N. Sallan

S e

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. July 19, 2023
Issuer Date

By: C(»M&V/
L P

DAN I.. SALVADOR Il
Compliance Officer/General Manager



Alnea C’l -

Vahcy Golf and Country Club, Int.
From: 1CTD Submission <Ictdsubmission-+ canned.responsemec.gw.pm
Sant Tuesday, 27 June 2023 05 PM
infodvallcygolf.com.ph )
.;:;1-::: Re: CGFD_Valiey Golf & Country Club Inc _SEC Form 17-C_Commision on Elections, 27June2023

Thank you for reaching out to ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph!

Your submission s subject for Verification and Review of the Quality of the Attached Documf.-m onty for Secondary
Reports. The Official Copy of the submitted document/report with Barcode Page (Confirmation

Receipt) will be made available after 7 working days via order through the SEC Express at httpﬁllsecexpress.ph/ . For
further clarifications, please call (02) 8737-8888.

NOTICETO
COMPANIES

Please be informed of the reports that shall be filed only through ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph.

Pursuant to SEC MC Circular No. 3 52021, scanned copies of the printed reports with wet signature and proper
notarization shall be filed in PORTABLE DOCUMENT FORMAT (pdf) through emall at ictdsubmisslon@sec.gov.ph such as
the following SECONDARY REPORTS:

1. 17-A 6. ICA-OR 11. IHAR 16. 39-AR 21. Monthly Reports

2, 17-C 7. 23-A 12. AMLA-CF 17. 36-AR 22. Quarterly Reports

3, 17-L 8. 23-B 13. NPM 18. PNEFS 23. Letters

4.17-0.9. GIS-G 14, NPAM 19. MCG 24. OPC (Alternate Nominee)
5. ICASR 10. 52-AR 15.BP-FCLC 20.510/SEC-NTCE-EXEMPT

Further, effective 01 July 2023, the following reports shalt be submitted through https://efast.sec.gov.ph/user/login.

1. FORM MC 18 7. Completion Report

2.FORM 1-MC 19 8. Certificate-SEC Form MCG- 2009

3, FORM 2- MC 199. Certificate-SEC Form MCG- 2002, 2020 ETC.

4. ACGR 10. Certification of Attendance in Corporate Governance

5. |-ACGR 11. Secretary's Certificate Meeting of Board Directors
{Appointment)

6. MRPT
Please be informed that the submission of the abovementicned eleven

(11) reports through the ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph shall no longer be accepted. For further information, please access
this link Notice for guidance on the filing of reports:

Likewise, the following reports shall be filed through the Electronic Filing and Submission Tool (eFAST) at
hitps://efast.sec.gov.ph/user/login :

1. AFS 7. IHFS 13, S5F
2. GIS 8. LCFS 14. AFS with Affidavit of No Operation
3. BDFS 9. LCIF 15. AFS with NSPO Form 1,2, and 3

4. FCFS 10. OPC_AQ 16. AFS with NSPO Form 1,2,3 and 4,5,6
5. FCIF 11. PHFS 17. FS - Parent

6. GFFS 12. SFFS 18. FS ~ Consolidated
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Certification

|, DAN L, SALVADOR ili, the General Manager/Compliance Officer of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY
CLUB, INC,, a corporation duly registered under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines, with SEC registration number 139851 and with principal office at Don Celso S. Tuason
Victoria Valley Antipolo Clty, on oath state:

1) That | have caused this Current Re SEC Form 17-C) for the perl nded June 2
2023 to be prepared on behalf of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

2) That | have read and understood its contents which are true and correct based on my own
personal knowledge and/or on authentic records;

3) That the company VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. will comply with the requirements
set forth in SEC Notice dated 12 May 2021 to effect a complete and official submission of
reports and/or documents through electronic mail;

4) That | am fully aware that submitted documents which require pre-evaluation and/or
payment of processing fee shall be considered complete and officially recelved only upon
payment of a filing fee; and

5} That the e-mall account designated by the company pursuant to SEC Memorandum Clrcular
No. 28, s. 2020 shall be used by the company in its online submissions to CGFD.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand t%““ 11 21mda\r of MNTIPOLO CITy

, 20 o 21m

JBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO
SEFORE METHIS____DAY OF ___ _ /) M
IN ANTIPOLO CITY AFFIANT Ald A
ZXHIBITING TO HIS 1 HER GOV'T DAN L SALVADOR il
VALID 1D NOTED BELOW HIS NAME Affiant

= 85, 38 Jyadeo -~ !l

A %*
PDoc No. g : TIT. HON OR& F%Iqtéalm

B, | !
Z:gz xﬂ for Mté::::nc:?; cl’l Tl,h’ Rigaj
mbe.
Saries of___e_e_z_s__ Roll of Atpprs 731, 202¢
18P Mo, 266227, peg. o VIocasess
PIR No. 8675432, J“D;es 30, 2022, Ray

2023 Antipoty City



10.

11.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.2(c) THEREUNDER

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): 27 Jumne 2023

SEC Identification Number: 13951

BIR Tax Identification No.:  000-649-197

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter = VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB,
INC,

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation:  Antipolo, Rizal, Philippines

Industry Classification Code: (SEC Use Only)

Address of principal office/ Postal Code: Don Celso S. Tuason Ave. Victoria Vailey,
Antipolo, Rizal 1870

Issuer’s telephone numbser, including area code:  (632) 658-4901 to 03 / (632) 658-4920 /
(632) 658-0079 to 89

Former name or former address, if changed since last report: ~ Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of Common Stock
Title of Each Class Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding
Common Stock 1,594 shares outstanding

Indicate the item mumbers reported herein:  Item 9




ITEM 9. OTHER EVENTS

In compliance with the Manual of Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors in their
Regular meeting last June 26, 2023 approved the appointment of the following members of the
Committee on Elections for the September 24, 2023 Stockholders’ Meeting and Election of the
Board of Directors:

Committee on Elections:

1. Atty. Joseph Joel R. Castillo - Chairman
2. Atty. Wendell V. Dimaculangan - Member
3. Aity. Mark Boncris Santos - Member

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused
this repott to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. June 27, 2023
Issuer Date

/\W{ lordty,

DAN L. SALVADOR ITI
Compliance Officer/General Manager



ANRzA g}_.

Val|ey Golf and Coyritry Club, Inc.

Fram: LTI Land it nm <ot Iubs T T e Lo Pl sispiov v LOamd dirsy ol

Sent: Tiwiday, 3 aminky B0 R 0L T

To =l il gl

Subject: e TEI0 e BV AR CCofiTEr o i il MCTOMM ITT ITEV S DTFERFOINTE 25 8N Y 363

Y our reperifdocument has been SUCCESSFULLY ACCEPTED by ICTD. (Subject to Verification and
Review of the Quality of the Attached Document) Official copy of the submitted document/report with Barcode

Page (Confirmation Receipt) will be made available after 15 days from receipt through the SEC Express
Svstern at the SEC website ot ww sgc. g ph

NOTICE

Please be informed that pursuuant to SEC Memorandum Circular Nu. 3. series of 2021, scanned copics of the
printed reports with wet sipnature and proper notarization shull be filed in PORTABLE DOCUMENT
FORMAT (PDF) Secondary Reports such as: 17-A, 17.C. 17-L. 17-Q. ICASK. JCA-QR, ICA-AR. 23.A, 23-B.
I-ACGR. ACGR, Monthly Reports. Quarterly Reports, Letters,. OPC(ALTERNATE NOMINEE).GIS-G. 52-
AR, IHAR AMLA-CF.NPM,NPAM, BP-FULC. CHINESEWALL, 39-AR.36-AR, PNFS. MC(. SIO/SEC-
NTCLE-EXEMPT, through email at

ictdsubmissionfe sec.gov.ph

Note: All submissions through this email are no longer required to submit the hard copy thru maii, eFAST ur
over- the- counter.

For thuse applications that require payment of filing fecs. these still need to be filed and sent via email with the
SEC RESPECTIVE OPERATING DEPARTMENT.

Further. note that other reports shall be filed thru the ELECTRONIC FILING AND SUBMISSION

TOOL (cFAST) such as: AFS, GIS, GFFS, LCFS, LCIF. FCFS. FCIF, I[HFE, BDFS, PHFS etc. ANO,
ANHAM, FS-PARENT,

FS-CONSOLIDATED, OPC_AQ, AFS WITH NSPO FORM 1.2.3 AND 4.5.6. AFS WiTH NSPO FORM
1,23 (FOUNDATIONS)
FOR MC28. please go to SEC websile:

httns://apps010.see. gov.ph

For your information and guidance.

Thank you and keep sate.
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Certification

I, DAN L. SALVADCR lil. the General Manager/Compliance Officer of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY
CLUB, INC., a corporation duly registered under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines, with SEC registration number 13951 and with principal office at Don Celso 8. Tuason
Victoria Valley Antipolo City. on cath state:

1) That | have caused this Current Report (SEC Form 17-C) for the period ended January 3.
2023 to be prepared on behalf of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

2) That | have read and understood its contents which are true and correct based on my own
personal knowledge and/or on authentic records;

3) That the company VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. will comply with the requirements
set forth in SEC Notice dated 12 May 2021 to effect a complete and official submission of
reports and/or documents through electronic mall;

4) That | am fully aware that submitted documents which require pre-evaluation and/or
payment of processing fee shall be considered complete and officially received only upon
payment of a filing fee; and

5) That the e-malil account designated by the company pursuant to SEC Memorandum Clrcular
No. 28, s. 2020 shall be used by the company in its online submissions to CGFD.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, | have hereunto set my hand this _ day of
., 20 .
SUBSCRIRED tnp < 0 Zéi DAN L. SALVADOR it
Inﬂl’fsl?m}. : L Wt 30 #RE M! Afflant
VO NE }:. wui:{‘:r.. - ‘"E‘ﬁlfmua
DO: NO, 7,5-
PAGE No. ATTY. ALB PARANADA"
L — une BT (ke
RIESOE 202 MBER X, 2o
202 IEPN 49473/!0*‘7-!0?2%

PLLNO.539
MGLENG VII-0018 93?4-'%&

PIRNO.8CI3E0M/1- DRt AN TR AL



10.

11

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17.2(c) THEREUNDER
Date of Report (Date of earlicst event reported): 03 January 2023
SEC Identification Number: 13951

BIR Tax Identification No.:  000-649-197

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter:  VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB,
INC.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation: ~Antipolo, Rizal, Philippines

Industry ClassificationCode: | | (SEC Use Only)

Address of principal office/ Postal Code: Don Celso 8. Tuason Ave, Victoria Valley,
Antipolo, Rizal 1870

Issuer’s telephone number, including area code:  (632) 658-4901 to 03 / (632) 658-4920 /
(632) 658-0079 to 89

Former name or former address, if changed since last report:  Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Number of Shares of Common Stock
Title of Each Class Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding
Common Stock 1,594 shares tandin

Indicate the item numbers reported herein: ~ Item 9 — Other Events



ITEM 9.

In compliance with the Manual of Corporate Governance, the following are the members of
the Audit Committee and Compensation Committee

1. The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

g) Dir, Nicanor S. Jorge — Chairman

b) Mr. Albert DG. San Gabriel - Vice-Chairman
c) Dir. Jose G. Razon — Member

d) Mr. Daniel Dumlao - Member

e) Mr. Federico Feliciano — Member

f) Mr. Donald Joseph Macomb — Member

g) Mr. Renato Mercado - Member

h) Mr. Jason Sy — Member

2. The composition of the Compensation Committee is as follows:

a) Dir. Jose G. Razon — Chairman

b) Dir. Renato C. Balibag — Vice-Chairman
c) Mr. Robert John Barretto — Member

d) Mr. Errol Collado — Member

e) Mr. Michael Echavez — Member

f) Ms. Cecile Esguerra — Member

g} Mr. Dennis Ramon Guanio — Member

h) Mr, Jose Basilio Leonardo — Member

i) Atty, Pedro H. Maniego — Member

j) Mr. Romeo Robles - Member

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. Jan. 3, 2023
3 I__ssuer Date
BY: J'I“"Lla'h' ] |;I’\-

DAN L. SALVADOR I
Compliance Officer/General Menager



ANNEX “ Coq "

' LIBAGO
It is my pleasure to nominat Raciy T with 3?’34
Membership Account Number, as candidate for election to the position of

] Reguler
[~ Independent Director of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

| hereby certfy that  AACKY UBFGD  meets the following
requirements for a Regular/Independent Director:

a. He/ She has one {1) share of stock recorded in his/her name for at |east three
(3) years at the time of nomination and shall continue to own a share during
histher term of office. (If the nominee has been 2 member of a standing
committee for at least one (1} year, or a playing guest or corporate
representative for at least two (2) years, the three-year requirement will be
reduced to one (1} year.

b, He/ She is a collage graduate or has sufficient experienca in managing the
business to substitute for such formal education or he has been engaged or
exposed to the business of the corporation for at least five (S} years, for
independent Director

c. He/ She is more than twenty-one (21) years old,

d. He/ She is an active Proprietary member of good standing with no delinquent
account/s, who has not assigned the playing right of hisfher share of stock
upon his/her nomination, has committed in writing not to assign said playing
right during hisfher incumbency if slacted.

. He/ She has sufficient time and is willing to share his/her professional and
executive expertise.

f. He/ She has no official record of grave and serious misconduct that merited
Club membership suspension and has not been convicted in any criminal case;

g. He/ She is mentally and physically fit to serve 23 member of the Board for one
{1) year. The nominating committee may request a medical certification that
the nominee is mentally and physically fit.

h. He/ She has proven to possess integrity and probity.

He/ She is assiduous.
| He/ She possesses all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications listed

in the By-laws, the Guidefines of the Nomination Committee and the
Amended Manual of Corporate Governance.



Artached hereto are the following documents:

1. Resume with 2x2 Photo;

2. Duly accomplished Acceptance Form (Notarized);

3. Duly Accomplished Certificate of Qualifications (Notarized})* )
& W%;Z

»for independent diirectors only. ALE
PROPOSER

Acct. No, _%3 +

CONFORME TO NOMINATION AS DIRECTOR
L RICKEY L 1A , of legal age, Filipino, married/single, and 2

resident of = , have read the Nomination
Form in which my name was submitted as candidate for

[ Reguler

[V Independent Director and | have no objections to such nomination.
I also certify that the documents attached and submitted in such Norination Form
are true and correct. |

B
hOMIEE
Acct. No. 3334

SUBSCRIBE AND SWORN TO before me%sm A7, MAKATI vy
Philippines. Affiant, exhibited to me his Community Tax Certificate No.

issued at on
DO‘C- No_ AT;:::. 30& P- LAPUZ
Page No. L e i
Book No. , Pnﬁlﬂlil::rm_ent Ha. n-m:o-(za:z-un)
Series of ] - 9563523 Jan. 1, 2023 / Makatt

IBF Lifetic~ 4> w4497 Roll No. 45790
MCLE Cowmpllince fu. Yi{-0818279
Intned 3 dpral 23, 2622
G/F Fedman 3:8e., 1++ saicedo St
Legaipl Villipa, Makavj City



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

LK) L L—ﬂé. AGD Filipino, of legal age and a resident of
- . after having been duly sworn to in accordance
with law de hereby declare that:

1. 1am a nominee for independent director of Valley Golf & Country Club Inc.;
2. | am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including
Government-Owned and Controlled Corporations):
COMPAN onmmm'l?:lm | POSITION/RELATIONSHIP | PERIOD OF SERVICE |
) vl b | PRETIFENT ek T BT
e AT P e

[ ;%«%_ZWHL —,:EY_‘—%W*M AfFIL 3033

3. | possess oil the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of Valley Golf & Country Club provided for in Section 38
of the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and
other SEC issuances.

4. 1 am related to the following director/officer /substantial sharcholder of
Valley Golf & Country Club other than the relationship provided under Rule
38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code. (where applicable)

P NAME OF

| DIRECTOR/OFFICER/ NATURE OF
SUBSTANTIAL COMPANY RELATIONSHIP
SHAREHOLDER I B

NoNE"

$. To the best of my knowledge, 1 am nat the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding / 1 disclose that | am the subject of
the following criminal/administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case

may be):
"TOFFENSE | TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY =
CHARGED/INVESTIGATED | INVOLVED STATUS

v fop—
1:',.|_.I[.|'|:.



6. (For those in povernment service/affiliated with a government agency or

GocC) [ have the required permission from the (head of the

to be an Independent director in Valley Golf & Country

Club, Inc. pursuant to Office of the President Memorandum Clreular No. 17 and
Section 12, Rule XVIII of the Revised Civll Service Rules.

7. 1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent  director under the Sccurities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other
SEC {ssuances.

8. ishall Inform the Corporate Secretary of Valley Golf & Country Club, inc. of any
changes in the abovementioned Information within five days from fits

occurrence.
MAKATI QITY
Donc,tlA.uE (H Zﬂgur .at
=W bmar—r
{ 5
| Affiant
AG 012023
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this dayof = at
MAKAT) CIT¥6ant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his/her
— fssued  at - on

Eoc. r:qn. . ATTY. 3& P. LAPUZ
age No, H Notary Public Makati City
Book No. Uatll Poc, 31, 262)
Series of : Appointmrnt He. M-01Y-(2673-2021)

PIR Mo, 95C3.23 Joan. 3, #uid [ Makatl
I8P Lifetame oo wasn7? Roll Ho. 45799
MCLE Cumfral.nte 4o. vil-kel&dre
Tosusd o April JG, 2082
G/F Fedoan Ridg.. 1%V dalcedo §%
Legaspd Village, Muketi Cily



ANNEX C 5.
Re: Nomination {g zction 1o the Bo

It is my pleasure to nominate _MicHoEyV TWAIEZ  with 2632

Membership Account Number, as candidate for election to the position of

] Reguiar
Independent Director of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

| hereby certify that __nCUAEY CTHACZ- meets the following

requirements for a Regular/Independent Director:

a. He/ She has one (1) share of stock recorded in his/her name for at least three
(3) years at the time of nomination and shall continue to own a share during
histher term of office. {If the nominee has besn a mamber of a standing
committée for at least one (1) yesr, or a playing guest or corporate
represantative for at least two (2) years, the three-year requirement will be
reduced to one {1} year.

b. He/ She is a college graduate or has sufficient experience in managing the
business to substitute for such formal education or he has been engaged or
exposed to the business of the corporation for at least five (5) yeers, for

Independent Directar
c. He/ She is more than twenty-one {21) years old.

d. He/ She is an active Proprietary member of good standing with no delinquent
account/s, who has not assigned the playing right of histher share of stock
upon hisfher nomination, has committed in writing not to assign said playing
right during his/her incumbency if elected.

v He/ She bas sufficient time and s willing to share his/her professional and
executive expertise,

f. He/ She has no official record of grave and serious misconduct that merited
Club membership suspension and has not been convicted in any criminal case;

He/ She is mentally and physically fit to serve as member of the Board for one

(1) year. The nominating committee may request a medical certification that
the nominee is mentally and physically fit.

h.  He/ She has proven to possess integrity and probity.
] He/ She is assiduous.

j.  He/She possesses all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications listed
in the By-laws, the Guidelines of the Nomination Committee and the
Amended Manual of Cerporate Gavemnance.

"3, INC.



Attached hereto are the following documents:

1. Resume with 2x2 Photo;

2. Duly accomplished Acceptance Form {Notarized),

3. Duly Accomplished Certificate of Qualifications (Notarized)* .;:

— -fr'{": 5

_’..-" " !
~enY hedtees
PROPOSER
Acct. No. |13 44

*for independent directors only.

CONFORME TO NOMINATION AS DIRECTOR

b, Ml , of legal age, Filipino, married/single, and a
resident of I AL JOSE FT. RAPTOUA BAYE Ghave read the Nomination

Form in which my name was submitted as candidate for
[] Regular

vl independent Director and | have no objections to such nomination.

| also certify that the documents attached and submitted in such N/umination Form

are true and correct. M
—— i

SHofae. SuiaEz
NOMINEE

Acct. No, 2@"]’2—_

SUBSCRIBE AND SWORN TO before me tfl‘ijis‘ Ak 2@ at _PASIG CITY

Phi%gpmes. Affiant, exhibited to me his Community Tax Certificate No.
T O1-4BY - 23 issued at Wiy on  FEe £, 20(0 .

Doc. No. 552 ([ AxHa o

Page No.j% R

ATTY LT ANDO A BERNALES
Book No. __,&_, Fisig..‘ssn Juan, Fatercs. ML
Series of _ 225 Aprointment No. 26, Unti December 34, 2024

£36-B Shaw Blvd,, Rapilolye, Basig Clyy
PTR No, 8132648, Jenuary 03, 2023
TGP LM No. 093853, Roll No. 54646
MCLE VII-00203360, Valid unth April 14, 2025



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Filipino, of legal age and a resident of
, after having been duly sworn to in accordance

with law do hereby declare that:

1. 1am a nominee for independent director of Valley Golf & Country Club Inc,;
2. | am afiiliated with the following companies or organizations (including
Government-Owned and Controlled Corporations):

__cdmpmwnnmmmﬂg_ﬁ__ I:I(ESITION,-‘BELA‘E?NSHIP | PERIOD (_;F SERVICE |
AUAZIGRACE  GLORAL ST MANGNE REEETL W= 20l —Preceh
@Tﬁng'ﬁb erlivt hder  NECTO - . 2|8 - YNEILTNT
e (R A [ PROPRIETON. 269 — PredEVT
Caltar. LERDING EFTUND  gowy. ST, {qaz -"paERel

3. | pussess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of Valley Golf & Country Club provided for in Section 38
nfthe Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and
other SEC issuances.

4, | am related to the fellowing director/officer/substantial sharcholder of
Valley Golf & Country Club other than the relationship provided under Rule
38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code. (where applicable)

" NAME OF
| DIRECTOR/OFFICER/ NATURE OF
SUBSTANTIAL COMPANY RELATIONSHIP
SHAREHOLDER

NA

5. To the best of my knowledge, 1 am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding / | disclose that | am the subject of
the following criminal /administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case

may be):
OFFENSE | TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY .
CHARGED/INVESTIGATED | INVOLVED ATUS

NA ;

g
SHERR: i A NZANO
Date: rane: 2:41 P




6. (For those {n government service/affillated with a government agency or
GOCC) 1 have the required permission from the {head of the
anency/department) to be an independent director in Valley Golf & Country
Club, Inc. pursuant to Office of the President Memarandum Clrcular No. 17 and
Section 12, Rule XVHI of the Revised Civil Service Rules.

7. 1shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent directar under the Securities Regulation Code and its

Imptementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other
SEC issuances.

8. 1shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. of any
chanpes in the abovementioned information within five days from its
oCCurrence,

Done, this E !ia‘:&laﬁ 403 atPASIG CITY

/
WhichiaE, TRUANEZ
Afflant
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to hefors me this 1A 2 at
. 3_[? Gl aﬂ%%pelsonaliy appeared before me and exhibited to me his/her
{jgg issued  at galle ciTy on

Doc. No. _ : | o .
Page Nu._fzf;_; b e e :
Book No. 2 - ]

Series of 2432 peiv A AYIDO A, BERNALES
i Ren s, FALarCS, KM,
Apeein Unif! December 3%, 2024

448 T Shaw Blvd., Kapiolyo, Pasig Gty
PYR No, §132548, Janvary €3, 02
{BP LM No. 013853, Rol No, 64846
MGLE VII-00203360, Valid untl April 14, 2025



(-6.

ANBER " __———

Re: Nomination far Electl the Board of Direc!
It is my pleasure to nominate RoBERT ~band E‘kEF‘@“_ with _N_‘M
Mambership Account Number, as candidate for election to the position of

[} Regular
Ez/lndepenclent Director of Valley Golf & Country Club, inc.

| hereby certify that RofewT ~Jouw BARECTD meets the following
requirements for a Regular/independent Director.

He/ She has one (1) share of stock recorded in his/her name for at least three
(3) years at the time of nomination and shall continue to own a share during
his/her term of office. (If the nominee has been 2 member of a standing
committee for at least one (1) year, or 2 playing guest or corporate
representative for at least two (2) years, the three-yaar requiremant will be
reduced to one {1) year.

b.  He/ She is a college graduate or has sufficient experience in managing the
business to substitute for such formal education or he has been engaged or
exposed to the business of the corporation for at least five (3) years, for
Independent Director

He/ She is more than twenty-one {21) years old.

d.  He/ She Is an active Propristary member of good standing with no delinquent
account/s, who has not assigned the playing right of his/her share of stock
upon his/her nomination, has committed in writing not to assign said playing
right during his/her incumbency if elected.

He/ She has sufficient time and is willing to share his/her professional and
exacutive expertise.

f. He/ She has no official record of grave and serious misconduct that merited
Club membership suspension and has not been convicted in any criminal case;

g. He/ She is mentally and physically fit to serve as member of the Board for one
(1) year. The nominating committee may request a medical certification that
the nominee is mentally and physically fit.

h. He/ She has proven to possess integrity and probity.
i.  He/ She is assiduous.

i, He/ She possesses all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications listed
in the By-laws, the Guidelines of the Nomination Committee and the

Amended Manual of Corporate Govemance. VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY “1UB, INC

) el PO o
i SHERRI Iv..;?]:ANO

Date: B{1] 30w , i - 2PW




Attached hereto are the following documents:
1. Resume with 2x2 Photo;

2. Duly accomplished Acceptance Form (Notarized);
3, Duly Accomplished Certificate of Qualifications (Notarized)*

*for independent directors only. ,\/\/M/' lk"/m

PROPOSER
Acct. No. _“ 0

CONFORME TO NOMINATION AS DIRECTOR
|, ROGEAT JggH‘hJ £. BMAETD | of legal age, Filipino, married/single, and a
rasident of 43 | muonio §i. Bamowl PASIC CAH, have resd the Nomination
Form in which my name was submitted as candidate for
] Regular
E(lndependent Director and | have no objections to such nomination.

| also certify that the documents attached and submitted in s;rr{‘ Nominatjon Form
are true and correct. ,T\

) -.hlowﬂee
Acct, No. L 55“’

AUG D 12023 ANTIPOLG €Ty

SUBSCRIBE AND SWORN TO before me this at
Philippines. Affiant, exhibited to me his Community Tax Certificate No
issued at on
Doc. No. f{f-.
AYTY. ALBINU E/\ PARANALA
PageNo. Il NOTARY PUBLIC
Book No. & UNTH. DF CEMBER 31, Z024&
Series of gn no.aq.tmvsno-':-anzz

ROLLND. 53950
MCLZNOM 1-0015785/58-18-25
PIR n0. 2673603/1-3-23 ANTIPOLO



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

L MLJ&H—L—ML_‘ Filipino, of legal age and a resident of

F after having been duly sworn to in accordance
with law do hereby declare that:

1. 1am a nominee for independent dircctor of Vailey Goif & Country Club Inc.:
2. | am affilisted with the following companles or organizations (including
Government-Owned and Controlied Corporations):

" COMPANY/ORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP _PERIOD OF SERVICE
COMNERUA L [l AwuAad DdEcah

3. | possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of Valley Golf & Country Club provided for in Section 38
of the Securitles Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and
other SEC issuances.

4 1 am related to the following director/officer/substantial shareholder of
Valley Golf & Country Club other than the relationship provided under Rule
38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code. (where applicable)

NAME OF
| DIRECTOR/OFFICER/ NATURE OF
SUBSTANTIAL COMPANY RELATIONSHIP

SHAREHOLDER

Ii.‘.j ..A

v

5. To the best of my knowledge, 1 am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or procecding / ! disclose that 1 am the subject of
the following criminal/administrative investigation or proceeding {(asthe case

may be):
OFFENSE TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY
| CHARGED/INVESTIGATED | _INVOLVED STATUS

| _ LB



6.

(For those in government service/affiliated with a government agency or
GOCC) 1 have the required permisslon from the

: to be an independent director in Valley Golf & Country
Club, Inc. pursuant to Office of the President Memorandum Circular No. 17 and
Section 12, Rule XVITl of the Revised Civil Service Rules.

1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my dutics and responsibilities as
{ndependent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other
SEC issuances.

| shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. of any
changes in the ahovementioned information within five days from its
OCCUrTence.

Done, this _ dayof ,at

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this AUB tﬂ)’ 02023
Aﬂ'lmm affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his/her

AT

B ’.Afﬁant

at

jssued  at on
ATTY. ALBI PARANALSM
:k' NDTARY LI
Nac. No.%: UNTIL DECEMBRY 31, Z02®
Page No. _ H IBP MO, 22085 T3 /10~7- 20&2
BnukNo.ngg—" RFOLLAND. 53950
Series of ; MCLENDN1-001598 S/ %1825

PYRNO.867360%/1- I Z2ANTIPLLO



)

PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ITEM 13 - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(a.) The svaluation gystem established by the company to measure or determine the
level of compliance of the Board of Directors and top-level management with its Manual
of Corporate Governance.

1. initially, the Club adopted the Corporate Govemnance Self-Rating System
Form.

2. In compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 12 Series of 2021, the
Club submitted last June 23, 2022 the Annual Corporate Governance
Report for the period Jan. ~ Dec. 2021

3. Valley Golf has a Business Plan and Annual Budget. Management
conducts a monthly review of compliance with the action plan. Every
month a Management Report is submitted during the Board Meeting
which contains the status report of the business plan and the comparative
financial statement against the budget to refiect the variances. Included
also is a monthly highlight of the financial report with detailed explanations
on the variances of the actual figures as compared to the budget.

(b.) Measures being undertaken by the company to fully comply with the adopted

leading practices on good corporate governance.

1. The Audit Committee and the Finance Committee meet with the External
Auditors regarding the annual examination of the financial statements of
the Club and the operations of the Club.

2 The Club has a Membership Handbook and a Personnel Manual that
contain policies, procedures and implementing guidelines on dealing with
members and employees.

3.  The President submits a monthly Management Report to the Board of
Directors.

4. The Board of Directors had appointed the members of the Nomination
Committee, Compensation and Remuneration Committee, Ethics
Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and Audit Committee to
comply with their respective duties and responsibilities as provided for in
the Manual of Good Corporate Governance.

5. The Board of Directors had appointed an External Auditor and hired
internal Auditors in compliance with the Manual of Good Corporate
Governance.

8. The Club's annual report is disseminated to all members to inform them of
the results of the operations of the Club and the activities of the Board for
the fiscal year.

7. The Board of Directors has created several committees to ensure
compliance with the Club's Code of Corporate Governance. Among the
committees created are the Management Committee, House Committee,
Memberghip Committee, Finance Committee, Sports and Games
Committee, Nomination Committee, Grounds & Engineering Committee,



Administration Committes, Legal Committee, Real Estate Committee,
Security Committee and Election Committee.

8. During the Fiscal year 2022, the following Members of the Board of
Directors and Compliance Officer attended the Seminar on Corporate
Govemance:

The following Members of the Board of Directors attended the Webinar on
Corporate Governance Orientation Program held on February 23 - 24,
2022 via Zoom conducted by the Institute of Corporate Directors:

1. Dir. Constantine L. Kohchet-Chua
2. Dir. Rafasl S. Raymundo
3. Dir. Jose G. Razon

Atty. Rio Sesinando E. Venturanza attended the Webinar on the New
Code of Corporate Governance for Public Companies and Registered
Issuers on January 12, 2021 via Zoom at the Center for Global Best
Practices Foundation.

The following Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer/General
Manager attended the Webinar on Corporate Governance Orientation
Program held on June 29 - 30, 2022 via Zoom conducted by the Institute
of Corporate Directors:

1. Atty. Allan Jocson — Corporate Secretary
2. Mr. Dan L. Salvador Il - Compliance Officer/General Manager

The following Members of the Board of Directors attended the Webinar on
New Code of Corporate Govemance for Public Companies and
Registered Issuers on January 12, 2021, via Zoom at the Center for
Global Best Practices Foundation.

3. DiIr. Jose Arsenio Isidro D. Borromeo IH
4. Dir. Renato C. Balibag

The following Members of the Board of Directors attended the Seminar on
Corporate Governance Orientation Program on November 19, 2019, at
the Institute of Corporate Directors, Makati Diamond Residences, Makati
City, Metro Manila

1. Dir. Carlo J. Carpio
2. Dir. Reginald Benjamin V. San Pedro

Dir. Pablito Gregore attended the Seminar on Code of Ethics & Good
Governance on Nov. 26, 2013 at the Philippine Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Training Room, PICPA Bldg., 700 Shaw Boulevard,
Mandaluyong City, Philippines.

{c.) Any deviation from the company's Manual of Corporate Governance. it shall
include a disclosure of the name and position of the person/s involved, and the
sanction/s imposed on sald individual



There is no deviation from the Manual of Corporate Governance of Valley
Golf & Country Club, Inc.

(d) Any plan to improve corporate governance of the company

In compllance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 24 Series of 2019,
requiring the submission of the Revised Manual on Corporate Governance, the
Board of Directors approved on July 22, 2020, the new Manual of Corporate
Governance of Valley Golf and was submitted electronically on July 25, 2020.

In compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 19 Series of 2020, the
Amended Manual of Corporate Governance signed by the Chairman of the Board
and Compliance Officer was submitted electronically on September 25, 2020



MANAGEMENT REPORT ANin ©

Management reports that as of the end of the fiscal year, the value of the Club’s
shares has reached a high of 2.5milllon per share and still is on the upward swing. The
Club’s financial report shows a net excess of revenues over expenses of P10.35 million.
The Club expresses its appreciation to its members for the continuous support during the
time that the Club increased its monthly dues which has not been done for the past 11
years.

The Club re-hired its General Manager, Mr. Dan L. Salvador 11l who has proved to
be a great part of all the achievements the Club had this year.

In its effort to provide its members a world-class golf and recreational facilities, the
Club has undertaken the following projects:

1. Completion of the construction of the two-storey cart garage which can

accommodate 650 private goif carts

Completion of the Phase 1 of our Zoysia Infusion Project at the South Course.

Completion of the swimming pool complex and cabana

Completion of the renovation of our Men’s Locker room.

Completion of the renovation of our Ladies Locker room, complete with sauna.

Construction of another toilet near the lower veranda.

Finished construction of the lower veranda kitchen to ensure our members will be

served hot meals in the morning.

8. Addressed the irrigation system with the rehabilitation of North and South
Pumping Station

9. Repair and maintenance work of the North Clubhouse

10. Installation of LED Fairway lights to ensure that those who teed off late can still
finish their round of golf

11. Installation of handrails at its fairways for the safety of its members and guests,

Nk W

To ensure continuity of all the plans and programs of the Board, the Board approved
charters for each committee in compliance with the corporate governance framework as
it encompasses every aspect of management, from management, action plans, internal
controls, performance measurement and corporate disclosure.

The Club also took care of the welfare of its employees by providing career
developments to boost the morale of its employees. Management has undertaken
Effective Workplace Relationship Seminar for its Supervisors and Managers. Likewise,
thru the generosity of one of its members and the assistance of the Antipolo City Health

Department, the Club was able to facilitate covid booster program for our employees,
caddies, and service providers.

As of this writing, the Club has aiready started the 50CMD Sewage Treatment Plant
and Soil Protection Works.



The Club shall continue to embark on further improvements which includes the
following:

Reblocking of the DCT Avenue

Structural Retrofitting Works

Main and North Clubhouse Toilet Renovation

Golf Cart Path Repair

Purchasing of Long Arm Backhoe

Additional Canopy Works at Two Level Golf Cart Parking
Construction of a Fine Dining Restaurant at Upper Veranda

The Club’s financial performance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 is
reflected in the Audited Financial Report which shows a net excess of revenues over
expenses of P10.35 Million. The Chief Financial Officer was tasked to ensure that the Club
has the much- needed funds to complete all on-going projects started during the
pandemic and are due for completion this fiscal year. The Chief Financial Officer is
pleased to report that the Club was able to finance its major projects for the year including
the 2-level golf cart garage, swimming pool complex, Phase 1 of zoysia infusion at the
South Course and the renovation of the ladies locker room, hallway and pro-shop.

The Club’s financial recovery started this year with the easing up of restrictions
and opening up of the Club to accompanied guests and tournaments. This was despite
the Board of Directors’ resolve early this year to maintain exclusivity of the Club by not
accepting walk-in guests despite its negative effect on revenues. Strategic financial
strategies and collaborative efforts of the Board of Directors and management resulted
in the decision to finally increase the members’ monthly dues after 11 years in order to
maintain the financial stability of the Club.

Gross Revenues for the Fiscal Year 2022 amounted to P162.44 Million or an
increase of P21.46 Million which is up by 15% from last year’s figure of P140.98 Million.
The increase in the Club’s membership dues effective April 1,2022 resulted in a positive
increment of P3.49 Million a month. Likewise, revenues from Green Fees (P18.49
Million), Road Users’ Fees (P15.25 Million), Golf Cart Rental (P14.9 Million}), Membership
Fee/Transfer Fee (12.23 Million) and Service Charge (P10.33 Million) have contributed
significantly to the uptick in its revenues,

However, with more members and guests playing, the 100% opening of the Club'’s
facilities and the rising cost of supplies, Expenses likewise ballooned by P20.29 Million
for a total of P151.51 Million for Fiscal Year 2022. This is 15.46% up from last Fiscal Year’s
figure of P131.22 Million. This was fanned by the drastic increase in inflation rate (from
3.7% in FY 2021 to 6.1% in FY 2022), dramatic rise in fuel costs, and the recent Wage
Order adjustment. Nevertheless, the substantial increase in the Club’s operating cost can
still be considered manageable considering the better than expected improvement in its
revenues. The Board and Management will simply continue their policy and practice to
prioritize expenses and defer expenditures on items that lack urgency and importance.

In terms of Cash Flow, the Club’s Cash and Cash Equivalents including investment
in UITF as of June 30, 2022 is P 61.27 Million. Worth noting is that inspite of several
drawbacks and unexpected capital expenditures, the Treasury was able to finance P45.87



Million of Capex and still maintain the Club’s liquidity. As a general principle, the Club
prioritized its capital expenditures and projects, and saw to it that funds are available
before the start of any project.

The Club is proud to report the impressive market performance of the Club’s
shares of stock in 2022 which has seen its value rise from P1.6 Million in 2021 to P2.75
Million, not including Transfer Fees, Needless to say, the continuing improvements in the
Club’s golf courses, the consistent and systematic upgrading of Club facilities for the
exclusive enjoyment of its members, their dependents and guests and the Club’s stable
financial position have contributed greatly to the over 70% rise in the value of the Club’s
shares in a span of less than one year.

For the Club’s on-going concerns and to keep up with technology the Club shall
soon be introducing an innovative registration system for the convenience of its members
and guests and to improve controls on transactions in its restaurants and tee-houses as
well as green fee and rental payments. The Club will use digital wallets and online
payments to provide wider payment options for its members and guests.

Several projects are in the pipeline for implementation in the next Fiscal Year such
as the Sewerage Treatment Plant, re-blocking of certain portions of the Don Celso Tuason
Ave,, installation of solar panels to save on ever increasing power cost, Phase 2 of the
Zoysia Infusion Project and Renovations in the Main Clubhouse. The Treasury is
committed to support these priority projects and safeguard the Club’s assets while
strictly adhering to the Club’s budget and procurement policies.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(1) Market Information

The principal competitors near our area of operations are two privately owned golf
Courses, Forest Hills Golf and Country Club located in Cogeo, Antipolo
City and Eastridge Golf & Country Club in Binangonan and one public course, Sun Valley Golf
Course. These courses are relatively new and are still building up their membership base,
whereas, Valley Golf having been in the business for 60 years old is already proud Golf Club with
its roster of respectable membership. Valley Golf's Iuscious greens and falrways are still the best
in the area and very well maintained, The rainforest trees in our courses that have matured
through the years have provided a canopy on the fairways and its majestic beauty s something
that other golf courses cannot duplicate. The friendly atmosphere and the camaraderie of the
entire membership and employees are what make our golf course unique. Eastridge has an 18-
hole golf course and Forest Hills has a 36-hole golf course but Valley Golf's greens, fairways, trees,
sand traps and meandering rivers will always make the difference. Each golf course may have its
own unique characteristics but Valley Golf's design and intriguing South Course is something that
has always attracted the enthusiasm of golfers. The challenging contour of the courses will always
make one’s round of golf an enjoyable and unforgettable experience Valley Golf's all weather
South Course has already made its impact on the members and their guests.

Our competitors are marketing thelr new facllities and in anticipation of this, Valley Golf
rehabilitated the South Course into an all-weather golf course. We have completed phases 1 and
2 of the renovation of our Main Clubhouse including the Men’s locker room, the
restaurant/veranda area, and the offices to keep up with the modern trends in interior design
while still maintaining the urique architecture of our clubhouse. Finally, Valley Golf is more



stable than our competitors because our focus now is maintenance and constant improvement.
Moreover, our Stockholders’ Equity has long been built up unlike our competitors who are still
selling shares of stock to augments their capital.

(2) Market Price & Dividends

The prevailing market price of the Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc,, share as of June 30,
2022 is P2,200,000.00 per share plus transfer fee amounting to 200,000.00 (based on GG&A Club
Shares published Advertisements) compared to Its value of PhP1,600,000.00 per share sometime
June of 2021. The increase in the market price has been influenced by the prevailing national
economic situation. Contributory to such increase in value was the infrastructure improvements
around the Club, i.e.,, wider road and increased vehicular traffic. Shares have been transacted in
a very sporadic manner. Share transactions remain unpredictable,

Being a non-profit corporation, the country club does not declare dividends in the event
that operattons should become profitable. Instead, all earnings of the country club are reinvested
to ensure better service and facilities to its golfing members.

The top 20 sharehclders are as follows:

No. of Shares Amount %
Stockholder Owned subscribed Ownmership Citizenship
1 Fenestram Corporation 16 135,000.00 0.94% FILIPINO
2 G7 Philippine Printing Corp. 15 99,000.00 0.69% FILIPINO
3 Pae Ventures, Inc 54,000.00 0.38% FILIPINO
4 Manila Electric Co. 45,000.00 0.31% FILIPINO
5 Solid State Multi-Prod. Corp. 45,000.00 0.31% FILIPINO
6 Squires Bingham Co, Inc, 45,000.00 0.31% FILIPINO
7 r_;d“sal' Vicente/Gerardo 36,00000 0.25%  FILIPINO
g pewropolian Bank & Trust 3600000 025%  FILIPINO

36,000.00 0.25% FILIPINO
36,000.00 0.25% FILIPINO

36,000.00 0.25% FILIPINO

27,000.00 0.19% FILIPINO
27,000.00 0.19% FILIPINO
27,000.00 0.19% FILIPINO
27,000.00 0.19% FILIPINO
27,000.00 0.19% FILIPINO
27,000.00 0.19% FILIPINO
18,000.00 0.13% FILIPINO
18,000.00 0.13% FILIPINO
18,000.00 0.13% FILIPINO

9 Philippine National Bank
10 Reliable Electric Co,, Inc,
11 Tres Primos Development

Corp.
12 Cheok, Edward N.

13 Co, Val Constantine L.

14 Dee C. Chuan & Sons, Inc.
15 First Phil. Holding Corp.

16 Severo A. Tuason & Co.Inc.
17 Tuason, SeveroJ.

18 Carmona, Manuel Y.

19 Metropolitan Insurance Co.
20 Phil. Long Distance Tel Co.
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(3) Dividends

Valley Golf does not declare cash or any other form of dividends in favor of its
stockholders. Consequently, there are no restrictions imposed that would limit the payment of
dividends on common shares as no dividends are declared in the first place,

(4) Recent Sale of Unregistered or Exempt Securitles including Recent Issuance of
Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction

There are no sale of unregistered securitles or recent issuances of Securities by Valley Golf
constituting an exempt transaction.
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ITEM 6  MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF
OPERATION.

1. PLAN OF OPERATION

OBJECTIVES:
a. To have a well-planned improvement of Club faciiities and services.
b. Profitability and financial liquidity for operations and availabifity of funds for
various projecis.
c. To ascertain thet the ongoing processes for controlling operations throughout the
organization are adequately designed and functioning in an effective manner.

ACTION PLAN:
4. Implementation of the priority capital expenditures {or the yaar:

a. To start the Renovation of the Main Clubhouse including Airconditioned
Dining Restaurant with a budget of P50 Million

b. To start Phase 2 of the Zoysia Infusion project by July 2023 with a budget of
P 21.7 Million.

c. Toimpiement the new Accounting Systsm by Dec. 2023.

2. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The results of operations for the Fiscai Year ending June 3G, 2022 is refiected in
ihe Audited Financial Reports. Gross Revenue from Operations amount to Phpié2.44
Million or an increase of Php21.46 Million from last year's figure of Php140.98 Miilion.
Operating Expenses howsver increassd from Php131.22 Million in 2021 to Php1581.51
Milion in 2022 or a increase of Php20.29 Million of 15.48%. Excsss of revenue over
expenses for the yeer amount to Php10.35 Miltion or an increase of Php0.93 Mittion from
last year's figure of Php9.42 Million.

Gross Revenues for the Fiscel Year 2022 amounted to P152.44 Million or an
increase of P21.46 Wiillion which Is up by 15% from [ast year’s figure of P140.98 Million.
The increase in our membership dues effective April 1,2022 resuited in a positive
increment of P3.48 Million a month. Likewise, revenues from: Green Fses (P18.49
Million), Road Users' Fees (P15.25 Million), Golf Cart Rental (P14.9 Miliion),
Membership Fee/Transfer Fee (12.23 Million) and Service Charge (P10.33 Million) have
contributed significantly to the uptick in our revenues.

However, with more members and guests playing, the 100% opening of our
facilities and the rising cost of supplies, Expenses likewise ballooned by P20.28 Million
for a tolal of P151.51 Million for Fiscal Year 2022. This is 15.46% up from last Fiscal
Year's figure of P131.22 Million. This was fanned by the drastic increase in infiation rate
(from 3.7% in FY 2021 10 6.1% in FY 2022), dramatic rise in fue! costs, and the recent
Wage Order adjustment. Nevertheless, the substantial incresse in the Club's operating
cost can stil be considered manageable considering the befter than expected
improvement in our revenues. The Board and Management will simply continue their



policy and practice to prioritize expenses and defer expendifures on ilems that lack
urgency and importance.

During the year the Treasury was abie to finance our major projects for the year
including the 2-level golf cart garage, swimming pool complex, Phase 1 of zoysia
infusion at the South Course and the renovation of the ladies locker room, haliway and
pro-shep.

In the Audited Financial Reports our Current Ratio for Fiscal Year 2022 (this ratio
represents the lguldity of the Club or the available current assets {o settia the current
liabilities) is 1.42% which is slightly lower than our current ratio rate last vear of 1.8%.
This is due to investment of funds in capex of P45.87 Million.

Cash flow wise our cash & cash equivalents and shori~tarm investment as of
June 30, 2021 is P61.27 Million. Qur receivables from Members' Accounts decreased
by Php1.73 Million which is the result of intensified collection campaign as well as
providing on-line payment options for the convenience of our members. Cur total asseis
as of June 30, 2022 is Php329.56 Million.

The market value of our shares of stock has reached Php 5.5 Million plus transfer
fee of P200,000. Our keen business decisions, the continuing development of our golf
courses and the upward trend of the golf clubs’ market are contributing factors for our
achievement. The Board is committed in its effort to maintain the steady increase in the
market value of our shares of stock. The schemae to return the exclusivity of the Club but
at the same time introducing alternative revenue sources to cushion the financial impact
is another factor that contributed to the increase in market value of the shares. During
the year the Club no longer accepts walk-in guests as part of the plan to retzin the
exclusivity of the Club and for safety protocol.

Valiey Golf has no liquidity problems on its operations and projects and does not
anticipate any liquidity problems in the future. All interest payments are being paid on
due date and funds are avaiiable for the termination of ioans when the need arises. All
trade payables are paid based on the credit terms.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial
condition or results of operation.

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial otligation that is
malerial to Valiey Golf. There is no anticipated default or acceleration of obligation.

There are no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangsments, obligations or other
relationships of the Club with unconsalidated entities or other persons created during the
fiscai year.

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures.

There are no other trends, events or uncertainties that would have a material
favorable or unfavorable impact cn net sales or revenues.

There are no significant elsments of income or loss that did not arise from Valisy
Golf't continuing operations.



The FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS are as follows:

1. CURRENT RATIO - represents the ratic of current assets against
current fiabilities. This ratio represents the liquidity of the Club or the available
current assets to settle the current liabilities.

_Currant Assets
Current Ratio = Current Lisbiiities
As of June 30, 2022 As of June 30,2021
Current Assats 84,254,043.00  _ 88,466,883.00
Current Ligbilities 59.342,364.00 486,374,156.00
Current Ratic 1.42 180

This above ratio indicates that the Club is less liquid as compared (o last year.
The principat reason for the decrease in liquidity ratio is the Increase in Trade
and Other Payables by P7.78 Milion or 48.8% due lo payables for the
downpayment for the purchase of 20 units goif carts, payables to the grounds
maintenance provider, supplier of sand for the zoysia infusion project and
remittances t0 concessionaires.

2. ACID TEST RATIO — the ratio is an indicator of whether the Club has sufficient
short-term assatls to cover its short-term liabilities. This ratio is more useful in
certain situations tivan the Current Ratio, also known as the working capital ratio,
since it ignores assets such as inventory, which may be difficult to quickly
liquidzte,

Acld Test Ratio = Current Assets Lass Inventory
Currant Liabilities

. . As of Juna 30,2022 As of June 30, 2021
Current Assets less

lnventory i 80,465,937.00  79.869.420.00
_Current Liabilities - 59,342,364.00 48,374,166.00
_Acid Test Ratio 1351 1.72

The amount of Current Assets less inventory for Fiscal year 2022 increased o
P80.48 Million from P79.87 Million in 2021 or an increase of P0.60 Million, whereas the
Current Liabiiities increased by P12,97 Million. The decrease in the ratio indicates that
the Club is more liquid in FY 2021 than in FY 2022.



3. SOLVENCY RATIOS - are ratios that are caiculated to judge the financial
position of the Club from a long-term soilvency point of view. These ratios
measure the club’s ability to satisfy its long-term obligations and sre clogely
tracked by stockholders and investors to understand and appreciate the abiiity of

the business to meet its long-term liabliities and help them to assess the long-
term investment pf their funds in the business.

a. LONG-TERIK DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO — aims to determine the amount of
long-term debt the Club has undertaken vis-&-vis the Equity and heips in
finding leverage of the business. The ratio also helps in identifying how much
long-term debt the Club has to raise compared to Its equity confribution.

Long-Term Debt to Equity Ratio = Long-Term Debt
Total Equity

As of June 30, 2022 As of June 30, 2021

“Long-Term Liabilities 8,655,057.00 . 5,584,101.00
Tota! Members' Exuity  261,566,865.00 253,904,262,00 _
Long Term Debt to Equity
Ratio 03 02

The increase in the Long-Term Debt Ratio from .02 in FY 2021 to .03 in FY 2022
indicates the increase in the long-term debt by P3.07 Million in relation to the
aquity of the Club.

b. DEBT TO TOTAL ASSETS RATIO-  this represents the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets or the assets available to settle outstanding liabilities
of the Club. This is used to assess the total leverage of the business. The
higher the ratio, the higher the leverage and higher the financiai risk on
account of a heavy dabt obligation on the part of the business.

Total Liabifities
Debt to Total Assets Ratio = Total Assets
. _ AsofJune 30,2022  Asof June 30, 2021
| Total Liabiiities i 67.997.421.00 . 51,958,257.00
TotatAssets . 320,564,086.00_, 305,862,519.00
| Debt to Total Assets Ratio 021 0.17

Liabilities for the vear increased by P18.04 Million, while assets Increased by P23,70
Milllon thereby increasing the ratio. The increase in assets is greater than the



Increase in liabilities, thersfora there are more assets to seitle the outstanding
lizbilities of the Club.

c¢. PROPRIETARY RATIO - this ratio establishes between Stockholders’ funds
and total assets of the business. It indicates the extent {o which stockhoiders
funds have been invested in the assets of the business.

Proprietary Ratio = Total Members' Equity
Total Assets

_AsofJune 30,2022 As of June 30, 2021

Total Members' Equity 261,566,665.00 253,904,262.00
_Total Assets : 329,564,086.00 .305,862,519.00 _
Asset to Equity Ratic 0.79 _ce3

The ratio decreased from 0.83 in FY 2021 10 0.78 in FY 2022, the lower the ralio
the higher the leverage and comparatively more financial risk on the part of the

Ciub. For the Fiscal year 2022, there were less the stockholders funds that were
investad in the assets of the Club.

4 DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO - the ratio is used to evaluste a company’s
financial leverags. It is a measure of ihe degree to which a company Is financing
its operation through debt versus whoily-owned funds. More specifically, it
reflects tha abiliiy of shareholders equity to cover all outstanding debts in the
avert of 2 business downtum.

Total Liabilitles
Debt to Equity Ratio = Total Members’ Equity
S _ ___ Asof June 30, 2022  of June 30, 2029
Total Liabilities 67,997,421.00 _51,858,257.00_
Total Members' Eaulty__ 261,566,665.00 _253,904,262.00
Debt to Equity Ratio 0.26 0.20

This shows thal in Figcal Year 2022 the ratlo increased and thus the tots!
liabilities comprise a higher percentage of the fotal stockhoiders’ equity. This
resulted from the increase in Trade and other payables by P7.78 Million,
Members Deposits by P1.35 Million and Contract Liabilities by P3.60 Million. On
the other hand the Reiained Earnings increased due to Excess of Revenue over
Expenses of P7.66 Miltion for Fiscal Year 2022.

5. ASSET TO EQUITY RATIO — measures the proportion of the Club's assets that
has been funded by the Stockholders

Asset to Equity Ratio = _____ Total Assets
Total Merabers’ Equity




" AsofJune 30,2022 As of June 30, 2021

Total Assets ~ 329,564,086.00 305,862.519.00
Total Members' Equity =~ =~ 261.566.866.00 253,804.262,00
Asset to Equity Ratio 1.26 1.20

The Total Assels increased by P23.70 Million in Fiscal Year 2022 while the
Stockholders’ Equity increased by P7.66 Million thus the ratio increased, therefore more
of the assets were funded by shareholders than funded by debt.

6. INTEREST RATE COVERAGE RATIO -~ measumes the number of times a

company can make interest payments on its debt with its eamings before interest
and taxes. It is a3 debt ratio and profitability ratio used to determine how easily a
company can pay interest on its ouistanding debt.

Interest rate coverage ratio = Earnings Before interest and Taxes
Interest Expense

As of June 30.i022: As of June 30_._2E21

EBIT _ 10,928,878.00 9,750.845.00_
Interest Expense _ _ 35,549.00 0
Interest Rate Coverage Ratio 307.43 0

The ratio indicates that the Club can easily pay the interest in its outstanding debt
with a very high ratio of 307.43.

7. RETURN ON EQUITY - is calculated by dividing net income by shareholders’
equity. This Is a profitabllity ratio that maasures the ability of a firm to generate
profits from its shareholders investments in the company. The Return on Equity
ratio shows how much prafit each Peso of stockholders' equity generates.

Return on Eguity = Net Income {Loss)
Total Members’ Equity

Asof dune 30,2022  As of June 30, 2021

Net income | Loss) _ 10,354.885.00 9,422,193.00
Total Members’ Equity __ 261,566,665.00 253.804,262.00
ReturnonEquity 0.04 004

The operations for Fiscal Year 2022 resuited to a nat income of P10,354,885.60
thus the Return on Equity Ratio is 0.04 which is the same in previous fiscal year.
Each peso of Members' Equity generated an income of 0.04 in FY 2022.

8. RETURN ON ASSETS (ROA) - measures the amount of profit the
company generates as a percentage of the value of its total assets.



Return on Assets - .. Net income/(L.oss)
Avergge Totzl Assats

Asof June 30,2022  Asof June 30, 2021

Net mcome/ (Loss! B 10,354,885.00 8,422,193.00 |
Aversge Total Assets 329,564,086.00 305.862.519.00
Return on Assets 0.03 | 0.03

Operations for Fiscal Year 2022 resulted {0 a net income of P10,3564,885.00 as
compared to net income of PL,422,193.00 in Fiscel year 2021 or an increase of
P832,692. The Total Assets however increased by P24.70 Million. The ratio is
the same for both fiscal years.

9. NET PROFIT MARGIN - is & financial ratio used to calculate the percentage of
profit a company produces from its total revenue, It measures the amount of net
profit a company obtains per Peso of revenue gained,

Net Profit Margin = Net income/{L.oss)
Total Revenue
- Asof June 30,2022  Asof June 30, 2021
_Net Income/ (Loss) ~ 10,354,888.00 9,422, 183.00
_Total Revenue ; 162,442,487.00 | 140,876.489.00
Net Profit Margin 8.37% ' 8.68%

Net income for the Fiscal Year 2022 is P10,354,885.00 with a Net profit Margin
of 6.37% as compared to Fiscal Year 2021 Net profit margin of 6.68%, this year's
profit margin is iower by 0.31%

10. OTHER RATIOS

EARNING PER SHARE (EPS) - this repressnts the net income per
share of siack issued and cuistanding and subscribed. The rasulting number
serves gs an: indicator of a company’s profitability.

—_Net Income/(Loss)
Eamings Per Share = Common Shares Outstanding
- ) As of June 30,2022 _ As of June 30, 2021
- Net Income/ {Loss! 1035488500 _ _ 9,422.193.00
Common Shares Outstanding 1594 1,504
Debt {o Total Assets Ratio 6,496.16 5.811.04



For the Fisca! Year ended June 30, 2022 the Net income per share is P8,406.18 as
compared to Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2021 figura of £5,911.04 or higher by P585.12.
Net income for the year is P10,354,885.00 or an increase of P932,692 from the net
income of P9,422,193.00 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

The following are the details of tha operations of the Club for the year 2022
A. OPERATING RESULTS

i. Ravenues — revenues increased from P140,876,489 in 2021 to
P162,442.487 in 2022 or an increase of P21,465,998 or 15.23%.

Significant sources of the increase in revenue are Green Fee by P7,553 081,
Golf Cart rantal by P1,180,595, Monthly Dues by P3,489.052, Transfer Fee
by P892,400, Service Charge by P1,801,182, Road Users Fee by P357,221,
Concessionaires Fee and Proshop rental by P1,081,536, Goif cart storage by
P575,133, Tournament Fee, Seif Insurance Fee and Service Fee by
P950,873, Swimmingpool Fee by P124,287 and Miscellaneous income by
P2,708,305. There is no revenue source that decreased during the fisca!
year 2022 as compared to 2021

Monthly Dues increased due to increase in the monthly dues rate by P800.00
per month for all Proprietary shareholders, Corporate Representatives,
Associate depandents, Playing Rights and Playing Representatives effective
April 1, 2022. Green Fees increased due to increase in number of guests
from 5,887 in 2021 to 11,340 or an increase of 5,443 or 92%. The increase
resulted from the opening of the Club for private tournaments effective Jan,
2022 with a total guests of 1,597 and the acceptance of 3 guests per
member. Golf cart rental increased from 19,842 rentals in 2021 to 21.432 in
2022 or an increase of 1,590 rentals, this is due to the implementalion of
mandatory golf cart for guests and acceptance of tournaments. Transfer Fee
increased mainly due to increase in rate from P112,000 to P200,000 for thirs
party market and from P11,200 to P20,000 for first degree effective Jan. 1,
2021 Service Charge increased due to increase in rate of Initial Service
Charge from P75,000 to P150,000 and Renewal Fea from P30,000 to
P80,000 (new member) or P50,000 (previous member) effective Jan. 1, 2021,
Road Users Fee increased due to increasa in the passing thru rate from
PS50.00 to P100.00 efiective Feb. 1, 2021 and increase in number of
deliveries. Concessionaires Fees from the F & B Concessionaires and rental
of Proshop Increased because of the increase in sales of the restaurants that
resulted from the increase in guests and easing up of restrictions in the
dinning activities. Another factor is the engagement of a new F & B
Concessionsaire in the Main Clubhouse effective Oct. 18, 2021 that offered
new menus for members and guests. Our Tee houses is now being operated
by the Driving Range Concessionaire and resulted in the increase In sales
due to variety of items being sold. The Tournament Fees, Self Insuranca Fee
and Service Fee from Guests increased due to the acceptance of more
accompanied guests and private tournaments. Golf Storage Fee increased
dus fo increase in number of golf carts in the storage from 467 units in 2021



to 495 units in 2022. The Swimmingpool was recently inaugurated and
opened for use of the members and their gueasts that resulted in the increase
in the Swimmingpool Fes. Miscellaneous income increased due to Increase
in Venue Fee, Rentai of Globe Tower, sales of gasoline and charged utilities
to concessionaires, sale of scrap, illegally parked golf carts and surcharge.

2. Cost and Expenses - For the fisca! year 2022 the total cost of services
and generai and administrative expanses amount to P151,513,809 or an
increase of P20,287,965 or 15.46% from previous year's figure of
P131.225.644

Personnel Expenses increased from P27,677.244 in 2021 to P30.027.451 in
2022 or an increase of P2,550,207 or 8.49%. Salaries and Wages increased
by P1,623,170 because of the salary increases for the rank & file employees
as per CBA Agreement and Wage Order, salary increases for the Dept.
Managers and Supervisors and hiring of the General Manager and Goif
Director. Overtime increased by P460,603, Meal Allowance decreased by
P100,870, Vacation and Sick leave increased by P84,257, Bonus & Gratuity
increagsed by P114,081 and Training and Seminar increased by P102,955,
Hazard Pay for the Club Nurse increased by P104,540, Aliowance of the
Committee Sscretaries decreased by P28,000, Covid 19 Supplementary
Allowance increased by P3,000, Pag-lbig Contribution decreased by P7,250,
$88. PHIC & ECC increased by P92,582 and Retirement Benefit Expense
decreased by P82,101.

Supplies increased from P18,810,748 in 2021 to P24,372,694 in 2022 or an
Increase of P5,561,947 or 30%. Stationeries and office supplles increased by
P376.064, Repairs & Maintenance increased by P3,750,188, Janitorial
supplies increased by P181,925, Medical and Dental supplies decreased by
P340,687, Motorpool and Ground supplies increased by P59,750 and
Miscellaneous supplies decreased by P719,333. Gasoline and Oil Supplies
increased by P1,1169,914, Toilet and cleaning supplies increased by
P547,262, Service supplies increased by P181,176. Swimming pool supplies
increased by P71,080, Linen supplies Increased by P208,778 and Uniforms
increased by P&5,861.

Utllittes increased frorn P8,882,534 in 2021 1o P13,331,238 in 2022 or an
increase of P4,648,704 or 54%. Electricity increased by P3,817,545,
Communication by P130,877 and Water by P700,282.

Ouiside Services increased from P40,065,870 in 2021 to P45,460,303 in
2022 or a increase of P5,384,432 or 13%. Retainers Fee decreased by
P1,361,858. Legal Fees increased by P401,444, Laundry Services by
172,682, Maintenance Crew by P1,587,385, Audit Fees increased by
P75,554, Security Services by P1,440,427 and Golf Course Maintenance by
P3,068,800.

Sundries increaged from P10,720,108 in 2021 to P12,859,067 in 2022 or an
increase of P2,138,959 or 20%. Taxes and Licenses decreased by P374,003
and insurance by P28,242. Board, Committee and Stockhoiders Meeting
increased by P100,288, Ads & Publication by P18,854, Marketing Expenses



by P89,288, Promotional and Industriel by P72,889, Bank Charges by
P344.256, Self<insurance expense by P88,157 and Miscellaneous by
P1,811,545.

B. BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

1. Cash and cash equivalents — decreased from P54,715,083 in 2021 to
P51,147.281 in 2022 or a decrease of P567,812 or 1.10%. Decrease
resulted from Net cash generated from operating activities amounting to
P45.34 Million which is higher by P7.30 Million from last vear's P38.04
Million. Net cash flow used in investing activiies amount to P46.14
Million due to increase in additions o property and equipment of P35.89
Million and other noncurrent essets of P0.12 Million. Cash and Cash
Equivalents and the beginning of the yaar is P51.72 Million less the Net
decrease in cash is P0.57 Miftion, Cash at the end of the year is P51.15
Millior.

2. Trade and other recsivebles — increased from P13.731,808 in 2021 1o
P113,861,275 in 2022 or an increase of P122,367 or 0.94%. Increase
was due to decrease in Members account by P1.73 Miliion znd increasa
in Other Receivables by P1.56 Miliion,

3. Debt instruments at fair value — represents the short term investment of
the funds from operations in UITF in the amount of P10.12 Million.

4, Other current assets — increased from P7,994,765 in 2021 to P8,124,722
in 2022 or an increase of P1,128,957 or 14.13%. Increase rasuited from
increase in supplies inventory by P190,843, prepaymsnts by P83,484 and
others by P811,078.

5. Property and esquipment - increased from P215,385.047 in 2021 to
P238,125,202 in 2022 or a Increase of P22,740,155 or 10.56%. Additions
for the Year 2022 includes on-going construction of 2-level golf cart
garage P24,684,557.19, Purchase of Backhoe Loader P3,750,000.00,
Construction of Gazebo at swimmingpool complex P3,311,441.45, On-
going Zoysia Grass Infusion P3,285,476.27, Renovation of Ladies Locker
room, Hallway and Proshop P3,023,842.28, Hardscape at swimming pool
complex P2,116,940.87, Nursery at the South Course P1,030,418.52,
Purchase of L-300 Vehicle P868,000.00, On-going Accounts Receivable
System P545,000.00, On-going construction of Cabana P501,6878.11,
Landscaping at swimmingpool complex P429,600.00, Online Voting
System Program P377,551.02 and Toilet at the Lower Veranda
P328,800.00. However, the Accumulated Depreciation increased by
P15,562,930 thus the Property and Equipment increased.

8. Invesiment properties — went down from P214,565 in 2021 to P123,880 in

2022 or a decrease of PG0,885 or 42.28%. Dspreciaticn for the fiscal
yaar 2022 for the North clubhousa is P90,685.
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7. Defarrad tax asset — there Is no deferred tax asset for June 30, 2022 as
compared to the amount for year ended June 30, 2021 of P228,570.
There is no deferred tax assets recognized from the deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that sufficient faxeble profit will ba
available to allow the benefit of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

3. Other non-current assets — Increased from P4,758,125 in 2021 o
P2,204,716 in 2022 or an increase of P448,591 or 25.40%. Incresse is
due to Computerization Project in the amount of P447,581..

2. Trade and other payables — increased from P16,008.859 in 2021
P23,792,555 in 2022 or an increase of P7,785,606 or 48.64%. increasse
was due to increase in Accounts Payable by PC.20 Million, Accounts
Payable Others by P 0.88 Miilion, Retention Payable by £2.08 Million,
Due to Concessionaires by P1.09 Million, Vat Payable by P0.43 Million,
Accrued and cther expenses by PC.24 Miiion, Due to organizations,
lessors and cooperative by P2.37 Million and Cther Payables by P 0.48
Million.

10. Members’' Daposils and Credit Balances went up from P18,888,951 in
2021 o P18,237,703 in 2022 or an increase of P1,348,752 or 7.98%.
Incresse resulted from refundsbie cash deposits from members and
Credit balances of former members.

11. Contract Liabiiities increased from P7,809,771 in 2021 to £11,4085,585 in
2022 or an increase of P3,505,814 or 46.06%. !ncresse was due to
advance payments made by the members to avail of the 1 month
discount promo of the Club upon payment of 1 year monthly dues with an
increase in 2022 in the amount of P3.62 Million.

12. Retirement benefit obligation —increased from P5,446,848 in 2021 to
P7.614,418 in 2022 or an increase of P2,167,570 or 30.70% due to
remeasurement gains of the retirement plan as per actuarial valuation,

13. Other Noncurrent liabilites — incregsed from P437,253 in 202% &
P863,528 In 2022 or an increase of P726,275 or 528.15% due to
Refundable Security deposit of P0.74 #fillion from the concessiohaira.

14, Members' Equity —increased frormn P253,904,282 in 2021 tc P261,566.665
in 2022 or an incraase of P7.662,403 or 3.02% due io the increase in the
accumuiated excess of revenues cver axpenses by P7.68 Million.

Fiscal Year 2021
A, OPERATING RESULTS

1. Revenues ~ revenues increased from P139,704,498 in 2020 to P140,575,486
in 2021 or an increase of P1,271,993 or 1%. Significant sources of the
increase in revenue are Golf Cart rental by P4,876,691, Monthly Dues by
P876,976, Transfer Fee by PP5.699,600, Service Charge by P3,051,932,
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Road Users Fee by PB.407,967 and Assessment for Road Maintenance by
P1,853,747. Revenue sources that decreased during the year are Green Fee
by P8,773,553, Concessionaires Fees by P1,938,9802, Locators Fees by
P363,383, Self Insurance Fee by P446,220, Service Fee from Guests by
P281,341, Tournament Fee by P1,318,697 and Miscelisneous Income by
P2,797,716

Golf cart rental increased due increase In number of ventals from 12,808 in
FY 2020 to 19,842 in FY 2021 or en increase of 8,936 rentals due to
implementation of mandatory golf cart for guesis and one cart one user ruls.
Monthly Dues increased due to ncrease in Playing Rights members and
Associate Depandents. Transfer Fee increased mainly due to increase in
rate from P112,000 to 200,000 for third party market and from P41,200 to
P20,000 fer first degree effective an. 1, 2021 Service Charge Increasad due
to increase in rate of Initial Service Charge from P75,000 to P150,000 and
Reneawal Fee from F30,000 to P80.000 (new member) or 50,000 (pravious
mernber) effective Jan. 1, 2021. Road Users Fee increasad due to increase
in the passing thru rate from P50.00 to P100.00 effactive Feb. 4, 2021 and
increase In number of deliveries. Assessment for Road Maintenance
increased due $o increase in number of sales of ¢ar stickers and stricter
implementation of no sticker ne entry policy.

Decrease in Green Fee is due to the decrease in total number of non-
member golfers who played in our courses from 17,780 guests in 2020 to
6,807 in 2021 brought about by the Covid 19 Pandemic quarantine
restrictions wherein only accompanied guests are allowed to play and closure
of the operations of the Club for one month last April 2021 in accordance with
IATF Guidelines. Green Fee rates however increaszsd effective Jan 2021 at
the South Course Weekday by P150 and Weekend P200 and at the North
Course Weekday by P150 and Weskends by P300. Concessionaires Fees
from the F & B Concessionaires decreased because of the decrease in sales
of the restaurants that resulted from the decrease in guests and restrictions in
the dinning activities as well as the closure of the Club last April 2021.
Locators Fees decreased due lo the Board Resolution to cance! the
impiementation of the monthly Locators Fee and all dellveries will pay the
Road Users Fee. Both the Self Insurance Fee and Service Fee from Guests
decreased due the restrictions on the acceptance of guests to accompanied
guests only and non-acceptance of Walk-in players. In compliance with IATF
Guidelines all private and Club toumaments were not allowed therefora
resulting to the decrease in Tournament Fee. Miscellaneous Income
decreased due io decrease is sale of gasoline and utility charges to the
concassionaires.

2. Cost and Expenses - For the fiscal year 2021 the total cost of services
and genaral and administrative expenses amouni to P131.225844 or a
decrease of P23,768,561 or 15% from previous year's figure of
P154,684,205

Personnel Expenses decreased from P20,334,697 in 2020 to P27,877.244 in
2021 or a decrsase of P1,857,453 or 6%. Salaries and Wages decreased by
PB0D,527.66 bacause of the resignation of the Golf Director, retirement of
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other positions without replacements and the salary of the Genera! Manager
recorded as Quiside Services. Overtime decreased by P769,983, Msal
Allowance decressed by P127.853, 13% month Pay decreased by P97,584,
Vacation and Sick feave decreased by P116,245, Bonus & Gratuity
decreased by P41,086 and Treining and Seminar decreassd by P47,280.42.
Hazard Pay for the Club Nuree increzsad by P50,300, Allowance of the
Committze Sscreiares increased by P10,000, Covid 19 Supplemartary
Aftowance increased by P21,000, Pag-lbig Contribution increasad by PS50,
$SS, PHIC & ECC increassad by P5,394 and Retirement Benefit Expenss
increased by P255,843.

Supplies increased from P18,354,808 in 2020 to P18,810,748 In 2021 or an
increase of P455,840 or 2%. Stationeries and office supplies increased by
P112,788, Repairs & Mainienance increased by P1,475,251, Janitorial
supplies increased by P359,880, Medical and Denta! supplies increased by
P233,047, Motorpool and Ground supplies incrsesed by P23,895 and
Miscellaneous supplies increased by P1,200.333. Gasoline and O Supplies
decreasec¢ by P403,610, Toilet and cleaning supplies decreased by
P989,462, Service supplies decreased by P540,553. Swimming poo!
suppfies decreased by P104,888, Linen supplies decreased by P845,110 and
Uniforms decreased by P70,732

Utllities decreased from P14,673,327 in 2020 to P8,682,534 in 2021 or a
decrease of P5,990,793 or 41%. Electricity decreased by P4,360,838,
Communication by P91,227 and Water by P1.538,728.

Quiside Services decreased from P42,377,884 in 2020 to P40,065,870 in
2021 or a decrease of P2,312,014 or 5%. Retfainers Fee decreased
P118,935, Legal Fees by P980,682, Laundry Services by P807,857 and
Maintenance Crew by P4,104,385. Audit Fees increased by P55,622,
Security Services by P1,895534 and Golf Course Maintenance by
P1,848,790

Sundries decreased from P18,270.256 in 2020 to P10,720,1G7 in 2021 or a
decrease of P7,550,146 or 41%. Taxes and Licenses cecreased by
P548,8688, Transporiation & travel by P19,347, insurance by P22,302, Board,
Committee and Stockholders Meeting by P173,223, Ads & Publication by
P126,564, Marketing Expenses by P200,000, Promotional and Industrial by
P162.410, Bank Charges by P161,009, Tournament expensas by P4,150,571
and Miscellansous by P1,958,268. Seif-insurance expense increased by
P12,967.

BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

Cash and cash equivalents — increased from P34.087,111 in 2020 to
P51,715,093 in 2021 or an increase of P17,627,882 or 52%. Increase
resulted from Net cash generated from operating activities amounting to
P38.04 Million which is higher by P32.81 Milllon from last vear's P5.23
Million. Net cash flow used in investing activities amount fo {(P20.41) Million
due to increase in short term investment of P10 Million, Additions to property
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and equipment of P9.98 Million and othar noncurrent assets of P0.45 Million.
Cash and Cash Equivalents and the baginning of the year is P34.09 Million
plus the Net increase in cash is P17.63 Million, Cash et the end of the year is
P51.72 Million.

. Trade and cther recelvabies — decreased from P16,887.78% in 2020 o
P13,7231.208 in 2021 or a decresse of P3,255,886 or 19.17%. Decregss was
due to decrease in Members account by P1.89 Miilion and Other Receivables
by P1.37 Million.

. Debt instruments at fair vaelue — represents the short term investmant of the
funds from operationg in UITF in the amount of P10.02 Million.

. Other currant assets — decreased from F8,618,146 in 2020 to P7,994.765 in
2021 or a decrease of P623.381 or 7.23%. Decrease rasulted from decraase
in supplies inventory by P247,411, prepayments by P76,214 and othars by
P354.066.

. Property and equipment - decreased from P228,695,886 in 2020 to
P215,385,047 in 2021 or a decrease of £13,310,839 or 5.82%. Additions for
the Year 2021 includes the Construction in Progress — Swimming pool in the
amount of P3.96 Million, Construction in Progress — Golf Cart Garage
amounting to P3.87 Million, Construction in Progress — Swimming pool
Cabana in the amount of P0.50 Million and Ground tools and service
machinary and sguipment of P1 Milion. However, the Accumulated
Depreciation increased by P23.29 Million thus the Property and Equipment
decreased.

. investment properties — went down from P348,053 in 2020 to P214,585 in
2021 or a decrease of P134,488 or 38.53%. Depreciation for the fiscal year
2021 for the North clubhouse is P134,488.

. Deferrec tax asset ~ amount ior year endad June 30, 2021 is P226,57C. This

figure is arrived at deducting the Provision for deferred tax during year in the
amount of P140,521 and the Othar Comprehensgive Income of £317,900 from
the balance at the beginning of the year of P684,891,

. Other non-current assets ~ increased from P1,334,964 in 2020 to P1,758,125
in 2021 or an increase of P423,161 or 31.88%. Increase is due fo
Computarization Project in the amount of F658.561 and Advances to
Suppllers of P52.000 less Advancss to Suppliers Non-Currant of
P205.400.00.

. Trade and other payables - decrzased from P16,278.250 in 2020 to
P16,006.,852 in 2021 or a decreasa of P269,381 or 1.65%. Decrease was
due fo decrease in Accounts Payable by P1.83 Million, Accruad Expanses by
P0.28 Mitlion and Vat Payable by P26,323 whereas Accounts Payable Others
increased by P0.37 Million, Concessionaires by PC.38 Million and Payable to
Organizations, Lessors and Cooperative by P1.11 Million
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10. Members' Deposits and Others went up from P15,484,520 in 2020 o
P1€,888,951 in 2021 or an increase of P1,404.43%1 or 8.07%. Increase
resulied from refundable cash deposits from members, Credit balances of
former members and advance payments made by the members (o avail of
the 1 month discount promo of the Club upon payment of 1 year monthly

dues,

11. Retirament benefit obligation —decreased from P7.975.808 in 2020 to
P5,446,848 in 2021 or a decrease of P2,529,960 or 31.72% due to decrease
in the presant value of benefit cbligation as per actuarial valuation.

12. Members' Equity —increased from P242,712,820 in 2020 to P253,904,262 in
2021 or an increase of 211,191,442 or 4.61% due to the increase in the
accumulaied excess of revenues over expenses by P11.19 Million.

SIGNATURES
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Y Golf ANNEX ﬁ_
STATEMENT OF MAMNAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS!

The management of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, including the schedules attached therein, for the year
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework
indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable

the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Club's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless managemant either intands to liquidate the
Club or to cease operations, or has no realistic slternative to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Club’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

SyCip, Gorres, Velayo & Co., the indeperdent auditors sppointed by the stcckholders or
membars has audited the financial statements of the Club in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and in their report to the stockholders or members, have expressed their
opinion on the fairnass of presentation ugon completion of such audit.

CARLO MARIAS, CAR
Chairman of the Board/President
TIN 152.51

Atty. RIO SESINANDO E. VENTURANZA
Chief Financilil Officer/Treasurer

TIN 100-699-138
Signed this 1 Mdé&‘- of
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBIILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. is responsible for all information and representations contained
in the Annual Income Tax Return for the year ended June 30, 2022. Management is likewise responsible for all
information and representations contained in the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return
covering the same reporting period. Furthermore, the Management is responsible for all information and
representations contained in all the other tax returns filed for the raporting period, including, but not limited, to the
value added tax anc/or percentage tax returns, withholding tax returns, documentary stamp tax returns, and any and
all other tax returns.

In this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2022 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in accordance with the books and records of Valley Golf
& Country Club, Inc. complete and correct in all material respects. Management likewise affirms that:

{a) the Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the National Internal
Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other issuances of the Department of Finance and
the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

(b) any disparity of figures in the submlitted reports arising from the preparation of financial statements pursuant to
financial accounting standards and the preparation of the income tax return pursuant to tax accounting rules has
been reported as reconciling items and maintained in the Company's books and racords in accordance with the
requirements of Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant issuances;

{c) the Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. has filed all applicable tax returns, reports and statements required to be
filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and other impasitions shown therson to be
due and jgyable have been paid for the reporting period, except those contested in goed faith.

ATy
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me thisg ] SEP 2022 aﬂ;!,'\'wﬂ_!__ b
Affiant exhibiting to me his/her Tax Identification Number as indicated above. '
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Members and the Board of Directors
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Valley Golf & Country Club. Inc, (a nonprofit organization)
(the Club), which comprise the statements of financial position as at June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the
statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in members’ equity
and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2022, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Club as at June 30, 2022 and 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
each of the three yeurs in the period ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Audmng (PSAs). OQur
responsibilities under thosc standards are further described in the

section of our report. We are independent of the Club in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable

the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Club’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Club or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversecing the Club’s financial reporting process.

*SGVFS167638*
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether duc to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s rcport that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arisc from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain
proftssional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or eror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for onc resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of cxpressing an opinion on the
cffectiveness of the Club’s internai control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Club’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If we
conclude that a2 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of onr auditor’s

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Club to cease to continue as a going
concemn,

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statcments represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 34-2020 and
15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 34-2020 and 15-2010 in
Note 26 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the
management of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion. the information is fairly
stated. in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Pt Qb A, Yhatura

Peter John R. Ventura
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0113172
Tax Identification No. 301-106-741
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No, 113172-SEC (Group A)

Valid to cover audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)

Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-140-2021, November 10, 2021, valid until November 9, 2024
PTR No. 8854381, January 3. 2022, Makati City

September 3, 2022
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
{A Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30

2022 2021
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) P51,147,281 £51,715,093
Trade and other reecivables (Note 5) 13,861,275 13,731,908
Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (Note 9) 10,120,765 10,024,917
Other current assets (Note 6) 9.124,722 7,994,765
Total Current Assets 84.254.043 83.466,683
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment (Note 7) 238,125,202 215,385,047
Investment properties (Note 8) 123,380 214,565
Trust fund (Note 9) 4,856,245 4,811,529
Deferred tax assets - net {Note 22) - 226,570
Other noncurrent assets (Note 10) 2.204.716 1.758,125
Total Noncurrent Assets 245,310,043 222.395.836
TOTAL ASSETS . P329.564.086  £305.862.519
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS® EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 11) 823,792,555 P16.006,859
Members’ deposits and others {Note 12) 18,237,703 16,888,951
Contract liabilities (Note 13) 11,406,585 7,809,771
Proviston for probable claims (Note 14) 5,668.575 5,668,575
Short-term borrowiny (Note 25) 236,946 -
‘Total Current Liabilities 59.342.364 46,374,156
Noncurrent Liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation (Note 24) 7,614,418 5,446,848
Deferred tax liabilities - net (Note 22) 177,111 -
Other noncurrent liabilitics ( Notes 17 and 18) 863.528 137.253
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 8.655.057 5.584.101
Total Liabilities 67.997.421 51.958.257
Members’ Equity
Capital stock {Note 15) 14,346,000 14,346,000
Contributions in excess of par value 201,627,772 201,627,772
Accumulated excess of revenues over expenses (Note 13} 45.592.893 37.930.490
Total Members® Equity 261.566.665 253.904.262
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS® EQUITY P329.564.086  P305.862.519

¥
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB. INC.

(A Nonprofit Orzanization)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended June 30
2022 2021 2020
REVENUES
Revenue from contracts with customers (Note 16)  R141,185,352  R122,163.041 R123,666,014
Rentals (Note 18) 20,986,983 18,645,114 15,343,492
Unrcalized gain on financial assets at fair value
throngh profit or loss (Note 9) 140,564 36,877 -~
Interest income (Notes 4. 9 and 18] 129.588 131.457 694,990
162,442,487 140,976,489 139.704.496
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of services (Note 19) 129,583,939 111,594,261 131,011,939
General and administrative expenses (Note 20) 21,894,121 19,620.289 23.971.691
Interest cxpense 35.549 11,094 10,575
151.513.609 131,225,644 154.994,.205
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES BEFORE INCOME
TAXES 10,928,878 9,750,845 {(15,289,709)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES (Note 22; §73.993 328.652 1.908.635
EXCESS (DEFICRENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES £10,354.885 £9.422.193 (#17.198,344)

y
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
{A Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended June 30
2022 2021 2020
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENSES 210.354,885 B9 422,193 (P17.198,344)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{LOSS)
Re-measurcment gains (losses) on defined
benefit obligation (Note 24) (2,692.482) 2,087,149 (5.196,438)
Income tax effect - (317.900} 1.558.931
{2.692.482) 1.769,249 13.637.507)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS) £7.662.403 P11.191,442 (£20.835.851)

Y
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

{A Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Years Ended June 30
2022 2021 2020

CAPITAL STOCK (Notc 15) 214.346.000 214,346,000 £14,346.000
CONTRIBUTIONS IN EXCESS OF

PAR VALUE 201.627,772 201.627.772 201.627.772
ACCUMULATED EXCESS CF REVENUES

OVER EXPENSES (Note 15)
Balances at bepinning of vear 37.930.490 26.739.048 47,574,899
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 10,354,885 9.422,193 (17,198,344)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (2,692.482) 1,769.249 (3.637.507)
Total comprehensive income {loss) 7,662,403 11.191.442 (20.835.851)
Balance at end of vear 45,592,893 37,930,490 26.739.048
TOTAL MEMBERS' EQUITY £261.566.665  R253,904.262 P242.712.820

y
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YALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC,
{A Nonprofit Orgunization)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Yoars Ended June 30
2022 2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses before
income 1axcs 10,928,878 P9,750.845 {1#15.289.709)
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 7. 8 and 10) 23,417,365 23,455,146 25,040,564
Interest expense 35,549 11.094 10.575
Movements in:
Retiremunt benefit obligation {524.912) (442.811) (865.209)
Provision for probable claims - (142.094) 4,790.929
Gain on sale of property and equipment and investment
properties (Notes 7 and 16) (371.572) (2.250) (320.536)
Unrealized gain on financial assets at fait value through
profit or loss {(Note 9) (140,564) (36.877) -
Interest income {Motes 4. 9 ond 18) 1129.588) 131,457} 694,990}
Operating income before working capital changes 33,215,656 32,461,596 12.671.624
Decrease (increage) in:
Trade and other receivables {128,414) 3.295247 (2.896.734)
Orher current assets (1,300,269) 435,250 1.015.076
Increase {decrease) in;
Trade and other payables 7.785.696 (269,391) {8.238,582)
Contract Habilities 3596814 645,256 409.326
Members® deposits and others 1.0%34.752 1.404431 1.936.563
Net cash gencrated from operations 48,258,235 37.972.389 4,897253
Interest received 114,910 37N 639,987
Interest paid (35,549 111,094 10.575)
Net cash flows #enerated from operating activities 45,337,596 38.039.666 5.526.663
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions 10 property and cquipmeut {Nole 7) (45.872.069) 19.983.686) (17.926.91(
Decrvage (increase) in:
Dbt instruments at fair value through profit or luss
(Now 9 - (10.000,000) -
Trust fund - 18,046 {44,822)
Other nencurrent asscts (641,857) (449.294) {541.000)
Procreds (rom sale of prupenty and equipment (Note 7) 371572 2.250 320.536
Net cash flows uscd in investing sctivitics 146,142 384) 20,411,684} i15.192,196)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from availment of short-term borrowing 694,400 - -
Paymiient of shont-term borrowing (487.454) - -
Net cash flows zencrated from fibanciny activities 236.946 B =
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {567,812) 17.627.982 (12,665,531
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF
YEAR 51.715.093 34.087.111 46.752.642
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR (Naotc
41 B51,147.281 B51.715.093 PI4.087.111
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Nonprofit Organization)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate [nformation

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. {the Club) was organized in the Philippines and registered with the
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on May 14, 1958 as a nonprofit organization
for a term of 50 years up to 2008. The Club’s corporate life was extended for another 50 years from
May 15, 2008 as confirmed and ratified by the members on November 18, 2007 and was subsequently
approved by the SEC on April 29, 2008, On July 17, 1963, the SEC granted the Club a secondary
license to sell its securities to the public.

The primary purpose of the Club is to foster and promote the game of golf and operate and maintain a
golf course and country club and, gencrally, to do and perform all such acts and things, and exercise
such powers as are ordinarily done, performed and exercised by sociai and athletic clubs and
associations.

Prior to 2012, the Club is exempt from payment of income tax on income received from social,
recreational. and athletic activities on a nonprofit basis provided that no part of the Club’s incomne shall
inure 1o the benefit of any of its members, trustevs and ofTicers. Under Section 30 {E) of the Tax Reform
Act of 1997, an organization organized for recreational, sports and athletic activities shall be exempt
from payment of income tax on income received from aforementioned activities.

On August 3, 2012, the Burcau of Internal Revenuc (BIR) issucd Revenue Memorandum Circular
(RMC) No. 35-2012 clarifying that clubs organized and operated exclusively for pleasure, recreation
and other non-profit purposes are subject to income tax and value-added tax (VAT) on their income
from whatever source, including but not limited to membership fees, assessment dues, rental income,
and service fees.

On August 13, 2019, the Supreme Court declared that membership fees, assessment dues, and fees of
similar nature collected by Clubs which are organized and operated exclusively for pleasure, recreation,
and other nonprofit purposes do not constitute as: (a) “the income of recreational clubs from whatever
source™ that are “subject to income tax"; and {b) part of the “gross receipts of recreational clubs™ that
are “subject to VAT, Accordingly, the Club did not coilect the related output VAT for membership
fees, assessment dues, and fees of similar nature.

The registered office of the Club, which is also its principal place of business, is located at Don Celso
S. Tuason Ave., Antipola City.

The Club’s Board of Directors (BOD} approved the issuance of the financial statements as at
June 30, 2022 and 2021 and for cach of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2022 on
September 3, 2022,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Buagiy of Preparation

The financial statements of the Club have been prepared on 2 historical cost basis, except for the debt
instruments at fair value through profit or lozs (FVTPL) and trust fund which are measured at fair value.
The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (P), which is the Club’s functional and
presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.
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The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Club have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Changes in Accounting Policics and Digeclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that the
Club has adoptcd the following amendments to existing standards starting July 1, 2021. Adoption of
these pronouncements did not have any impact on the Club's financial position or performance.

s  Amendment to PFRS 16, y

¢ Amendments to PFRS 9, Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 39, PFRS 7, PFRS 4 and PFRS
16, -

tandar. Effectiv
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. The Club does not expect that the future

adoption of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact on its financial statements. The
Club intends to adopt the following pronouncements when they become effective.

y
Amendments to PFRS 3,

Amendments to PAS 16,
Amendments to PAS 37, -
2018-2020 Cycle

o  Amendments to PFRS |,
y
s Amendments to PFRS 9, . ' '

o  Amendments to PAS 41, X

s Amendments to PAS 12, X

¢  Amendments to PAS 8,
s  Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2,

y
e  Amendments to PAS 1,
y
¢« PFRS 17,
y
o Amendments to PFRS 10, , and PAS 28,

Current versus Non-current Classification

The Club presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current and
noncurrent clagsification. An asset is current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle:

¢ Held primarily for tho purpose of trading;

*SGVFS$167638*
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¢ Expected to be realized within 12 months afier the reporting period: or

o Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.

A liability is cutrent when:

e [t is expected to be scitled in the normal operating cycie;

* 1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

o It is due to be seitled within 12 months afier the reporting period; or

o There is no unconditional rifht to defer the settlement of the liability for at lcast 12 mor: weduivawins wuws

B IGOUIUISY LUK VOLIE SAVLLETY UL USEAL (U 3OLUC 2 TIRvily 1ol 8L least 12 months after the reporh
ng period.
All other asgets are classified as not
current.
Cer e TR,
= K. ana habilitics.
h an uivalen

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalen
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash wit
from dates ol acquisition and that are subject to insignifice

ts are short-term, highly liquid investments
1 original maturities of three months or less
nt risk of changes in value.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a

financial asset of one entily and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial Recognition and ment of Financial Asset
Financial assets are ciassified, at initial recognition, as su

bsequently measured at amortized cost. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) and

*VTPL

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
cash flow characteristics and the Club’s business model
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a signif
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the tra

depends on the financial asset’s contractual
for managing the financial assets. With the
cant financing component the Club initially
»f financial assets not at FVTPL, transaction
financing component or for which the Club
1saction price determinced under PFRS 15.

In otder for a financial asset to be classified and measured
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI tes

at amortized cost or FVOCI, it needs to give
ind interest (SPP1) on the principal amount
: and is performed at an instrument level.

The Club’s business model for managing financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model dete
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial as
measured at amortized cost are held within a business mox
in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial :
held within a business model with the objective of both |
selling.

refers to how it manages its financial assets
mines whether cash flows will result from
iets, or both, Financial assets classified and
lel with the obiective to hold financial assets
ssets classified and measured at FVOCI are
olding to colleet contractual cash flows and
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Purchases or sales of financial asscts that require delivery of asscts within the period gencrally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) arc recognized on the
trade date, i.c.. the date that the Club commits to purchasc or sell the asset.

The Club's financial asscts are in the naturc of financial assets at amortized cost and financial assets at
FVTPL. The Club has no financial asscts at FVOCT] as at June 30, 2022 and 2021,

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

» Financial asscts at amortized cost {debt instruments)

s Financial assets at FVOCT with recycling of cumulative gains and losses {debt instruments)

o Financial asscts designated at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

e Financial assets at FVTPL

z
Financial assets at amortized cost arc subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method end are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of income
when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Club's financial assets at amortized cost includes cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and trust fund (sec Notes 4, 5 and 9).

This include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
FVTPL. or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assgets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term, Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at FVTPL. irrespective of the buginess model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at FYQC], as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognized in the statement of income.

The Club’s financial assets at FVTPL includes its investments in unit investment trust fund (UITF)
{see Note 9).

impai t i in

The Club recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held
at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Club expects to reveive, discounted at an approximation of
the original EIR. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collatera] held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (2 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
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is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For cash in bank and cash equivalents, debt instrument at FVTPL, and trust fund, the Club applies the
low credit risk simplification. The probability of default and loss given defaults are publicly available
and are considered to be low credit risk investments. It is the Club’s policy to measure ECLs on such
instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be bascd on the lifctime ECL. The Club considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

For trade and other receivables, the Club applics a simplified approach in calculating EC'Ls. Therefore,
the Club does not track changes in credit risk, but instcad recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at cach reporting date. The Club has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
cnvironment.

The Club considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

a  when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty, or
information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Club, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Club).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Club considers that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 120 days past due unless the Club has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more conservative default criterion is more approptiate.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Club compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initiat
recognition. In making this assessment, the Club considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Club’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organizations,
as well as consideration of varicus extemnal sources of actual and forecast economic information that
relate to the Club's core operations.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit~impaired includes observabie data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower:
b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event:-
¢) the lender(s) of the borrower. for economic or contractual reagons relating to the borrower’s

financial difficulty. having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider:
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d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
or
¢) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

The Club impiements a policy on its reccivables, wherein members in the delinquent list or those with
accounts that arc past due for a certain period are reported to the BOD. The respective shares of the
members or of the juridical entitics they represent shall be ordered sold by the BOD, through an auction,
to satisfy the claims of the Club.

The Club writcs off a financial assct when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptey proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activitics under the Club's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoverics made arce recognized the statement of income.

Degecognition of Financial Assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
asscts) is derecognized {i.e. removed from the Club’s statement of financial position) when:

the rights to reccive cash flows from the asset have expired: or

the Club has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has agsumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’
arrangement; and either () has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Club has transfetred its tights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrengement, it cvaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transfetred control of the asset, the Club continues to recognize the transferred asset to the
extent of its continuing involvement in the asset, In that case, the Club also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Club has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Club could be required to repay.

Initial Recognition and Measurement of Financial Liabilities

Financial linbilitics are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivative designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in vase of loans borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Club has no financial liabilities at FVTPL and derivative instruments as at June 30, 2022 and 2021.
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u t urement of Finaneial Liabiliti

y
This is the category most relevant to the Club. Afier initial recognition, loans and borrowings and
payables arc subsequently measurcd at amortized cost using the EIR method, Gains and losscs are
recognized in the statement of income when the liabilitics are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as
finance costs in the statement of income.

This category applies to trade and other payables, members' deposit and others and short-term
borrowing (sec Notes 11 and 12).

itio i ial Liabilities
A financiel liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or has cxpired. When an cxisting financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially diffcrent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
¢xchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the staiement of
income.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial Jiabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offsct the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assot and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Club assesses that it has currently enforceable right of offiet if the right is not
contingent on a future event and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of defuult,
and event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Club and all of the counterparties.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or puid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair veiue measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability tekes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible to by the Club.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would

use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
gencrate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Club uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient

data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measuned or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest leve! input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valuc
measurement is directly or indircctly observable

¢ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Club
determines whether transfors have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
wholc) at the end of cach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Club has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hicrarchy as explained above.

Inventories

Inventories consist of gasoline, maintenance supplies, spare parts, office supplies and others,
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Costs incurred in bringing
vach product to its present location and condition are accounted for using the first-in, first-out method.

NRYV of the saleable merchandise is the estimated selling price in the ordinary coursc of busincss less
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. NRV of gasoline, maintenance supplies, spare parts and
others is the estimated replacement costs. In determining NRV, the Club considers any adjustment
necessary for spoilage, breakage and obsolescence. An allowance for inventory obsolescence is
determined based on a regular review and management cvaluntion of movement and condition of
supplies,

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except for land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, if any. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value,

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-
refundable taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such property and
equipment when the recognition criteria are met. Expenditures incurred after the property and
equipment have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul COSts, are
normaily charged fo the statement of income in the period when the costs are incurred,

Depreciation is computed on & straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Category Number of Years
Land improvements 3-50
Building and structures 5-50
Ground tools and services machinery and equipment 3-10
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 310
Transpontation equipment 5
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Construction in progress is stated at cost. Depreciation is computed when the construction is completed.

The useful lives and methods of depreciation of property and cquipment are reviewed at cach financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property and cquipment is derccognized upon disposal or when no future cconomic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the assct
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Investmeng Propertics

Investment properties consist of land and building held for rentals or capital appreciation or both,
Except for land, investment property ig stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in
value for building. The cost of the investment proporty compriscs its purchase price and other direct
costs. Depreciation on the building is computed on a straight-line basis over the cstimated useful life
of 20 years. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

Transfers arc made to investment property when there is 1 change in use, evidenced by ending of owner-
occupation. commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction of
development. Transfers are made from investment property when there is a change in usc, evidenced
by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to sale. These
transfers are recorded using the carrying amount of the investment property at the date of the change in
use.

Gains or losses resulting from the sale of an investment propetty are recognized in the statement of
income.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use and no
furure economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognized in the statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal.

Computer Software

Computer software included as part of “Other noncurrent assets™ is initially recognized at cost.
Following initial recognition, computer software is carried at cost, less accumulated amortization and
any accumulated impairment in value,

Computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful economic life of threc
(3) years to five (5) years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortization commences when the computer software is availeble for usc.
The period and method of amortization for the computer software are reviewed at each end of the
reporting period. Changes in the estimated useful life is accounted for by changing the amortization
period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortization

expense is recognized in the statement of income in the expense category consistent with the function
of the computer software.

Impairment of Property and Equipment. Investment Properties and Computer Saftware

The Club assesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that a nonfinancial assct may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Club makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. The
nonfinancial asset’s estimated recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the agset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other nonfinancial assets or
group of nonfinancial assets, in which case the recoverable amount is assessed as part of the cash
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gencrating unit to which it belongs. Where the carrying amount of the nonfinancial asset excecds its
estimated recoverable amount, the nonfinancial asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
estimated recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present valuc using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of moncy and the risks specific to the nonfinancial asset. Fair value less costs to sell is the amount
obtainable from the sale of the nonfinancial asset or cash-generating unit in an arm’s-length transaction,
adjusted for incremental costs that would be directly attributable to the disposal of the nonfinanciai
asset.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of income in those expense categorics consistent
with the function of the impaired nonfinancial asset.

An assessment is made at cach reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only it there has
becn a change in the estimates used to determine the nonfinancial asset’s recoverable amount since the
lnst impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
its estimated recoverable amount, That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized tor the asset in prior years. Such reversal
is recognized in the statement of income.

Capita] St

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Amount of contribution in excess of par
value is accounted for as “Contributions in excess of par value”, Contribution in excess of par value
also arises from additional capital contribution from the members.

Aceumulated Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

Accumulated excess of revenue over expenses represents sccumulated net profits (losses).

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Club expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Club has generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements, except for the concessionaire services, because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

The following are the Club’s performance obligations:

Membership dues pertains to monthly member's dues and administration fee charged to the Club's
members and past Club presidents, respectively. Revenues are recognized over time when membership
dues are due and demandable, net of any discount. Any advance payments are recorded under “Contract
liabilities™ account in the statement of financial position,

a. Discount on annual dues are provided to the members when they pay the annual dues in

advance. The discount is equivalent to one-month membership dues and is presented as a
reduction to the revenue recognized.

b. Piscount_ on prompt payments are provided to members when they pay their account balance
in full within one month after billing. To estimate the variable consideration for the expected
discount on prompt payments, the Club applies the most likely zmount.
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Sports and recreation pertain to fees charged for use of the Club’s golf and swimming pool facilities,
This also includes the service foc charged for every play of golf. Revenues ure recognized overtime
when the related services have been rendered.

a. Discount on green fees arc provided to guests when they purchase coupons which may be
redecmed at a jater date. Upon redemption. the green fee revenue recognized is net of the
discount.

Assessment for road maintenance is income generated from the use of the Club’s main road, Don Celso
S. Tuason Avenuc. Revenues arc recognized overtime when the related services have been rendered,

Corporate services pertain to fees charged by the Club for processing members transactions. This
includes transfer fees and service charge on playing guests. Transfer fees are transaction fees for
transfers of members shares of stocks. Service charges on playing guests are transaction fees or cash
requirements in order to process the Club's playing rights to outside individuals, Revenues are
recognized overtime when the related services have been rendered.

Concession fees pertains to a fee charged by the Club to its concessionaires in exchange for the right
granted to the later to render food and beverage services and sale of 0oods to its membens and guests.
The amount of the commission income is based on the terms of the concessionaires’ agreements. The
Club acts as an agent on its concession agreements since it does not have control over the specified
goods or services that will be delivered by the concessionaires to the Club’s members and guests.
Revenues are recognized at a point in time when the concessionairc has delivered the goods to the
members and guests and the related services have been rendered,

Revenue from special events pertains to fees charged for golf tounaments and Club’s social events.
Revenue is recognized overtime upon occurrence of the event,

Patronage fees are consumables that members are entitled to for the consumption of food provided by
the Club’s concessionaire. Revenue are recognized at a point in time upon determination of the expired
and unconsumed portion of the minimum required purchase of food and beverage, subject to the Club’s

policy. Any advance payments are recorded under “Contract liabilities” account in the statement of
financial position.

Revenue from sale of properties are recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. The Club considers whether there are other promises in the contract that
are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated,
In determining the teansaction price for the sale of properties, the Club considers the effects of variable
consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and
consideration payable to the customer (if any).
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Surcharge on past due accounts arc penaltics charged to members with delinquent accounts for over
45 days from the statemunt or cut-off date of the later statement of account until the account is paid in
full. Revenuecs are recognized at o point in time upon collection of the amount charged to the member
for delayed payment.

Contract Balapces

A reccivable represents the Club’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is duc).

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Club performs by transferring goods or scrvices to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the eamed consideration
that is conditional.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Club has
received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Club transfers poods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liahilities
are recognized as revenue when the Club performs under the contract.

Interest is recognized as income when it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the asset.

Cosr and Expengses

Cost and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting pericd in the form of
outflows or decreases of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrcases in equity, other than
those relating to distributions to equity participants, Cost and expensus are recognized when incurred,

Leases

The Club asscsses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for o period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Leases in which the Club does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an assct are classified as operating lcases. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms and is included in the statement of income due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized over the leage term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

Retirement Benefit Obligation

The_ net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
ob_hgahon at the end of the financial reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets {if any),
adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the
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present value of any economic benefits availabic in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method,

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

® Service cost

e Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset

* Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current scrvice costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-routine
scttlements are recognized as expense in statement of income. Past service costs are recegnized when
plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by independent
qualified actuarics.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or assct is the change during the period in the net defined
benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying the
discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest on the
net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in statement of income.

Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized immediately
in OCl in the period in which they arise. Re-measurements are not reclassified to staternent of income
in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policics. Plan asscts are not available to the creditors of the Club, nor can they be paid directly to the
Club, Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is available,
the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount
rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date
of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related
obligations). If the fuir valus of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the defined benefit
obligation. the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present velue of
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan.

The Club’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit

oblig.ation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is virtually
certain.

Taxes

X
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and the prior period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authority. The income tax rates and income tax

laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each
financial reporting period.
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X
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differcnces between the tax bascs of
asscts and liabilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilitics are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred
tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable income or loss.

Deferred tax assets arc recognized for all deductible temporary differcnces, and the carryforward
benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular
corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward benefits of unused tax credits and unuscd tax losses can be utilized
except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference ariscs from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end of reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probabie that sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each end of reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
future taxable income will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the income tax rates that are expecied to apply to the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settied, bused on income tex rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax refuting to
iterns recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of income.

The Club offsets deferred tax assets and deforred tax liabilities if and only if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax lisbilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend cither to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

X
Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if applicable.

When VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from purchases
of goods or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the starement of financial
position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services {input VAT) exceeds VAT from
sales of goods and/or services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an asset in the statement of
financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

For .the-non-VA'_l‘ registered activities, the amount of VAT passed on from its purchase of goods or
service is recognized as part of the cost of goods/asset acquired or as part of expense item, as applicable.

Provisionsg
Provisions are recognized when the Club has a present obligation (legal and constructive) as a result of

a past event: it _is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, If the effect
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of the time value of moncy is material, provisions are made by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax ratc that reflects current market asscssment of the time valuc of moncy and, where
appropriate. the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time ig recognized as an interest expensc.

Where the Club expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a scparate
asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the statement of income, net of any reimbursement.

Contingent [iabilitics are not recognized in the financial statements. Thesc are disclosed in the notes to
financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources cmbodying economic benefits is
remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are discloscd in the notes
to financial statements when an inflow of cconomic benefits is probable.

Events After the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Club's position at the reporting date
(adjusting events) ar¢ reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates, and Assumptions

The preparation and fair presentation of the accompanying financial statements in compliance with
PFRSs requires management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and the accompanying notes. The judgments and estimates used in the
accompanying financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Future event may oceur which will cause the
assumptions used in amriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in cstimate are
reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable. Actual results could differ
from such estimates.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstance.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Club’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

The Club appiied the following judgement that significantly affect the determination of the amount of
revenue from contracts with customers:

o
The Club enters into contracts with its concessionaires to perform, on their behalf, saic of goods
and services to its members. The Club determined that it does not control the goods before they are

transferred to customers. The following factors indicate that the Club does nol control the goods

before they are being transferred to customers. ‘Therefore, the Club determined that it is an agent in
these contracts.

© The Club is not primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the goods or services.
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® The Club’s revenue is in the form of a fixed commission income as established in the
concession contract with the concessionaires,

e The Club does not have inventory risk before or after the goods has been transferred to the
customer.
The Club has no discretion in establishing the price for the goods and services.

The Club has cntered into commercial property leascs, The Club has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as tho lease term not constituting a
major part of the economic lifc of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these propettics and accounts for the
contracts as operating leascs.

Rental income pertaining to these leases for the years ended Junc 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020 amounted
to #20,986,983, 18,645,114, and P15,343.492 respectively (see Note |B).

Estimgtes and Assumptions

The key assumptions concemning the futare and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of cuusing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The Club uscs a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for its trade and other receivables. The provision
rates are based on days past due of cach member that have similar loss pattern. The provision matrix is
initially based on the Club’s historical observed default rates. The Club calibrates the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increused number
of defaults in its members, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed,

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Club’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future,

Receivables from members that are considered as delinquent for a certain period and the amount due
the Club has exceeded the credit limit of members as maybe fixed by the BOD from time to time shal]
be reported to the BOD and their shares of the juridical entitics they reprosent shall thereafter be ordered
sold by the BOD at auction to satisfy the claims of the Club as stated in the By-laws. It shall be
absolutely prohibited to auction thc share of 2 member whose overdue/delinquent account does not
cxceed such member’s credit limit. As approved by the BOD, the members’ credit limit shall be fixed
at #50,000. A member may pay the overdue account at any time before the auction sale.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables amounted to £13,861,275 and 13,731,908 as at

June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Allowance for ECL amounted to P1 725,845 and #2,030,111 as
at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively (sec Note 5).
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b4

The Club estimates the uscful lives of property and equipment and investment properties based on the
period over which the Club’s property and cquipment and investment properties are expected to be
available for use. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties arc
reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from previous cstimates duc to physical wear
and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of these assets. In
addition, the Club’s estimation of the uscful lives of property and equipment and investment propertics
arc based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience
with similar assets. It is possible that the future results of operations could be matcrially affected by
changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioncd above.

As at June 30. 2022 and 2021, there were no changes made in the estimated useful lives of the Club’s
property and equipment and investment propertics, The carrying amount of property and cquipment as
at June 30, 2022 and 2021 amounted to P238,125,202 and $215,385,047, raspectively (sec Note 7).
The carrying amount of investment properties as at June 30, 2022 and 2021 amounted to #123 880 and
P214,565, respectively (ses Note 8).

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and the present value of the pension obligation arc determined
using actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include
the determination of the discount rates, futurc salary increases. turnover rate and future pension
increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature,
defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers
the market yields on Philippine government bonds with terms consistent with the expected employee
benefit payout as at end of the reporting periods.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables and is modified accordingly with
cstimates of mortality improvements. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on
expected future inflation rates for the Philippines.

Retirement benefit obligation amounted to £7.614,418 and 85,446,848 as at June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively (see Note 24),

y X
The Club reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at cach reporting date and reduced the
amounts to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. However, there is no assurance that the Club can
generate sufficient taxable profit to allow all or part of its deferred taxable assets to be utilized,

The Club’s deferred tax assets amounted to #165.976 and £528,722 as at June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively {(see Note 22),

Temporary deductible differences for which no deferred tax asset was recognized amounted to
£11,326,079 and R11,349,984 as at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively (see Note 22),

The Club is currently involved in various legal proceedings, The estimate of the probable costs for the
resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with its counsel handling the defense in
these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results, In the opinion of munagement and its
legal counsel, the eventual liability under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material or
adverse effect on the Club's financial position and results of operations. It is possible, however, that
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the future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the

effectivencss of the strategics relating to these proceedings.

The Club has provision for probable claims amounting to B5,668,575 as at June 30, 2022 and 2021 {sec

Note 14},
. Cash and Cash Equivalents
2022 2021
Cash on hand #120,000 120,000
Cash in banks 28,534,761 27.138,925
Cash cquivalents 22,492 520 24,456,168
£51.147.281 B51.715.093

Cash on hand consists of fund for daily operating expenses and undeposited collections. Cash in banks
carn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are short term deposits made for
varying periods of up to three (3) months and earny interest at the respective short-term deposit rates,

Interest income earned amounted to #115.863, B111,387 and #636,443 for

the yeurs ended
June 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

. Trade and Other Recelvables

2022 2021

Members 9,806,531 #11,540,158
Others 5.780.589 4,221,861
15,587,120 15,762,019

Less allowance for ECL 1.725.845 2.030.111
£13.861,275 £13,731.908

Receivables from members, which are due 30 days after billing date, are noninterest-bearing and
constitute a lien on the members' shares,
Other receivables consist mainly of the share of the concessionaires and maintenance provider for the
security services and electricity of the access roads around the Club, advances made to officers and

employees and receivables from concessionaires und various organizations which are settied within
30-90 days” term.

As at June 30, 2022, and 2021, the aging analysis of trade and other receivables are as follows:

2022 2021

Not more than 30 days outstanding £6,389,614 9,236,735
Beyond 30 days outstanding:

31-60 days 488,819 894,091

61-90 days 509,386 769,181

Over 90 days 8,199,301 4,862,012

P15,587,120 B15,762.019
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The movements in allowance for ECLs arc as follows:

2022 2021
Balances at beginning of yoar #2,030,111 82,030,111
Provision (Note 20) 614,492 -
Reversal (918.758)
Balances at end of vear P1,725,845 #2,030.111

. Other Current Assets

2022 2021
Supplies inventory at NRV $3,788,106 £3,597.263
Prepayments 2,585,721 2,502,227
Creditable withholding tax (CWT) 883,019 838475
Others 1,867.876 £.056.300

29,124,722 £7,994,765

Supplies inventory include gasoline and oil stocks, grounds materials, office, shop and maintenance
supplies and construction materials.

Prepayments periain to prepaid taxes and licenses, prepaid medical expenses and prepaid insurance
premiums,

CWTs are amounts withheld from income subject to expanded withholding taxes. CWTs can be utilized
as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supported by certificates of creditable tax
withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxation. CWT's which are claimed against
the income tax due, represents excess of the tax payable and carried over in the succeeding period for
the same purpose.

Others pertain to advances on purchases and deferred input VAT,
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On Murch 26, 2022, the Club open an auction sale of golf cart, gym cquipment and transpo}-lation
cquipment. Procceds and gain from the sale of thesc fully depreciated property and cquipment
amounted to #371,572 (sce Note 16).

In 2021, the Club sold a fully depreciated golf cart. Proceeds and gain from the sale of golf cart
amounted to 82,250 {(scc Note 16).

In 2020, the Club sold five (5) units of golf carts that is fully depreciated. Proceeds and gain from the
sule of golf carts amounted to 320,536 (scc Note 16).

The cost of fully depreciated property and equipment still uscd in operations amounted to
£109.870,704 and 116,320,059 as at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively,

8. Investment Properties

2022
Building Land Total
Cost;
Balances at beginning and
end of vear #53,718,366 #73.562 853.791.928
Accumulated depreciation:
Balances at beginning of year 53577363 - 53577363
Depreciation { Notes 19 and 20 90,685 -~ 90,685
Balances at end of vear 53.668.048 - 53.668.048
Net book values P50.318 $73.562 #123.880
2021
Building Land Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning and
end of venr P53.718.366 P73.562 P53.791,928
Accumulated depreciation:
Balanccs at beginning of year 53,442,875 - 53442875
Depreciation (Notes 19 and 20 134.488 - 134.488
Balances at end of vear 33,577.363 53.577.363
Net book values 2141003 73,562 P214.565

Based on the appraisal report submitted by Top Consult, Inc., independent appraiser, dated
July 7. 2022, the fair value of the land with aggregate land area of 9,055 sqm. and building with total
floor area of 2,271 sqm., amounted to £141,227,700 and 230,526,000, respectively.

Based on the appraisal report submitted by Top Consult, Inc., independent appraiser, dated
June 24, 2021, the fair value of the land with aggregate land area of 9,055 sqm. and building with total
floor arca of 2,271 sqm., amounted 10 #99,205,800 and 230,526,000, respectively.

Rental income eamed from invesiment property amounted 1o P305,404 in 2022, 2021 and 2020

(sec Note 18). Direct expenses related to investment properties consist mainly of amortization
amounting to P90,685, 2134,488 and R2,562.894 in 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
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9. Trust Fund and Debt Instrument at FVTPL

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the members on September 12, 1982 and as provided for in the
Club’s by laws, the trust fund committce is empowered to invest the Valley Golf Trust Fund, which in
no case shall be less than the original amount of 3,500,000, in leading universal banks in the
Philippines.

The members® resolution further states that all proceeds from future sale of shares and real property,
including all amortizations duc on the salc of shares previously sold, shall accruc to the trust fund and
that 85% of the interest income of the fund shal] be made available for the maintenance and repair of
the golf course. The remaining 15% of said intercst income shall accrue to and form part of the fund,

On May 21, 1989, the members resolution was amended stating that. “the proceeds of the sale of any
real property of the Club or shares of stock to be used for capital expenditure and other infrastructure
project shall not form part of the Valley Golf Trust Fund. However, any excess thereof shall form part
of the Valley Golf Trust Fund”,

On February 19, 2021, the Club invested a total of 814,799,569 in UTTF. The investment consists of
the Club’s trust fund. originully invested in time deposits, amounting to £4,799,569 and additional
investment amounting to 210,000,000,

The Club's debt instruments at FVTPL as at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

2022 2021
Debt instrument at FVTPL R10,120765  £10,024.917
Trust fund 4.856.245 4,811,529

£14.977.010 £14.836,446

Movement in debt instruments at FVTPL are as follows:

2022 202)
Beginning balance 214,836,446 P
Additions - 14,799,569
Changes in fair value 140.564 36.877
Ending balance £14,977.010 £14.836,446

The valuation gains due to changes in fair value as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 are allocated as follows:

Fair Value at Unrealized Fair value at

June 30, 2021 __pains  June 30, 2022

Trust fund P4,811,529 P44.716 £4,856,245
Debt instrument at FVTPL 10,024,917 95.848 10.120,765
P14.836.446 P140.564 £14.977.010

Cost at Unrcalized Fair value at

Februarv 19, 2021 gains June 30, 2022

Trust fund £4,799,569 B11,960 $4.811,529
Debt instrument at FV'I'PL 10.000.000 24.917 10,024 917
R14.799,569 £36,877 114,836,446
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Interest income recognized and realized for the trust fund amounted to nil, 86,345 and #44.822 for the
years ended June 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

10. Other Noncurrent Assets

2022 2021
Computer software P1,483,419 P955,828
Refundable deposit 749,297 750,297
Advances to suppliers 52.000 52.000

P2.204.716 P1.758,125

Refundable deposit pertains to deposits to utility companies.
Computer software includes the Club's in-house developed intangible assets.

Advances to suppliers relatc to the installation of new pump and purchase of various equipment,
‘The movement of computer software is as follows:

2022 2021
Cost:
Balance at beginning and end of year 23,548,646 2,860,952
__Additions 642.857 684.694
Balance at end of veer 4,188,503 3.545.646
Accumulated amortization:
Balance at beginning of year 2,589,318 2,563,685
Amortization (Notes 19 and 20) 195.266 26,133
Balance at end of vear 2.785.084 2,580.818
Net book value #1,403.419 RO55,5828
11. Trade and Other Payables
2022 2021
Trade 16,403,255 £3,227.064
Accrued expenses 5,349,972 5,110,740
Orgeanizations and cooperative 7,467,580 5,096,455
Concessionaires 2,503,394 1,412,377
VAT payable 821,765 391,212
Others 1,246,589 768.411

£23,792.555 £16,006.859

Trade payables are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are payable to suppliers within 30 days.
Accrued cxpenses arc obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest, These

pertain to accruals made for outside services, utilities and other various accruals. These are normally
settled within the next financial year.
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Orgonizations and cooperative include payments for loans and advances by the employecs to be
remitted to the association, and payables to golf associations and other organizations. These arc
normally settled within the next financial ycar.

Concessionaires pertains to collections received by the Club for and on behalf of the concessionaircs,

Other payables mainly consist of withholding tax payables and tournament deposits.

12. Members® Deposits and Others
2622 2021
Cash deposits £10,336,000 9,145,000
Due to former members 7,642,338 7477891
Security deposit 265,365 266.060
$£18,237.703 P16.888.951
Cash deposit pertains to deposits made by playing guests. Any unpaid liabilities will be deducted from
this account and the excess will be refunded upon resignation of the playing guest.
Due to former members consist mainly of proceeds from auction sale of shares, payable to former
members and other advance payments made by them.
Security deposit pertains to various deposits recetved by the Club from its concessionaires and lessee
and is to be refunded at the end of their respective agreements,
13. Contract Liabilities
2022 2021
Membership dues paid in advance (Note 16) 09,950,500 $6,331,200
Green fee coupons 1,246,664 1,254,788
Tournament deposit 160,009 139,009
Others 49.412 84,774

P11.406.585 77.809.771

Membership dues paid in advance represents advance collection of monthly membership dues which
arc applied in the next financial yeat,

Green fee coupons are issued to Freeport Elite Resorts, Inc. which operates a driving range facility
within the Club at a discounted price. The coupons are issued at different prices. These coupons are
then sold to Korean guests of the Club also at a discounted price.

Tournament deposits pertains to advance payments of the Club’s members made for an upcoming golf
tournament.

Others pertains to the advance payments of the members for dues and fees, and for golf cart storage
and locker rentals.
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14. Provision for Probable Claims

Movements in this account are as follows:

2022 2021
Balances at beginning of year BS5,668,575 5,810,669
Reversals - 1142.094)
Baiances at end of vear P5.668.575 £5.668.575

Provision for probable claims pertains to the estimated liability to resolve various probable claims
against the Club. The information usually required by PAS 37,

. is not disclosed on the grounds that it can be expected to prejudice the outcome of
these claims.

15. Members® Equity
Capital Stock

Details of the Club’s common shares as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Shares
Common shares - £9,000 par value
Authorized shares 1,800
Issued 1,594
Accumylated Excess of Revenues Over Expenses
2022 2021
Accumulated excess of revenues over expenses 047.257.893 £36.903.008
Other comprehensive income (loss) (Note 24);
Beginning balance 1,027,482 {741,767)
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined
benefit oblivation (2.692,482) 1.769,249
Endin: balance (1.665,000) 1.027.482
Total £45.592,893 137,930,490
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16. Revenue from Contracts with Customers

‘The table below presents the disaggregation of the Club's revenuc from contracts with customers:

2022 2021 2020
Natuare of services
Membership dues 057,423,318 £53.934,260 852,957,284
Asscssment for road maintenance 23,706,765 23,288,728 15,390,417
Corporate scrvices 22,561,454 19,777,872 11,026,339
Sports and recreation 19,459,569 11,358,990 20,965.399
Patronage fees 3,952,245 3,885,024 3,594.094
Concessionaires’ fee (Note 17) 3,493,824 2,412,288 4,129.714
Revenue from special events 2,364,767 1,802,900 8,591,704
Surcharge 768,108 729,074 560,172
Salc of properties (Note 7) 371,572 2,250 320.536
Others 7.083.730 4,971,655 6.130.355
£141.185.352 2122.163.041 P123.666.014
2022 2021 2020
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred overtime £132,599,603 £115,134408 P115.061.498
Goods transferred at a point in
time B.585.749 7.028.636 8.604.516
2141.185.352 £122.163.041 $123.666,014

Membership dues and assessments are collected by the Club from its members primarily to cover
expenses related to the maintenance and, for that matter, are utilized for improvements in the Club's
facilities. The collection of these dues and assessments does not arise from any sale of goods or services
but are imposed to cover and defray necessary expenses related to the maintenance of, and
improvements in, the Club's fucilities and as such, no part of the Club’s income imures to the benefit of
any of its members.

Mcember's dues paid in advance by its existing members amounted to £9,950,500 and 6,331,200 as at
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Members’ dues paid in advance is considered as a contract
liability of the Club to its members.

Patronage fees are monthly consumables that members are entitled for the consumption of food and
beverage provided by the Club's concessionaires that has expired and unconsumed.

Assessment for road maintenance are toll fees charged by the Club to users of the Club's main road,
Don Celso 8. Tuason Avenue, A specified fix rate is charged for different type of motor vehicles.

Sports and recreation arise from green fees which are generated from the use of the Club’s golf courses,

Thg Club has two golf courses: the North and South course. The North course is open 10 its members,
their guests, and walk-in customers while the South course is open to its members and their guests only.
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Revenue from special events are fecs charged to the Club’s members for golf tournaments held at the
Club. This also includcs asscssment fees to the Club’s members for Club’s social events.

Surcharge arc penalties charged to members with delinquent accounts for over 45 c‘iays frpm the
statement or cut-off date, A surcharge of 5% shall be imposed on any account that remains delinquent
including interest of 1% a month until the account is paid in full,

Others pertajns to income earned by the Club from corkage, commission on art display and sale of
scraps.

17.

Concesslonatres’ Fees
2022 2021 2020
Food and beverage services 122,266,505 P1,434.859 £3.374,760
Retail services 1,227,319 977.429 725,972
Spa and barbershop scrvices 28.982

13,493,824 £2.412.288 P4,129.714

Concession agreements entered into by the Club are shown below:

Eood and Beverage Services

a) Jay-j's Food Management, Inc. (JFMI), a local food concessionaire and the Club entered into 2
conccssion agreement whereby JFMI manages the food and beverage operations of the Club located
at the North Clubhouse. The agreement also provides that the concessionaire shall pay a fee of 7%
plus VAT-of the monthly gross sales including special functions contracted for the members and
gucst and to purchase one (1) share of stock. The share of stock is pledged to the Club which serves
23 a security deposit to answer for any dumages or cxpenses incurred. The agreement is for a period
of three (3) years from August 1, 2016 up to July 31, 2019. On June 15, 2019, the contract was
extended for a period of three (3) months, starting from August 1, 2019 up to Octoher 31, 2019,
The contract was further extended for short-term periods unti! July 31,-2020. On July 18, 2020,
the BOD approved the contract extension for three (3) months after the end of the community
quarantine. In December 2020, the contract was expanded, on a temporary basis, to include the
main clubhouse starting January 1, 2021 until such time a new concessionaire for the main
clubhouse is engaged. On May 28, 2022, the BOD approved the recommendation of the House
Committee for the non-renewal of JFM1's contract as a concessionaire at the North Clubhouse, On
May 31, 2022, the BOD released a formal notice of termination for the main olubhouse concession
effective July 31, 2022,

The concessionaire fee recognized from JFMI amounted to 984,740, £760,125 and #1,073,659 in
2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

b} Anix's House of Kare-kare (AHK), a Jocal food concessionaire, and the Club entered into 2
concession agreement whereby AHK manages the food and beverage operations of the Club at the
Main Clubhouse. The agreement also provides that the concessionaire shall pay a fee of 7% plus
VAT of the monthly gross sales for the first six (6) months of operations and 10% plus VAT of the
monthly gross sales for the succeeding months or #100,000 whichever is higher including catering
services contracted for the members and guest and to purchase one (1) share of stock. The share
of stock is pledged to the Club which serves as a security deposit to answer for any damages or
expenses incurred. The agreement is for a period of three (3) years from January 20, 2017 up to
January 19, 2020, subject to renewal at the option of the Club under such terms and conditions to
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be mutually agreed by the partics. The agrecment was extended on January 20, 2020 until
June 30, 2020. On July 18, 2020, the BOD approved the contract extension for three (3) months
after the end of the community quarantine. The contract was further extended to jast until
December 22, 2020 and was not renewed subsequently. This extension revised the concessionaire
fee to 7% plus VAT of the monthly gross salcs.

The concessionaire fee recognized from AHK amounted to nil, 445,272 and #2,301,102 in 2022,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

¢) Doturak International Group, Inc. (DIGI}, a local food concessionaire, and the Club cntered into a
concession agrecment whercby DIG] manages the food and beverage operations of the Club at the
Tec House, The agrecmcent provides that the concessionaire shall pay a basic minimum rental of
40,000 or 5% of the gross salcs per month inclusive of VAT for the duration of the COVID
pandemic situation, whichever is higher. Beginning on the finst day of the month following the
govemment announcement of the liftings of all alert levels in Rizal province or the gross sale
reaching £2,000,000 a month whichever comes first. DIGI shalt pay a concession fee of 10% plus
VAT or £40,000, whichever is higher. The agreement is for a period of five (5) years starting
January [, 2021 (the “Initiel Term™) renewable for another two {2) years at the option of DIGI (the
“Extended Term™). The agreement may be renewed or extended at the end of the initial and
extended terms as the parties may mutually agree upon. Upon execution of the agreement, DIG!
agrees to provide for 2 P240,000 refundable security deposit,

The concessionaire fee recognized from DIGT amounted to £501,19] and £229,462 in 2022 and
2021, respectively.

d) Golf Kitchen OPC (GKO). a local food concessionaire, and the Club entered into a concession
agreement whereby GKO manages the food and beverage operations of the Club located at the
Main Clubhouse. The agreement also provides that the concessionaire shall pay a fee of 5% of its
monthly gross sales exclusive of VAT during the period of pandemic. After the COVID-19
pandemic, once the gross sale reaches £2,000,000, GKO shall pay 10% of the gross sules per month
exclusive of VAT. Upon signing of the contract, GKO shall be required to remit refunduble security
deposit in the amount of 8500,000, The agreement is for a period of three (3) years from
November 1, 2021 until October 31, 2024 subject to rencwal upon mutual agrsement of both
parties.

The concessionaire fee recognized from GKO amounted to #780,574 in 2022,

Retail Shop

Pacsport Phils, Inc. was awarded the concession to operate a retail sales outlet, inside the Clubhouse to
serve the members, guests and dependents, exclusively. In consideration for operating the outlet, the
Club charges a basic minimum monthly concession fee of #65,000 or 15% of their gross sales per
month inclusive of VAT, whichever is higher. The agreement is for a period of two (2) years from
March 15, 2016 up to May 14, 2018.

On July 9, 2018, the contract was renewed and shall be effective for a period of two (2) years, starting
from March 15, 2018 up to May 14, 2020. The contract provides that the concessionaire shall pay a fee
of £70,000 or 15% of their gross sales per month inclusive of value added tax, whichever is higher.
The agreement was extended on January 1, 2021 until December 3 1, 2023 with the same terms, subject
to renewal upon mutual agreement of both parties.

The concessionaire fees from Pacsport Phils, Tnc. amounted to R£1.227,319, 8977429 and 725,972 in
2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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18. Rentals
2022 2021 2020
Golf cart rental 214,900,987 PR13,720,361 P8.843,670
Golf cart storage 3,789,831 3,220,457 3,139,648
Locker rental 920,084 891,391 946,098
Driving range 505,961 505,961 432,119
Venue and room fee 414,361 - 942,009

Communication cell sitc (Note 8)
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The lessec shall pay 23,197, inclusive of VAT, subject to a 4.5% escalation starting on the second
year of the new lease period.

The tuture minimum lease commitment under this operating lease as at June 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020
are as follows:

2022 2021 2020

Within onc (1) year £305,404 R305,404 R305,404
More than one (1) year but not

more than five (5) years 1,297,967 1,527,020 1,527,020

Morc than five (5) vears - 76.351 381,755

£1,603.371 #1.908.775 P2.214,179

Others pertain to rental fees from the Club’s housing and employec’s canteen,

On March 31, 2022, the Club eniered into 2 memorandum of conformity (MOC) with Giobe Telecom
Inc for the lease of Club’s premises to be used as a cell sit under certain conditions. Monthly rental
amounts to £25,000. The lease period is for a period of 10 years from Jenuary 1, 2022 to December 31,
2032 renewable for another 10 years,

The future minimum lease commitment under this operating lcase as at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

2022
Within one (1) year £300,000
More than one (1) vear but not
more than five (5) years 1,500,000
More than five (5) vcars 1.050.000
£2.850.000
19. Cost of Services
2022 2021 2020
Quitside services £43,131.926 P£37,054,304 £37,925,988
Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 7, 8, and 10) 23,061,566 23,177,151 24,748,395
Personnel cost (Note 21) 21,289,117 20,859,157 22,479,363
Supplies 19,027.951 8.645,016 9.868,403
Utilities 12,809,010 8.332,710 14,068,617
Repairs and maintenance 4,236,571 9,028,382 7,551,955
Club events 1,394,951 1,802,900 6,090,755
Others 4.632.847 2.694.641 8.278.463

R129.583.939 $111.594.261 RI131,011.939

COutside services pertains to retainer fees, lcgal fees, maintenance crews, and audit fees.

Others pertain to provision for tournament expenses, insurance, ads and publication, promotional and
industrial expenses, parking fee, and other miscellaneous expenses,
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20. General and Administrative Expenses

2022 2021 2020
Personnel costs (Note 21) 3,738,334 6,818,086 $6,855.334
Taxes and licenscs 4,938,961 5,312,964 5.861.950
Outside services 2,328,376 3,011,566 4,451,897
Supplics 1,014,950 1,129,130 925,054
Board members™ meetings 829,297 684,297 857,520
Bank charges 756,105 999,930 1,160,939
Utilities 615,451 349,824 604,711
Provision for ECL (Note 5) 614,492 - 243,212
Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 7, 8, and 10) 356,299 277,995 292,169
Others 1,701.856 1.036.497 2.718.905
£21.894,121 £19.620,289 £23.971,691

Other expenses consist mainly of advertising expenses, prompt paymeat discounts, insurance and net
cxpenses incurred during tournaments.

21. Personnel Costs

2022 2021 2020
Cost of services (Note 19):
Salaries and wages #16,146.963 #15,628,063 £17,220,703
Employee benefits 3,967,935 3.989.911 4,230,384
Retirement benefit
expense | Note 24) 1.174,219 1,241,183 1.028.276
- 21.289.117 20,859,157 22.479.363
General and administrative
{Note 20):
Salaries and wages 6,843,837 5,171.193 5,196,329
Employee benefits 1.594,974 1,332,233 1,387,281
Retirement benefit
expense (Note 24) 299.523 3}4.660 271,724
8.738.334 6.818.086 6.855.332
P30.027.451 §27,677.243 229,334,697
22, Income Taxes
The composition of provision for income taxys is:
2022 2021 2020
Current £170,312 188,131 255,090
Deferred 403,681 140.521 1.853.545
£573.993 £328.652 £1.908.635
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a. The Club's provision for cutrent income tax pertains to MCIT in 2022, 2021, and 2020.

b. The reconciliation of income computed at the statutory tax rates to provision for income tax as
shown in the statements of income is as follows:

2022 2021 2020
Income tax at the statutory rate 22,732,220 #2.437.711 {#4,586,913)
Income tax eifects of:
Nondeductible expenses 16,909,614 17,175.421 21,243,136
Nontaxable revenues (19,215,588) {17,978.816) (19,379,290)
Movement of unrecognized
deferred tax asscts 211,854 (1,267,012) 3,006,141
Interest income subject to
final tax (64,107) (38,652) (204,379)
Derccognition of advance
payments of membership
dues - = 1.829.940
£573,993 #328.652 £1,908.635

c. The components of the recognized net deferred tax assets are as follows:

2022 2021
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for ECL £153,623 £507,528
Advanced payments from members for other
dues 12,353 21.194
B 165.976 528.722
Deferred tax liabilities:
Rent receivable {339,178) {298.766)
Interest income from accretion o (3.909) i3.386)
(343.087) i302.152)
(#177.111) £226.570

The reconciliation of Ihﬁ net deferred tax assets {liabilities) is as follows:

2022 2021
Balances at beginning of year P226,570 £684,991
Provision for deferred tax during
the year recognized in:
Profit or loss (403,681) (140,521)
0C] - {317,900}
Balances at end of vear (P177.111) $226,570

*SGVFS167638*



-33-

No deferred tax assets from the following deductible temporary difference were recognized as it is
not probable that sufficicnt taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of the deferred tax

assets to be utilized:

2022 2021
NOLCO £1,159,065 P3,535,815
Retirement benefit obligation 7,614,418 5,446,848
Unrecognized past service cost 2,139,063 2,124,100
MCIT 413,533 243.221

P11,326.079 £11,349.984

d. Bayaniban to Recoyer as One Act
On September 11. 2020, President Rodrigo R. Duterte signed into law RA No. 11494,

y

y Y

y
as “Bayanihan to Recover As
One Act™.

On Scptember 30, 2020, the BIR issucd Revenue Regulations No. 25-2020 implementing Section
4{bbbb) of “Beyanihan to Recover As One Act”™ which states that the NOLCO incurred for taxable
years 2020 and 2021 can be carried over and claimed as a deduction from gross income for the next
five (5) consecutive taxable years immediately following the year of such loss.

As at June 30, 2022, the Club has incurred NOLCO before taxable year 2021 which can be claimed
as deduction from the regular taxable income for the next three (3) consecutive taxable years, as

follows:

NOLCO

Applicd NOLCO
Year  Availment Previous NOLCO Applicd NOLCO
Incurred  Period Amount Year/s Expired Current vear Unapplied
2020 2021-2023 R10,390.337 (P6.834.522) P~ (P2,376,750) RI1,159.065

¢. As at June 30, 2022, the Club has available MCIT that can be claimed as deductions from future
taxable liabilities, movement in excess of MCIT over RCIT are as follows:

Year Availment As at Asat

Incurned Period June 30, 2021 Addition Expired June 30, 2022

2022 2023-2025 P RI170.312 P P170,312

2021 2022-2024 188.131 -~ - 188,131

2020 2021-2023 55,090 - - 55,090
£243.22] £170.312 i P413.533

23. Related Party Transactions

Related partics include members of key management personnel including directors and officers of the
Club and close members of the family and companies associated with these individuals. In considering
each possible related entity relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship and
not merely the legal form. Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control,
directly or indirectly. the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
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financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control. Related partics may be individuals or corporate entities.

A summary of major account balances with related partics follows:

Key Management Personnel Compengation
Compensation of key management personnel amounted to 83,226,557, £2,104,188 and B2,083.175 in
2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which represent short-term benefiis.

Complimentary Club Coupons gnd House Guests Priyileges

Complimentary green fee coupons are given to the BOD and certain officers for distribution to
prospective members and certain guests and friends of the Club. The outstanding green fee coupons for
each fiscal year arc as follows:

2022 2021 2020
Beginning balance 120 46 365
Additions during the year 4,440 2,720 2,000
Issuances during the vear (2.460) 12.646) 12.319)
Ending balance 2,100 120 46

On March 1. 2020 these green fee rates arc ranging from #1,421 to#2,221. On Janvary 16, 2021, these
green fee rates are chenged ranging from 21,700 to £2,500.

The Club also authorizes certain Club officers to entertain houseguests and use the Club's facilities
free-of-charge.

. Retirement Benefit Obligation

The Club has a funded, non-contributory, defined benefit retirement plan covering all its qualificd
officers and employees. Under the plan, qualificd officers and employees are entitled to receive pension
benefits on a lump sum bagis when they reach the retirement age of 60. With the consent of the Club,
an employee may elect to retire early provided he has rendered at least 20 years of credited service or
at least 15 years of credited service and at least 50 years old. The projected unit credit cost method was
used to determine the retirement benefit costs and obligation, The Club’s retirement fund is being held
in trust by a trustee bank.

The following tables summarize the components of the retirement benefit cost recognized in the
statement of income and the retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of financial
position for the retirement plan.

Retirement benefits expense recognized in the statements of income:

2022 2021 2020
Service cost 21,192,627 1,300,611 R1,131,772
Net interest cost:
Interest cost on benefit
obligation 1,144,456 928,724 1,158,222
Interest income on plan assets (863.341) 1673.492) (989.994)
Retirement benefit expense P1.473.742 £1.555.843 £1.300.000
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Re-measurement losses (gains) on defined benefit obligation recognized under OCI in the statements

of comprehensive income:

2022 2021 2020
Actuarial losscs (gains):
Changes in financial
assumptions (R2,128,165) ®1,517,134) £3,290,567
Expericnce adjustments 2,489,236 {513,168) 356,365
Changes in demographic
assumptions 744,246 - [.058.64]
1,105,317 (2,030,302) 4,705,573
Return on plan asscts excluding
the amount included in net
intcrest cost 1.587,165 56.847) 490.865
Re-measurement losses {gains) on
defined benefit obligation B2,692.452 (£2.087.149) P5.196,438
Cumulative re-measurement effect recognized in OCT included in the accurnulated excess of revenues
over expenses:
2022 2021
Balances at beginning of year (®1,027,482) £1,059,667
Actuarial loss (gain) 1.105,.317 {2.030,302)
Return on assets excluding amount included in net
interest cost 1.587.165 (56.847)
Total amount recoinized in OCI £1.665,000 (1#1.027.482)
Movements in retirement benefit obligation in 2022 and 2021 arc as follows:
2022 2021
Balances at beginning of year £5,446,348 £7.976,808
Retirement benefit expense 1,473,742 1,555,843
Contributions paid (1.998,654) (1.998,654)
Remeasurement losses {puins) recognized in OCI 2.692.482 12,087.149)
Balance at end of vear $#7.614.418 £5,446,848
Changes in the present velue of defined benefit obligation as follows:
2022 2021
Balances at beginning of year £26,492,044 #27.395,976
Current service cost 1,192,627 1,300,611
Interest cost 1,144,456 928.724
Net actuarial Joss (gain) due to:
Changes in demographic assumptions 2,489,236 (513,168)
Changes in financial assumptions (2,128,165) (1.517,134)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 744,246 .
Benefits paid from plan assets (4.119.553) (1,102,965}
Balances at end of vear #25.814.891 126.492.044
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Changes in the fair value of plan asscts are as follows:

2022 2021
Balances at beginning of year £21.045,196 R19.419,168
Interest income on retirement plan asscts 863,341 673,492
Actual contributions 1,998,654 1,998,654
Actual return excluding amount included in net
interest cost (1,587,165) 56,847
Benefits paid (4.119,553) 11,102,965}
Balances at cnd of year £18,200473 P21,045.196
Retirement obligation as reported in the statement of financial position:
2022 2021
Present value of benefit obligation 025,814,891 £26.492,044
Fair value of retircment plan assets at end of vear (18.200.473) 121,045,196}
B7.614.418 PS5 446,848
The major categories of plan asgets are as foliows:
2022 2021
Deposit in banks £1,258,859 24,827,592
Investment in government securities 8,671,714 11,494,165
Other securities and debt instruments 3.812,561 803,344
Investment in trust fund 982,174 150.000
Investment in shares of stock 3,287.598 3.679,680
Accrued interest recejvable 109,493 174,544
Other reccivables 198,814 107,391
Accrued trust fees and other pavables (120.741) (191,520)
£18.200.472 £21.045,196

Deposit in banks includes regular savings.

Investments in government securities consist of retail treasury bonds that bear interest ranging from
2.375% to 6.125% in 2022 and 5.0% to 11.1% in 2021 and will mature on various dates starting

July 2013 1o October 2037.

Other securities and debt instruments pertains to ‘due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas’ and ‘time

certificate of deposit”™.

Miscellaneous receivable pertains to ‘dividends receivable’ and ‘due from brokers®.

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement benefit obligations for the Club’s

retirement plan are as follows:

2022 2021
Discount rate 6.59% 4.32%
Future salary increases 4.00% 3.00%
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The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit abligation as at the end of the reporting period, assuming
all other assumptions were held constant:

Effect on

Increage  defined benefit

(decreasc) obligation

2022

Discount ratcs +1% (1,490,704
=1% 1,667,364

Sulary increase rate +1% P1,694,113
-1% (1.539,778)

2021

Discount rates +1% (21.460,955)

-1% 1,638.138

Salary increase rate +1% P1.643,537
-1% (1,492,337

Shown below is the maturity profile of the undiscounted benefit payments:

2022 2021

Year | £2,602,193 £4,360,138
Year 2 6,608,833 2,623,365
Year 3 1,722,953 5,860,924
Year 4 3,218,591 1,663,429
Year 5 2,447,066 2,910,090
Year 6= 10 13.797.716 10.928,507

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 6.1 years and 5.8 years as at June 30, 2022
and 2021, respectively.

The Club’s latest actuarial valuation report was as of Junc 30, 2022,

25.

Financial Instruments

agement Objectiv ligi
The Club's principal financial liabilities comprise of trade and other payables, members® deposit and
others, and short-term borrowing. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for
the Club’s operations. The Club has various financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents and trade

and other receivables, which arise directly from its operations. The Club also has investments in debt
instruments at FVTPL and trust fund.

The main risks ariging from the Club’s financial instruments are credit risk and liquidity risk. The BOD
reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.
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Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not mect its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract. lcading to a financial loss. The Club manages credit risk by establishing credit limits
at the level of the individual borrower. corporate relationship and industry sector. Alse, the Club
transacts only with recognized third partics.

In addition, receivables balances ar¢ monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Club’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant. Provision for ECL/impairment losses on receivables will also
be made if the situation so warrants subject to the BOD's review and approval.

The following table represents the Club's maximum exposure to credit risk:

2022 2021

Cash in banks and cash cquivalents 51,027,281 51,595,093

‘Trade and other receivables 13,861,275 13,731.908

Dcbt instrument at FYTPL 10,120,765 10,024,917
Trust fund 4,856,245 4.811.529

P79,863.566 P80.163,447

The Club's financial assets that are subject to the ECL model consists of cash and cash equivalents and
trade and other receivables.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses, The provision rates are based on days past due of trade and other reccivables.
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

With respect to credit risk for these financial assets, the Club’s maximum exposure equals to the
carrying amount of these instruments. The Club has impaired financial assets smounting to £1,725,845
and #2,030,111 as at Junc 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively (see Note 5).

Below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Club’s trade and other receivables
using 2 provision matrix:

Dass pait due
1022 Carrent < 30 davs 30-60 davs 6180 dav's 91120 dass >120 daxs Tota]
Expueeted credit loss rate 0.2600% 0.4400% 0,961 % 2.0291% 4.T43% 100%
Estimated total gross camrying
amount at defpult P2.560.510 F3.529.104 R4ER A1 F8U9.186 P6.539.952 PLASO. L0 B8 587020
Exracted credit loss Pn, 657 P16,848 74,727 110,336 RA27.928 PLAS I P15 R4
Dy it dlg
2021 Current < A0 das» It} dava 6190 davs 91-120 ilavy 121 Gans Tatal
FExpetted ercdil lows mte 0.3432% 0.6439% 1.4045% 2.9061% 6.3405% 100%
Enxtimated total groas carrying
pmaunt at defult P3_190.R79 P3.770.276 P1Y79.172 P1.852 357 B3, 569 304 PL6W. ML PIS 762019
Expected credit loss NE!'? P24.277 ny 93 P53.837 P213.1:36 Fl.-_ﬁw gLl 22 030,111
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y
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Club may not be able to scttle or meet its obligations as they
fall due. The Club monitors and maintains a level of cash deomed adequate by the management to
finance the Club's operations and mitigate the cffects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Club’s financial liabilitics as at June 30, 2022
and 2021, bascd on contractual undiscounted cash flows, The table also analyscs the maturity profile
of the Club’s financial assets in order to provide a complete view of the Club's contractual
commitments. The analysis into relevant maturity groupings is based on the remaining period at the
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity dates.

at June 30, 20622
Laws than More
On dymand 38 Days 30 1o 60 dass 61 to 90 davs thon 91 Dovs Total
Atpmantized cost:
Trade and other payables:
Trande puyables 2431433 3951812 L P P- P6ADI 2SS
Acttued expenws 2.74v 964 857060 207,136 40,630 1278170 LA L]
Others* 3,865,150 128521 463,521 135,94 214,112 10.454,350
Memtrery deposits mud others 14,257,703 - - - - 18,237,703
Shoretenn borrowing - - - 2}6.926 236,846
Refundable deposits under ™
" - - - F4iL000 740,000
Fl'w PEATL 09 P&78,758 29 ) IT)
Atamerticed cost:
Cash and eash uguivalenm P2R4684.761 10713715 . #101,.7719.50K P= PREI4T.281
Trade and other raervubles:
Tuade reeenubles 2.422.287 672091 - novsITe
Uthers ANTITRTY %3218 - - - 5,166,097
Debit instrutmum 21 FYTRL 18,120,765 - 10,120,783
Trust fond ‘ - - - 44850248 4850248
Mgm_.m PI7.0HA24 - !u.‘ﬂ!!tﬂ P _ntn 248 m.m.s;
L ¥
As at 1
Lews than Mure
On Jomand 10 Davs Mhae wrclas b to Y0 daye thar 91 Dass Total
A smortized cos:
Trade and ather payables:
Trade payobles P411.79 PRL5 KX [ ¥- - 1227 464
Accrued expenses 4432988 136478 133,174 135,904 271,400 5.110.740
Others* 1146497 244284 G000 32K.2352 5,067,120 6812015
Merbits doprite and othere 16,588 91] = 11 BRE 951
P24 RD.I5] PLENT D P2I0TTT Fi64.152 PS5 130 | 1 P32 110.290
Al amortized cost!
Umth and canh equavaloms P17.258.925 P P~ P24A56, 108 P FS1,715.093
Trade and other reeeivables:
Trude receivables 1713983 AT96D0 9510047
Crthers 003274 128,587 - - 4,221 k61
Debt instrument ot FYTPL 10.024017 - - 1002497
Trust fuml - - As|L 49 4811529
_ ] CXRIT ST AT WY T 1Y 55

% y

In November 2021, the Club entered into a one year Loan Agreement with Metrobank Trust Company
with a principal amount of #694.400 for the acquisition of a transportation equipment for use as shuttle
and emergence vehicle of the Club. The loan bears an interest of 7.27% per annum,
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Fair V: ¢ I

The following provides the fair valuc measurement hicrarchy of the Club’s assets and liabilities as at
June 30, 2022 and 2021:

Fair Value Meagurement

Quoted Prices  Significant Significant
in Active  Obscrvable Unobscrvable
Date of Markets Inputs Inputs
Valuation Total (Level 1} iLevel 2 iLevel 3)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed
{Note 8) 2022 2171,7583.700 P - 2171,753.700
2021 P129,731,800 B P R129.731.800

Assets measured at fair value

{Note 9) 2022 210,120,765  P10,120,765 o
2021 P10.024917  B10,024917 -
{Note 9) 2022 84,856,245 £4.356.245 - P~
2021 P4,811,529 B4.811.529 P B

Significant unobservable inputs for fair value measurement of the Club’s investment properties include
sales listing of currently cxecuted transactions involving similar items within the immediate vicinity of
the property. The fair value of the investment properties is adjusted considering the Jocation, size and
physical attributes of the property.

Description of significant unobservable inputs 1o valuation:

Runge Sensitivity of the Input to Fair
Assets Vaoluation Technigue Siguificant Unobservoble lopmt ol npuit Value
Ptvestment properties  Market approach and cos! Price per urea Vartous Invrense (decrense) th price per
approach arca would increese (decrease)
the fair value

There are no changes in the valuation techniques used for assets classified under Level 3 category.
During the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

y ’

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents. trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,
and members' deposit and others. and short-terrn borrowing, approximate their fair values due to the
relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

The carrying values of debt instruments at FVTPL and trust fund are measured at fair value and is
computed based on net assct value per unit.

The primary objective of the Club’s capital management policy is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize members® value.
The club manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Club is not subject to extemally imposed capital requirements. The Club considers total
member’s equity as capital.

*SGVFS167638*
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2022 2021

Capital stock 014,346,000 P14,346,000

Contributions in excess of par value 201,627,772 201,627,772
Accumulated excess of revenucs over costs and

expenses 45.592,493 37,930,490

R261.566.665  £253,904.262

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021,

26.

Supplementary Information under Revenue Regulations (RR) 34-2020 and 15-2010

The Club is not covered by the requirements and procedures for related party transactions provided by
RR 34-2020 which prescribes the guidelines and procedures for the submission of BIR Form 1709
Related Party Transactions Form, transfer pricing documentation and other supporting documents.

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR 15-2010 prescribing the manner of compliance in
connection with the preparation and submission of financial statements accompanying the tax retutns.
It includes provisions for additional disclosure requirements in the notes to the financial statoments,
particularly on taxes, dutics and licenses paid or accrued during the year. The Club reported and/or paid
the following types of taxes in 2022:

a. VAT
The NIRC of 1997 provides for the imposition of VAT on sales of goods and services.
Accordingly, the Club’s sales are subject te output VAT while its purchases from other VAT-
registered individuals or corporations are subject to input VAT.

Details of the Club’s net sales/receipts, output VAT and input VAT accounts are as follows:

i. Nect Sales/Receipts and Output VAT declared in the Club’s VAT returns

Net Sales/
Receipts Cuiput VAT
Taxablc sales:
Sales of services 190,113,940 ?10,813.673
Exempt sales 23,151.730 =
£113,265.670 10.813.673
ii. Input VAT
Balance at July {, 2021 P
Current year's domestic purchases/payments for:
Domestic purchases of services 3.534.756
Goods other than for resale or manufacture 672,530
Capital poods exceedinue P1.000.000 .
4.207.286
Applied avainst output tax 14.207.286)
Balance at June 30, 2022 [

*SGVFS167638*



-42 -

b. Withholdins Taxcs

Expanded withholding taxes B2 396,180
Withholding taxes on compensation and benefits 185.668
12,581,848

¢. Other Taxes and Licenscs

Real estate taxes P3.922 565
Locsal business tax 1,016,396
$4,938,961

d. Tax Assessments
The Club did not reccive any final tax asscssments in 2022, nor did it have tax cases under
preliminary investigation, litigation and/or prosecution in courts or bodics outside the
administration of BIR.

*SGVFS167638*
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Thank vou for reaching out to ictdsubmissionigisec.s0V.ph. Your submission is subject for Verification and
Review of the Quality of the Attached Document only for secondary Reports. Official copy of the submittec
document/report with Barcode Page (Confirmation Receipt) wilt be made available after 7 working days viz
order from receipt through the SEC Express Sysiem at httgs:ﬂggexgrggs.ghi. Or you may call 8737-8888 for
further clarifications.

NOTICE

Please be informed that selected reports should be filed through ELECTRONIC FILING AND SUBMISSION
TOOL (EFAST]. ./ /cifss-ost.sec.gov.ph/user/log

such as: AFS, GIS, GFFS, LCFS, LCIF, FCFS. FCIF, I{HFS, BDFS, PHFS etc. ANO, ANHAM, FS-PARENT, FS-

CONSOLIDATED, OPC_AO, AFS WITH NSPO FORM 12,3 AND 4,56, AFS WITH NSPQ FORM
1,2,3 (FOUNDATIONS)

Further, pursuant to SEC Memorandum Cireular No. 3, series of 2021, scanned copies of the printed reports

with wet signature and proper notarization <hall be filed irt PORTABLE DOCUMENT FORMAT {PDF) Secondaty
Reports such as:

17-A, 17-C, 17-1, 17-Q, ICASR, ICA-QR, ICA-AR, 23-A, 23-B, I-ACGR, ACGR, Manthly Reports, Quarterly Reports,
Letters, OPC(ALTERNATE NOMINEE),GIS-G, 52-AR, IHAR,AMLA-CF,NPM,NPAM, BP-FCLC, CHINESEWALL, 39-
AR,36-AR, PNFS, MCG, $10/SEC-NTCE-EXEMPT, through email at

ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph

FOR MC28, please go to SEC website:

https://apps0id.sec.ZOV.

For your information and guidance.

Thank you and keep safe.



COVER SHEET

11319{6(1
S.E.C Registration Number

IVIAIL|L{E]Y| [G|O[L|F|
lclLjuiB| [1|N[cl | |

.
ANEEEENEERE
||

&{ |C|O|UN|T|R|Y

| T[R]
il
L1
L1

[ [c] HENE
| 1] LT
L1 HEERE
Hl HEER

— — — —
d L L L]

|&| [clolu|N]T] LI 1]
REEEENEE [ L]
HENEEEN [ [ ]
HEREEEEER HEERNEN HEN

[BIo[N T[EL[s]o] [s] [TiviAlsoN [T [T 1]

|
lv[ric|Tjo[R[1[A[ [vIA|LIL[E[Y[ [A|N[T[I[P|O[LIO] |C

Business Addreas: No. Straeu.lly { Town / Provinca
ROSANNA ARGUELLES '  8658-4901 to 03
o " Contact Person ' Company Telephone Number
Lol ol [3la 17-Q Lofo] lemfsn
Manth Day FORM TYPE Manth Da
' == Annus! Meeting
Secand License Typs, If Applicable -
Dept. Requiring thia Doc. ~ Amended Arlicles Number / Section
= Total Amount of Bor oerins =:
1594 4 L
- Domestic Foreign
To be accomplished by SEC Personnal concerned
HEEEEEREEE

File Number Lcu

Cashier

STAMPS



CERTIFICATION

|, DAN SALVADOR Iil, General Manger/Compliance Officer of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY
CLUB, INC. with SEC registration number 13951 with principal office at Don Celso 8. Tuason
Victoria Valley Antipolo City, on oath state:

1. That on behalf of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc., | have caused this Quarterly Report
(SEC Form 17-Q)) for the period ended December 31, 2022 to be prepared;

2. That | rmad and understood its contents which are true and comrect of my own personal
knowledge and/or based on true racords;

3. That the company Valley Gelf & Country Club, Inc will comply with the requirements set
forth on the SEC Notice dated June 24, 2020 for a complete and official submilssion of
reports and/or documents through electronic mail; and

4. That | am fully aware that the documents filed online which requires pre-evaluation
and/or processing fee shall be considered complete and officially received only upon
payment of a filing fee.

IN “\HT "l'NF%ZS THEREOF, | have hereunfo set my hands this

A

Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this  MAY 11 273 dey of
ANTIPOLG CITY

n
LS -
\\: -

-
——

Dag, Noy .8

“Fakes of:

ATTY, ﬂ'onoﬁi" 0 J. nn\ho; JR,

NOTARY PUBLIC -
Feo: Antipoln City, Cainta, Taytay, Risal
Until December 31, 2024
Rall of Attorneys No, 27541
MCLE Complisncs No. VII-0023686
IRP Ko, 386227; Dec. 30, 2023, REM
PTR Fo. 8673433; Jan, 03, 2023 Antipolo City



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TD SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SRC

1.

10.

11.

2.

RULE 17{2){b) THEREUNDER

For the guartery period ended

Commission identification number

BIR Tax Identification No.

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter

Province, country or other juriediction of
Incorporation or organization

Industry Clessification Code

Address of issuer's principal office

issuer's telephone numbers, Including area code

Fermer name, former address and former fiscal
Year, if changed since Iast repart

Securities registered pursuant to Section B and
12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Tltle of each class
Number of Shares Outstanding
Amount of Dabt Outstanding

Are any or all of the securities listed on a
Stock Exchange?

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:
{a) Has filed all reports required to be flled by

Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and

RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 28

And 141 of the Cerporation Code of the

Philippines, during the preceding twealve (12)

Months (or for such shorter pariod the ragistrant
was required to file such reports)

(o) Has been subject to such filing requirements

For the past ninety (80) days

March 31, 2023
13981
000-848-197

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

Antipolo City, Rizal
____ [SEC Use Only)

Don Celso S. Tuason Avenue Victoria
Valley Rizal
(D2) 868-4901 to 03; {02) 658-0088

Not Applicable

Common 3tock-P9,000 par value
1,594

No ( X )

Yes ( X ) Noe { }
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
{A Nonprofit Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Audited by
Unaudited 86V & Co.
MAR JUNE

- 2023 2022
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents {Note 4) 58,721,770 51,147,281
Trade and other recelvables-net (Note 5) 27,389,130 13,861,275
Debt Instrument &t fair valua through profit o 10,530,970 10,120,765
Other current asssts (Note 6) 10,482,472 9,124 722
Total Current Assets 105,084,342 84,254,043
Noncurrent Assete

Property and equipment-net (Note 7) 252,905,783 238,125,202
Investment properties-net (Nota 8) 88,830 123,880
Trust Fund (Mote 8) 4,858,245 4856245
-Deferred Tax Asset (Note 22) 166,976 o
Other non-current essets (Note 10 2,128 801 2,204,718
Total Noncurrent Assets B 260,148,525 245,310,043
TOTAL ASSETS 365,230,866 329,564,086
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

Current Liabllitias

Trade and other payabies {Note 11) 28,805,428 23,792,555
Members’ deposiis and others (Note 12) 18,377,585 18,237,703
Contract Liabilities {Note 13) 17,878,440 11,408,585
Accruad provision for probable claims (Note 5,688,575 5,868,575
Short tem borrowirg 0 236.948
Tofal Current Liabilities 71,830.038 59,342,364
Noncurrent Liabilities

Retirement benefit obligation (Note 24) 7,285,428 7614418
Deferred tax llabilities 343,087 177,11
Other noncurrent liabilities 123,528 863,528
Total Noncurrent Liabllities 7,752,042 8.850.067
Total Lisbillies 79,582.081 67.997 421
Members' Equity (Note 15)

Capital Stock 14,348,000 14,346,000
Contribution in excess of par value 201,827,772 201,827,772
Accumulated excess of revenues over expe 89676013 45592 883
Total Members' Equity 285,648,785 261.566 665
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQ1 385,230 488 329,604,086

0 0



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, ING.

{A Nonprofit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Quarters Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022

REVENUES
Ravenus from contracts with customears (Note 16)
Rentals (Nota 18)
Interest Income (Notes 4 & 8)
Unrealizad gain on financlel assets ol falr value
_throuah predit or loes Node 6

Tots! Revenue

COST AND EXPENBES
Cost of servicas (Note 19)
General and adminjetrative Note 20

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES CVER EXPENSES
BEFORE INCOME TAXES

PROVISION FOR (EENEFIT FROM, INCOME TAXES
EXCESS (GEFICIENCY) OF REVENUJE OVER EXPENSES

incomalLoss for the quarter
No. of shares

EARMINGS PER BHARE

EPSwnaet Income /(loss) outstanding commeon shares

There are no diluted ssrnings par share

202 2022 2023
JULMAR  JULMAR  JAN-MAR
159,875,318 99,988,393 68,222,080
18,804,181 16,285,029 5,650,128
291,251 93,049 78,772
41020401 109970.99 238719
177380931 115786441 74185718
132,813,252 89,854,202 52,891,025
20485558 16 421 237 5916 283
159208807 106,275 529
24,082,124  9,200912  14,383488
I I 0
24062124 9200912 14383459
24,082,124 8,200,812
1584 1,504
16108 6772
B8 00 BT

2022
JAN-MAR

38,491,042
5,085,381
14,623

1
43 805,250

30,041,850
5 857 567

50808257 36 599817

7,005,433
]
7,006 432



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

{ A Nonprofit Corporation)

SCHEDULE OF COST AND EXPENSES

For the Quarters Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022

PERSONNEL.

Salaries, contributions and allowances

Retirement benefit expense
Bonus and gratuity

SUPPLIES:

Repairs and maintenance
Oparating supplies

Gasoline & oil

Stetionery and office supplles
Uniforms

Dental and medical

UTILITIES:
Electricity
Communication
Water

OUTSIDE SERVICES:
Retainer's fee

Legai fees

Audit fees

Security services
Laundry services
Maintenance crew

Golf couse maintenance

SUNDRIES:

Taxes end Licenses

Board and members' meetings
Insurance

Advertiseaments and publication
Bank charges

Dues & reglstration feer
Promotlonal & industrial

Self Insuranca Expense
Toumarnent

Christmas Fund Expanses
Grand Raffie Expenses
Miscellaneous

Depraciation and Amortization
FINANCE COST

GRAND TOTAL COST & EXPENSES

fsacxpjuimar

2023 2022 2023 2022
JUL-MAR JUL-MAR JAN-MAR JAN-MAR
21,669,228 19,651,984 7,638,910 8,812,175
1,170,000 1,170,000 380,000 380,000
1,501,300 1.364,182 511,333 388,700
24,340,528 22,306,176 8,540,243 7,700,875
7,571,378 7,284,419 3,009,078 2,834,555
4,514,128 3,240,223 1,934,763 1,125,488
1,763,584 3,380,053 668,477 1,188,375
1,334,220 988,149 508,608 360,108
501,578 564,408 14,616 18,779
484,484 977.168 186,936 554 395
16,178,348 16.432.419 6,412,766 5,877,698
10,088,858 6,565,458 3,708,012 2,530,614
504,439 728,832 188,407 231,851
2,058 735 1 725,264 791,863 612.355
12,741,832 9,019,584 4.778.082 3,374,620
480,501 611,337 217,191 65,111
1,470,101 882,071 378,379 183,907
412,200 434,119 137,400 144,706
12,331,861 8,100,033 4,074,259 2,610,313
791,070 37,516 247,974 9,240
4,767,747 1,468,017 1,714,569 485,926
24.730.560 20 387 200 8.775,380 7.091.200
44.984.121 31728293 16545132 10.590.494
5,084,851 3,678,370 1,568,188 1,303,011
1,260,831 670,109 430,820 181,736
411,760 418,755 135,543 124,474
58,545 80,772 - 8,500
1,488,207 878,400 688,054 332,329
65,426 53,885 60,500 42,879
431,984 78,723 150,342 19,808
442,079 201,808 224,928 161,536
17,243,518 500 13,583,832 500
1,791,385 2,564
5,600,958 2,000,858
5,263,708 3.051.143 861,779 1.033,755
39923361 9280475 19,807,309 3,208,626
15,925,973 17.691.103 4.722.726 5,838,292
3844 17,808 - 9210
183 106,276,529 89 7 35,800,817



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUR, INC.

{A Nonproflit Corporation)

INTERIM STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Quarters Ended March 31, 2023 & 2022

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of revanues over expensss bafore income tax
Adjustments for:
Depraciation (Note 19 and 20)
Provislon for retirement benefit
Unroellzed gain on financial assats at falr value through profit o (688
Working capltal adjusiments:
({Increase) decreass ir:
Trade and oiher recsivables
Prepayments and other cumrent assets
Increase (decreasa) in:
Trade and other payables
Membears' deposits and credit balances
Accrued provision for probabla claims
Contract Liabilities
Income Tex ;akl -
Net cash flows from gpiarating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to:
Proparty and equipment (Note 7)
Investment Property {Note 8)
{iIncrease) decrsass in trust funds
(increase) dacreass in Deferred tax Asset
(Increase) decrease in Deferred tax Liability
{Increase) dacraase in other non-current assets
Procesds from sale of property and equipment
Nat cash flows used In investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of shares of stocks

Paymants of shori-tarm loans-net

Net cash flows (used In) financing activitios
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF QUARTER

2023 2022
JUL-MAR JUL-MAR
24,082,124 9,200,912
16,625,873 17,691,103
{1,498,080) {328.601)
(410,204)
(13,507,855) (5,428,031)
{1,337,750) (1,656,317)
5,112,873 9,408,636
1,139,882 817,180
o 0
6,471,855 4,196,875
35977818 31,598 368
(30,809,120} (37,358,245}
0 68,014
0 o
165,876
(165,878)
74,825 (302,438)
= 0 0
130.734.296) (37,800,669
0 0
238846 [
-_236 545 Q
5,008,677 (4,002,302)
81.715.093 61,715.093
B6.721.770 47.712.791




VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A NonProfit corporation)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITY
For tha Quarters endsd March 31, 2023 and 2022

CAPITAL BTOCK (Note 15)

Issued and outstanding
Balence at beginning of year
Issuance of sharas during the ruarter
Balarice at end of suarter

Subscribad
Balance at beginning of year
.Subscriptions during the quarter
Subscription paid during the quarter
Subscriition cancelled durin; the uerter
Balance at end of cuarter

2023
MAR

14,346,000

14,346,000

14 346 000

14 346 GO0

14,348,000

CONTRIBUTIONS IN EXCESS OF PAR VALUE
Balance at beginning of year
Pramlium on shares lssued during the quarter-net
Premiums on subserlotion cancelled durin:i the nuarter
Balance at end of Juarter

TREASURY SHARES
Balance at beginning of year

_Rerurchased/ Buyack fr Stockhoiders
Balance at end of ;uarter

ACCUMULATED EXCESS OF REVENUE AND
MEMBERS' SUPPORT OVER EXPENSES (Note 15)
Balance at beginning of year
Excess (deficlency) of revenue and members'

support over expenses

_ Other Comprehensive Income/Loss

Balance ai end of cuarter

TOTAL MEMBERS' EQUITY

201,827,772

14.348 000

201,827,772

201827 772

201,827,772

47,257,868

24,082,124
1654 999

38,803,005

8,200,812
1 027 482

68675013

47 131.398

285,649,786

283.105.171



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
{A Nongprofit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate information

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. (the Club) was organized in the Philippines and registered with the
Securlties and Exchange Commission {SEC) on May 14, 1958 as a nonprofit corparation for a term
of 50 years up to 2008. The Club's corporate life was extended for another 50 vears from May 15,
2008 as confirmed and ratifled by the stockholders on November 18, 2007 and approved by the SEC
on April 29, 2008.

The primary purpose of the Club is to foster and promote the game of golf and operate and maintaln
2 golf course and country club and, generally, to do and perform &ll such acts and things, and exercise
such powers as are ordinarily done, performed and exercised by soclal and athletic clubs and
associations.

Prior to 2012, the Club was exempt from payment of income tax on income derived from seclal,
recreational, and athletic activities on a nonprofit basie provided that no part of the Club’s iIncome shall
Inure to the benefit if any of its members, trustees and officers under Section 30 (E) of the Tax Reform
Act of 1997,

On August 3, 2012, the Bureau of Intemal Revenue (BIR) issued RMC-35-2012 ¢larifying that clubs
organized and operated exclusively for pleasure, recreation and other non-profit purposes are subject
to income tax and value added tax (VAT) on their income from whatever source, including but not
limited to membership fees, assessment dues, rental income, and service fees.

On August 13, 2019, the Supreme Court (SC) declared that membership fees, 2ssessment dues, and
fees of similar nature collected by Clubs which are organized and operated exclusively for pleasure,
recreation, and other nonprofit purposes do not (a) constitute as "income of recreational clubs from
whafever source” that are "subject to Income tax”, and b) form part of the “gross recelpts of
recreational clubs” that are "subject to VAT". Since then, the Club stopped collecting refated output
VAT for membership fees, assessment dues and fees of similar nature.

The registered office of the Club, which is also its principal place of business, is located at Don Celso
8. Tuason Avenue, Victoria Valley, Antipolo Clty.

2, Summary of Slanfflcant Accounting Pollcy

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on historlcal cost basis, except for the debt instrument
gt fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and tfrust fund which are measured at fair value. The
financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, the Club’s functional and presentation currency.
All amounts are rounded off to the naarast peso, except when otherwise indicated. The financlal
statemnants provide comparative information In respect of the previous period.

Statement of Compliance
The interim financlal reports have been prapared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRSs).

ANLSS 1S '| OO L | S

The accounting policies adopted are conslistent with those of the previous financial year except that the
Club has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starfing July 1, 2020. Adoption of
these pronouncements did not have any significant impact on the Club's financial position or
performance unless otherwise indicated.

+ Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, Definition of a Business

7



s Amendments to PFRS 7, Flnancial Instruments: Disclosure and PFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, Interast Rate Benchmark Reform

+ Amendments to Philippine Accounting Standard {PAS 1, Presentation of Financlal
Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes 'n Accounting Estimates and Errors,
Definition of Material)

s Conceptuatl Framework for Financlal Reporting issued on March 29, 2018
¢ Amendments to PFRS 18, COVID-19 related Rant Concessions

nd Interpretations Issued but not yet aff
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwlse Indicated, the Club
does not expect that the future adoption of the sald pronouncements to have a significant impact on
Its financial statements. The Club Intends o adopt the following pronouncements when they become
offective.

Effective beginning on or after July 1, 2021

+ Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7, PFRS 4 and PFRS 16, Interest Rate Banchmark Reform-
Phase 2

Effective baginning on or after July 1, 2022
« Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framewark
o Amendments to PAS 16, Plant and Equipment: Proceads before Intended Use
s Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracte-Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
s Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

» Amendments to PFRS 1, Firsi-time Adoption of Phillppine Financlal Reporting
Standards, Subslidiary as a first-time adopter

» Amendments to PFRS 9, Financlal Instruments, Fees In the "10 per cent test for
deracognition of financiatl liabiities

» Amandments to PAS 41, Agriculture, Taxation in fair value measurements

Effective beginning on or after July 1, 2023

s Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Llablliies as Current or Non-current
» PFRS 17, insurance Cantracts

Deferred effectivity

s Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financlal Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or
Contributions of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

Current versus non-current classification
The Club presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current and
noncurrent classification. An asset is current when It is:

¢ Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle.

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be reallzed within 12 months after the reporting period; or

¢ Cash and cash equivalents unless resiricted from belng exchanged or used to settle a llability

for at least 12 months after the reporting period



All other assets are classified as noncurrent.

A liability Is current when:
o |iIs expected to be setfled in the normal operating cycle.
¢ [tis held primarily for the purpose of trading.
o ltis dua o be settied within 12 months after the reporting pertod; or
e There Is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting pertod

The Club classifies all other liabllities as noncurrent.

Deferred tax assets and llabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and llabllitles.

Cash an

Cash consists of cash on hand and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
instruments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three
months or less from dates of acquisition and that are subject to an Insignificant risk of change In value.

Finan men
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset or one entily and a financlal
Hability or equity Instrument of ancther entity.

anitic
Flnanciai assets are classlﬂed at lnitlal reoognmon as suhsequenﬂy measured at amortized cost, falr
value through other comprehensive Income (FVOC) and FVTPL.

The classiication of financial assets at initlal recognition depends on the financlal assets contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Club's business model for managing the financial assets. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing companent the Club inttially
measures & financial asset at Ite fair velue plus, in the case of financial assets not at FVTPL,
transactions costs.

In order for a financlal asse to be classified and measured at amortized cos or FVOCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of princlpal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
cutetanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and Is performed at an instrument leval.

The Club’s business madal for managing financlal assets refers to how it manages is financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, sefling the financlal assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention In the marketplace (regular way irades) are recognized on the
trade date Le., the date that the Club commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Club's financial assats are in the nature of financial assets at amortized cost and financial assets
are FVTPL. The Club has no financlal assets at FVTPL as of Saptember 30,2021 and no financial
assets at FVOCI as of Saptember 30, 2021.

For purposes of subsaquant meaaurement f‘ nanclal assets are classifled In four categories:

¢ Financlal assets at amortized cost {debt instrumenta)

¢ Financlal assets at FVOCI with recycling of cumulative gaing and losses (debt Instruments)

e Financial assets designated at FVOCI with no recyeling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition {equity Instruments)

e Financlal assets at FVTPL.



Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments}
The Club measures financlal assets at amortized cost If both of the following conditions are met:

* The financlal asset Is held within a business modsl with the ohjective to hold financlal assets
In erder to collect contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

Financlal assets at amortized cost are subsequantly measured using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of Income
when the agset is derecognized, modifled or impaired.

The Club's financial assets at amortized cost includes cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and Trust Fund.

Financlal essefs at FVTPL

This include financial assets held for trading, financig) assets designated upon inktial recognition at
FVTPL, or financlal assets mandatorily required to be measured at falr value. Finencial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing In the near
term. Derlvatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging Instruments. Financial instruments with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at FVTPL, Irrespective of the business model. Debt
instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financlal assels at FVTPL are carrled In the balance sheet at falr value with net changes in falr value
racognized In the statement of Income.

The Club's financial assets at FVTPL Includes its investment in unit investment trust fund (UITF).
mpalr of Fi j

The Club recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at
FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Club expects to recsive, discounted et an approximation of
the original EIR. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are iIntegrated to the confractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase In credit risk since inftial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
evants that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increasa in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance s
required for cradit losses expected over the remalning life of tha exposure, Irespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

For cash in bank and cash equivalents, short-term deposits under "Other current assets” account and
trust fund, the Club applies the low credit risk simpiification. It Is the Club’s policy to measure ECLs on
such Instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been a significant increasa In credit
rigk since origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL. The Club congiders a financial
asset in default when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

For trade and other recelvables, the club applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefors,

the Club does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime

ECLs at each reporting date. The Club has established a provision matrix that Is based on its historical
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credit loaas experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific io the debtors and the economic
environment.

Definition U
The following are the criterfa:

When there 18 a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its credltors, including the Club, in fufl (without taking inte account any collaterals
held by the Club)

The Club considers that default has occurrad when a financlal asset Is more than 120 days past due
unless the Club has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more conservative
default criterion is meore appropriate.

Credit-impaired financiel assels
Evidence that a financlal asset Is credit-impaired inciudes observable data about the following events.

¢ significant financial difficulty of the lssuer or the borrower
a breach of confract, such as a default or past due evant
the lender(s) of tha borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relafing to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having

» granted to the borrower a concesslon(s) that the lendar({s) would not otherwise consider

= itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financlal reorganization;
or

« the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financtal difficutties

The Club Implements a policy on its recelvables, whereln members who are delinguent or those with
accounts that are past due for a certain period are raported to the BOD. The respsciive shares or of the
Juridical entities they represent shall be ordered sold by the BOD, through an auction, to satlsfy the claims
of the Club.

Write-off policy

The Club writes off a financial asset when there is Information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financlal difficulty and there Is no realistic prospect of recovery, e. g. when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered Into bankrupicy proceedings. Financlal assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Club’s recovery procaduras, taking Into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoverles made are recognized In the statemant of Income.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

s the rights to receive cash flaws from the asset have expired

¢ the Club retains the right to recelve cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them In full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through” arrangement; or

e the Club has transferred its rights to recelve cash flows from the asset and elther (a) has
transferred substantielly all tha risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} has neither transferred nor
retained substantlally all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the
asset.

Financial liabllitles (including interest bearing lvans and borrowings) pertain to issusd financial
liabllities cr their components that are neither held for trading nor designated as at FYPL upon the
incaption of the flablitty and contain contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset

11



to the holder or to settie the obfigation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financlal asset for a fixed number of own equlty shares.

All loans and borrowings are Initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received less
directly atiributable debt issuance cost. Debt issuance costs are amortized using the EIR method and
unamortized debt Issuance costs are Included and cffset against the related carrying value of the loan
in the statement of financlal position.

This accounting policy applies primarily to the Club’s ‘trade and other payables', ‘members’ deposit
and othera'.

nition of FI ial Assats and Ligbili
Financlal assets
A financlal asset {or, where applicable & part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar finanelal
assets) Is derecognized when:
¢ the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
e the Club retains the right to recelve cash flows from the asset, but hag assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third patty under a "pass-through® arrangement:
or
» the Club has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either {a) has
transferred substantiglly all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of
the asset.

Financlal ffablitfes

Initial Recognition and Measurement of Financlal Llabllities .

Financial ltabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial llabllitles at FVTPL, loans and
borrewings, payables, or as derivative designated as hedging instruments In an effective hedge, as
appropriate,

All financial liabilitles are recognized nitially at fair value and, in case of loans borrowings and
payablas, net of directly atiributable transaction costs.

The Club has no financial fiabllitles at FYTPL and derivative instruments at the moment.

surement of Financial Liabll

Loans and borrowinge and Payables

This is the category most relevant to the Club. After Initlal recognition, loans and borrowings and
payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognized in the statement of income when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the
EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calcutated by teking into account any discount or
premlum on ecquisition and fees or costs that are an intagral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization
is included as finance cost In profit or loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
A financlal llability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or has expired.

Offaetting of Financiel Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitles ere offset, and the nst amount reported In the statement of
financial position If, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right fo offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to reallze the asset and settie the liabllity
simultaneously.

Fair Value Measurement
The Club measures finsncial Instruments and non-financlal assets at fair value at each financial
reporting date. Falr value Is the price that would be received to sell and =sset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair vaiue
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measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

e [n the principal market for the asset or llablllty, or

» Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

Fair value hlerarchy
s Level 1-Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilliles
+ Level 2-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input tax that Is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indiractly observable,
s Level 3-Valuation techniques for which the lowerdevel input that Is significant to the fair value
measurament i3 unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Club has determined classes of assets and Nabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hlerarchy.

|oventories

Inventories consist of gasoline, maintenance supplies, spare parts, office supplies and others.
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Costs incurred In bringing
each product to its present location and conditlon are accounted for using the first-in, first-out method.

NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. In determining NRV, the Club considers any adjustment necessary for spoilage,
breakage and obsclescence. An allowance for inventory cbsolescence Is determined based on a
regular review and management svaluation of movement and condition of supplies.

Property and equipment, except for land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated Impairment losses, If any. Land is siated at cost less any Impalrment in value. The Initlal
cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any direclly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condltion and location for its intanded use. Expenditures for additions,
major improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintenance are
charged to expense as Incurred. Whan assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, thelr cost
and related accumulated depreciation and amortization and accumulated impairment losses are
removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or foss is reflected in income for the period.

Depreclation is computed on the straight-line method over thelr estimated useful lives as follows:

Land improvements 3-50 years
Building and structures 5-50 years
Ground tools and service machinery and equipment 3-10 years
Fumniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 years
Transportation equipment 5 years

Construction In progress is stated at cost. Depreciation is computed when the construction Is
completed.

The residual values and estimated useful lives of property and equiprment are reviewed and adjusted,
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period to ensure consistency with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from items of property and equipment.

An Itam of property end aquipment Is derecognized upon disposal or when no future ecenomic
benefits are expected from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising from derecognizing
of the asset (calculated as the difference betwsen the net disposal proceeds and the camrying amount
of the ltem) Is included In the statement of comprehensive income in the year the Item ls derecognized.

Fully depreciated assets that are still used in operations continue to be carrled in the accounts.

Investment Property
13



Investment property, which consists of land and bullding held for rentals or capital appreciation or
both, Is stated at cost for land and at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment In value for
buikling. The cost of the asset comprises s purchase price and other direct costs. Depraclation on
the bullding Is computed on a siraighi-ine basis over the estimated useful iife of 20 years.

Transfers are made to investment property when thers is a change In use, evidenced by ending of
owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction
of development. Transfars are made from investment property when there Is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencament of development with a view to
sale. These transfers are recorded using the cairying amount of the Investment property at the date
of the change in use.

Gains or losses resulling from the sale of an investment property are recognized in profit or loss.
Investment property Is deracognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic beneflt is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal
of an Investment property I& recognized in the statement of comprehensive Income in the year of
retirement or disposal.

Computer Software

Computer software, included as part of ‘Other noncurrent assets’ is inlially recognized at cost.
Following initial recognition, computer software is carried at cost, less accumulated amortization and
any accumulated Impairment In value.

Computer software is amoriized on a stralght-line basls over its estimated useful economic life of
three (3) years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indleation that the Intangible asset
may be impalred. The amortization commences when the computer software Is avallable for use.
The period and methed of amortization for the computer software are reviewed at each end of the
reporting period. Changes In the estimated useful life is accounted for by changing the amoriization
period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Trust Fund
Trust Fund pertains to short-term deposits for which the use Is resiricted fo the dally operations of the

Club.,

The CIub assesses at Ihe end of each raportlng perlod to Idantlfy Indlcal!ons that property and
equipment and other non-financial assets may be impaired or, an mpairment lose previously
recognized no longer exists or may have decreased. i any such Indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asast is the higher of its net selling price and value In use. In assessing
value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value, using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of monay and the risks specific
to the asset. Whera an asset does not generate cash inflows largely Independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows indepandently (l.e., a cash-generating unit).

An impalrment loss is recognized in the statemant of income whenever the carrying amount of an
assel, or the cash-generafing unit to which It belongs, exceeds its recoverabla amount. Impairment
losses recognized with respect to cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the assets In the unit {or group of unlis) on a pro-rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
assat should not be reduced below Its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, K
determinable.

An Impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favorable change In the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of impalrment loss is limited to the asset's carrying
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amount that would have been determined had no Impalrment loss been recognized In prior years.
Reversals of impairmant losses are recognized In the statements of income.

Capital Stock
Capltal stock is measured at par value for all shares lgsued.

Contribution in of Par Value
Amount of contribution in excess of par value Is accounted for as an additional paid-in-capital.
Additlonal pald-In-capital also arises from additional capital contribution from the members.

Accumulated Ex 8
Accumulated axcess of revenue over expanses represants accumulated net profits (losses).

Revenue from contracts with customers Is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Club expecis to
ba entifed in exchange for those goods or services. The Club has generally concluded that It Is the
principa! in its revenue arrangements, except for the concessicnaire services, because it typically
controls tha goods or servicas before transferring them to the customer.

nition (prior ion of PFRS 1
Revenues from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are

transferrad to the customers at an amount that refiects the consideration to which the Club expects
to be entitiad In exchange for those goods or services. The Club generally concluded that it is the
principal in its revenue arangements, except for the concessionalre services, because it typically
controfs the goods or servicas before transfarring them to the customer.

Tha following are the Club’s performance obligations:
Membership Dues

Members’ dues pertain to monthly members' dues and administration fee charged to the Club's
members and past Club presidents, respectively. Revenues are recognized over time when
membership dues are due and demandable, net of any discount. Any advance payments are
recorded under "Contract llabllities “account In the statement of financial position.

{n Variable Consideration
-Discount on annual dues are pravided to the members when they pay the annual dues in
advance. The discount Is equivalent to one-month membership dues and is presented as a
reduction to the revenue recognized.
-Discount on prompt payments are provided to members when they pay their account balance
in full within one month after bifling. To estimate the variable conslderation for the expected
discount on prompt payments, the Club applies the most likely amount.

Sports and Recreation

Sports and recreation pertaln to fees charged for use of the Club’s golf and swimming pool facilities.
This also Includes the sarvice fee charged for every play of golf. Revenues are recognized overtime
when the related services have been rendered.

()] Vartable Consideration
-Discount on green fees are provided to guests when they purchase coupons which may be
redeemed at a later date. Upon redemption, the green fee revenue recognized is net of the
discount.

Assessment for Road Maintenance

Assessment for Road Maintenancs Is Income generated from the use of the Club’s main road Don
Calso S. Tuason Avenue. Revenues are recognized overtime wher: the related services have been
rendered.
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Corporate Services

Corporate services pertain to fees charged by tha Club for processing membar’s transactions. This
includes transfer fees and service charge on playing guests. Transfer fees are transaction faes for
transfers of member's shares of stocks. Service charges on playing guests are transactions fees or
cash requirements |n arder to process the Club’s playing rights to outside Individuals. Revenues are
recognized overtime when the related services have been rendered.

Concession Fees

Corporate services pertain to fees charged by the Club to Its concessionalres in exchange for the right
granted for processing member's transactions. The amount of the commiasion income is based on
the terms of the concessionaires’ agreements. The Club acts as an agent on its concession
agreemants since it does not have controf over the specified goods or services that wifl be deliverad
by the concessionaires to the Club’s members and guests. Revenues are recognized at a polnt in
time when the concessionalre has dellvered the goods to the members and guests and the related
servicas have been rendered.

Revenue from Special Events
Revenue from special events pertains to fees charged for goif tournaments and Club’s soclal events.
Revenue Is recognized overtime upon occurrence of the event.

Patronage Fees

Patronage fees are consumables that members are entitiad to for the consumption of food provided
by the Club's concessionaire. Revenues are recognized overtime upon determination of the expired
and unconsumed portion of the minimum required purchase of food & beverage, subject to the Club's
policy. Any advance payments are recorded under "Confract liabllities™ account in the statement of
financial position,

Sale of Properties
Revenue from sale of propertles Is recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is

transferred to the customer. The Club consliders whether there are other promises In the contract that
are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated.
In determining the transaction price for the sale of properties, the Club considers the effects of variable
consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and
consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Surcharge on Past Due Accounis

Surcharge on past due accounts are penalties charged to members with delinquent accounts for over
45 days from the statement or cut-off date of the later statement of account until the account is paid
in full. Revenuss are recognized at a point in time upon collection of the amount charged to the
member for delayed payments.

Receivables
A recelvable represents the Club’s right to an amount of consideration that Is unconditional {l.e. only
the passage of time Is required before payment of the consideration Is due).

Contract asseis

A confract esset Is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or sarvices transferred to the
customer. If the Club performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment 18 due, a contract asset is recognized for the samed
consideration that is conditional.

Coniract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services o a customer for which the Club has
received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Ciub transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract llability Is
racognized when the payment is made, or the payment Is due (whichever Is earlier). Contract
liabllities are recognized as revenue when the Club performs under the coniract,
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Interest Income
Interest is recognized as income when it accrues, taking into account the effective yleld on the assst.

Cost and Expenses

Cost and Expenses are decreasas In economic banefits during the accounting perlod in the form of
outflows or decreasss in assets or incurrence of liabilities that result In decreases In equity, other than
those relating fo distributions to equity participants. Cost and expsnses are recognized when Incurred.

Leases

Determination of Whether an Arrangement Contains a Leass

The Club assesses at contract inception whether a contract le, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
confract conveys the right to control the use of an kientified asset for a period of time In exchange for
consideratlon.

Club as a Lessor

Leases where the Club does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset
gre classified as operating leases. Lease Income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and Is included In profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs Incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recoghized as revenue in the perlod in which they are earned.

m
Defined Beneflt Plan
The net defined benefit [labllity or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the definad benefit
obligation at the end of the financial reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (If any),
adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling.

The assaet celling is the present value of any economic benefits avallable in the form of refunds from
tha plan or reductions In future contributions to the plan.

Defined bensfit costs compriae the following:

s Service cost-include current service costs, past service costs and galns or losses on non-
routine settlemeants are recognized as expenses In siatement of Income. Past service costs
are recognized when plan amandment or curtallment occurs. These are calculated perlodically
by independant quallfled actuaries.

s Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset-the change during the pariod in the net
defined benefit liabllity or asset that arises from the passage of time which Is determined by
applying the discount rate based on govemment bonds to the net defined banefit llabliity or
asset. Net interest on the net defined beneflt llability is recognized as expense or income In
statement of Income.

s Re-measurements of net defined benefit llability or asset-comprises actuarlal gains and losses,
return on plan assets and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling {excluding net intarest
on defined benefit liability. These are recognized immediately in OCI in the perlod In which
they arise. Re-measurements are not reclassified to statement of income in subsequent
periods.

Plan assets sre assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not avallable to the craditors of the Club, nor can they be paid directly to the
Club. Fair value of plan assets Is based on market price information. Whan no market price |s avallable,
the falr value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount
rate that reflects both the risk essociated with the plan asssts and the maturity or expected disposal
date of those assets {or, If they hava no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related
obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets Is higher than the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset s limited to the present value of
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economic benefits avallable in the form of refund for the plan or reduction in future contributions to the
plan,

The Clubs right to bs reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation is recognized as & separaie asset at fair value when and only when relmbursement Is
virtually certaln.

I

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabillties are measurad at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and the tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred Income tex is provided, using liabllity method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amecunts for financlal reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred Income tax hiabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the
dofarred tax liabillty arlses from the Initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability In a
transaction thet is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable Incoma or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate Income tax {MCIT) over regular
corporate Income tax (RCIT} and unused net operating loss carryover {(NOLCO), to the extent that it
ls prabable that sufficient future texable profits will be availabla against which the deductible temporary
differances and the carryforward benefits of unused tax credits and unused tax losees can be utllized
axcept whera the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the
initlal recognition of an asset or liability In a transaction that is not a business combination and, at tha
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred Income tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the exten! that it Is no longer probable that sufficlent taxable profit will be avallable to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has bacome
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferrad tax assets to be recoverad.

Deferrad tax assats and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset Is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or subsiantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax relating to
Items recognized directly in equity Is recognized in equity and not In the statement of income.

The Club offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabllities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax asset and current tax liabilittes and the defarred tax assets and deferred tax
liabllities relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entitles which intend either to settle current tex Hiabllitles and assets on a net basis,
or io realize the assets and settle the liabllities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amount of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Value Added Tax (VAT)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, If applicable.

When VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from purchases
of goods or sarvices (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable In the statement of financial
position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds VAT from
sales of goods and/or services (output VAT), the excess Is recognized as an asset in the statement
of financial position fo the extent of the recovarable amount.
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For the non-VAT registered activitles, the amount of VAT passed on from its purchase of goods or
sarvica s recognized as part of the cost of goods/asset acquired or as part of expense item, as
applicable.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized for llabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Club has a legal or
conetructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of aconomic benefits
will be required to settle tha obligation and a reliable sstimate can be made. Whera the time value of
money |s material, provisions are made by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting Is used, the increase in the proviglon due to the
passage of ime ls recognized as an interest expanse.

Where the Club expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset but only when the recsipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to and
any provislon is presented In the statement of Income, net of any reimbursement.

Contingencles

Cantingent liabllities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are digclosed In the notes
to financial statements unless the possibllity of an cutflow of resocurces embodying esconomic beneflts
is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized In the financial statements but are disclosed in the
notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Where It Is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannet
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent lizbillty, unless tha probability of
cutflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of ohe or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probabliity of cutfiow of economic benefits is remote.

v the Re
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Club’s position at the reporting
date (adjusting events) are reflected In the financial statements. Post year-end avents that are not
atjusting events are disclosed In the notes to financial statemenis when material.

3. 8l A ting Judgments

The preparation and fair presentation of the accompanying financlal statements In compliance with
PFRS requires management toc make Judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in
the financlal statements and related notes therato. The judgments and estimates used In the
accompanying financlal statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as of the date of the financial statements. Future event may occur which will cause
the assumptions used In arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change In estimate
ara reflected In the financlal statementa as they become reasonably determinable. Actual results
could differ from such estimates,

Judgments and estimates are continually and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under the circumstance.

Judgments
In tha process of applying the Club’s accounting policles management has made the following
Judgments which have the most significant effect on the accounts recognized in the financlal
statements:

Revenus from coniracts with customers
The Club applied the following judgement that significantly affect the determination of the amount of
revenue from contracts with customers:

s Principal versus agent considerations
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The Club enters into contracts with s concessionalres to perform, on their behalf, sale of goods
and services to its members. The Club determined that it does not control the goods befora they
are transferred to customers therefore It Is an agent in these contracts.
» The Club I8 not primarily responsible for fulfiliing the promise to provide the goods and
services.
¥ The Club's revenue is in the form of a fixad commission income as established in the
concassion contract with the concessionalres.
» The Club does not have inventory risk befora or after the goods has bean transferred to
the customer.
¥» The Club has no discretion In establlghing the price for the goods and services.

Operating Lease-Club as Lessor

The Club has enterad into commerclal property leases. The Club has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease tarm not constituting a
major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that It that it
retains substantially all the risks and rewards Incidental to ownership of the properties and accounts
for the contracts as operating leases.

ti and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
raporting dats that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
asseis and liabliities within the next financial year.

Estimation of Provision for Expecled Credit Losses (ECLs} of Trade and Other Receivables

The Club uses a provision matrix {o calculate ECLs for its trade and other receivables. The rates are
based on days past due of each member that have simllar loss pattern. The provision matrix is inftlalty
based on the Club's historical observed default rates. The Club calibrates the matric to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward looking Information. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-lecking estimates are
analyzed.

Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment and invesiment properfias

The Ciub estimates tha useful lives of property and equipmeant and investment properties based on
tha perled over which the Club’s property and equipment and Investment properties are expected to
be avallable for use. The esfimated useful lives of property and aquipment and investment propertias
are reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical
wear and tear, technical or commerclal obsclescence and legail or other limiis on the use of these
assets. In addition, the Club's estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment and investment
propertles are based on collective assessment of industry practice, Intemal technlcal evaluation and
experience with similar assets,

For the perlod under review, there were no changes In the estimated useful lives of the Club’s property
and equipment and investmenti properties.

Determining Relirement Beneitt Cosls

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and the present value of the pension obligation are
determined using actuarlal valuation. The actuarlal valuation involves making various assumptions.
These Include the determination of the discount rates, future salary increases, tumover rate and future
pension increases. In determining the appropriated discount rate, management considers the market
ylelds on Philippine government bonds with terms consistent with the expected employee benefit
payout as at end of reporting periods.

The mortality rate Is based on publicly avallable mortality tables and is modified accordingly with
estimates of mortality Improvements. Future salary increases and penslon increased are basad on
expected future inflation rates for the Phifippines.

Assessing Recoverabillty of Deferred Tax Assets
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The Club reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date and reduced the
amounts to the extent that is no longer probabile that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
ali or part of the deferrad tax assets to be utllized. However, there i no assurance that the Club can
generate sufficient taxable profit to allow all or part of Its deferred taxable assets to be utllized.

Provigion and Contingencies

The Club is currently involved In varlous legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable costs for
the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with its counsel handling the
deferse in these matters and is basad upon an analysis of potentlal results. In the opinion of
managemant and lts legal counsel, the eventuai liability under these lawsults or ciaims, if any, will not
have a material or adverae affects on the Club’s financlal position and results of operations. It is
possible, however that the future results of operations could be materally affected by changes in the
estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings.

The Club has accrued provision for possible claims amounting to P5.67 million as of March 31, 2023.

4, Cash and Cash Equl

This account consists of:
As of Mar. 2023
Cash on hand and in banks 44.,864,744.74
Time deposits 11,857,024 97
56.721.768.711

Cash In banks earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term investments have
varying maturities of up to 80 days and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

5. Irade and Qther Receivables

The composition of this account follows:
As of Mar. 2023
Membaers 20,505,228.81
Others 8.589.745.04
29,094,974.85
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1.725.844,83)
£1,.369.129.92

Racelvables from members, which are due 30 days after billing date, are non-Interest bearing and
constitute a llen on the members' shares.

Other recelvables malnly pertain to the share of the establishments for the security services and

electricity and access roads around the Club, advances made to officers and employees and
racelvables from concesslonalres and varlous organizations.

The movement In allowance for ECL/allowance for impairment losa are as follows:

Balance at beginning of year 1,725,844 .83
Proviglon 0
Write-off R
Balance at end of quarter 1,725.844.93

6. Other Current Agsets

This aceount is composed of the following:
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As of Mar, 2023

Recoverable Input value added tax-net 1,845,002.03
Supplies inventory 5,253,698.36
Others 3.363.770.87

10,462,472.28

Recoverable input value added tax partaing to accumulated input tax on purchases of goods and
sarvices, which can be applied against future output tax.

Supplies inventary mainly include gascline and il stocks, grounds materials, office and statloneries,
shop and maintenance supplies and construction materiais.

Other current assets pertain fo creditable withholding taxes, prepald medical expenses, prepaild
insurance premiums and cther prepayments.

7. Property and Equipment
The changes in the property and equipment accounts are summarized below,
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8. _Investment Properties
The composition of this account follows:

2022
North
Clubhouse Land Total
Cost
July 1 53,718,366.46 73,682.74  §3,791,929.20
Disposals o - - B -
_Mar3d1 53.718.366.46 73,562.74  53,791,920.20
Accumulated Depreciation
July 1 53,668,048.27 -  £3,668,048.27
Depreclation __35,250.56 = 35250.58
Mar 31 = 53,703,298.83 _ = 63.703,298.83
Net Book Value __ 15067.63 73,882.74 88,830.37

Based on the latest appraisal reports submitted by Top Consult, Inc., independent appralser, dated
July 7, 2022, the fair value of the land with an aggregate land area of 8,055 sqm, and building with
total floor area of 2,271 sqm., amounted to P141,227,700 and P30,528,000, respectively.

Based on the latest appralsal reports submitted by Top Consult, Inc., independent appraiser, dated
June 24, 2021, the fair value of the land with an aggregate land ares of 8,055 sqm. and bullding with
total fioor area of 2,271 sqm., amounted to P99,205,800 and P30,528,000, respactively.

Rental income eamed from Investment property consists of iease of north clubhouse’s rooftop to a
local communications company (Smart Communications, Inc.) to be used as cell site under certain
conditions. Direct expenses related to investment properties consist mainly of amortization.

9. Trust Fund

Pursuant to the resclution passed by the stockholders on September 12, 1882, and as provided for In
the Club’s by laws, the trust fund committee is empowered to invest the Valley Golf Trust Fund, which
in no case shall be less than the original amount of 3.5 miflion, in leading universal banks in the
country,

The stockholders’ resolution further states that all proceeds from future sale of shares and real
property, Including all amortizations due on the sale of shares previously sold, shalf accrue to the trust
fund and that 85% of the interest Income of the fund shall ba made avallable for the maintenance and
repair of the golf course. The remaining 15% of sald interest income shall accrue to and form part of
the fund. The Septemnber 12, 1982 stockholders’ resolution was amended on May 21, 1989 as follows:
“That the proceeds of the sale of any real property of the Club cr shares of stock to be used for capital
expenditure and other Infrastructura project shail not form part of the Valley Golf Trust Fund. However,
any excess thereof shall form part of the Valley Golf Trust Fund.”

On February 18, 2021, the Club Invested a total of P14.8 million In UITF. The investment consists of

the Club’s trust fund, originally Invested In time deposits amounting to P4.8 million and additional
investment amounting to P10.0 million.

10. Other Noncurrent Assets

The composition of this account follows:

As of Mar. 2023
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Computer Software Cost 3,643,501.93
Amoriization (2,954, 216.28)
Net carrying amount 689,285.85
Programs In Progress 832,219.64
Others —_608,385.,86

212089115

Computer software licenses are amoritzed on a stralghtine basis over three years. Amorttzation
expense amounted to P112,755.11 for the 3rd quarter.

Miscellaneous deposits mainly pertain to deposlits with utility companies. The carrving amounts of the
deposits are regarded as [ts amortized cost since the timing of the refund or settlement of the depoalts
could not be reasonably estimated.

11. Trad= and Other Payables

The compesition of this account follows:

As of Mar. 2023

Accrued Expenses 3,016,278.52
Trade 6,785,681.16
Organizations and cooperative 9,799,638.44
Concessionairas 1,667,834.00
Cthers 7.635.997.87
28.905,427.88

Trade payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are payable to suppliers within 30 days.
Accrusd expenses are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest. These

pertain to accruals made for outside services, utilities and other various accruals. These are normally
settled throughout the financial year.

Organizations and cooperative are leans and advances by the employees from the assoclation and
obligations to other organizations.

Payable to concassionaires pertains to collections received by the Club for and on behalf of the
concessionalres.

Other payables mainly consist of deposits, withholding tax payable, uneamed revenues and refundable
digging deposits and retention payable.

12, Members' Deposits and Others
The breakdown of the account follows:

As of Mar. 2023

Cash deposit 12,220,450.00
Due to former members 6,151,780.93
Security Depoait --1.005,364.60
19.377.500.43

Cash deposit pertains to deposits made by playing guests. Any unpaid liabliities will be deducted from
this account and the excess will be refunded upon resignation of the playing guest.
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Credit balances of former members consist mainly of proceeds from auction sale of shares 8 payable
to former membaers.

Security dapoalt pertains to various deposits recelved by the Club from its concessionaires and lessee
and to be refunded at the end of thelr respective agreements.

13. Contract Liabilities / Membership Dues Pald In Advance
As of Mar. 2023
Membership dues pald In advance 10,408,662.50
Tournament Deposit 209,189.29
Green Fea coupons 685,920.04
Others 8,484,660,00
11.878.439.63

Membership dues paid in advance represents advance collection of monthly membership dues which
are applied In the next fiscal year.

Tournament deposits pertain to advance payments for an upcoming golf tournament.

Grean Fee Coupons are issued to PrimeSports which operated a driving range facllity within the Club
at a discounted rate. The coupons are issued at different prices. These coupons are sold te Korean
guaests by PrimaSports.

Others pertain to the advance payments of the members for dues and fees, and for golf cart storage
and locker rentals.

Prior to adoption of PFRS 15, the tournament deposit, green fee coupons and other advance payment
ara presented as parl of “Trade and other payables”
14. Accrued Provision for Probable Claims

Accrued provision for probable clalms pertains to the estimated liabllity to resolve various prebable

claims against the Club. Any payment of actual claims against the Club reguires the approval of the
BOD.

The information usually required by PAS 37, Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingant Assets,
is not disclosed on the ground that It can be expected to prejudice the outcome of these lawsults,
claims, arbitration and assessments.

15. Member’s Equity
The detalls of capital stock are shown below.

As of Mar. 2023 As of Mar. 2023

Shares Amount
Common shares-9,000 par
Authorized-1,800 shares
lasued
Balance at beginning of year 1,594 14,346,000
Additione during the quarter ] 0
Balance at end of quarter 1,594 14,346,000
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Subscribed
Balance at beginning of year
Subsecriptions during the quarter
Subscriptions paid during the quarier
Balance at end of quarter

Treasury Share

TOTAL

B....
...

Accumulatad excess of revenuas over expense P 71,340,012.01
Other Comprehensive Income (loss):
Item not to be reclassified to profit or loss In
subsequent perlods:
Beginning Balance {1,664,996.90)
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined
Benefit obligation 0
P_86.675.013.11

16. Revenue from Contracts with Customers
As of Mar, 31, 2023

Nature of Services

Membership Dues 52,934,826.90
Corporate Services 23,491,840.76
Sports and Recreation 23,197,105.94
Assessmant for Road Maintenance 22,116,291.57
Revenue from Speclal Events 24,706,478.51
Concessionalres Fee (Note 17) 5,308,041.49
Patronage Feas 2,631,766.19
Surcharge $18,165.35
Others

_4.872,790.07
159,875,315.78

Membership dues and assessments are collected by the Club from its members primarily to cover
expenges related to the maintenance and are utllized for improvament in the Club's facilities. The
collection of these dues and assessments does not arise from any sale of goods or services but are
Imposed to cover and defray necessary expenses related to the maintenancs of, and improvements
in, the Club’s facliities and as such, no part of the Club’s Income inures to the benefit of any of its
members.

Carporate services are collected from service charge and transfer fees.

Sports and recreation arise from green feas which are generated from the use of the Club's golf
courses-the North and South. For now, bolh courses are open only to the Club's members, their
dapandents and guests.

Assaessment for road maintenance are toll fees charged by the Club to users of the Club’s main road,
Don Caiso S. Tuason Avenue. A specified fixed rate ls charged for differant types of motor vehicies.

Revenue from speclal events are fees charged to the Club's members and their guests for golf
tournaments held at the Club. This also Includes assessment fees to the Club’s members for soclal
events,

Patronage fees are monthly consumables that members are entitled for the consumption of food and
beverage provided by the Club's concessionaires that has expired and unconsumed.,
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Surcharge are penaltles charged to members with delinquent accounts for over 45 days from the
statemnent cut-off date. A surcharge of 6% shall be Imposed on any account that remains delinguent
including Interest of 1% a month until the accourt Is fully settled.

Others pertain to Income earned by the Club such as sale of scraps, clamping fee, right of way, stc.

17. Concegslonajres’ Fees
This account consists of fees charged to the concesslonaires/service providers:

As of Mar. 31, 2023

Food and beverage services 4,237,873.92
Retsall services shop 1.080,167.57
Spa services -

§.308,041.49

Concesslon agreements entered by the Club are shown below.
Food and Beverage Services

a) New Mandarin Sky Food Group, Inc (NMSFG), a local food concassionalre and the Club entered
Info a concession agreement on October 1, 2022 whereby NMSFG shall provide quality and
healthy food and drinks, and render related services during special occasions including, but not
limited to, functions, tournaments, and programs at reasonable prices at the food outlet located
Inside the Owners's premises. The contract Is for a period of five (5) years from October 1, 2022
to September 30, 2027 subject to renewal upon mutual agreement of Owner and Concessionaire.
NMSFG shall pay a fee of ten percant (10%) of the gross sales per month exclusive of the 12%
value added tax.

b) Jay<'s Food Management, Inc. (JFMI), a local foed concessionalre and the Club entered into a
concession agreement whereby JFMI manages the food & beverage operations of the Club
located at the North Clubhouse. Said concassionaire shall pay afee of 7% plus vat of the monthly
gross sales including special functlons contracted for the members and guest and to purchase
one {1) share of stock. The share of stock is pledged to the Club as security deposit to answer
for any damages or expenses Incurred. The agreement I8 for a period of three (3) years from
August 1, 2018 to July 31, 2019. On June 15, 2018, the contract was extended for a period of
three (3} months, starting from August 1, 2019 up to October 31, 2019. The contract was further
extended for short-term periods until July 31, 2020. On July 18, 2020, the BOD approved the
contract extension for three (3) months after the end of the community quarantine. In Decembar
2020, the contract was expanded, on a temporary basls, to include the main clubhouse starting
January 1, 2021 untll such time a new concessionalre for the main clubhouse Is engaged. To
date, JFMI's contract was no longer renewed effective September 30, 2022,

c) Golf Kitchen OPC, local food conceselonalre and the Club entered Into a concession agreement
on November 1, 2021 whereby GKOPCI operates the coffee lounge and restaurant of the Club at
the Main Clubhouse. The agreement also provides that GKOPCI shall pay a fee of 5% of Its gross
monthly sales, exclusive of value added tax, local tax and service charge during the period of this
covid 19 pandemic. After the covid 19 pandemic or once gross sales has reached two million
pesos a month whichever comes first, GKOPCI, shall pay & concesslonaire’s fee of P10% of the
gross sales per month exclusive of the 12% value added tax, local tax and service charge.

¢). Daturak International Group, Inc. (DIGI) a local food concessionaire and the Club enterad into
concession agreement whereby DIGI manages the food and beverage operations of the Club at
the Tee House. The agreement also provides that the concessionaire shall pay a concassion fee
of 5% plus VAT of the monthly gross sales for the duration of the Covid pandemic situation.
Beginning on the first day of the month following the 1ifting of all alert levels in Rlzal provincs or
the gross sales reaching P2 Million a menth whichever comes first, concesslonaire shall pay a
concession fee of 10% plus Vat. The concession Fee shal! in no case be less than Forty
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Thousand (P40,000.00) a month. The agreement is for a period of five (5) years starting January
1, 2021.

d. Retall Shop
A locat company was awarded the concession to operate a retail sales outiet, referred 1o as

Pacsports Phils. Inc.inside the Clubhouse to serve exclusively the members, guests and
dependents. In consideration for operating the Shop, the Club charges a basic minimum monthly
rental of P70, 000 or 16% of their gross sales per month inclusive of value added tax whichever is
higher. The new agreement shall bacome effective on January 1, 2021 and shall remaln valid untll
December 31, 2023. The period may be extended upon mutual agreement.

18. Rentals

As of Mar. 2023
Golf cart rantal 9,676,408.12
Golf Cart Storage Fee 4,421,218.82
Venus and room fee 1,179,732.14
Locker rantal 773,426.88
Pullcart rental 1]
Driving range 294,127.20
Gommunication cell site (Note 8) 429,847.68
Others —29.400.00

-16.804.160.84

Golf carls, pull carts and locker pertain to rental fees charged to members and guests. The Club
provides puli carts to its members and guests in exchange for a rental fea for every play of golf.
Rentals of golf carts are for the use of the golf carts provided by the Club for its members and guests.
Rentals of lockers are for the use of the Club’s locker rooms.

Golf cart storage pertains to storage fees charged to members for safekeeping the golf carts in parking
station within the Club’s premises.

On September 18, 2016, the Club entered into a Build-Lease-Tranafer agreement with a third party
to construct a Double Deck Driving Range with amenities located at the narth course, The agresment
includes a lease term of fifteen (15) years which commenced on July 8, 2017. The lessee shall pay
a monthly lease of P25,000, inclusive of VAT, subject to a 10% escalatlon starting on the third (34)
year. As part of the agreement, the lessee shall pay P450,000 representing one (1) year advance
rental and six {6} months security deposit.

The axcess of principal amount of the refundable security deposits over its fair value, at inception date
of operating lease, is presented under "Other noncurrent liability"and its current portion under "Trade
and other payables” in the statement of financlal position.

The Club laases the North Clubhouse's roofiep to a local telecommunications company to be used as
a cell site under certain conditions. Monthly rental amounts to Php15,000, subject to a 4.5% escalation
starting on the fourth (4) year. The lease period is from October 1, 2007 to September 30, 2017,
renewable for a period to be mutually agreed upon by the parties. The contract was renewed in 2017
for a pariod of ten (10) years which took effectivity on October 1, 2017 and expiring on September 30,
2027.

19. Cost of Servl
As of Mar. 31, 2023

Qutside Services 42,489,458.71
Personnel cost {Note 23) 17,076,687.04
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 7. & &10) 15,678,518.38
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Utillttes 12,185,516.33

Repalrs and maintenance 7,667,197.77
Supplles 7.858,726.16
Club Events 24,635,861.54
Others 5.341,286,13

J32.413.251.96

Others pertain to insurance, ads & publication, promotional and Industrial expenses, parking fee and
other miscellaneous expenses.

20. Gencral and Administrative

As of Mar. 2023

Personne! costs (Note 21) 7,263,840.48
Taxes and licenses 5,064,951.31
Outside Services 2,514,662.08
Bank Charges 1,488,208.71
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 7. 8 and 10) 247.454.42
Others 3.906,440.11
20.488.555.11

Other expenses consist malnly of bank charges, supplles, utilities, club events, advertising expenses,
prompt payment discounts, Insurance and net expenses incurred during tournaments,

21. Personnel Costs
As of Mar. 2023
Cost of Services
Salarles and wages 15,160,628.20
Employees benefits 983,875.74
Ratirement benefit expense (Note 27) ... 532,184 00
17.070,687.84
Genera! and administrative
Sealaries and wages 6,508,600.11
Employees banafits 517,424.37
Retirement benefit expense (Note 27) _237.816.00
1.203.840.48
24,340,828 4%

22. |pcome Taxea
The composltion of provision for (benefit from) Income taxes for FY 2023:

Current 170,312
Deferred 403,601
~573.803

The components of the Club’s net deferred tex asset (liabllity) are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
Aliowance for ECL 183,623
Advance payments of membership dues and others 12,353
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Re-measurement Allowance for Impalrment losses -

168,97
Deferred tax liabilitles:
Re-measurement gain on deferred benefit obligation -
Rent Recelvable (339,178)
Interest Income from accretion _(3.909)
(343.087)
urza11)

As of June 30, 2022, the Club has avallable NOLCO amounting to P1,159,085 which can be claimed
as deduction from the regular taxable Income for the next three (3) consecutive taxable ysars starting
2021,

As of June 30, 2022, the Club has avallable MCIT amounting to 413,633 (year of expiration 2023-
2026) that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable iabillties.

On September 11, 2020, President Duterte signed into law RA No. 11484, An Act Providing for
COVID-18 Response and Recovery Interventions and Providing Mechaniems to Accelerate the
Recovery and Bolster the Resillency of the Phillpplne Economy, Praviding Funds therefor, and for
Other Purposes”, which shall be known and clted as “Bayanihan to Recover as One Act’.

On September 30, 2020, the BIR issuad Revenue Regulations No. 25-2020 implementing Section 4
{bbbb) of "Bayanihan to Recovery As One Act” which states that the NOLCO incurred for taxable
years 2020 and 2021 can be carried over and claimed as a deduction from gross income for the next
five (5) consecutive taxable years immediately following the year of such loss.

23. Related Party Disclosures

Related parties include members of key management personnel including directors and officers of the
Club and close members of the famlly and companies associated with these individuals. In
considering each possible related entity relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship and not merely the legal form. Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability to control, directly or indirectly, the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be refated if they
are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals
or corporate entities.

Gompensatlon & short-term beneﬂts of key management personnel amountad to P 2,451,081.33 as
of March 31, 2023,

B BSIS v I Boes

Compllmentary grean fes ooupons are glven to the BOD and certain officers for distribution to
preapective mambers and certain guests and friends of the Club. The amount of green fees charged
to playing guest ranges from P1,421 to #2,221. Green fee coupons expire after six (6) months. The
Club also authorizes certain Club officers 1o entertain house guests and use the Club's facilities frea-
of-charge.

24. Retirement Benefit Qbligation

The Club has a funded, non-contributory, defined benefit panslon plan covering all lts qualified officers
and employees. Under the plan, qualified officers and employess are entiiled to receive pension
benefits on a iump sum basis when they reach the retirement age of 60. With the consent of the Club,
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an employes may elect to retire early provided he has rendered at least 20 years of credited service
or at least 15 years of credited service and at least 50 years old. The prejected unit credit cost method
was used to determine the retirernent banefit costs and obligation.

Movemaent in retirement beneflt obligation as of March 31, 2023:

Balanca at baginning of year P 7,614,418.00
Retirement benefit expense 1,170,000.00
Contributions pald {1.498.880.50)
Balance at end of quarter P 7285427 80

The principal actuarial assumptions used in datermining retirement baneflt obligations for the Club's
retirtement plan are as follows:

2022
Discount rate 6.58%
Future salary increases 4.00%

The Club's latest actuarial valuation report was on June 30, 2022.

25. Financial Instruments

Financlal Risk Management, Obiectives and Policies

The Club's principal financial llabllifies comprise of trade and other payables, members’ deposit and
others. The main purpose Is to raise finance for the Club’s operations. The Club has various financial
assets such as cash In banks and cash equivalents, trade and other receivablas, short term
investments under "Other current assets", and trust fund, which arise directly from Its operations.

The main risks arising from the Club’s financlal instruments are credit risk and liquidity risk. The BOD
reviews and approved the policies for managing each of these risks:

Credit Risk

Cradlt risk is the risk that a counterparty will not maet its obligations under a financlal Instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financlal logs. The Club manages credit risk by establishing credit
limits at the level of the individual borrower, corporate relationship and industry sector. Also, the Club
transacts only with recognized third parties.

In addition, receivables balances are monitored on an ongoling basis with the result that the Club's
exposure to bad debts is not significant. Provistons for ECL/ Impalrment losses on recelvables wili
also be made i the slfuation so warrants subject to the BOD's review and approval.

Credit quality per class of financial asset

The credit quallty of financial assets is being managed by the Club using Internal credit ratings. High
grade financial assets are those that are current and collectible. Standard grade financial assets need
to be consistently followed up but arse still collectibla.

Cash in banks and cash equlvalents and trust fund are considered as high grade since these are
depesited with reputable financlal institutions.

High grade {rade receivables pertain to those recelvablas from customers that cansistently pay before
the maturity date. Stendard grade recsivablas include other receivables that are collected on thelr
due dates even without an effort from the Club to follow them up.

Past due but not impalired trade receivables include those that are past due but are still collectible.
Past due and individually impaired financial assets are those accounts identified by the Club that
needs to be provided with allowance. The level of this allowance Is evaluated by managament on the

basis of factors that affect the collectabllity of the accounts such as but not limited ta the length of the
Club's relationship with the member, tha member’s payment behavior and known market factors.
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Impairment of financlal assets
The Club's financial assets that are subject to the ECL model consist of cash In banks and cash
equivalents, trade and other recelvables and trust fund.

With respect to credit risk for thess financlal assets, the Club’s maximum exposure equals the carrying
amount of these instruments.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Club may not be able to settle or meet its obligations as
they fall due. The Club monitors and mainfains a level of cash deemed adequate by the management
to financa the Club's cperations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Falr Value M ments

Falr value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liabllity setlled, between
knowledgeable, willing partles in an arm’s length transaction.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trust fund, trade and
other payables, members’ deposit and others, and short-term loans, approximate their fair values due
to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Significant unobservable inputs for fair value measurement of the Club’s investment properties include
sales listing of currently executed transactions involving simllar tems within the immediate vicinity of
the property. The fair value of the Investments properties ls adjusted consldering the location, size
and physical sttributes of the property.

Falr Value Hlerarchy

The Club uses the following hlerarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technigue:

Leve! 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for Identical assets or liabllities.

Level 2. Thoss involving Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or llablity, efther directly (as prices) or Indiracily (derived from prices).

Level 3: Those Inputs for the asset or llabllity that are not based on observable market data
{unabservable inputs)

Thera are no changes In the valuation techniques used for assets classifled under lavel 3 category.
During the year ended June 30, 2021, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measuremenis, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measuremants.

Capital Manadement
The primary objective of the Club's capital management policy is to ensure that it maintains a strong

cradit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximiza stockholder value.
The Club manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes In economic
conditions. The Club is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. The Club considers
total members’ equity as capital.

No changes were made in the objectives, policles or processes as of March 31, 2023,

26. Other Mattars

Due to the dramatic rise in Covid 19 cases, the community quarantine for NCR, Rizal and other areas
was subsequently extended or changed.

The measures implemented by the government Impacted the Club’s daily operation due to delay in
operational movement brought by the sevaral lockdowns. In 2021, the Club resumed its operations on
a skeletal work force and adopted the work-from-home arrangement when deemed appropriate in the
circumstances. The Club maximizes Its use of online platforms for communications as a venue for
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group planning. Consldering the evolving nature of this outbreak, the Club will continue to monitor the
sltuation.

The Club was closed from January 8-12, 2022 due to the increasing number of positive Covid 19 cases
amengst the ranks of employees, including those in the frontlines. The risk of transmiasion got higher
desplte the safely protocols that the Club Is Implementing. During the clesure, the Club facilities were
thoroughly disinfeciad and continuous testing to exposed and infected employees were done.
Likewise, contract tracing to Identify who have been exposed was conducted. This Is necessary to
engure the safety & well-being of the general membership.

27. Supplsmentary Tax Information under Revenue Regulation (RR) 34-2020 and 15-2010

RR 34-2020

The Club I not covered by the requirements and procedures for related party transactions pravided
by RR-34-2020 which prescribed the guldelines and procadures for the submission of BIR Form 1709
Related Party Transactions form, transfer pricing documentation and other supporting documents,

RR 15-2010

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR 15-2010 prescribing the manner of compliance in
connection with the preparation and submission of financlal statements accompanying the tsx returns.
It includes provisions for additional disclosure requirements in the notes to the financial statements,
particularly on taxes, duties and licenses pald or accrued during the year.

The Club reported and/or pald the following types of taxes as of March 31, 2023:
Value added-tax (VAT)

The Club’s sales are subject to output VAT while its purchasas from other VAT-registered Individuals
or corporations are subject to input VAT. The Vat rate is 12%.

The NIRC of 1987 provides for the imposition of VAT on sales of goods and services. Accordingly,
the Club’s aales are subject to output VAT whlle Its purchases from other VAT-registered Individuals
or corporations are subject to input VAT. R.A. No. 9337 increased the VAT rate from 10% {o 12%
effective February 1, 2008.

Details of the Club's net sales/receipts, output VAT and input VAT accounts are as follows:

Net sales/Recelpts and Output VAT declared In the Club's VAT returns

Net Sales/ Recsipts Output Vat
Taxable Sales
Sales of services P 37,604,768.58 P 4,500,572.23
Exempt Sales —1.922.384.03 =
P 45.427.352.61 P 4.800.572.23
Input VAT

Balance at July 1, 2022
Current year's domastic purchases/payments for:

Goods other than for resale or manufacture P ,231,189.00
Capltal goods exceeding P1M 180,477.00
Domestic purchase of services 2,403,196.00
Less: Deferred Input Tax on Capital goods T
3,381,320.56
Applied against output tax ~:281,326.56

Balance As of Mar. 31, 2023 - -
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Withholding Taxes

Withholding taxes on 113,6800.24

compensation and benefils

Expanded withholding taxes 837,481.97
—9251.082.21

Other Taxes and Liconses
This includes all other taxes, local and national, Including real estate taxes, license and permit fees
lodged under “Taxes and Licenses” account under “Cost and Expenses® section In the statement of

Income:
Reg! Estate Taxes 4,012,863.74
Busineas taxes (Local Business 1,052,087.57
Tax)
Documentary Stamp Tax 0
Capital Galns Tax 0
Expanded Withholding tax =B

—5.064.961.31

Tax Assessments

The Club received BIR Letter of Authorlty (slLA201900004666 LOA-045-2021-00000410) on
December 7, 2021. The Club has already reproduced & submitted the documents as requested on
December 15, 2021 for the audt /verification of tax liabilities for the taxable year July 1, 2019 to June
30, 2020.

The Club recelved BIR Letter of Authority (eL.A201900004686 LOA-045-2021-00000124) on October

11, 2022. The Club has afready reproduced & submitted the documents as requested on October
18,2022 for the audit /verification of tax llabllities for the taxable year July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021.

28, Qther Information

As to material event/s and uncertainties, apart from those already disclosed or presented In the
accompanying financlal statement(s):

« There are no amount of changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim perieds of the
current financlal year or changes In estimates of amounte reported in prior financial years which
have a material effact in the current interim period.

s There are no issuances, repurchases and repayments of debt and equity securitias.

s There are no dividends paid (aggregate or per share) separately for ordinary shares and other
shares.

e There are no material events subsequent to the end of the interim period that have not been
reflacted In the financla! staternents for the Interim perlod.

= There are no changes in contingsent liabilitles or conttngent assets since the last annual balance
shaet date.

» There are no matsrial contingencies and any other event/s or transactiorva that are material to an
understanding of the current interim period.

» There are no materlal accounting change and the reason for making It.
3



» There are no material retroactive prior period adjustments made during any period covered by
the Interim financlal statements and the offect thareof upon the balance of retalned eamings.

e There are no adjustments which are in the opinion of managament necessary for a fair statement
of the results for the interim period presented. All adjustmenis made are of normal recurring
nature.

« There are no known trends, demands, commitmerits, events of uncertainties that will have a
maeterial Impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

+ There are no event/s that will trigger direct or contingent financlal obligation, including any default
or acceleration of an obligation.

e« There are no material off-balance sheet iransactions, arrangemsents, obligations (Including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company.

o The Club’'s materlal commitments for capital expenditures have bean approved during the last
fiscal year but are stiil ongoing and not yet completed ae of end of December 31, 2021. These
projects will ba carried forward to the next quarter until their completion. The fund to be used for
these projects will come from avallable cash or time deposit.

¢ Thers are no significant alements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuer's continuing
operations.

¢ The effects of seasonality/cyclicallty aspects on the inferim operations are not material.

s There are no segment revenue and segmant resuit for business segments or geographical
segment which have material effect in the current interim period.

All financial accounting records and related data have been made available to you. We are not aware of
any accounts, transactions and events or material agreements not falrly described, properly recorded and
disclosed under SEC Form 17-C. The Club has complied with all aspecis required thereto.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

INTRODUCTION

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the attached unaudited
interim financlal statements of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. for the 3rd quarter
ended March 31, 2023 (with comparative figures as of June 30,2022 balance sheet
and for the 3rd quarter ended March 31, 2022 statement of comprehensive income,
cost and expenses, cash flows & changes in equity respectively). Certain information
and footnote disclosure normally included in the audited financial statements
prepared in accordance with Philippine Financlal Reporting Standards have been
omitted.

1. PLAN OF OPERATION
OBJECTIVES:

a. To have a well-planned improvement of Club facilities and services.

b. Profitability and financial fiquidity for operations and to fund various projects.

c. To ascertain that the ongolng processes for controlling operations throughout
the organization are adeguately designed and functlonlng in an effective
manner.

ACTION PLAN:
1. Full implementation of the following priority capital expenditures:

a. To start Phase 2 of the Zoysia Infusion project by December 2022 with a
budget of P9 Million.

b. To start the construction of the Sewerage and Wastewater Treatment
Facility with a budget of P13 Million.

c. To start the Road Re-blocking of Don Celso Tuason Avenue from Ortigas
to Sumulong Gates with a budget of P17.5 Million by August 2022,

d. Partial implementation of the new Club Management and Accounting
System with a budget of P4 Million by December 2022.

2. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Completed Projects & Newly acquired fixed assets as of March 31, 2023:

a. Kitchen Renovation 277,7117.00
b. Tollet {Lower Veranda) 328,800.00
c. Motorola Radlo 752eye3549 14,800.00
d. Motorola Radio 7525eye3551 14,900.00
e. Motorola Radio 752eye3534 14,900.00
f. Hp Smart Tank Printer 14,620.00
g. Asphire i6 44,000.00
h. Brother Printer 10,9650.00
i, Hp Printer 615 13,620.00
j Lenovo Ideapad Laptop 56,300.00
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Alr Compressor

Motorola Radio 752eylt367
Motorola Radio 752ey6t178
Motorola Radio 752eylt256
Lenovo Slim Laptop

55" Samsung Smart Tv

Ipad 8th Gen 84gb - Bod
Ipad 9th Gen 64gb - Bod
ipad 8th Gen 64gb - Bod

20 Golf Cart Units

Ground Tools And Equipments
Asus Vivo Laptop 14" Laptop
Long Arm Backhoe
Samsung TV

Portable Radio

Samsung A4

Fire Suppresant

BN XESCECODODPOITF K

Total

Disposal as of March 31, 2023:
Total

On-going projects as of March 31, 2023:

Golf Carf Garage-2 Level

Carabao Grass Removal/ Zoysia |nfusion-PH1
Wastewater Traatment Facility

Carabao Grass Removal/ Zoysia Infusion-PH2
Tee Renovation

CCTV Project
AR System

Tollet et Mezanine

Lower Veranda Roofdeck FunctionRoom

Total

~T@ e apOP

21,500.00
16,000.00
16,000.00
16,000.00
48,995.00
30,089.00
18,900.00
18,900.00
18,800.00

6,000,000.00
108,670.00
38,888.00
5,089,286.00
24,990.00
14,285.71
12,990.00

_ §79,427.00

12,984,827.71

34,834,551.00
4,807,006.00
7,191,250.00
1,843,843.00-
536,281.00
87,219.00
745,000.00
384,893.00
218,126.00
50,848,179.00
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The FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS are as follows:

CURRENT RATIO - represents the ratio of cument assets
against current liabilities. This ratio represents the liquidity of the Club
or the available current assets to settle the current liabilities.

Current Assets
Current Ratlo = Currant Liabliitles
As of March 31. 2023 As of June 30. 2022 |
Current Assets - 105,084.342 84,254.043 |
Current Liabilities 71.830.038 59,342 364
Current Ratic 1.46 1.42

This above ratio indicates that the Club is a little more liquid as compared to
FY ended June 30, 2022. The principal reason Is the increase in current
assets by P20,830,299 (trade and other receivable contributed an increase of
P13,507,855) & increase in current liabilities of P12,487,674 (contract
liabilities increased by 57% or P8,471,855).

. ACID TEST RATIO - the ratlo Is an indicator of whether the Club has

sufficiant short-term assets to cover its short-term liabilities. This ratio is more
useful In certain situations than the Current Ratio, also known as the working
capital ratio, since it ignores assets such as inventory, which may be difficult
to quickliy liquidate.

Acid Test Ratio = Current Assets Less Inventory
Current Liabllities
As of March 31, As of June 30,
2023 2022
Current Assets less Inventory 99,830,642 80.465 037
Current Liabilities 71.830,038 59 342 384
Acid Test Ratio 1.39 1.36

The amount of Current Assets less Inventory for the 3rd quarter is higher than
the lavel as of June 30, 2022, while the amount of current liabllitles for the 3rd
quarter s likewiss higher than that of June 30, 2022 level, accounting for the
decline in the raflo.

. SOLVENCY RATIOS — are ratios that are calculated to judge the financlal

posltion of the Club from a long-term solvency point of view. These ratios
measure the club's abllity to satisfy lts long-term obligations and are closely
fracked by stockholders and investors fo understand and appreciate the
abillty of the business to mest its long-term liabllities and help them to assess
the long-temm Investment pf their funds In the business.
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a. LONG-TERM DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO - aims to determine the amount
of long-term debt the Club has undertaken vis-&-vis the Equity and helps
in finding leverage of the business. The ratio also helps in identifying how
much long-term debt the Club has to raise compared to its equity
contribution.

Long-Term Debt to Equity Ratlo = Long-Term Debt
Total Equity
| AsofMarch 31,2023 Asof June 30,2022
Long-Term Liabilities 7,752,042 8,655,057
Total Members' Equity 285,648,785 261,566,665
Long Term Debt to
Equlty Ratio 0.02 0.02

The ratio of .02 indicates that the Club derives two-thirds of s capital
financing from dabt and one-third from shareholder equity. This is still
considered a good ratio.

b. DEBT TO TOTAL ASSETS RATIO-  this represents the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets or the assets available to seftle outstanding
liabiliies of the Club. This is used to assess the total leverage of the
business. The higher the ratio, the higher the leverage and higher the
financlal risk on account of @ heavy debt obligation on the part of the
businass.

Total Liabilitles
Debt to Total = Total Assets
Assets Ratlo

_ As of March 31, 2023 _ As of June 30, 2022
Total Liabllities 79,582,081 87,007,421
Total Assets 365,230,866 329,564,086
Debt to Total |
Assets Ratio 0.22 0.21

The ratio of 0.22 for the 3rd quarter of FY 2023 is considered a good
debt ratio, the Club has a lower default risk as compared to last year
due to increase in total liabilities by P11,584,660 and increase In total
assets by P35,668,780.

c. PROPRIETARY RATIO - this ratio establishes between Stockholders’
funds and total assets of the business. It Indicates the extent to which
stockholders’ funds have been Invested in the assets of the business.

Proprietary Ratio = | Members' E



Total Asasts

| As of March 31,2023 | As of June 30, 2022

Total Members' Equity | 285,648,785, 261,566,665
“Total Assets 365,230,866 | 329,564,086 |
Asset to Equity Ratio 0.78 = 079

This ratio of 0.78 indicates the dependence of the company on equity to run
its business.

. DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO - the ratio Is used to evaluate a
company’s financlal leverage. It Is & measure of the degree to which a
company is financing its operation through debt versus wholly owned funds.
More specifically, it reflects the abllity of sharehciders equity to cover all
cutstanding debts in the event of a business downturn.

Total Liabllities
Debt to Equlty = Total Members’ Equity
Ratio -
| As ofMarch 31,2023 | AsofJune 30,2022
Total Liabillties 79,582,081 87,997,421
Total Members'
| Equlty | 285,648,785 261,566,866
| Debt to Equity Ratio 0.28 = 0.28

The increase in ratio means that the total liabilities comprise a higher
percentage of the total stockholders' equiy. This is the result of increase in
total liabilities (P11.58 milllon) compared to increase in members equity
(P24.08 milllon) as of the 3rd quarter.

. ASSET TO EQUITY RATIO — measures the proportion of the Ciub's asssts
that has been funded by the Stockholders

Asset to Equity Ratio = Total Assets
Total Members’ Equity

As of March 31,2023  As of June 30, 2022 |

 Total Assets i 365,230.866 320,564,086
Total Members' Equity 285,648,785 | 261,566,665
Asset to Equity Ratio - 1.28 | 128

The ratio of 1.28 for the 3rd quarter which is higher than 1.26 for the FY2022
is still considered as conservative.

. INTEREST RATE COVERAGE RATIO — measures the number of times a
company can make interest payments on its debt with its eamings before
Interest and taxes. It Is a debt ratlo and profitablility ratlo used to determine
how easily a company can pay interest on Its outstanding debt.



Interest rate coverage ratio = Earnlngs Before Interest and Taxes

Interast Expense
B As of March 31,2023 | As of June 30, 2022
EBIT j 24082124 10,354,885 |
interest Expense ) 0
" Interest Rate Coverage 0 0 I
Ratlo _ -

7. RETURN ON EQUITY —is calculated by dividing net income by shareholders’
equity. This is a profitability ratio that measures the abillty of a firm fo
generate profits from its sharsholders investments in the compeany. The
Return on Equity ratio shows how much profit each Peso of stockholders'
equity generates.

Return on Equity = Net Income (Loss)
Total Members’ Equity

As °f2“c‘,;’;" 31, As of June 30, 2022
' Net Income (Loss) 24,082,124 10,354,885
Total Members' Equity | 285,648,785 261,568,665
Return cn Equity 1 - 0.08 0.04

The operations for the 3R° quarter doubled the profit for each paso the
stockholder's equity generates as compared to FY 2022,

8. RETURN ON ASSETS (ROA) - measures the amount of profit
the company generates as & percentage of the value of its total assets.

Return on Assets - Net Income/[Loss)
Average Total Assets

As of March 31, 2023  As of June 30, 2022

Net Income! (Loss) 24,082,124 10,354,885 |
Average Total Assets 365,230,866 329 564,086 |

Retumn on Assets 0.07 0.03

Operations as of the 3rd quarter resulted to a net income of P24,082,124 as
compared o net income of P10,354,885 In Fiscal Year 2022 while Average
Total Assets yields to an increase of P35,666,780.

9. NET PROFIT MARGIN - is & financlal ratio used 1o calculate the percentage

of profit a company produces from its total revenue. It measures the amount
of net profit a company obtains per Peso of revenue gained.

Net Profit Margin

ot In



Total Revenus

B | AsofMerch31,2023 | Asof June 30, 2022
| Net Income/(Loss) = 24,082,124 10,354,885 |
 Total Revenus 177,380,931 162,442,487

Net Profit Margin 0.14 0.08 |

For the 3rd quarter, the Club gamered a positive profit margin of 0.14
indicating that the Club was able tc effectively control its costs, compared to
positive net profit margin of 0.06 for FY2022 ended June 30.

10. OTHER RATIOS
EARNING PER SHARE (EPS) - this represents the net income

per share of stock Issued and outstanding and subscribed. The resulting
number serves as an indicator of a company’s profitability.

Net Income/{Loss)

Earnings Per Share = Common Shares Outstanding
- _ ~ As of March 31, 2023 | As of June 30, 2022
| Net Income/ (Loss) - 24,082,124 10,354,885

Common Shares
Outstandin | 1.594' 1.594_
Eamings per share (EPS) 15,107.98 6,496.16

For the 3rd quarter ended March 31, 2023, the eamings per share is positive
P15,107.98 which is considered favorable.

The following are the detalls of the operations of the Club for the 3rd

quarter anded March 31, 2023 vs 2022.
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OPERATING RESULTS

1. Revenues - revenues went up from P115,476,441 in Mar 2022 o P
177,380,931 in Mar 2023 an increase of P61,904,480 or 54%. Revenues
from Contracts increased by P 59,886,933 or 60% due to: increase of
Revenue from special events by P24,233,865.51 or 5120%,
Concesslonaires fee by P2,996,042.48 or 130%, Sports and recreation by
P10,733,765.94 or 86%, Corporate Services by P7,483,758.76 or 47%,
Membership Dues by P12,020,630.90 or 29%, Assessment for Road
Malntenance by P3,018,028.57 or 16%, Surcharge income by P28,041.35
or 5%, decrease ars noted on: Patronage fee of P409.676 or 13% and
others by P217,523 or 4%. For the Rentals, increased from P15,285,029
in 2022 to P16,804,161 in 2023 or by P1,519,131 or 10% due to: venue
and room fee by P1,080,803 or 983%, Communication cell site by
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P210,752 or 96%, Golf Cart Storage fee by P1,589,344 or 56%, Locker
rental fee by P 101,800 or 15% as well as Driving range by P 26,739 or
10%, decrease are due to: Golf cart rental by P1,508,322 or 13% and Pull
cart rental by P385 or 100%. Unrealized gain on flnancial assets at fair
value increased by P300,224 or 273%. Interest Income increased by
P198,201 or 213%.

Revenue from speclal events weant up due to the major club toumaments
(e.g. Don Ceiso Cup Tournament) held after 2 years. Green Fees
increased due to the higher number of accompanled guests thersby
increasing also Self Insurance Fee & Service Fee for Non-Members.
Increase In number of playing members and assoclate dependents
rasutted in increass of Monthly Dues, Concessionaire fee (due to higher
food consumption), Service Charge Renewal Fee increased from P30k
gross fo P50k gross, for consultants and other positions P80k gross.

Monthly Dues went up due to higher number of Playing Rights members
& Associate Dependents in 2022, Green Fees increased due to higher
number of accompanied guests thereby increasing aiso Self Insurance
Miscellaneous Income increased dus to utility charges to the
concesslonaires, wheel clamping fees collected, sale of scrap, etc. Golf
Cart Storage Fee increased due to higher number of private carls stored
compared in 2022. Unrealized gains on Financial Assets represent the
increased value from investments in UITF, Increase In Road User Fee
were due to increase In passerby and delivery trucks. Tournament Fee
and Venue and room fee increased due to lesser restrictions In COVID.
Locker Rental went up due to higher bifiing. Interest Income increased
due to higher Interest rate on time deposits & transfer of time deposit to
operation.

Patronage Fee decreased due to higher availment of F&B facilities. Golf
cart rental decreased due to higher number of private carts being used.

2. Cost and Expenses - For the 3rd quarter ended March 31, 2023 the
fotal cost of services and genaral and administrative expenses amounted
to P153,298,807, representing an increase of P47,023,278 or 44% from
the previous figure of P106,275,529

Personnel expenses went up to P24,340,628 or by P2,134,353 or 10%
against last year of P22,206,176. Expenses which increased includes the
fi: Salaries and wages by P2,017,235 due or 10% due to the salary
increase to rank and file as implemented by DOLE which aleo increased
the contribution to government mandated benefits and increase in bonus
and gratuity by P117,118 or 8% which is also from the increase In the
baslc pay of the employees.

Supplies went down from P16,432,419 In 2022 to P16,179,348 or a
decrease of P253,071 or 2%. The change is due to the increase in:
Repairs and Maintenance by P306,958 or 4%, Operating Supplies by
P1,273,806 or 39%, Stationary Supplles by P338,070 or 34%. On the
other hand, a decrease in Gasoline and Oll by P1,626,473 or 48%, Dental
and medical by |P482,705 or 49% and Uniforms by P51,828 or 11% is
noted.



Utilities increased from P8,019,554 in 2022 to P12,741,832 in 2023 or an
increase of P3,722,277 or 41%. Electricity increased by P3,523,200 or
54% while Water increased by P333,471 or 18%, both increased are due
to higher consumption and rate from service providers. Communication
decreased by P133,393 or 18% due to reduced communication lines.

Outside services increased from P31,728,293 in 2022 to P44,984,121 In
2023 or an increase by P13,255,828 or 42%. Audit fees decreased by
P21,919 or 5%, Retainer’s fee decreased by P130,746 or 21%. Items that
increased are: Legal Fees increased by P778,030 or 112% due to legal
services rendered for Jose Tayawa case and the Land Encroachment
case filed against Ramoncito Tagle, Security Services Increased by
P4,231,819 or 52% due to higher rate per guard because of the DOLE
Wage Order and Increase In number of security guards. Laundry services
increased by P753,554 or 2009% due to tablecloths & other linens used
for Club operations since toumaments and events are already on their
peak season, Maintenance Crew increased by P3,301,730 or 214% due
to deployment of in-house casual & workers from service provider for the
general upkeep of the Club and increase from DOLE wage order. Goff
Course Maintenance Increased by P4,343,360 due to adjustment in
monthly service fee as per new contract.

Sundries went up from P 9,280,475 in 2022 to P39,123,361 in 2023 or an
increase of P 29,842,886 or 322%. The following sundries expenses
increased- Tournament Expense by P17,243,018 due to various club
tournament, last year no tournaments were held, Grand raffle expenses
by P5,600,958, no Grand Rasffle was also held last year, Board,
commitiee & stockholders by P590,722 or 88%due to various committee
meetings (hybrid) held & catering services during Stockholders mesting &
election, Promotional & Industrial increased by P353,271 or 449% duse to
F&B incurred for government & private transactions, Self-Insurance
Expense by P150,271 or 51% due to higher hole-in-one winners & goif
related accidents requiing medical afttention, Miscellaneous by
P2,212,565 or 73%, Christmas Fund expensas by P1,791,385, Dues and
registration fee by P11,630 or 21%.

A. BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

1. Cash and cash equivalents — increased to P56,721,770 in 2023 from
P51,147,281 in 2022 or by P5,574,480 / 11%.

2. Trade and other recelvables — went up from P13,861,275 in June
2022 to P 27,388,130 in December 2022, representing an Increase of
P13,507,865 or 97%. Increase was due to higher Members Account-
billings & charges.

3. Debt instruments at falr value — represents the short-term investment
of the funds from operations in UITF in the amount of P10.02Million
plus unrealized galns.

4. Other current assets — went up from P8,124,722 in June 2022 to
P10,462,472 in December 2022 which is an increase of P1,337,750 or



10%. Increase resulted from higher supplies inventory & advance
payment of real property taxes for Yr2023 to avall of discount.

5. Property and equipment — increased from P238,125,202 in June 2022
to P252,905,783 In December 2022 representing a gain increase of
P14,780,581 or 6% due to various Construction-in-Progress.

8. Investment properties — went down from P123,880 in June 2022 to
P88,630 in December 2022 due to depreciation.

7. Other non-current assets — went down from P2,204,718 to P2,129,891
due to amortization of the project.

8. Trade and other payables — went up from P23,792,665 in June 2022
to P28,9805428 In March 2023, representing an Iincrease of
P5,112,873 or 21%. ltems that increased are: Trade Payables by
P382,426 or 6%, Others by P7,6359897, Organizations and
cooperative by P2,332,058 or 31%. On the other hand, the following
decreased: Accrued Expenses by P2,332,605 or 44%,
Concessionaires by P835,560.

9. Members’ Deposits and Others increased from P18,237,703 to
P19,377,505 or P1,139,802 or 6%. Decreased were due 1o increase
in Cash deposit by P1,890,450 or 18% and Security deposit by
P740,000 or 279% due to increase in contractor's security deposit
Due to former members decreased by P1,490,557 or 20%.

10. Contract Liabilites-went up from P11,406,585 in June 2022 to
P17,878,439.83 in March 2023 due to increase in Membership dues
paid in advance by P458,163 or 5%, Toumnament deposit increased by
by P139,180.29, Green fee coupons decreased by P560,736 or 45 %
and advance payments for dues, golf cart storage and locker rentals
increased by P6,435,248,

11. Retirement benefit obligation —decreased from P7,614,418 in June
2022 to P7,285,428 in March 2023 or by P328,991.

12. Members’ Equity —increased from P261,566,685 in June 2022 to
P285,648,785 In March 2023 representing the addition to net income
from operations of P24,082,120 or 8%.
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
September 24, 2023 at 4100 rM.

Via Live Streaming, VGCCI I
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PROXY

No. 2023 - 0000 {incremental number to start with 0001)

b the undersigned member of Velley Golf &
Country Club, Inc., hereby name and appoim the following person to vote on the specified

matters:

orinthe
absence and/or non-attendance of my
PROXY the Chairman of the Meeting.

e

1.

- Agenda ftem _‘
To approve the minutes of the 2022 Annual
stockholders’ meeting. I

2.

To approve the Company’s 2023 Annualf
Report and Audited Financial Statements.

To confirm and ratify all acts and resolutions
of the Board of Directors & Management
{July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 inclusive). J

[&] @

To appoint External Auditors. |

L)

To cast votas for person/s to the 2023-2024
Board of Directors. \
Regular Directors '
1. Jose Arsenio Isidro D. Borromeo i '
. Marvin A. Caparros
Jose Ferdinand R. Gulang \
. EricR. lliescas
Constanting L. Kohchet-Chua
. Edward P. Lim |
. Luis G. Quiogue
Rafael 5. Raymundo
. Jose G. Razon ‘
10. Albert San Gabriel
11. Rio Sesinando E. Venturanza

@MU R WN

1. Robert John C. Baretio
2. Michael T. Echavez
3. Ricky Libago

independent Directors: ‘

as my proxy at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc..tobe
held on 24 Septamber 2023 at 4:00pm’, and/or any postponements or adjournment{s}
thereof, as fully and to all intents and purposes as | lawfully might or could do if present and

vaoting in person.

Place/Date

tackhelders may vote enine from Septembor 20, 2023 {slarting at B:00 2.m.} up to Seplember 21+, 2023 (3:00 pan.), Vating by

Proxyholders shall be an September 22, 2023 from 8:00 8. 12 5:00 p.m



Name and Account Number
of Sharsholder

Number of Sharas

Witness

Instruction: The member executing this proxy may withheld the authority to vete for
any nominee by lining through or striking out the name of the nominea.

VALIDATION OF PROXIES

Proxy form shall be validated as these are received by the Club, provided that the proxy
forms are submitted to the Club on or before 5:00 p.m. of Septembar 14, 2028 which is
consistent with the deadline provided under the Club's By-Laws. Valldation of proxy forms Is
on September 19, 2023 at 5:00 P.M. For partnarships, corporations, and assoclations, the
proxies should be accompanied by a Secretary’s Cartificate on the appeintment or
designation of a proxy/representative and/or authorized signatories.

LETTER OF INTENT AND DATA PRIVACY CONSENT

| _hereby declare and signify my intent to participate by
remote communication and exercise the right to vote in absentia in the September 24,
2023, Annual Stockholders' Meeting of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

By participating in the September 24, 2023, Annual Stockholders’' Meeting of Valley Golf &
Country Club, Inc. and in compliance with Republic Act No. 10173 (or the Data Privacy Act
of 2012} and its Implementing Rules and Regulations (IRR) effective since September 8,
2014, | freely and voluntarily authorize Valley Golf & Country Club, inc. to collect, record,
organize, use, disclose and/or otherwise process any personal information submitted in
connection with this declaration only for the purpose of allowing me to participate in the
stockheolders' meeting by remote communication and vote in absentia, | understand that

by giving this consent, 1 am not waiving any of my rights other than as authorized herein
under the Data Privacy Act of 2012 and other applicable laws.

Signaiure of Stockholders Account No.

Proxy No. 2023 - 0000



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
September 24,2023 at 4:00 PM.
Via Live Streaming, VGCCI

]-1.

ANNEAR ©

PROXY

No.2023 - (where____ isequaito aecount number of membars in the system)

1, _the undersigned member of Vallay Golf &
Country Club, inc., hereby name and appoint the following persons to vote on the
specified matters:

r- Name | Agendaltem ]
N I. To approve or disapprove ail the
The General Manager of VGCCI. | proposed Amendments to the Articies of ‘
Incorporation according to his sound
| discretions; and |

. To approve or disapprove all the‘
proposed Amendments to the Amended
IBy—Laws according to his sound|
discretions. |

as my proxy at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.,to be
held on 24 September 2023 at 4:00pm', and/or any postponements or adjournment(s)
thereof, as fully and to allintents and purposesas | lawfully might or could do if present and
voting in persen.

Placa/Date

Name and Account Number
of Sharaholder

Signature

Number of Shares

Witness

15inckholders may vole online from Septettber 20, 2073 {starting at B:00 o) up 10 Sephember 21-, 2023 (5:00 p.m.). Voting by
Pronyhualdirs shall be on September 22, 2023 from B0 a.m. by 5:000 .o



VALIDATION OF PROXIES

Proxy form shall be validated as these are received by the Club, provided that the proxy
jorms are submitted to the Club on or before 5:00 p.m. of September 14, 2023 which is
consistent with the deadline provided under the Club’s By-Laws. Validotion of proxy forms i
on September 19, 2023 ot 5:00 P.m. For partnerships, corporations, and associations, the
proxies should be accompanied by a Secretary’s Certificate on the appointment or
designation of a proxy/representative and/or authorized signatorles.

LETTER OF INTENT AND DATA PRIVACY CONSENT

| _ hereby declare and signify my intent to participate by
remote communication and exercise the right to vote in absentia in the September 24,
2023, Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of Valley Golf & Country Club, inc.

By panticipating in the September 24, 2023, Annual Stockholders’ Meating of Valley Golf &
Country Club, Inc. and in compliance with Republic Act No. 10173 (or the Data Privacy Act
of 2012) and its Implementing Rules and Regulations {IRR) effective since September 8,
2016, | freely and voluntarily authorize Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. to collect, record,
organize, use, disclose and/or ctherwise process any parsonal information submitted in
connection with this declaration only for the purpose of allowing me to participate in the
stockholders’ meeting by remote communication and vote in absentla. | understand that
by giving this consent, | am not waiving any of my rights other than as authorized herein
under the Data Privacy Act of 2012 and other applicable laws.

§ignature of Stockholders Account No,

Proxy No. 2023 - 0000



AMENDMENTS
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

ANNEX * \I -

To buy, lease or otherwise acquire, own, hold and dispose of, such real and personal property as may
be necessary, advantageous or convenient in the conduct of its business; to develop, improve,
subdivide any propertics owned by the corparation; o : sellj pta ares

e A OWER D L1

ARTICLE 1i, SECONDARY PURPOSES'

ALY 2ILall s
.

) S A0 LXCHANEE . L l ¥, r

ns; and generally, to do and perform all such acts and
things, and to exercise such powers as are ordinarily done, performed and exercised by social and
athletic clubs and associations.

ARTICLE 1Tl

That the place where the principal office of the corporation is to be established or lo
g : 3 Avenue, Vi

cated is Main

[2OR 3N, FUASOon D

Clubhouse, V3 x0lf & Country Club, Inf
Barangay Munting Dilaw, Antipolo, Rizal, Philippines.
ARTICLE IV

That said corporation shall have perpetual existence.
ARTICLE VI

That the number of directors of said corporation shall be Elgven (11) and that the names and
residences of the Directors of the corporation who are to serve until their successors are elected and
qualified as provided by the by-laws are as follows:

ARTICLE VIi

That the capital stock of said corporation Is Sixteen Million Two Hundred Thousand Pesos
(PhP16,200,000.00) divided into One Thousand Eight Hundred (1,800) common shares of the par
value of Nine Thousand Pesos (PhP9,000) each (as amended on September 13, 1981),

Said shares of stock shall be owned by and the interest thereof accrue only to the registered owner
thereof, who, aside from his rights as shareholder, may in addition, and subject to such rules and
regulations as may be promulgated by, screening and approval of the Board of Directors, be issued a
regular membership card that would entitie him to all the rights and privileges that are extended to

all holders of regular membership cards for the use and enjoyment of the facilities and premises of
the Club.




AMENDMENTS
BY-LAWS -

koA

ARTICLE IV - DIRECTORS
Section 1. Board of Directors - The business and property of the Ciub shalibe managed bya Boardg_t

i b .‘Vq_r_tril"-‘. Sha he Ingden " |-. tors, L ectors S8 e mmﬂ
one {1) vear, No Director can serve consecutlvely for more than_ﬂu_(i}_years.

No more than sixty (60) days prior to the annual meeting of stockholders, the President with the
approval of the Board of Dlrectors, shall appoint a N_Qmmm;mn Committee of five [5] stockholders.

Directors.
daysbeforetheannuai meetmg.alistofnotlessthan en (10 gg
1) candidates for the Independent DIrectors forthe Board of Dlrectors forthe ensuing

_f_!_hﬁ.l'l.ﬂmlnjﬂﬁﬂ nf candig : ractors 3
all candidates to ensure comphance with the required quahﬁcations Anguhg_nnmmaﬂgn._thg

l!lll..z..." & g - - X A0
annual meotmg that is sent out to each stockholder On

Section 3. Board Meeting - The regular meeting of the Board or Directors shall be held once a month
at such time and place as shall be determined by the Board. Special meetings of the Board may be
called by the President, or upon written petition of three (3) members. Notice of Board Meetings

shall be served on each director at least three (3) days before the meeting, unless notice is waived by
all the Directors present.

- ““ ARSI CAYN sk, L AT -



ARTICLE V - OFFICERS

Section 1. Designation - Majority of all the Board of Directors at its first meeting shall elect as
Executive Dfficers of the Club a President, a Vice-President, a Treasurer, a Secretary, a_Compliance
Officer and such other administrative officers as it may deem proper.

Section 2. Qualification - Ali Executive Officers of the Club must be incumbent directors, with the
exception on the Secretary and_the Compliance Officer who must, however, be residents and
citizens of the Philippines.

Section 4. Compensation ~ The compensation and working conditions of officers of the Club who are
not directors, Including the te Secretary 3 » Compliance Officer, shall be fixed by the
Board. Directors acting as such, or as officers of the Club including members of standing or special
committees, shall receive no salaries or fees, whatsoever for their services.

3L vaait z L5 ALIEE EX) WAL 1

Section 5. Dutics and Responsibilities - The duties and responsibiiities of the different ofticers
of the Ciub are as follows:

a) The President ~ The President shall preside at all meetings and shall sign the membership
certificate of the Club. He shall be the chief executive officer of the Club and have general
supervision of the business affairs and property of the Club and over its several agents and
employees, with authority to hire said employee, and dispenses with their services subject to
confirmation by the Board of Directors. He shall sign contracts on behalf of the Club and shall see
that all orders and resolutions of the Board are carried into effect. In addition to the above duties
expressly vested in him by these By-Laws, he shall do and perform such acts and duties as from
the time to time may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors.

b) The Vice-President - In the absence or disability of the President, the Vice-President shall
exercise all the powers and discharge all the duties of the President. The Vice-President shall, In
addition, have such powers and duties as may, from time to time be conferred on him by the
Board.

¢} The Treasurer - The Treasurer, except as otherwise provided by the Board of Directors, shall
have the custody of all moneys, securitles and values of the Club that come into his possession,
and shall keep regular books of accounts. He shall deposit said moneys, securities and values in
such banking institutions as may be designated, from time to time by the Board of Directors,
subject to withdrawal therefrom on the signature of such officers of the Club as the board may,
by resolution, designate. He shall perform all other dutles incident to his office and all that are
properly required on him by the Board of Directors. He shall furnish a bond conditioned upon
the faithful performance of his duties, if and when required so to do by the Board of Directors;
the amount of said bond to be determined and fixed by the said Board.

d) The Secretary - The Secretary shail issue notices of all meetings, shall keep their minutes, shall

have charge of the seal and corporate books; shall countersign the certificate of stock and sign

such other instruments as required such signature, and shall make such reports and perform such
other duties as are incident to his office or are properly required of him by the Board of Directors.

el B 1SR W4 )11Y) A LASY [BP0EL N
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ARTICLE V1l - MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Classification - Membership in the Club shall be classified into (a) Proprietary (b)
Playing Guest (c) Honorary (d) Social and (e) Lifetime.

a)

b)

<)
d)

A Proprietary Member is any person who is the registered stockholder of at least one (1) share
of stock of the Club whose membership had been previously approved as hereinafter provided.
In case the proprietary member is a juridical person it shall be entitled to designate its
representative who shall exercise all the rights and privileges of membership including the right
to vote, under texms and conditions spevified for such membership!

An Honorary Member is any person who has been conferred playing rights by the Board of
Directors under terms and conditions specified for such membership.

A Playing Guest is any person who is the assignee of the playing rights of a share of stock
registered in the name of another person.

A Social Member is a natural or juridical person who has been granted the privilege of using the
facilities of the club except the golf course under the terms and conditions specified for such

1 Approved by the Board of Directors during its regular meeting on May 20, 2023,
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